
August 10, 2022 

To, 

BSE limited 

25th Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, 

Mumbai- 400001 

PACE 

Scrip Code "543217" (Units) and Scrip Code "960327", 973069, "973070", "973754" and 974075 
(Debentures) 

Subject: Intimation under Regulation 52 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI LODR Regulations") and SEBI circular 
No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated April 13, 2018 in respect of the Debentures issued by 
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

We wish to inform you that the Governing Board ("Board") of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

("Manager"), manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT ("Mindspace REIT") at its meeting held on 
Wednesday, August 10, 2022 has, inter-alia: 

i. approved the Unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements and Unaudited 

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace REIT for the quarter ended 

June 30, 2022, and took on record the Limited Review Report by the Statutory Auditors; 

ii . declared distribution of Rs. 2811 million/ Rs. 4.74 per Unit for the quarter ended June 30, 2022. 

The distribution comprises Rs. 2615 million/ Rs. 4.41 per Unit in form of dividend, Rs. 190 million / 

Rs. 0.32 per Unit in form of interest and Rs. 6 million/ Rs . 0.01 per Unit in form of other income. 

iii. took note of the extension of the period of ROFO Offer Notice from 120 days to 240 days. Mindspace 

REIT has received a notice of intimation from Sustain Properties Private Limited ("Company'') and 

its shareholders vide its letter dated February 3, 2022 ("ROFO Notice") to offer all the outstanding 

equity shares held by the shareholders in the Company, representing 100% sharehold ing in the 

Company, to Mindspace REIT in accordance with the terms of the right of fi rst offer agreement 

dated June 29, 2020 ("ROFO Agreement"). Mindspace REIT was required to exercise the ROFO by 

issuing a written notice ("ROFO Offer Notice") to the ROFO Transferor within a period of 120 days 

of receipt of the ROFO Notice or such other period as may be mutually agreed between the parties. 

Pursuant to discussions between the Manager, the Company and the shareholders of the Company 

and based on certain commercial considerations, the Company, the Shareholders of the Company 
and the Manager mutually agreed to extend the period for the ROFO Offer Notice from 120 days to 

240 days. 

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
LLP Identification Number (LLPIN): AAM-1179 

Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, plot No. C-30, Block 'G', Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (El, Mumbai - 400 051 
Phone: +91- 22- 2656 4000 I mindspacereit.com 



iv. In furtherance to the memorandum of understanding executed between Gigaplex Estate Private 

Limited ("Gigaplex"), an asset SPV of Mindspace REIT and K Raheja Corp Private Limited ("KRCPL") 

dated December 16, 2019, read with first amendment dated March 8, 2021 ("MOU"), approved by 

the board of directors of Gigaplex on May 12, 2021, in relation to the proposed transfer of leasehold 

land admeasuring approximately 16.4 acres at Mindspace Airoli West by Gigaplex to KRCPL, which 

was reduced to approximately 5.7 acres ("Identified Area"), the Governing Board after deliberations 

decided that the Identified Area under the MOU, be retained by Gigaplex to explore development of 

a data center or office space and that KRCPL be approached for termination of the MOU, subject to 

terms and conditions of the MOU. 

v. approved amendment to the Policy on unpublished price sensitive information and dealing in units 
("Policy") by voluntarily extending the applicability of the policy to listed debt securities issued by 
Mindspace REIT and its Asset SPVs. 

Further, we have enclosed:-

1. Press Release in connection with the operating and financial performance of Mindspace REIT for 
the quarter ended June 30, 2022 as Annexure 1. 

2. Earnings presentation for quarter ended June 30, 2022 comprising of the bus iness and financ ial 
performance of Mindspace REIT for the quarter ended June 30, 2022 as Annexure 2 . 

3. Unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements and Unaudited Condensed 
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace REIT for the quarter ended June 30, 2022 
and the limited review report by the Statutory Auditors; as Annexure 3. 

4. Amended Policy on unpublished price sensitive information and dealing in units as amended as 

Annexure 4. 

Pursuant to Regulation 54(2) of the SEBI LODR Regulations, the details of extent and nature of security( ies) 
created and maintained with respect to each of the Debentures are set out at Note No. 16 of the 
Unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements and at Note No. 21 of the Unaudit ed 
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace REIT, which are enclosed herewith as 
Annexure 3 

The details of related party transactions are set out at Note No. 31 of the Unaudited Condensed 
Standalone Interim Financial Statements and at Note No. 50 of the Unaudited Condensed Consol idated 
Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace REIT, which are enclosed herewith as Annexure 3 

We also wish to inform you that record date for the proposed distribution to unitholders for the quarter 
ended June 30, 2022, will be Tuesday, August 16, 2022 (subject to approval by the Governing Board of the 
Manager) and the payment of distr ibution is proposed to be made on or before Thursday, August 25, 2022. 

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
LLP Identification Number (LLPIN): AAM-1179 

Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, plot No. C-30, Block 'G', Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai -400 051 
Phone: +91- 22- 2656 4000 I mindspacereit.com 



PACE 

The above information shall also be made available on Mindspace REIT's website viz; 

https://www.mindspacereit.com/home under investor relations tab. 

Please take the same on your record . 

Thanking you, 

For and on behalf of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

Authorised Signatory 
Name: Preeti Chheda 
Designation: Chief Financial Officer & Compliance Officer 

Place: Mumbai 

Encl: as above 

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
LLP Identification Number (LLPIN): AAM-1179 

Regd. Office: Raheja rower, plot No. C-30, Block 'G', Bandra Kurla Complex, Sandra (E), Mumbai - 4oo 051 

Phone: +91 - 22- 2656 4000 I mindspacereit.com 



 

1 
	

             Annexure‐ 1 
 

Mindspace REIT Announces Results for Q1 FY23, Committed Occupancy 
Increases on the back of Strong Leasing 

Committed occupancy jumps by 130 bps QoQ  

Gross leasing of c.0.9 msf during the quarter 

Strong Net Operating Income (NOI) growth of 10.9% YoY 
ss 

 

Mumbai,  August  10,  2022:  Mindspace  Business  Parks  REIT  (BSE: 543217 |  NSE: MINDSPACE) 
(‘Mindspace REIT’), owner and developer of quality Grade A office portfolio located in four key office 
markets of India, reported results for the quarter ended June 30, 2022.  
     

Q1 FY23 Overview 

 Recorded strong leasing of c.0.9 msf across 18 deals 

 Committed occupancy of the portfolio jumped by c. 130 bps QoQ to 85.6% 

 Re‐leasing spread stood at 36.4% on 0.5 msf of area re‐let  

 In‐place rents have grown by 9.3% YoY to INR 62.4 psf/month 

 Continue to deliver on NOI growth, NOI at INR 4,014 mn, up by 10.9% YoY 

 NOI margin remains strong at over 80% 

 Strong balance sheet with low Loan‐to‐value (LTV) of c.16.6% 

 Released 1st Sustainability Report, reiterating our commitment to sustainable development 

 Mindspace REIT Group features in India’s Great Mid‐Size Workplaces 2022 

 Commerzone Kharadi awarded by Architects Engineers & Surveyors Association Pune (AESA) for 
Good Practices in Building Design and Construction  

 Received LEED Platinum O&M certification across 6 Buildings & LEED Gold O&M across 5 Buildings 

 
Distribution 

 INR 2,811 Mn or INR 4.74 p.u. for Q1 FY23, a growth of c.3% on sequential basis 

 Dividend, which  is  tax‐exempt  in  the hand of unitholders,  forms  c. 93%  (INR 4.41 p.u.) of 
distribution while interest constitutes c. 6.8% (INR 0.32 p.u.) and other income of c. 0.2% (INR 
0.01 p.u.)  

 The record date for the distribution  is August 16, 2022, payment of the distribution shall be 
processed on or before August 25, 2022 

 
Speaking on the results, Mr. Vinod Rohira, Chief Executive Officer, said,  

“After recording one of the best years of leasing in FY22, the tailwinds continue to grow stronger as we 

enter  the  new  financial  year.  Our  strategy  of  upgrading  our  offerings  during  downtime  and 

implementing  the best asset management practices has allowed us  to benefit  from  the anticipated 

demand upswing. The committed occupancy of the portfolio has risen by 130 bps QoQ to 85.6% as we 

leased 0.9msf during the quarter. The demand recovery initially led by the large occupiers is now seeing 

a much broad‐based momentum. We expect a stronger recovery  in the second half of the year as a 

greater percentage of employees return to their offices.” 
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Investor Communication and Quarterly Investor Call Details  

Mindspace REIT has disclosed the following information pertaining to the financial results and business 

performance  (i) unaudited  condensed  standalone  and unaudited  condensed  consolidated  financial 

statements for the quarter ended 30 June 2022 and (ii) an earnings presentation covering Q1 FY2023 

results.  All  these  documents  are  available  on  Mindspace  REIT’s  website  at 

https://www.mindspacereit.com/investor‐relations/financial‐updates/#ir 

Mindspace REIT is also hosting an earnings conference call on August 11, 2022 at 16:00 hours Indian 

Standard Time to discuss the Q1 FY23 results. The dial in details is available on our website at 

https://www.mindspacereit.com/investor‐relations/calendar#ir and have also been filed with the 

stock exchanges.  

A replay of the call and the transcript will be available on Mindspace REIT’s website at 

https://www.mindspacereit.com/investor‐relations/calendar#ir  

Disclaimer 
This press  release  (“Press Release”)  (a)  is  for  information purpose only without  regards  to specific 

objectives, financial situations or needs of any particular person, (b) comprises  information given  in 

summary form and neither purports to be complete nor guarantees that such information is true and 

accurate, (c) should not be considered as a recommendation to any person to purchase / subscribe to  

any units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments issued or proposed to be issued by  

Mindspace  REIT  (d)  does  not  constitute  or  form  part  of  any  offer  for  sale  or  subscription  of  or 

solicitation or  invitation of any offer to buy or subscribe  for, or advertisement with respect to, the 

purchase or sale of any units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments of Mindspace 

REIT in any jurisdiction. 

This Press Release may include statements that are / may deemed to be, ‘forward‐looking statements’ 

which involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that 

may  or  may  not  occur  in  the  future.  Forward‐looking  statements  are  not  guarantees  of  future 

performance. Any projection of  future  income or performance  should be  viewed merely  as  a  fair 

estimate of the management of Mindspace REIT, which may be dependent on several factors and in 

no manner should be construed as an  indication of  its reflection  in the market price of units or any 

other securities / instruments issued or proposed to be issued by Mindspace REIT. No representation, 

warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made or assurance given that such statements, views, 

projections or  forecasts,  if any, are correct or that any objectives specified herein will be achieved. 

None of Mindspace REIT, or  its manager viz. K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP, or any of our 

affiliates or advisors, as such, (a) make any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to, and/or 

accept any responsibility or liability with respect to, the fairness, accuracy, completeness or correctness 

of  any  information  or  opinions  contained  herein,  (b)  accept  any  liability whatsoever  for  any  loss, 

howsoever, arising from any use or reliance on this Press Release or (c) assume responsibility to publicly 

amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements on the basis of any subsequent development, 

information or events, or otherwise. The  information contained herein  is subject to change without 

notice and past performance is not indicative of future results. 
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This Press Release has not been and will not be reviewed or approved by a regulatory authority in India 
or elsewhere or by any stock exchange in India or elsewhere and any prospective investor investing in 
units/debentures or other securities / instruments of Mindspace REIT should consult its own advisors 
before taking any decision in relation thereto.  
 
About Mindspace Business Parks REIT 
 
Mindspace Business Parks REIT, sponsored by K Raheja Corp group, listed on the Indian bourses in August 2020. 
The REIT owns quality office portfolios located in four key office markets of India, namely Mumbai Region, Pune, 
Hyderabad, and Chennai. It has a total leasable area of 31.8 msf, with superior infrastructure and amenities, and 
is one of the largest Grade‐A office portfolios in India. The portfolio consists of 5 integrated business parks and 5 
quality independent office assets. It has a diversified and high‐quality tenant base, with over 175 tenants as of 
June  30,  2022. Most  of  the  buildings  in  the  portfolio  are  either Gold  or  Platinum Green  Building  Certified 
(IGBC/LEED). The assets provide a community‐based ecosystem and have been developed to meet the evolving 
standards of tenants, and the demands of  ‘new age businesses’, making  it amongst the preferred options for 
both multinational and domestic corporations. To know more visit www.mindspacereit.com 

 

For further details please contact: 

Investor Relations  Corporate Communication 
Kedar Kulkarni 
ir@mindspacereit.com 
 

Cheryl Waldiya 
mediarelations@mindspacereit.com 
Phone: 9322198940 
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By attending the meeting where this presentation (“Presentation”) is made, or by reading the Presentation materials, you agree to be bound by the following limitations:

This Presentation (a) is for information purposes only without regards to specific objectives, financial situations or needs of any particular person, (b) should not be considered as a
recommendation to any person to purchase / subscribe to any units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments issued or proposed to be issued by Mindspace Business Parks
REIT (”Mindspace REIT”).

This Presentation and the information contained herein does not constitute or form part of any offer for sale or subscription of or solicitation or invitation of any offer to buy or subscribe for,
or advertisement with respect to, the purchase or sale of any units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments of Mindspace REIT in any jurisdiction, and no part of it shall form
the basis of or be relied upon by any person in connection with any contract or commitment whatsoever.

The material that follows is a presentation of general background information. We don’t assume responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements on the
basis of any subsequent development, information or events, or otherwise. This Presentation comprises information given in summary form and does not purport to be complete and it
cannot be guaranteed that such information is true and accurate. This Presentation includes statements that are, or may deemed to be, “forward-looking statements”. By their nature,
forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. Forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance including those relating to general business plans and strategy, future outlook and growth prospects, and future developments in its
businesses and its competitive and regulatory environment. Any projection of future income or performance should be viewed merely as a fair estimate of the management of Mindspace
REIT, which may be dependent on several factors and in no manner should be construed as an indication of its reflection in the market price of units, debentures, bonds or any other
securities / instruments issued or proposed to be issued by Mindspace REIT. No representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made or assurance given that such
statements, views, projections or forecasts, if any, are correct or that any objectives specified herein will be achieved. Neither we, nor any of our affiliates or advisors, as such, make any
representation or warranty, express or implied, as to, and do not accept any responsibility or liability with respect to, the fairness, accuracy, completeness or correctness of any information
or opinions contained herein and accept no liability whatsoever for any loss, howsoever, arising from any use or reliance on this Presentation or its contents or otherwise arising in
connection therewith. Unless otherwise stated in this Presentation, the information contained herein is based on management information and estimates. The information contained herein
is subject to change without notice and past performance is not indicative of future results.

The units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments of Mindspace REIT have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act, 1933, as amended (“U.S.
Securities Act”), or the securities laws of any applicable jurisdiction and these materials do not constitute or form a part of any offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to purchase or subscribe
for units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments in the United States of America or elsewhere in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration
under the U.S. Securities Act or the securities laws of any such jurisdiction. No units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments of Mindspace REIT may be offered or sold in the
United States of America without registration or an applicable exemption from registration requirements under the U.S. Securities Act. By accessing this Presentation, each investor is
deemed to represent that it is and any customer it represents are either (a) qualified institutional buyers (within the meaning of Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act) or (b) outside the
United States of America (within the meaning of Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act), and is a sophisticated investor who possesses sufficient investment expertise to understand the
risks involved in the offering.

This document is just a Presentation and is not intended to be a “prospectus” or “draft offer document” or “offer document” or “final offer document” or “offer letter” or “offering
memorandum” (as defined or referred to, as the case may be, under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules notified thereunder, and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real
Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, as amended, or any other applicable law). This
Presentation has not been and will not be reviewed or approved by a regulatory authority in India or elsewhere or by any stock exchange in India or elsewhere.

If we should at any time commence an offering of units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments of Mindspace REIT, any decision to invest in any such offer to subscribe for
or acquire units, debentures, bonds or any other securities / instruments of Mindspace REIT, must be based wholly on the information contained in an offer document or offering circular
(including the risk factors mentioned therein) issued or to be issued in connection with any such offer and not on the contents hereof. Any prospective investor investing in such invitation,
offer or sale of securities by Mindspace REIT should consult its own advisors before taking any decision in relation thereto.

This Presentation is not intended to be an offer or placement for the purposes of the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive (“AIFMD”), and any “marketing” as defined under
AIFMD may only take place in accordance with the national private placement regimes of the applicable European Economic Area jurisdictions.

Disclaimer
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Note: 

1. All the financial numbers in the presentation have been 

rounded off unless otherwise stated

2. Mindspace Business Parks REIT is referred to as Mindspace 

REIT in the presentation

3. “The Square Avenue 61 (BKC)” & “The Square Signatures 

Business Chambers (Nagar Road - Pune)” are referred as 

“The Square BKC” and “The Square Nagar Road” 

respectively in the presentation
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Mindspace REIT – At a Glance (Q1 FY23)

Operating Highlights1

0.9 msf

Gross Leasing

36.4 %

Re-leasing Spread (1)

on 0.5 msf

1. Re-leasing spread includes spread on extensions and on leasing of area vacant as of 31 March 2022

2. Annualized distribution yield basis Q1 FY23 distribution calculated on issue price of INR 275 p.u. (Yield on closing price of INR 350 p.u. as on 30 Jun 22 stood at 5.4%)

INR 63 psf/month

Average Rent for Area 
Leased

Financial Highlights2

INR 4,014 Mn

NOI
(10.9% growth y-o-y) 

6.9 %

Weighted Average 
Cost of Debt

6.9 %

Annualized 
Distribution yield(2)

Other Highlights3

INR 9.9 Bn

Raised NCD in Jun 22 
and Jul 22

INR 2,811 Mn

(INR 4.74 p.u.)
Distribution

Released

1st 

Sustainability 

Report
of Mindspace 

REIT

Architects  

Engineers & 

Surveyors 

Association Pune 

(AESA) Award
-Commerzone 

Kharadi

Mindspace 

REIT featured in 

India’s Great 

Mid-size 

Workplaces 

2022

0.4 msf

Re-leased Area

0.5 msf

New and Vacant Area 
Leased

Received Platinum LEED 
O&M certification across 6 
Buildings & LEED Gold O&M 

across 5 Buildings
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Leased to 

new tenants

10.7%

Leased to 

existing 

tenants

89.3%

Leasing Overview – Q1 FY23

0.9 msf leases signed across 18 tenants and achieved 36.4%(1) re-leasing spread on 0.5 msf(1)

36.4 %

Average Re-leasing Spread(1)

0.87 msf

Gross Leasing

Area Re-leased (2)

Note: All leasing numbers include LOIs signed

1. Includes spread on leasing of area vacant as on 31 March 2022

2. Includes Re-leasing of contractual expiries and leasing of early terminations

Q1 FY23

Vacant area leased

INR 63 psf/month

Average Rent for Area Leased

0.35 msf

0.19 msf

New area leased 0.33 msf

Q1 FY23 – Gross leasing

Assets Location Type Tenants
Leased 

(ksf)

Airoli (W) Mumbai New area
Enterprise 
Solutions

160

Madhapur Hyderabad
New & 
Vacant Area

Technology
Tenant

129

Madhapur Hyderabad Re-leased
Yash 
Technologies

127

Madhapur Hyderabad Re-leased Real Page 114

Airoli (E) Mumbai Vacant area
Technology
Tenant

92

Madhapur Hyderabad Re-leased Facebook 65

Others 184

Total 871

Gross 

Leasing

0.9 msf

Q1 FY23 - Split Basis Type of Tenants
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(in INR Mn) Q1 FY22 Q4 FY22 Q1 FY23
Growth 

(q-o-q)

Growth

(y-o-y)

Revenue from 
Operations(1) 4,218 4,703 4,916 4.5% 16.3%

NOI(1) 3,618 3,997  4,014  0.4% 10.9%

Delivered Sustainable Financial Performance

Performance driven by optimal revenue and cost management

Q1 FY23 - Revenue growth of 16.3% on y-o-y and NOI growth of 10.9% y-o-y 

Maintained over 80% NOI margin

Key 

Points

Revenue growth driven by rent commencement from new completions, escalations and MTM 
realization

1. Revenue from Operations & NOI numbers above include Regulatory Income/(Expense) of Power Business post re-classification
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Distribution for Q1 FY23

Over 90% distributions are in the form of tax-exempt dividends

Apr 22 to Jun 22Period

10 Aug 22Declaration Date

16 Aug 22Record Date

Payment Date
On or before 

25 Aug 22

Key Dates

INR 2,811 MnDistribution Amount

Distribution Yield (1)

Q1 FY23 Distribution of INR 2,811 Mn, INR 4.74 per unit resulting in Distribution Yield(1) of 6.9%

593,018,182Outstanding Units

6.9%

1. Annualized distribution yield basis Q1 FY23 distribution calculated on issue price of INR 275 p.u. (Yield on closing price of INR 350 p.u. as on 30 Jun 22 stood at 5.4%)

Dividend

₹4.41

93.0%

Interest

₹0.32

6.8%

Other Income

₹0.01

0.2%

Distribution 
per unit

INR 4.74
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Portfolio 
Overview
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Portfolio Overview

1. Comprises 24.4 msf Completed Area, 2.8 msf of Under-Construction area and 4.6 msf Future Development Area 

2. Market Rent of INR 71.7 psf considered for calculating MTM potential (basis valuer estimates)

3. Market Value as on 31 Mar 22

4. As on 31 Mar 22 and adjusted for completion status as of 30 Jun 22

Mindspace REIT is one of the largest Grade-A office portfolios in India

`

12.9 msf (40.6 %)

INR 101 Bn

5.4 msf (17.0 %)

INR 56 Bn

12.7 msf (40.0 %)

INR 99 Bn

Pune

Hyderabad

0.8 msf (2.5 %)

INR 8 Bn

6.8 years

WALE

31.8 msf

Total Leasable Area (1)

INR 62.4 psf

In-place Rent

14.8%
Mark to Market Potential(2)

INR 264 Bn

Total Portfolio 

Market Value(3)

85.4%
Same Store Committed 

Occupancy on 23.9 msf

85.6%
Committed Occupancy

on 24.4 msf

92.2%
Market Value 

of Completed Area(3)(4) 

Mumbai Region 

Chennai

Total Leasable Area

Market Value
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Five Integrated Business Parks

Note: Above areas include Under-Construction Area and Future Development Area

1. Total Leasable Area for these assets comprises only Asset SPVs’ share of the area 

Mindspace Madhapur

Hyderabad | 11.7 msf

Mindspace Airoli East 

Mumbai Region | 6.8 msf  

Mindspace Airoli West

Mumbai Region | 5.2 msf

Gera Commerzone Kharadi 

Pune| 2.9 msf (1)

Commerzone Yerwada

Pune | 1.7 msf (1)

Completed Area: 3.9 msf

Committed Occupancy: 67.2%

Completed Area: 1.5 msf

Committed Occupancy: 100.0%

Completed Area: 1.7 msf

Committed Occupancy: 98.4%

Completed Area: 9.9 msf; Committed Occupancy: 90.6% Completed Area: 4.7 msf; Committed Occupancy: 88.3%
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Five Quality Independent Office Assets

Note: Above areas include Under-Construction Area and Future Development Area

1. Total Leasable Area for these assets comprises only Asset SPVs’ share of the area

Commerzone Porur 

Chennai | 0.8 msf (1)

Paradigm, Mindspace Malad

Mumbai Region | 0.7 msf

Completed Area: 0.8 msf; Committed Occupancy: 36.5% 

Completed Area: 0.7 msf

Committed Occupancy: 100.0%

Completed Area: 0.4 msf

Committed Occupancy: 56.7%

Completed Area: 0.1 msf

Committed Occupancy: 100.0%

Completed Area: 0.7 msf;  Committed Occupancy: 93.6%

The Square, BKC

Mumbai Region | 0.1 msf

Mindspace Pocharam

Hyderabad | 1.0 msf 

The Square, Nagar Road

Pune | 0.8 msf
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Marquee Tenant Base

Share of foreign MNCs in 

rentals (1)

77.5%

Share of top 10 tenants in 

rentals (1)

36.3%

Share of Fortune 500 

companies in rentals (1)(2)

29.4%

Technology Financial Services Diversified

Leading MNCs and Fortune 500 companies across sectors

Technology Financial Services Diversified

1. Represents % of Gross Contracted Rentals as on 30 Jun 22
2. Fortune 500 Global List of 2021

Cognizant

Accenture Wipro

IBM Fiserv

Barclays

UBS

BNY Mellon

B.A. Continuum

Qualcomm Amazon

Schlumberger

Worley Parsons

Nvidia

Allstate

UHG

Verizon

L&T AMD Axis

GenpactCSC

Thryve

HSBC HDFCSharekhan Thomson Reuters

Facebook
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Technology 

(Development 

& Processes)

42.6%

Financial 

Services

18.0%

Telecom & 

Media

10.8%

Engineering & 

Manufacturing

6.7%

Healthcare & 

Pharma

5.6%

E-Commerce

2.7%

Professional 

Services

3.0%
Others

10.6%

Diversified Portfolio of Marquee Tenants

Diversified tenant mix across sectors
% split by Gross Contracted Rentals

(1)

Top 10 tenants Gross Contracted Rentals contribution (36.3%) 
% of total Gross Contracted Rentals

(1)

Reduced concentration risk with top 10 tenants contributing 36.3% (Jun 22) vs. 38.6% (Jun 21)

1. Basis Gross Contracted Rentals as on 30 Jun 22

Barclays

Total 

Tenants

178

5.9%

5.0%

4.2%

3.8%

3.4%

3.2%

2.9%

2.7%

2.7%

2.6%

Qualcomm

Wipro

IDFC

# of parks

2

2

1

L&T

Accenture

Smartworks

Cognizant

Verizon

Amazon

2

2

2

2

4

1

1
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1.1 
0.9 

1.1 

FY23 FY24 FY25

Revision to expiries as of Jun 22

Scheduled & Early Expiries as of Mar 22

Lease Expiry Profile 

Only 4-5% of portfolio is coming up for expiry each year over next 3 years

1. Impact of early termination of 65 ksf

2. Excludes early re-leasing of 0.19 msf during Q1 FY23

3. Includes efficiency adjustment 

4. Gross rent as % of total rent of Completed Area as of 30 Jun 22

5. Re-leasing spread includes spread on extensions and on leasing of vacant area

Strong re-leasing achieved as macro environment 
continues to improve

Track record of achieving Re-leasing spread        
across parks

4.4%Expiries(4)

5.3%MTM 

Opportunity 
23.7%

5.2%

26.8%

Area Re-leased (since Apr 19)

msf

36.4%
Re-leasing

Spread

Average 

Re-leasing Spread(5)
25.8%

65.2

1.1 (1)(2) 0.8 1.1

63.6

3.9%%

%

23.1% 19.1% 31.0%

Area Expiry (msf)

Rent at Expiry 

(INR psf)

Area Re-leased
Re-leasing of area vacated in FY22 

0.18 msf (3)

Re-leased in 

Q1 FY23 out 

of 0.23 msf 

expiry

Early Renewals

1.1  

2.2  
2.80  

0.19

FY20 FY21 FY22 Q1 FY23

0.5

0.1

(0.1)

0.01

54.4

0.17

0.18
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Projects 

Updates
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▪ Leasable area: 0.3 msf

▪ Status: 5th Floor work in progress 

▪ Estimated completion : Q4 FY23

▪ 100% pre-leased

▪ Balance cost: INR 752 Mn

Gearing for Demand Resurgence (1/2)

Note: As of 30 Jun 22
1. Includes ongoing projects INR 10,795 Mn, future development projects INR 7,811 Mn, recently completed projects INR 495 Mn, upgrades 

INR 2,752 Mn and fit-out / general development INR 402 Mn

▪ Leasable area: 1.1 msf

▪ Status: Façade, Entrance and 

Lobby work completed

▪ Received OC for 6 floors (0.5 msf)

▪ Estimated completion: Phased 

Completion by Q3 FY23 

▪ Leased/ Pre-leased: 821 ksf

▪ Balance cost: INR 622 Mn

Mumbai Region

▪ Leasable area: 0.7 msf

▪ Status: Façade, Lobby Finishes WIP

▪ Received OC for 4 floors (0.2 msf)

▪ Estimated Completion: Phased 

completion by Q3 FY23 

▪ Pre-leased the building (incl. hard 

option and ancillary area of 389 ksf)

▪ Balance cost: INR 1,013 Mn

Commerzone Kharadi 

(B5)

Pune Mumbai Region

Mindspace Airoli West

(Data Center)

Balance Capex  – INR 22,256(1) Mn (excluding approval cost)

Mindspace Airoli West 

(B9)
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▪ Leasable area: 0.05 msf

▪ Status: Excavation work in progress

▪ Estimated completion: Q4 FY23 

▪ Balance cost: INR 495 Mn

Gearing for Demand Resurgence (2/2)

Note: As of 30 Jun 22
1. MoU – Memorandum of Understanding
2. KRCPL – K Raheja Corp Private Limited (a KRC Group entity)

▪ Leasable area: 1.0 msf

▪ Status: Excavation & Foundation 

work in progress

▪ Estimated Completion: Q3 FY25

▪ Balance cost: INR 5,679 Mn 

Pune

▪ Leasable area: 1.3 msf

▪ Status: Demolition in progress

▪ Start Date: Q3 FY23

▪ Estimated Completion: Q1 FY26

▪ Balance cost: INR 6,041 Mn

Mindspace Madhapur

(1A-1B Re-development)

Hyderabad Mumbai Region

Mindspace Airoli East 

(High Street Retail And F&B )
Commerzone Kharadi 

(B4)

Perspective Perspective Perspective

To explore development of data centre or office space, Mindspace REIT has retained the land area of 5.7 acres at Mindspace 

Airoli (West) previously under the MOU(1) with KRCPL(2)
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Mindspace Madhapur, Hyderabad – Upgrade 

Integrated “Business Ecosystem” with various on-site facilities and amenities

Elevated Boardwalks for Ease of Movement – Phase 1 – Completed Bus bay canopy placement - Completed

Building Façade – Front elevation Completed Entrance Lobby Upgrade - Completed
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ROFO Update - Commerzone Madhapur, Hyderabad

Perspective

• ROFO notice received

• Potential acquisition evaluation under-progress

Project Details  

Total land area 9.07 acres

Land ownership Freehold

Leasable Area 1.82 msf

Pre-leased
1.82 msf

(including 0.2 msf of hard option area)

Configuration
2 B + 2 Stilt + 1 G + 20 office 

floors

Completion Status
Occupancy certificate 

received in Apr 22(1)

Fit-out status Tenant fit-out in progress

Note:

1. For KRC’s share of area

Perspective
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Financial 

Updates
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Stable NOI Growth Driven by Effective Cost and Revenue Management

NOI (Q1 FY23 vs Q1 FY22) - Reasons for variances

▪ Rent Commencement from New Leasing of The Square BKC, Commerzone Porur, B22 (Hotel) in Madhapur and B9 in Airoli (W)

▪ Lease Rent Escalations of 6.7% over an area of 9.0 msf across the portfolio since Q1 FY22

▪ Growth in Rentals due to 31.9% MTM achieved over 3.4 msf re-leased since Q1 FY22

Assets 

Revenue from Operations 

(INR Mn)
NOI (INR Mn) % of NOI 

Q1 FY22 Q1 FY23 Q1 FY22 Q1 FY23 Q1 FY23

Mindspace Airoli (E) 902 948 716 708 18%

Mindspace Airoli (W) 479 565 396 402 10%

Mindspace Malad 185 200 160 176 4%

The Square BKC - 117 (4) 113 3%

Mumbai Region 1,566 1,829 1,269 1,400 35%

Gera Commerzone Kharadi 325 405 286 302 8%

The Square Nagar Road 109 152 84 113 3%

Commerzone Yerwada 391 433 325 339 8%

Pune 825 990 694 756 19%

Mindspace Madhapur 1,783 2,006 1,591 1,740 43%

Mindspace Pocharam 23 22 18 11 0%

Hyderabad 1,806 2,028 1,609 1,751 44%

Commerzone Porur and Others 14 62 (4) 36 1%

Facility Management Business 164 226 50 73 2%

Inter Company Eliminations (156) (218) - - 0%

Total 4,218 4,916 3,618 4,014 100%
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NDCF Build-up 

Particulars (INR Mn) Q1 FY23

Revenue from Operations(1) 4,916 

Property Taxes & Insurance (153) 

Other Direct Operating Expenses (749) 

Net Operating Income (NOI) 4,014 

Property Management Fees (118) 

Net Other Expenses (98) 

EBITDA(1) 3,798 

Cash Taxes (Net of Refunds) (433) 

Working Capital changes and other adjustments (184) 

Cashflow from Operations 3,182 

Capex including capitalized Interest (1,874) 

Net Debt (repayment) / drawdown (2) 2,031 

Redrawal of part Pocharam sale proceeds temporarily utilised to repay debt (3) 300 

Debt drawn to service REIT debt 5,586 

Finance Costs paid for the period (excluding interest to REIT)(4) (429) 

Proceeds to shareholders other than Mindspace REIT (178) 

NDCF (SPV Level) (5) 8,618 

Net Distributions from SPV to REIT 8,563 

Redemption of Market Linked Debentures (5,548) 

Other Inflows / (Outflows) at REIT Level (198) 

NDCF (REIT Level) 2,818 

Distribution 2,811 

Dividend (3) 2,615 

Interest 190 

Other Income 6 

1. Includes Regulatory Income/(Expense)

2. Net of investments in fixed deposits and mutual funds

3. Since Pocharam sale proceeds are not envisaged for an immediate re-investment 
opportunity, INR 300 Mn, being part of such sale proceeds, is being paid out as per the 

terms of the REIT Regulations

4. Net of interest income

5. Net of repayment of REIT Debt by SPV which was further lent by REIT
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2,000

9,500
1,352

4,402

6,350

2,724 3,152

17,792

Q2-Q4 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 &

Beyond

Well staggered Debt expiry profile

REIT Level SPV Level

Low Leverage Offers Balance Sheet Headroom for Future Growth

Note: As of 30 Jun 22

1. For the purpose of LTV calculation, Net Debt is post accounting & minority adj. Market value is as on 31 Mar 22

2. Excluding accrued interest

INR 44,446 Mn

Net Debt

16.6 %
Net Debt to 

Market Value (1)

INR 3,805 Mn

Undrawn Committed 
Facilities

5.8 years

Wt. Avg. Maturity

6.9 %
Cost of Debt

(p.a.) 

Repayment 
(%) 2.9 % 13.5 % 33.5 % 5.8 % 6.7 % 37.6 %

Total

(INR Mn)
1,352 6,402

Low Net debt to market value of 16.6%(1)

Refinanced INR 4.9 Bn NCDs at SPV level in Jun 22 & INR 5.0 Bn NCDs at  REIT level in Jul 22

On a proforma basis (including July fund raise), proportion of Fixed cost debt stands at 40.9%

Facility-wise Break-up of Gross Debt

15,850 2,724 3,152 17,792
Debenture

43.2%

LRD/LAP

50.7%

OD

6.1%

INR
47 Bn(2)

(2)

33% at fixed 

interest rate
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Price 
Performance & 

Unitholding



m i n d s p a c e r e i t . c o m 26

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

105

110

01-Apr-22 01-May-22 01-Jun-22

Mindspace REIT Nifty 50 Nifty Realty

Price / Volume Performance & Movement 

Note: As on 30 Jun 22

1. Rebased to 100

2. On issue price of INR 275 p.u.

Price movement of Mindspace REIT
(1)

Stock Symbol – NSE : Mindspace; BSE : 543217

Price on listing date

Closing Price – 30 Jun 22

High since listing

Low since listing

INR 304 p.u.

10 years
INR 350 p.u.

INR 362 p.u.

INR 275 p.u.

Offer Price INR 275 p.u.

30-Jun- 22

(Mindspace REIT: +0.3%)

(Nifty : -16.9%)

(NIFTY Realty: -41.5%)

✓ Annualized Returns since listing

Distribution yield
(2)6.9%

19.1%
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Unitholding Pattern as on 30 Jun 22

1. Closing price of INR 350 p.u. as on 30 Jun 22

2. Abu Dhabi Investment Authority Group has invested through Platinum Illumination Trust

593 Mn units

(Market Cap : INR 20.8 Bn) (1)

Sponsors & Sponsor 
Group 

63%

Public 
(Others)

37%

Unitholding Summary

Some of the Largest Unitholders

Abu Dhabi 
Investment 
Authority 
Group 

(2)

Capital 
Group

GIC
Total 

Unitholders

32,727
Vs 24,683 in 

Mar 2022

33 % 

8,044 Unitholders added in Q1 FY23

Sponsors / 

Sponsor Group

63.2%

DIIs

3.3%

FIIs

21.9%

AIFs

0.6%

Insurance

1.1%

MF

0.2%

NIIs

9.5% NPS

0.1%

32,727
Total 

Unitholders

INR 20,799 Cr

Market Cap (1)

37 %
% Free- float

Unitholding Pattern



m i n d s p a c e r e i t . c o m 28

Market 

Updates
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Key Factors Reinforcing the Long-Term Real Estate Demand 

Source: NASSCOM, GST Council, Reserve Bank of India and Cushman & Wakefield Research

• India is expected to be the fastest growing major economy in FY23

• Quarterly GST collections show strong growth

• FDI inflow stood at USD 83.6 Bn in FY22 (higher than pre-COVID levels of USD 74.4 Bn in FY 2020)

Strengthening Economic Conditions

• Commercial real estate has attracted >25% of private equity investments (USD 5.6 Bn) as of 2021

Growing Investments in the Sector

• IT services market is poised to register growth of ~15-20% CAGR until 2025

• Global IT spends is estimated to grow by 7.0-8.0% per annum in 2022 and 2023

Growing IT-BPM

• Physical Occupancy on the rise as growing number of enterprises planning to bring employees back to work soon

• Increased importance of office as an eco-system to nurture and retain talent as attrition continues to remain high

Return to office

• India continues to be in high demand for US as ~70% US headquartered MNCs have come to India to establish 
their Global Captive Centers (GCCs)

• GCC headcount to expand by 11-12% CAGR till 2025F

Strong GCC Traction
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Mumbai Region

Grade-A Office Stock H1 CY2022

Supply, net absorption and vacancy trend analysis – Mumbai Region Micro-Markets

Thane Belapur Road BKC & Annex Malad-Goregaon

BKC & 

Annex 

10.1%

Thane 

Belapur Rd 

16.4%

Malad -

Goregaon 

14.2%

Andheri 

and Powai 

20.0%

Thane 

10.0%

Worli-Lower 

Parel 

12.3%

Others 

16.9%

Stock

103.2 msf (1)

Note –Thane Belapur Rd includes Airoli East and Airoli West, Source for data: Cushman & Wakefield, supply and net absorption data is in msf

(1) On account of few restatements with regards to the existing stock and a few outright end user transactions the total stock has been restated by 

Cushman & Wakefield from 103.4msf in Q1 2022 to 103.2msf as on H1 2022

Key Updates

▪ The average annual net absorption in Mumbai was 3.4 msf 

between 2016 to H1 2022

▪ With the pandemic situation under control, employees 

returning to their offices, and the subsequent rise in office 

demand, the vacancy levels in Thane-Belapur and BKC 

micro-markets have started declining

▪ Rentals in the Thane-Belapur micro-market have witnessed a 

steady increase from 2016 to H12022; growing at a CAGR of 

3.4%

▪ Leasing activity to be majorly driven by execution of stalled 

expansion and major relocation and consolidation 
strategies by corporates, strong growth expected in the 

Technology sector along with GCCs

1.1

2.1

1.7

0.6

1.4
1.3

0.0

1.8

0.2

1.6

0.8

0.0
0.2

0.12.9%

18.8%

17.3%

15.2%
22.6%

27.4%

26.8%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

 -

 0.5

 1.0

 1.5

 2.0

 2.5

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 H1

2022

Supply Net Absorption Vacancy

0.5

0.9

0.0

1.0

0.3

0.7

0.0

0.1

0.7
0.6

1.3

-0.4

0.3
0.2

23.8%

23.1%

15.8%

11.0%

17.6%
20.4%

18.3%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

 (0.6)

 (0.4)

 (0.2)

 -

 0.2

 0.4

 0.6

 0.8

 1.0

 1.2

 1.4

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 H1

2022

Supply Net Absorption Vacancy

0.1
0.0 0.0

1.2

0.0

1.2

0.0

0.5

0.2
0.1

0.9

0.0

1.3

0.0
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19.1%
16.8%

16.7%

0.0%
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15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

 (0.2)

 -

 0.2

 0.4

 0.6

 0.8

 1.0

 1.2

 1.4

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 H1

2022

Supply Net Absorption Vacancy
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Hyderabad

Grade-A Office Stock H1 CY2022 Supply, net absorption and vacancy trend analysis 

Micro-Markets: Madhapur

Others

2.2%

Peripheral 

East

2.7%

Gachibowli

32.4%

Madhapur

62.7%

Stock

82.6 msf

Note – Source for data: Cushman & Wakefield, supply and net absorption data is in msf

Key Updates

▪ Technology Sector and BFSI are the dominant demand drivers for office space in Hyderabad as well as Madhapur

▪ Madhapur is dominant micro market in the city as office stock doubled from 25.4 msf in 2016 to 51.8 msf in H1 2022

▪ Vacancy in Madhapur has shown signs of improvement quarter on quarter by c.90 bps (Q1 2022 vacancy – 11.8%)

▪ Madhapur recorded cumulative net absorption of 25.4 msf from 2016 to H1 2022 capturing a 64.5% share of the net 

absorption at Hyderabad city level

▪ Madhapur rentals outperformed the other micro-markets in Hyderabad and grew at a CAGR of 4.0% from 2016 to 

H12022

3.2

4.5

3.8

7.4

3.6

4.7

2.83.0

3.7
4.0

7.5

1.8

2.8

1.7

2.3%

4.7% 3.5%

2.6%

6.6%

10.0% 10.9%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

 -

 1.0

 2.0

 3.0

 4.0

 5.0

 6.0

 7.0

 8.0

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 H1 2022

Supply Net Absorption Vacancy
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Pune

Grade-A Office Stock H1 CY2022

Note – Source for data: Cushman & Wakefield, supply and net absorption data is in msf

1. SBD East includes Kalyani Nagar, Kharadi, Viman Nagar, Hadapsar

Supply, net absorption and vacancy trend analysis 

Micro-Market(1): SBD East
Others

10.7%

SBD East

53.1%
SBD West

13.4%

PBD West 

22.7%

Stock

62.9 msf

(1)

Key Updates

▪ The city witnessed a healthy recovery in demand in H1 2022, especially in the second quarter

▪ The demand momentum is likely to continue going forward with occupier sentiment improving and the increasing 

attractiveness of Pune as a tech offshoring destination

▪ On  account of strong demand, SBD East continues to report single-digit vacancies coupled with sustained uptick in 

rentals

▪ Vacancy in the SBD East micro-market has reduced quarter on quarter by c. 100bps (Q1 2022 vacancy – 9.3%)

▪ Rentals in the SBD East micro-market have witnessed a steady increase with a CAGR of ~4.7% between 2016 to H12022

1.6

1.1

1.3

2.4

2.1

0.9

1.8

1.6
1.5

1.9

2.6

1.2

0.7
0.8

8.0%

5.9%

3.5%

2.3%

5.1%
5.6%

8.3%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

8.0%

9.0%

 -

 0.5

 1.0

 1.5

 2.0

 2.5

 3.0

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 H1 2022

Supply Net Absorption Vacancy
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Chennai

Grade-A Office Stock H1 CY2022 Supply, net absorption and vacancy trend analysis 

Micro-Market(1): South-West

Others

21.5%

Peripheral 

South

20.4%
Suburban 

South

31.5%

South-West

26.6%

(1)

Stock

58.5 msf

Note – Source for data: Cushman & Wakefield, supply and net absorption data is in msf

1. South West includes Guindy, Ashok Nagar, Vadapalani, Manapakkam, Ekkaduthangal, Porur

Key Updates

▪ South-West, Suburban South and Peripheral South are the major office micro-markets in Chennai contributing to 80% of 

the stock

▪ South-West micro-market is one of the preferred commercial real estate destinations owing to its strong infrastructure 

and proximity to airport

▪ Technology has contributed to 53% of leasing demand  in the South-West market from 2016 to H1 2022

▪ South-West market has witnessed average net absorption of 0.6 msf from 2016 to H1 2022

▪ The vacancy levels in South-West micro-market have increased on account of the completion of large projects
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Sustainable 
Growth
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Key Achievements and Awards  

Architects  Engineers & Surveyors 
Association Pune (AESA) Award

- Commerzone Kharadi

First real estate entity from 

India to join the EV100 & RE100 

initiative

Awarded British Safety Council's 
prestigious 9 ‘Sword of Honour’ 
across 7 parks

Mindspace REIT featured in 

India’s Great Mid-size Workplaces 
2022

Received 
Platinum LEED 

O&M certification 
across 6 Buildings 
& LEED Gold O&M 
across 5 Buildings 

in Q1 FY23

Total “Green 
Building” 
Footprint

>22 msf

of the Green Buildings 
are 

Gold or Platinum

100%

Received certification

across 5 parks

Commercial Project of the year 
- By Realty Conclave 

Gera Commerzone Kharadi

45001

Awards 

& 

Accolades
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ESG Framework: Our Approach towards Building a Sustainable Ecosystem

Strategic Pillars and Key Focus Areas

Resource Conservation and 

Efficiency

Employee and Community 

Relations
Responsible Business Conduct

• Carbon Neutral 

Operations

• Futuristic Buildings

• Human Capital 

Development

• Community and 

Tenant Relationships

• Health and Safety

• Human Rights & Ethical 

Conduct

• Responsible Sourcing & 

Supplier Engagement

• Responsible Portfolio

Our Purpose

Building a sustainable ecosystem

Supported by Robust Governance
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Published First ESG Report

Published - First ESG Report
(GRI based and Externally Assured)

“The Report reflects our commitment to drive a 

responsible business with the highest standards of 

governance and transparency.”

“We are committed to utilize 100% electricity from 

renewable sources, for all areas managed by the 

REIT within our portfolio by 2050. Our commitment 

towards mitigating the environmental impact 

across project lifecycles is in sync with the mission 

of RE100, which is to accelerate the change 

towards zero carbon grids at scale.”

- Vinod Rohira

Chief Executive Officer

To view the report

https://www.mindspacereit.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Mindspace-REIT-ESG-Report-2021-22.pdf
https://www.mindspacereit.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Mindspace-REIT-ESG-Report-2021-22.pdf
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Shaping the Future Minds of our Nation

• Mindspace Business Parks REIT has contributed to the development of a new School in Gambhiraopet, a quaint village in 
Sircilla district of Telangana

• Designed to accommodate 400 children, it is equipped with Well-designed classrooms, a library, dining area, training 
rooms and outdoor play area

Community School at Gambhiraopet, in partnership with the State government
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Focus On High Corporate Governance Standards

• Two-Third independent directors on the Board 

• Comprises experts from tax, regulatory, investment 
banking and other domains

• Marked by age diversity

Board 
Independence

• Fostering a gender agnostic and equitable work culture

• Policies fortifying a non-discriminative and transparent 
environment at the workplace

Diversity & 

Inclusiveness

• Guided by accountability, fairness and transparency 
with all stakeholders 

• Protecting Unitholder interests with stringent safeguards 
in place

Robust Policy 

Framework

Strong governance framework complemented by partnership with leading institutional investors 

Pride Side

Mindspace REIT: Top-Notch Standards 

Six Member Board / Independent 
Chairman

Independent 

Directors

Sponsor

Directors

POSH

Aanchal

Supporting Policies & Initiatives 

Reach Out

Anti-
corruption

Insider Trading
Related 

Party 
Transactions 

Code of 
Conduct
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Annexure
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Mindspace REIT Structure

Note: 

1. % indicates Mindspace REIT’s shareholding in respective Asset SPVs

2. 11% shareholding in these Asset SPVs is held by Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited (TSIIC)

Investment Manager Trust

Axis Trustee Services 
Limited

Trustee

SPV: K Raheja IT 

Park (Hyderabad) 
Ltd.  

89%(1) (2)

SPV: Intime 
Properties Ltd. –

89%(1) (2)

SPV: Sundew 
Properties Ltd. 

89%(1)(2)

SPV: Mindspace 

Business Parks 
Pvt. Ltd. 

100%(1)

SPV: Avacado 

Properties & 

Trading (India) Pvt. 
Ltd.   100%(1)

SPV: Gigaplex 

Estate Pvt. Ltd.  
100%(1)

SPV: KRC 

Infrastructure and 
Projects Pvt. Ltd.

100%(1)(3)

SPV: Horizonview 
Properties Pvt. 

Ltd. 

100%(1)

Mindspace Madhapur, Hyderabad – SEZ / IT Park Paradigm

Mindspace Malad, 

Mumbai Region –

IT Park

Mindspace 

Airoli (E), 

Mumbai Region -

SEZ 

Mindspace 

Airoli (W), 

Mumbai Region –

SEZ/IT Park

Gera 

Commerzone 

Kharadi, Pune –

SEZ/IT Park

Commerzone 

Porur, Chennai –

IT Park

The Square BKC, 

Mumbai Region –

Commercial 

Commerzone 

Yerwada, Pune – IT 

Park

The Square Nagar 

Road, Commercial 

IT Park

Mindspace 

Pocharam, 

Hyderabad - SEZ 

Facility 

Management 
Division

K Raheja Corp 

Investment Managers 
LLP

Mindspace Business 
Parks REIT

Unitholders

Investment in 

Mindspace REIT
Distribution
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Portfolio Summary

24.4 msf of Completed area with Committed Occupancy of 85.6% & WALE of 6.8 years

Note: As of 30  Jun 22

Asset 

Total 

Leasable 

Area 

(msf) 

Completed 

Area (msf) 

UC/Future 

Area (msf)

Occupancy 

(%)

Committed 

Occupancy 

(%) 

WALE on 

area 

(years) 

In-place 

Rent 

(INR psf) 

Mindspace Airoli East 6.8 4.7 2.1 86.3% 88.3% 5.1 54.3

Mindspace Airoli West 5.2 3.9 1.3 57.5% 67.2% 6.2 57.8

Mindspace Malad 0.7 0.7 - 93.6% 93.6% 3.7 92.8

The Square BKC 0.1 0.1 - 100.0% 100.0% 4.4 240.0

Mumbai Region 12.9 9.5 3.4 75.1% 78.7% 5.5 62.5

Gera Commerzone Kharadi 2.9 1.5 1.5 84.5% 100.0% 9.6 72.2

The Square Nagar Road 0.8 0.7 0.1 100.0% 100.0% 5.7 71.1

Commerzone Yerwada 1.7 1.7 - 98.3% 98.4% 4.3 64.1

Pune 5.4 3.8 1.6 97.9% 98.0% 6.7 68.0

Mindspace Madhapur 11.7 9.9 1.9 89.0% 90.6% 8.2 60.6

Mindspace Pocharam 1.0 0.4 0.6 56.7% 56.7% 2.5 22.2

Hyderabad 12.7 10.3 2.5 87.3% 88.4% 8.0 58.4

Commerzone Porur 0.8 0.8 - 36.5% 36.5% 10.0 64.4

Chennai 0.8 0.8 - 36.5% 36.5% 10.0 64.4

Portfolio Total 31.8 24.4 7.4 82.1% 85.6% 6.8 62.4
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Breakup of Lease Expiry Profile

Asset 

Q2-Q4 FY23 FY24 FY25

Area 
Expiring 

(msf) 

% of Gross 
Contracted 

Rentals

Rent at 
Expiry

(INR psf)

Area Expiring 
(msf) 

% of Gross 
Contracted 

Rentals

Rent at 
Expiry

(INR psf)

Area 
Expiring 

(msf) 

% of Gross 
Contracted 

Rentals

Rent at 
Expiry

(INR psf)

Mindspace Airoli East 0.3 7.3% 52 0.2 5.9% 58 0.3 8.1% 67 

Mindspace Airoli West 0.2 7.1% 56 0.1 5.0% 55 0.04 1.6% 66 

Mindspace Malad 0.02 3.1% 91 0.1 13.8% 105 0.02 2.6% 105 

The Square BKC - - - - - - - - -

Mumbai Region 0.6 6.9% 55 0.4 6.3% 66 0.3 4.8% 69 

Gera Commerzone Kharadi - - - - - - - - -

The Square Nagar Road - - - - - - - - -

Commerzone Yerwada 0.2 9.1% 51 0.1 10.8% 78 0.4 19.9% 65 

Pune 0.2 4.2% 51 0.1 5.0% 78 0.4 9.2% 65 

Mindspace Madhapur 0.1 1.4% 58 0.2 2.3% 71 0.4 3.9% 57 

Mindspace Pocharam - - - 0.1 43.8% 26 - - -

Hyderabad 0.1 1.4% 58 0.3 2.7% 58 0.4 3.8% 57 

Commerzone Porur - - - - - - - - -

Chennai - - - - - - - - -

Portfolio Total 0.9 3.9% 54 0.8 4.4% 65 1.1 5.2% 64 

Note: As of 30 Jun  22
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Balance Sheet as on 30 Jun 22  

Notes

1) Debt is prior to minority interest 

adjustment

2) Other Liabilities primarily include Trade 

Payables, Capital Creditors, Retention 

Money, Advances from customers and 

Statutory Dues

3) Distributions received from SPVs (net of 

repayment) were held in cash at REIT 

Level as at 31 Mar 22 and as at 30 Jun 22

4) Other Assets primarily include Deferred 

Tax Assets, Advance Tax, Capital 

Advances, Security Deposits, Unbilled 

Revenue

Balance Sheet (INR Mn) 31-Mar-22 30-Jun-22

Sources of Funds

Total Equity 164,712 163,085

Sub-Total 164,712 163,085

Liabilities

Debt(1) 45,374 47,530

Security Deposits 8,810 8,989

Other Liabilities(2) 4,639 5,170

Sub-Total 58,823 61,689

Total 223,535 224,774

Application of Funds

Assets

Investment Property / Property Plant Equipment 198,733 199,929

Investment Property Under Construction / 

Capital Work In Progress
13,496 13,312

Cash and Bank(3) 3,478 3,237

Other Assets(4) 7,828 8,296

Total 223,535 224,774
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Debt Maturity Schedule as on 30 Jun 22 

Note: As of 30 Jun 22

MLD – Market Linked Debentures
NCD – Non-Convertible Debentures

TL – Term Loan
LAP – Loan Against Property

Description 
(INR Mn)

Fixed/ 
Floating

Total 
Facility

Undrawn 
Facility

Principal 
O/S

Interest 
Rate

(p.a.p.m.) 

Wt. Avg.
Maturity
(Years)

Principal Repayment

Q2-Q4 
FY23

FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27
FY28 & 
Beyond

Total

At REIT Level

NCD (Tranche 1) Fixed 2,000 - 2,000 6.4% 1.5 - 2,000 - - - - 2,000 

MLD (Tranche 2) Fixed 3,750 - 3,750 6.5% 1.9 - - 3,750 - - - 3,750 

NCD (Tranche 2) Fixed 750 - 750 6.6% 1.9 - - 750 - - - 750 

NCD (Tranche 3) Fixed 5,000 5,000 6.3% 2.5 - - 5,000 - - - 5,000

At SPV Level 

TL - MBPPL Floating 11,983 - 8,441 7.2% 8.4 578 857 996 1,108 1,238 3,664 8,440

NCD - MBPPL Floating 4,900 - 4,900 7.1% 5.0 49 98 147 196 245 4,165 4,900

TL - Sundew Floating 6,444 670 3,948 6.6% 6.5 261 406 469 564 651 1,598 3,948 

NCD – Sundew Fixed 4,000 - 4,000 6.1% 2.0 - - 4,000   - - - 4,000 

TL - KRC Infra Floating 5,550 - 5,173 7.6% 7.6 273 451 516 595 714 2,625 5,173 

LAP - Horizonview Floating 1,000 - 1,000 7.3% 1.5 - 1,000 - - - - 1,000 

TL - Gigaplex Floating 2,600 - 2,424 7.6% 8.3 134 895 91 101 108 1,094 2,424 

TL – Avacado Floating 3,000 - 3,000 7.4% 12.1 57 91 99 118 145 2,490 3,000 

OD / LOC Floating 6,022 3,135 2,887 7.4% 7.9 - 603 33 43 53 2,156 2,887

Total 56,999 3,805 47,273 6.9% 5.8 1,352 6,402 15,850 2,724 3,152 17,792 47,273

Repayment (%) 2.9% 13.5% 33.5% 5.8% 6.7% 27.6% 100.0%
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De-risked Portfolio with ~92.2% Completed Assets

Note: Valuation as on 31 Mar 22 updated for completion status as of 30 Jun 22
1. Includes Real Estate & Facility Management Division
2. The Market Value of Mindspace Madhapur is with respect to 89.0% ownership of the respective Asset SPVs that own Mindspace Madhapur

Project wise Market Value breakup (1)

Asset

Market value (INR million) Market value (%)

Completed Asset

Value 

Under-construction/

Future Development 

Total Gross

Asset Value 
Completed 

Under-construction/

Future development 
% of Total Value 

Mindspace Airoli (E)  42,943 1,777 44,720 16.3% 0.7% 16.9%

Mindspace Airoli (W) 34,122 7,013 41,134 12.9% 2.7% 15.6%

Mindspace Malad 10,136 - 10,136 3.8% - 3.8%

The Square BKC 4,569 - 4,569 1.7% - 1.7%

Mumbai Region 91,770 8,790 1,00,559 34.8% 3.3% 38.1%

Gera Commerzone 

Kharadi
15,871 5,372 21,243 6.0% 2.0% 8.0%

The Square Nagar Road 8,595 448 9,043 3.3% 0.2% 3.4%

Commerzone Yerwada 19,814 - 19,814 7.5% - 7.5%

Pune 44,280 5,820 50,100 16.8% 2.2% 19.0%

Mindspace Madhapur(2) 92,838 4,507 97,345 35.2% 1.7% 36.9%

Mindspace Pocharam 1,225 913 2,138 0.5% 0.3% 0.8%

Hyderabad 94,063 5,420 99,483 35.6% 2.1% 37.7%

Commerzone Porur 7,562 - 7,562 2.9% - 2.9%

Chennai 7,562 - 7,562 2.9% 0.0% 2.9%

Facility Management  5,643 649 6,291 2.1% 0.2% 2.4%

Portfolio(2) 2,43,318 20,679 2,63,996 92.2% 7.8% 100.0%
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ROFO Assets to Add Further Scale And Growth

8.6 msf 

total potential 

3.5 msf 

Completion by FY23 

10 
year ROFO term(3)

3 currently 

identified assets

Strong pipeline spread across Mumbai Region, Chennai and Hyderabad

Note: Area represent Sponsor Group’s share; ROFO Assets comprises 
only commercial development within the park
1. Includes hard option of 0.2 msf at Commerzone Madhapur and  

0.1 msf at Commerzone Pallikarnai
2. Committed Occupancy of 55%; Completed area as on 30 Jun 22
3. Effective from Aug 20

Status: 
• 0.7 msf pre-leased (1)

• Tower 2: 13th Floor WIP
• Expected completion : 

Block 1 –Yet to 
commence
Block 2 – Q3 FY23

Chennai | 1.8 msf
Commerzone Pallikaranai

Status: 
• 1.8 msf pre-leased (1)

• Tenant has started fit-out 
work in the premises

• OC received

Hyderabad | 1.8 msf
Commerzone Madhapur

Status: 
• 0.5 msf pre-leased
• Completed: 1.0 msf(2)

• Future Development: 
4.0 msf

Mumbai Region | 5.0 msf

Mindspace Juinagar

Perspective

Perspective

Perspective

Perspective

Current

Current

Current
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14 Research Houses Covering Mindspace REIT

Research House Analyst Email Id

Ambit Capital Karan Khanna karan.khanna@ambit.co

Axis Capital Samar Sarda samar.sarda@axiscap.in

Bank of America Kunal Tayal kunal.tayal@bofa.com

CITI Research Atul Tiwari atul.tiwari@citi.com

Credit Suisse Lokesh Garg lokesh.garg@credit-suisse.com

ICICI Securities Adhidev Chattopadhyay adhidev.chattopadhyay@icicisecurities.com

IIFL Securities Mohit Agrawal mohit.agrawal@iiflcap.com

Investec Capital Sri Karthik Velamakanni sri.karthik@investec.co.in

Jefferies Abhinav Sinha abhinav.sinha@jefferies.com

JM Financial Manish Agrawal manish.agrawal@jmfl.com

Kotak Securities Murtuza Arsiwalla murtuza.arsiwalla@kotak.com

Morgan Stanley Sameer Baisiwala sameer.baisiwala@morganstanley.com

Nirmal Bang Poonam Joshi poonam.joshi@nirmalbang.com

UBS Securities Sourabh Taparia sourabh.taparia@ubs.com

mailto:karan.khanna@ambit.co
mailto:samar.sarda@axiscap.in
mailto:kunal.tayal@bofa.com
mailto:atul.tiwari@citi.com
mailto:lokesh.garg@credit-suisse.com
mailto:adhidev.chattopadhyay@icicisecurities.com
mailto:Mohit.agrawal@iiflcap.com
mailto:Sri.Karthik@investec.co.in
mailto:Manish.Agrawal@jmfl.com
mailto:murtuza.arsiwalla@kotak.com
mailto:Sameer.Baisiwala@morganstanley.com
mailto:sourabh.taparia@ubs.com
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Key Definitions

Asset SPVs Collectively, Avacado, Gigaplex, Horizonview, Intime, KRIT, KRC Infra, MBPPL and Sundew

Committed Occupancy (%)
Occupied Area + Committed Area

Completed Area

Committed Area Completed Area which is unoccupied but for which letter of intent/ agreement to lease have been signed 

Completed Area
Leasable Area for which occupancy certificate has been received; Completed Area comprises Occupied Area, Committed 

Area and Vacant Area 

Future Development Area

Leasable Area of an asset that is planned for future development, as may be permissible under the relevant rules and 

regulations, subject to requisite approvals as may be required, and for which internal development plans are yet to be 

finalized and applications for requisite approvals required under law for commencement of construction are yet to be 

received 

Gross Contracted Rentals (INR)
Gross Contracted Rentals is the sum of Base Rentals and fit-out rent invoiced from Occupied Area that is expected to be 

received from the tenants pursuant to the agreements entered into with them 

In-place Rent (psf per month)
Base Rent (Base Rentals for the specified period) for a specified month

Occupied Area*monthly factor 

Market Rent (psf per month) Manager’s estimate of Base Rent that can be expected from leasing of the assets to potential tenants

Market Value Market value (adjusted for non-controlling interest) as determined by Valuer as of 31 Mar 22

Msf Million square feet

Net Operating Income (NOI)
Net Operating Income calculated as Revenue from operations less: direct operating expenses (which includes Maintenance 

services expense, property tax, insurance expense, cost of material sold and cost of power purchased) 

Occupied Area Completed Area for which lease agreements / leave and license agreements have been signed with tenants 

Pre-Leased Area
Under Construction Area for which letter of intent / agreement to lease/ lease deed/ leave and license agreement has been 

entered into with prospective tenants 

Portfolio Assets which will be directly or indirectly owned by Mindspace REIT in terms of the REIT Regulations 

Re-leasing spread Refers to the change in Base Rent between new and expiring leases, expressed as a percentage 

Same Store Committed 

Occupancy (%)

Represents Committed Occupancy for the Portfolio for areas where occupancy certificate was received on or before

30 Jun 21

Total Leasable Area Total Leasable Area is the sum of Completed Area, Under Construction Area and Future Development Area

Under Construction Area Leasable Area where construction is ongoing and / or the occupancy certificate is yet to be obtained 

Vacant Area
Completed Area which is unoccupied and for which no letter of intent / lease agreement / leave and license agreement 

has been signed 

WALE
Weighted Average Lease Expiry based on area. Calculated assuming tenants exercise all their renewal options post expiry of 

their initial commitment period 
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Thank You

Investor Relations Enquiries: Kedar Kulkarni 

(Finance & Investor Relations) 

Email id: ir@mindspacereit.com

mailto:ir@mindspacereit.com
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I NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED CONSOLI DATED 
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

To 
The Governing Board, 
K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (The "Investment Manager") 
(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

Introduction 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated I nterim Financial 
Statements of MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT ("the REIT"/ "the Parent") and its 
subsidiaries (the "Special Purpose Vehicles") (together referred as the "Mindspace Group"), 
which comprise the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2022, 
the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other 
comprehensive income, the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for 
the quarter ended June 30, 2022, the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of 
changes in Unitholders' Equity for the quarter ended June 30, 2022 and the unaudited 
Statement of Net Dlstrlbutable Cash Flow of the REIT and each of ,ts special purpose 
vehicles for quarter ended June 30, 2022, as an additional disclosure in accordance with 
paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the Security Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Circular No. 
ClR/lMD/D1-/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 ("SEBI Circular") along with summary ot 
the significant accounting policies and select explanatory notes (together hereinafter 
referred as the "Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements"). 

2. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace group , which is 
the responsibility of the Investment Manager and approved by the Governing Board of the 
Investment Manager, have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI 
(Real Estate I nvestment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to t ime read 
with SEBI Circular No. CI R/IMD/DF/ 146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 ("SEBI REIT 
Regulations"); Regulation 52 and Regulation 54 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"); Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS) 34 "Interim Financial Reporting", as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT 
Regulations. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Condensed Consolidated 
Interim Financial Statements based on our review. 

Scope of Review 

3. We conducted our review ,n accordance w,th the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 
2410 'Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of 
the Entity', issued by the I nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI ). A review of 
,rtiteJim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment 

.:i:-G_:{"-v,, M®Jl'ier's personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying 
; ana')lfical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit 

·o 41\ I'-~ ~ 
;,,t) ' ' ~ 

O iR '> . Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 27th-32nd Floor, Senapat1 Ba pat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai 
- 00 013, Maharashtra, India (LLP Identification No. AAB 8737) 
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Deloitte 
Haskins & Sells LLP 
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by !CAI and consequently does 
not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters 
that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

4. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements include the financial information 
of the entities listed in Annexure A to this report. 

Conclusion 

5. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above, 
nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying 
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have not been prepared in 
accordance with SEBI REIT Regulations, Ind AS 34 "Interim Financial Reporting", as 
prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
(as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent 
not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT Regulations and has not disclosed the information 
required to be disclosed in terms of the Listing Regulations, including the manner in which 
it is to be disclosed or that it contains any material misstatement. 

Emphasis of matter 

6 . We draw attention to Note 42(5)(a) to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial 
Statements regarding freehold land and building thereon (Paradigm, Malad) held by 
Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited( Special Purpose Vehicle) which is 
presently under litigation. Pending the outcome of proceedings and a final closure of the 
rr:attcr, no adjus.tmen~s have been made ir. the Condersed Consolidated I ntcr; rr- Firanri~l 
Statements for the quarter ended June 30, 2022. Our conclusion is not modified in respect 
of this matter. 

7. We draw attention to Note 19(a) of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial 
Statements, which describes the presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" to comply with 
the SEBI REIT Regulations. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Mumbai, August 10, 2022 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

Nilesh Shah 
Partner 

Membership No. 49660 
UDIN :.2..l.o4~,c,oAO.SL-CY 42.4 2. 



Deloitte 
Haskins & Sells LLP 

Annexure "A" 

List of entities included in the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 

A. Parent entity 

i. Mindspace Business Parks REIT 

B. Special Purpose Vehicles 

i. Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited 
ii. Horizonview Properties Private Limited 
iii . KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 
iv. Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 
v. Sundew Properties Limited 
vi . Intime Properties Limited 
vii. K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
viii. Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 



MfNDSPI\CE B 
~N:IN/REIT/19~~J~;ss PARKS REIT 

onde11sed Con . Consolidal d sohdated Fina . (All amoun~ .Balance Sheet ncrnl Sl11tcmenls 
s mRs. mill' ton unless I ol ierwisc staled) 

ASSETS 

Non-current 
Property, plan~:ets . 
Investment pro d equipment 

Investment pro~ty 
~!her Intangible :::der constn1ction 

~vestments 
Financial assets 

- Investments 
- Other financial 

N
Dcfcrrcd tax assetsas(scts) 

on-current T net 
Other non-currax assets (net) 
Total no ent assets 

n-currcnt assets 

f urrrnt assets 
nvcntorics 

Financial assets 
- !nvcslments 
- fmtle reccivabl 
- Cash and cash es . 
- Other bank b equivalents 
- Other finan -~lances 

Current Tax cml assets 
Other assets (net) 
T current assets 
• otnl current assri 

l otal ilSSc!S be~ $ ore regula tory deferr 
Regulatory def al account 

crral uccount - assets 

I tltill 11s;ets 

Note 

4 
5 
6 
7 

MA 
9 
10 

IIA 
12 

lJ 

88 
14 

15A 
15B 
16 

118 
17 

As at As at 
30 June 2022 31 March 2022 
(Unaudited) (Audited) 

1,511 1,539 
198,418 197,194 
13,312 13,496 

l l 

2, 23 
2,520 2,474 

843 1,05 1 
1,097 1,041 

841 867 
218,572 2 17,686 

114 26 

15 
3S1 2 10 

3,237 3,478 
209 121 

1,258 1,477 
I 23 

70.1 273 
5,886 5,608 

224,458 223,294 

316 .till 



MINDSPACE BUSLNESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed C,insolidated Fir11111cial Statements 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 
(All amounts iu R s, million unless otherwise staled) 

EQUITY AND LJABILITTES 

EQUlTV 
Corpus 
Unit Capital 
Other equity 
Equity attributable IQ unit holders of the Mlndspact REIT 

Non-controlling interest 

l 'otal equity 

LlABLLITIES 

Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
• Borrowings 
- Lease liabilities 
- Other financial liabilities 

Provisions 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Other non-current liabilities 
Total non-current liabilitle, 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

• Borrowings 
- Lease liabil ities 
- Trade payables 

- total outstanding dues of micro cmcrpriscs and 
small enterprises 

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro cnlerpnscs and small enterpnses 

- Other financial liabilities 
Prcwisinn• 
Other current liabilities 
Current Tax liabilities (net) 
Total current ll11bilitie-S 

Tol11l liHllllllits befo, t ati;uli.lury defe,nl i.t,ouul 

T 11IAI eq,,lty and liabllitiu bcr11re rtgulHtory dcrcrrnl account 

Regulatory deferral account - liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabllilies 

Significant accounting policies 

Sec the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached; 

for Deloitte I laskins & Sells LLP 
Chllrtcrcd Accountan~ 
Firm's registration number. I I 7366W/W-100018 

Nilesb Shall 

Partner 
Membership number: 49660 

Pince· Mumbai 
Date · 10 August 2022 

Note As at 
30 June 2022 
(Unaudited) 

18 
19 
20 

49 

21 

22 
23 
24 
25 

26 

27 

28 
2Q 
30 
31 

3 

4-55 

r and on behalf of the Goveming Doard of 
ahcja orp Investment Man11gcn LLP 

0 
162,839 

(8,186) 
154,653 

8,432 

163,085 

42,426 
118 

4,279 
31 

907 
525 

48,286 

4,694 
13 

32 

827 
6,549 

34 
1,194 

60 
13,403 

61,689 

224,774 

224,774 

Man er lo Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

As at 
31 March 2022 

(Audited) 

0 
162,839 

(6,634) 
156,205 

8,507 

164,712 

35,357 
I 14 

4,280 
30 

669 
580 

41,030 

9, 123 
13 

60 

b4~ 
6,835 

35 
1,052 

2 
l7,'165 

58,79~ 

223,507 

28 

223,535 

I µ_)--Lb. N ~ 

Member 
DIN: 00029010 

Place: Mumbai 
Dute . 10 August 2022 

Vinod N. Rohira 

C!,ief Executive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumboi 
Dale , IO August 2022 

Pretti N. Chhtd» 

Chief Fi11a11cia/ Officer 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date . 10 August 2022 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN :IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Income and gains 

Revenue from Operations 
Interest 
Other Income 
Total Income 

Expenses 

Cost of materials sold 
Cost of power purchased 
Employee benefits e~,...pense 
Cost of property management services 
Trostee fees 
Valuation fees 
Insurance expense 
Audit fees 
Management fees 
Repairs and maintenance 
Legal & professional fees 
Other expenses 
Total Expenses 

Earnings before fmance costs, depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income 
/ expense, exceptional items and tax 

Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Profit before r.olte regulated activities, exceptional items and tax 

Add : Regulatory income/ (expense) (net) 

Profit before exceptional items and tax 

Exceptional Items (refer note 53A and 53B) 

Profit before tax 

Current tax 
Deferred tax charge/ (income) 
Tax expense 

Profit for the period/year 

Note For the quarter ended 

32 
33 
34 

35 
36 

37 

38 

39 
40 

41 
41 

30 June2022 
(Unaudited) 

rv7· 
~ ~ 
Cl. 

,~, 
(/) 

4,813 
40 
5 

4,858 

6 
253 
66 

]13 
I 
3 

20 
4 

135 
158 
27 

420 
1,206 

3,652 

719 
847 

2,086 

103 

2,189 

2 ,189 

459 
446 
905 

1,284 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the year ended 
31 Mar2022 30 June 2021 31 March 2022 
(Unaudited)* (Unaudited) (Audited) 

4,666 4,197 17,501 
75 13 107 
32 12 88 

4,773 4,222 17,696 

6 6 
114 117 444 
55 57 226 

130 76 398 
1 l 2 
5 1 9 

20 20 86 
7 4 19 

127 120 500 
169 116 539 
26 27 113 

500 3 10 1,510 
1,160 849 3,853 

3,613 3,373 13,843 

749 599 2,644 
856 796 3,289 

2,008 1,978 7,910 

37 21 76 

2,045 1,999 7,986 

489 (1,332) (843) 

2,534 667 7,143 

533 368 1,767 
665 (83) 903 

1,198 285 2,670 

1,336 382 41_473 



<it( 

Profit for the period/year attributable to unit holders of Mindspace REIT 

Profit for the period/year attributable to non-controlling interests 

Other comprehensive income 

A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
- Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/ (asset) 

(ii) Income tax relating to above 

B. (i) Items that wiII be reclassified to profit or loss 
(ii) Income tu relating to above 

Other comprehensive income attributable to unit holders of Mindspace REIT 

Other comprehensive income attributable to non controlling intereslS 

Total comprehensive income for the period/ year 

Total comprehensive income for the period / year attributable to unit holders of 
Mindspace REIT 

Total comprehensive income for the period/year attributable to ooo controlling 
interests 

Eaming.5 per unit 16 
Basic 
Diluted 

Significant accounting policies 3 

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 4-55 
*Refer Note 52 
As per our report of even date attached: 

for Deloitte Baskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's registration number. ll7366W/W-100018 

~-r 
Nilesh Shah 

Partner 
Membership number: 49660 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 10 August 2022 

"9 

1,182 

102 

1,284 

1,182 

102 

1.99 
1.99 

1,262 414 4,238 

74 (32) 235 

(3) (0) (3) 

(3) (3) 

-
1,333 382 4,470 

1,259 414 4,235 

74 (32) 235 

2.13 0.70 7.15 
2.13 0.70 7.15 

~ \)~'-; /µ..u..£:AJ~ 

Member 
DIN: 00029010 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : IO August 2022 

Viaod N. Rohira 

Chief Executive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 
Place Mumbai 
Date IO August 2022 

Preeti N. Cbbed.a 

Chief Financial Officer 
DIN: 08066703 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : l O August 2022 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:CN/REIT/19-20/003 

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

A Cash flows from operating activities 

Profit before tax 

Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Finance costs 
Interest income 

Provision for doubtful debts (net) 
Investment Property write off 

Gain on redemption of mutual fund units 
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss (net) 

Liabilities no longer required ·written back 
Exceptional Items (refer note 53A and 53B) 

Operating cash flow before working capital changes 

Movement in working capital 
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories 

(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables 

{Increase) / decrease in other financial assets and other assets 

Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities, other liabilities and 
provisions 

(Decrease) I increase in regulatory deferral account ( assets / 
liabilities) 

(Decrease) / increase in trade payables 

Cash generated/(used in) from operations 

Direct taxes paid net of refund received 

Net cash generated/(used in) from operating activities (A) 

For the quarter e . ded 

30 June2022 
(Unaudited) 

2,189 

847 

719 
(7) 
11 

(3) 

1 

J,757 

(38) 

(152) 

(257) 

237 

(103) 

154 
3,548 

(435) 

_J,_~ 13 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended 
31 Mar 2022 30June2021 

(Unaudited)* (Unaudited) 

2,534 667 

856 796 
749 599 
(11) {13) 
(I) 
73 

(6) (3) 

0 

{23) (9) 
(489) 1,332 

3,683 3,369 

(12) (3) 

(15) (64) 

(209) (246) 

276 (396) 

(37) (22) 

90 (48) 

3,774 2,590 

(334) (433) 

3,441 2,157 

For the year ended 
31 March 2022 

(Audited) 

7,143 

3,289 
2,644 

(35) 

3 
73 

(12) 

0 
(50) 
843 

13,897 

13 
2 

(649) 

12 

(76) 

179 

13,378 

(I, 780) 

11,598 

. s·~~SINcsd' ' 
~ ~1 

; M~ AI ~ 
(). -b 
~/It ►~ 

* 



B Cash flows from investing activities 

Expenditure incurred on investment property and investment ( ,734) (2,077) (979) (5,632) 
property under construction including capital advances, net 
of capital creditors 

Expenditure incurred on Property, Plants and Equipment and Capital (4) (II) (19) (110) 
work-in progress 
Proceeds from sale of investment property under construction - 1,200 1,200 

Proceeds from sale of investment property,& property plant and 1 5 
equipments 
Investment in Government Bond (6) (4) (5) 
Investment in mutual fund ( .,415) (3,404) (1,660) (7,599) 
Proceeds from redemption of mutual fund 4,403 3,410 1,663 7,611 
Movement in fixed deposits/other bank balances (105) 196 (58) (65) 
Interest received IS 7 24 37 
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities ( B) ( ,8-45) (679) (1,033) (4,558) 

C Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from external borrowings 2,.so 254 2,778 5,778 
Repayment of extemal borrowings ( ,794) (1,685) (1,996) (8,208) 
Proceeds from issue of non-convertible debentures 4,900 5,000 9,000 
Non-convertible debentures issue expenses (25) (36) (61) 
Payment towards lease liabilities (2) (14) 
Distribution to unitholders and dividend to Non-Controlling Interest ( ,912) (3,142) (3,086) (11,892) 

holder (including tax) 

Recovery Expense Fund Deposits (1) ( I) 
Finance costs paid ( ,221) (556) (463) (2,125) 
Net cash generated /(used in) financing activities ( C ) ( ,902) (166) (2,769) (7,523) 

Net increase/(dccrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (634) 2,597 (1,645) (483) 

~~ i M~ f i 
C) c,, , ~" ~~· . * \.\ ' 



Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the p.eriod/year IJ82 (1,615) 1,465 1,465 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period/ year J48 982 (180) 982 

Cash and e2sh equivalents compri.ses (refer note no. 16A & 27) 

Cash on band 2 2 2 2 
Balance with banks 

- on current accounts 3,190 3,046 3,146 3,046 
- in escrow accounts l 0 145 0 
-in deposit accounts with original maturity ofless than three 44 430 75 430 

Less : Bank overdraft {1,889} (2.496} (3.548} (2.496} 
Cash and cash eqnivalents at the end of the period/ year 348 982 (180) 982 

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3 

Note: l. The above Cash Flow Statement bas been prepared tmder the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard (IND AS) 7 - ''Cash Flow Statements". 

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statemer -1-55 

*Refer Note 52 

As per our report of even date attached: 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's registration number: 117366W/W-100018 

µ..µi_p)) 
Nilesb Shah 

Partner 

Membership number: 49660 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 10 August 2022 

~ 

\, 
\ )~ ,>~\/ 

~ I C. Raheja Vinod N. Rohira 

I~- µ ~ 
Preeti N. Chheda 

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 

DIN:00460667 DIN:08066703 

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai 

Dale : 10 August 2022 Date : 10 August 2022 Date : IO August 2022 

~ 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
R N:JN/REIT/ 19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Consolida ted Statement o f cha nges in Unit holder's Equity 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

A. or us 
Ba la nce as on I Apr il 2021 
Changes during the year 
Ba la nce as on 31 Ma rch 2022 
Balance as on I April 2022 
Changes during U1e period 
C losing bala nce as on 30 J u ne 2022 

Cnr us 
Bala nce AS on 1 April 2021 
Changes during the period 
Balance as on JO J u ne 2021 

B. Uni t Capital 

Bala nce as at I A pril 2 02 1 
Changes during U1e year 
Bala nce as 111' 31 Ma rch 2022 

Balance as at l April 2022 
Changes during the period 
Bn~nceasat30June 2022 

Uni t Cn ital 
Balance as at 1 April 2021 
Changes during U1e period 
Balance ns at 30 J une 2021 

C. Other e uil 
Reta ined Earn ings 
llalance as at l April 2021 
Add: Profil for 1he p1:riod attributable 10 the un itholders ofMindspuce REIT 
Add: Other compr~hensive income attributable to the unitholdcrs ofMindspace REIT 
Less: Distribution to Unitholdcrs for the quarter ended 31 March 2021 • 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the qunrter ended 30 June 2021 * 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2021 * 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2021 * 
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve•• 
Bal11nce as at31 March 2022 
Dala nee as at J April 2022 
Add: Profit for the period attributable to the unitholdcrs ofMindspace REIT 
Add: Other comprehensive income attributable 10 the unitholders ofMindspace REIT 
Less: Distribution to Unilholdcrs for the quarter ended 3 I March 2022 • 
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve•• 
llalancc as at 30 June 2022 

Other e ui 
Retained Earnings 
Balance as at 1 April 2021 
Add: Profit for the period attributable to the unitholders of Minds pace REIT 
Add: Other comprehensive income attributable to the unitholders ofMindspace REIT 
Less: Distribution to Unitholdcrs for the quarter ended 31 March 202 t • 
Balance as at 30 June 2021 

moun t 

Amount 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

Amount 

162,839 

Amount 

162,839 

162,839 

162,839 

162,839 

Amount 

Amount 

162,839 

190 
4,238 

(3) 
(2,853) 
(2,728) 
(2,728) 
(2,752) 

(109) 
(6,743) 
(6,743) 

J,182 

(2,734) 
(61) 

(8,356) 

190 
414 

(0) 
(2,853) 
(2,249) 



Deben tu re Redemption Reserve•• 
Balance as at J Ap1il 2021 

Transfer from retained earnings 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 
Bala nee as at I April 2022 

Transfer from retained earnings 
Balance as at 30 J une 2022 

Amount 

109 
109 
109 
61 

170 

• Tbe distributions made by Trust to its Unitbolders are based on the Net Distributable Cash Oows (NDCF) of Mind space REIT under ll1e REIT 
Regulations . 
.. Refer Note 20 

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3 

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Stutemenls 4-55 

/\s per our report of even date attached: 

fo1 Dclollte Haskins & Sells LLI' 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's registration number: I 17366W/W-l00018 

Nilesh Shah 

Partner 
Membership number: 49660 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 10 August 2022 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Rubeja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
(acting us the Ma r to Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

\9\ ~ I~· J.J ~ 
C. heja 

ber 
00029010 

Place: Mumbai 
Dale: 10 August 2022 

Vlnotl N. Rohira 

Chief Executive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 10 A ugusl 2022 

Precti N. C hhetla 

Chief Fi11n11cia/ Officer 
DIN: 08066703 
Place; Mumbai 
Date: 10 Augusl 2022 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN :IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Disclosure pursuant to SEBI circular No. CfR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(i) Mindspac:e REIT Standalone 

Sr. no. Description 

I. Cash flows received from Asset SPVs including but not limited to: 
interest 
dividends (net of applicable iaxes) 
repayment of REIT Funding 
proc.eeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction (net of applicable taxes) 

redemption proceeds from preference shares or any other simil!!r mstrument 

2. Add: Proceeds from sale of investments, assets, sale of shares of Asset SPVs, 
Liquidation of any other asset or investment (incl. cash equivalents) or any form of 
fund raise at Mindspace REIT level adjusted for the following: Ql 

applicable capitaJ gains and other taxes, if any 
debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
transaction costs 
proceeds re-invested or planned to be reinvested in accordance with the 
REIT regulations 
aD) acquisition 
investments as permitted under the REIT regulations 
lending to Asset SPVs 

as maybe deemed necessary by the Manager 
3. Add: Proceeds from sale of investments, assets or sale of shares of Asset SPVs not 

distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest in accordance with the REIT 
Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently 

4 . Add: Any other income received by Minds pace REIT not captured herein 
5. Less: Any other expenses paid by Mindspace REIT not captured herein 
6. Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure at Mindspace REIT level 
7. Less: Net debt repayment/ (drawdown), redemption of preference shares / debentures 

/ any other such instrument / premiums / any other obligations / liabilities, etc. as 
maybe deemed necessary by the Manager 

8. Add/Less: Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in ~ec1Jrity 

deposits, working capital, etc., as may be deemed necessary by the Manager (l) 

Fr r the quarter ended 
l0June2022 
(Unaudited) 

928 
2,635 

14,300 

(9,300) 

4 
(5) 

(5,000) 

9. Less: Interest paid on external debt borrowing at Mindspace REIT level __ ../4sii ~ 
10. Less: Income tax and other taxes (if applicable) at the standalone Mindspace ~ -(o~ .!z.~ ' 

(72) 
(672) 

level . I"-' /' A) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCI 21.818 

For the quarter ended 
31 March 2022 

(Unaudited) 

299 
2,589 

5,160 

(35) 

(5,125) 

6 
(3) 

(48) 
(95) 

2,_748 

For the quarter ended 
30 June2021 
(Unaudited) 

264 
2,587 

420 

(420) 

1 
(19) 

(55) 
(46) 

2,_732 

For the year ended 
31 March 2022 

(Audited) 

1,080 
10,338 

9,090 

(35) 

(9,055) 

8 
(37) 

(174) 
(232) 

10,983 



Notes: 

I. The Governing Board ol"lhe Manager to the T rust. in tht:ir meeting held on IO August 2022. ha:, dedarel, d ~tributwn HJ unitholders of Rs 4. 74 per unit which aggregates to Rs. 281 I million for the quarter emkd 
30 June 2022. The distributions nf Rs 4.74 per unit ..:omp1ises Rs. 4.41 per unit in ihe fonn of di vi1knd. lb. 0.32 pcr unit in the form of interest payment and Rs. 0.0 I per unit in the form ofother income. 

2. Repayment of REIT fonding which is funher knt to SPVs has been captured under "Liquidauun of asset " 

3. Le nding to and repayment from SPVs within tht: samo.: quarter has been adjusted under "Other Adjustme1·ts" 

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3 

See the .iccumpanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements - refer note 4-;~ 

As per our repon or even date attached. 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's registration number: I 17366W/W- 100018 

}J~~ 
Nilesh Sbah 

ParLner 
Membership number: 4966\J 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 10 August 2022 

~ 

for and on behal r of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
(as ~ager to the Mindspact: Busint:ss Parks REIT) 

1~ 

NeelC~ 

A/ember 
DIN: 00029010 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : IO August 2022 
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~ 

Vinod N. Rohira 

Chiej Executive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date IO August 2022 

I~- N ~ 

Preeti N. Chheda 

Chief Financial Officer 
DIN: 08066703 

Plat:e: Mumbai 
Date: 10 August 2022 



M lNDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/RElT/19-20/003 
Coodensed Consolidated Fmaocial Sllltemmts 
Disclosure pum,ant to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 

(All amounts are io Ro. million unless otherwise stated) 

Ad ditional disclosures as required by Paragraph 6 to SEBl circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/ 146/2016 
Ne t Distrihulllble Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidu1ce undu Pan,grapb 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF·t46f201(, 
(ii) Calculation of oet distributable cash flows at each Asset SPY 

For the quarter mded 30 June 2022 pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CTR/l\tD/DF/1- 6/2016 <>> 

Sr. no. Descril!tion Avacado MBPPL HorizonYi- Gi~•j!lex KRC Infra fotime KR.IT Sundew Elimination !I) Total 

l . Profit after tax as per Statement of profit and lossfmcome and 01J>enditure (staodalooe) (A) 134 485 (158) (51) 102 260 277 529 1,578 

2. Add: Depreciatioo and amortisation as per Statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure 25 137 34 113 50 19 19 105 502 
3 . Add/less: Loss/gain on sale of real estate assets 

4 . Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets, liquidation o r any other asset or investment (incl. cash equivalents) r any 
form of fund raise at the Asset SPV level adjusted for the following: 170 1,225 1.460 300 584 (3,739) 

debts senlcd or due to be senled from sale proceeds 
iransaclion costs 

proceeds re-invested or planned lo be reinvested io accordance with the REIT 
Regulations <4l 

any acquisition 
investmenJ. in any form as permitted. under the REIT Regulations 

as may be deemed necessary by the Manager 
5. Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets not distnbuled pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such procer ,.ls are 

not intended to be invested subsequently 
6. Add/less.: Any other item of non-<:asb expense / non cash income (net of actual cash flows for tb,-ge items), as rt ay be 

deemed oeccssarv bv the Mana.eer. 33 154 I 44 24 29 (32) 86 339 

For example, any decrease/increase in canyiog amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in st.llement of pro t and 

loss/income and expcndit.ure on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value, interest cost as per cf'llCl!ve 
interest rate method, deferred tax. lease rents recognised on a straight line basis, etc. 

7. Add: Cash flow received from Asset SPV and investmc:nt entity, if llr)y includi11g (applicable fo1 Boldco only, o lhe 
extent not covered above); 

repayment of the debt in case of investtnenrs by way of debt 
proceods from buy-backs/ capital reduction 

8. Add: lnterest on borrowings from Mindspace REIT 287 105 87 387 58 4 1 929 

9. Add/Less: Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security deposits, working capital, etc., J may 

be deemed necessary by the Manager al JI (126} 2 (28) 68 (140) (37) (19) (269) 

10. Less: Any expense in the na!Ure of capital expenditure including capitalized interest thereon (to the parties oth,. than 
Mindspace REIT), overlJ.eads, etc. ( 10) (251) (31) (485) (623) (20) (354) (78) (1 ,852} 

11. Less: Net debt repayment/ (drawdowo) / redemption of preference shares / debentures / any otl-cr such instru 1.ent / 
premiums / accroed interest / any other obligations / liabilities etc., to parties other than Mindspace REIT, as r ay be 
deemed necessary by the Manager 2.957 5,7&7 (15) (811) (1,082) 225 204 304 7,569 

12. Less; Proceeds 10 shareholders other than Mindspace REIT thro1.1gb buyback of shares/ capital red.ictioo/ dividenJ paid 
oo preference or equity capital, buyback distribution tax if any paid oo the same, and f'wtbtr including b1 yback 
distribution tax, if applicable on distribution to Mindspace REIT (48) (76) (54) (178) 

Total Adjustments (B} 3.303 5,806 248 445 45 140 333 245 (3,43 7,040 

:A_+B) 3,437 . 6,291 90 394 57 400 610 774 (3,435} 8,618 



~ 

Note I: For the purpose of eliminalioos. repayment of loans from REIT (further leut to Asset SPVs) is considered. 

Note 2: Borrowing from and repayment to REIT, if any ,..;thin the s=e quaner has been adjusted under "Otaer Adjustmet\lS" 

Note 3: As per Chapter- V. clause I 6(a) of Securities ID!d ExchangeB02rd of India (Real Estate.Investment 1 rusts) Regulai oM, 2014 as amended from time to time, the entity is required to distnl;ute not less than 90% of net distnlmtable cash flows of the 
entity to Mindspace REIT in proportion of its holding iD the SPV subjett 10 applicable provisions in the Companies A. t, '.?0 13 As per distnou1ion policy adopted by the govcming board of Mindspace REIT's Manager (K Raheja Corp Investment 
Managers LLP), any proceeds lo shareholders other than Mindspaa: REIT is redoced to arrive at net distributable cash llO\ s ('IDCF). 
The above note has been prepared as per the distribution policy adopted by the governing board ofMindspaee RElT's Ma· ag,,r, winch is fonning part of the Final offer document of Mindspace REIT and does not represent amount available for declaring 
dividend as per section 123 oftbe Companies Ac!, 2013 read with Declaration and Payment ofDividendRu:es:014 

Note 4: ln March 2022, Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited ('"MBPPL '), one of the Asset SPVs of Mindspace Bus,J1ess Par:ks REIT a,ncluded tbe sale of land admeasuring apprmcimately 39.996 acres localed at Pocharam, Hyderabad, to K. 
Raheja Corp Private Limited ("KR CPL') for a consideration of Rs. 1,200 Million as per the approval of the Board of Dire, •ors of MBPPL and tbe Governing Board of the Manager and other t=s and conditions as set out in the Memorandum of 
Understanding dated December 16, 2019 read with the extension lener da!ed September I, 2021 ("MoU") and snle deed &.ed 30th Mnrcb 2022. 

The above consideration is not envisag~ for an immediate re-investment oppartnnity. In view of the same, it 1s pmposed t pay out the sale consideration as per the terms of the REIT Regulations. Accotdingly, NDCF for the quarter ended J111Je 30, 
2022. includes Rs. 300 millions on aceollllt of distribution of part of such sale proceeds by way of dividend 10 unitholders. 

Sieuificant accoun.tine policies - refer note 3 

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consouda!ed Financial Statements• refer note 4-5S 

As per our r~rt of even date attaebed: 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells. LLP 
Chartered Accouutants 

for and on )Eha!f of the Govcming Board of 
-Rahejl'5;orp lllvestment Managers LLP 

Fi~~ber.117366W/W-100018 . ~ ._;3,~ I~~ /J ~ 
Nilesb Shah rt-cl C. R · Viood N. Robin, 
Pann..- 'l!nlber O,ief Executive Officer 
Membership number: 49660 DJN: 00029010 DIN: 00460667 

PlacC'. Mumbai PL,ce: Mumbai Pia= Mumbai 
Date : IO August 2022 D.tte : 10August2022 Date : 10August2022 

Prttti N. Chheda 
Chief Financial Officer 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : IO August 2022 
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Fmancial Sbtemeois 
DisdosunpunuUJt to SEBI circular No. CIR/lMD/DF/14612016 
(All amounts an in Rs. million unless othenfise stated) 

Additional clisclosum as required by P,ragrapb 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/14612016 
Net Distributable Caob Flaws (NDCF) purs11JU1t to guidUJce nndu Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/lMD/DF 14'12016 
(ii) Calculation ohet distributable cash flows at each Asset SPV 

For the quarter ended ll March 2022 pursuant to guidance upder Paragraph 6 to SEBT circular No. CIR/TMD/DF' 14("2016 "1 

Sr. no. DescriftiOQ Avacado MBPPL Horuonview Gii:aelu KRC lnfra lntimc 
I. Profit after tax as per Statement of profit a.nd lossf'wcomc and eipenditnn (standalone) (A) 124 947 (183) (237) 165 229 

2. Add: Depreciation and amortisation as per Statement of profit and lossfmcomc and expenditure 24 134 33 114 50 16 
3. Add/less: Loss/gain on sale of iuJ estate assets (428) 
4. Add; Proceeds from sale of real estate assets, liquidati011 of any other asset or invcstmmt (incl cash cquivnleots) or any 

form of fund raise at the Asset SPV level adjusted for the following: 440 3,520 482 1,058 1,120 240 
debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
transaciion costs 
proceeds re-invested or planned to be reinvested in accordance with the REIT 
Regulations <•l (1,200) 
any acquisition 
invCSIIDmt io any fonn as permitted under the REIT ReguLanons 

as may be deemed necessary by the Manager 
5. Add. Proceeds from sale of real estate assets not distn1>uted pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest., if such procetJs = 

not intended ID be invested subsequently 
6. Add/less: Any other item of non-<:ash expense I non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items), as ,r ay be 

deemed oecessarv bv the MaD81!er. (38) 138 5 238 (33) 10 
For example, any decrease/increase io carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in st.nemeol of pro, it and 
lossfmcome and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the liability .rt fair value, interest cost as per ef' ,dlve 
interest rate method, deferred tax. lease rents recogoised on a straight line basis, etc. 

7, Add. Cash flo" received from Asset SPV and investment entity, if any including (applicable f01 Holdco only, o Jie 
extent not covered above): 

repaymcot of the debt in case of investments by way af debt 
proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction 

8. Add: Interest oo borrowings from Miodspace REIT 31 79 81 54 42 

9, Add/Less: Other adjusunents, including but not limited ID oer changes in security deposits, working capital. etc .• ;,s may 

be deemed necessary by the Manager " 1 {131) 12 55 128 133 (5) 
I 0. Less: Any cxpcose in the nature of capital expenditure including capitalized interest then:oo (to I he parties otb -r than 

Miodspace REIT), overheads, etc. (34) ( 182) (155) (570) (842) (35) 

11 . Less: Net debt repayment/ (drawdown) / redemption of preference shares I debentures I any other !uch inSllUl'lmt / 
premiums / accrued interest / any other obligations / liabilities etc .• to parties other than Mindspace l'IBIT, as r ay be 
deemed necessary by the Manager 249 (2,292) (238) (741) (599) 

12. Less: Proueds to shareholders other than Mtndspace REIT through buyback of sbMCSI' capital redClction/ divider J paid 
on preference or equity capital, buyback distribution tax if any paid on the same, and further mcluding b , yback 
distn'bution taX, if applicable on distribution to Mindspace REIT (48) 

Total Ad'us!Ulents B) 541 (219 269 281 129 178 

Net Distributable usb Flows C A+B 665 728 86 44 36 407 

~ ,.~ 
~~ ~ .. 

KRIT Sundew Elimination !I) Total 
200 545 1,790 
23 98 492 

(428) 

878 (1,540) 6,198 

(1,200) 

(114) 91 297 

2 3 298 

4 230 426 

(199) (160) (2,177) 

(88) (289) 1,380 (2,618) 

(77) (55) (180) 
429 82 (160 1,108 
629 463 (160) 2,898 



~ 

Note l: For the purpose of elimioations, repayment ofloans from REIT (further lent to Asset SPVs) is consi,J~ 

Noic2: Borrowing from :md repayment 10 REIT, if any within the same quarter has been adjusted under "Ot!ier AdjUStmen•s• 

Note 3: As per Cb.apter V, clause 16(a) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulat\'1115, 2014 as amended from time to time, the entity is required to dist1ibute not less than 90¾ of net distributable cash flows of the 
entity to Mindspacc REIT in proportion of its holding in the SPV subject to applicable provjsions in the Comparues A. t, 2013. As per dismou:tioo policy adopted by the governing board ofMindspace REIT' s Manager (K Raheja Corp lnvestment 
Managers LLP), any prooeeds 10 shareholders other than Mindspace REIT is reduced to arrive at net distributable cash flows (NDCF). 
The above note has been prepared as per the distnouti011 policy adopted by the governing board of Mindspace REJT's Ma.~. wh!c:h is fonning part of the Final offer document of Mindspacc REIT and does not represent amowit available for declaring 
dMdend as per section 123 of the Comparues Act, 2013 read with Declararion and Payment of Dividend Ru cs ZOl4. 

Note 4: In March 2022, Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited ("MBPPL "), one of the Asset SPVs of Mmdspace I' JSIDCSS Pari:s REIT concluded the sale of land admeasuring approximately 39 .996 acres located at Pocharam, Hyderabad, to K. 
Raheja Corp Private Limited ("KRCPL ") for a consideration of Rs. I )00 Million as per the approval of the Board of I.ltreclors of MBPPL and the Govm1ing Board of the Manager and other tCfIDS and conditions as set out in the Memorandum of 
Understanding dared Dccc,nber 16, 2019 read with the extenSlon Jetter dated September I, 202 l ("Motl") and sale d=. dated 30th Mardi 2022 Pending the decision on re-iovestmeni or distnoution of the sale proceeds. the sale proceeds has been 
temporarily un1ised to repay debt and invested in fi:<ed deposit 

Significant acconntillg policies - refer oote 3 

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements - refer note 4-55 

As per our report of even dak mtached: 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered AOCOWltalllS 
Firm's registration number: 117366WM'-JOO0J8 

Ni~ b~ 
Partner 
Membership number: 49660 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : IO August 2022 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K luheja Corp lnvcstmentManagen LLP 
(actipg as ~er to the Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

~
1r #'~,~~ 'eel ~ J Vinod N. Robi.ra 

Mt'm ChiefExecwive Officer 
DIN: 00029010 DIN: 00460667 

Pl= Mumbai Plaoe: Mumbai 
Date · IO August 2022 Date : IO August 2022 

~- II) ~ 
Predi N. Cbbeda 
Chief Fmanc/a/ Ojfu:er 
DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: IO August 2022 
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidatc-d F inancial Statements 
Disclosure pursuant to S EBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(AU amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Additional d jsdosurcs as required by Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pnrsna.nt to gu.idance under Pa.ragraph 6 to SEBl circular Na. ClR/IMO/DF/146/2016 
(w) Calculation of net distributable cash flows at each Asset SPY 

For the quarter ended 30 June 2021 pursuant t o guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular J\o. ClR/IMD OF/146/7.016 

Sr. no. Dcsc:rietion \v.acado MBPPL Borizonview Gigal!les KRC Infra lntime KRIT Snndew Elimination '
21 Total 

l . Profit after Ill as per Statement of profit and loss/incomc and expenditure (standalone) (A) 59 647 (186) (200) 79 2.53 88 486 1,226 

2. Add: Depreciation and amortisation as per Statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure 20 Il l 30 88 37 8 9 83 386 

3. Add/less: Losi;lgain on sale of real estate assets 
4. Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets, liquidation o f any other asset or invesrmeot (incl cash 

equivalents) or any form of fund raise at the Asset SPY level adjusted for the following: 70 350 420 400 100 (1,340) 

debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
transaction costs 

proceeds re-invested or planned to be reinvested in accordance with the REIT 
Regulations 

any acquisition 
investmeot in any form as permitted under the REIT Regulations 

as may be deemed necessary by the Manager 
5. Add· Proceeds from sale of real estate assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if S11ch 

proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently 

6. Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense/ non casb income (net of acrual cash flows for thei;e items), 
as may be deemed necessary by the Manager (Note - 3) 28 125 18 297 17 j 224 81 795 

For example, any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in statement 
of profit and loss/income and e.xpenditure on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair ,'81ue:, interest 
cost as per effective interest rate method, deferred tax. lease rents recognised on a straight line baSls. etc. 

7. Add: Cash flow received from Asset SPV and investment entity, if any including tapplicable for Holdco 
ooly, to the extent not covered above}: 

repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt 
proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction 

8 . Add: Interest on borrowings from Mindspace REIT 38 56 86 52 26 6 264 

9. Add/Less: Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security deposits. working 

capital, etc., as may be deenwd necessary by the Manager l'l"'<•i 63 (204) (3) (57) 36 (76) (97} {195) (533) 

10. Less: Any experu;e in the nature of capital expenditure including capitalized interest thereon (to the p:Irties 

other than Mindspace REIT). overheads, etc. t•l&<SJ (35) (1 20) (61) (322) (403) (3) (94) (96) (1,134) 

11. Less· Net debt repayment I (d.rawdown) / redemption of preference shares / debentures I ary olher such 
instrument I premiums I accrued interest I any other obligations I liabilities etc., to parties other than 
Mindspace REIT, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager (135) 193 133 181 (119) 244 851 920 2,268 

12. Less: Proceeds to shareholders other than Mindspace REIT through buyback of shares/ capifal reduction/ 
dividend paid on preference or equity capital. buyback distribution tax if any paid on ~ urther 

includrng buyback distribution tax. if applicable on distribution to Mindspace REJT (6! ~$\NI: S 
(85) (86) (234) ~~~ (63) 

(21 I 161 274 239 (56) 291 601 744 (420 1,813 (<, 3' 
:A+B) C: ,;;c;:\ 38 808 87 39 23 544 689 1,230 (420) 3,038 



Note 1: Borrowing from and repayment to REIT within the same quarter has been adjusted under•~ Adjustmen: '. 

Note 2: For the purpose of eliminations, repayment of Inter SPV loans and repayment of loans from REIT further le· rt 10 Asset SPVs) is considered. 

Note 3: fn case of KRIT, Amount includes Mitten down value (in SPV) of the buildings bearing nos ,A & 1B and Plant nnd Mac.hmery and other I tems attched to the buildings amounting to Rs 260 Million on account of demolition of the 
said building,s. It has received concurrence from TSllC on 23 June 2021 for redevelopment 

Note 4: The change in balance of Book Overdraft disclosed under other current financial liabilities is n,:,t considered ..s distributable cash-flow and accordingly. it is adjusted while determining Net Distributable cash flow for the quarter. 

Note 5: 1n case of Sundew, during the quarter ended 30 June 2021, a total amount of Rs 204 million (including a Sll"n of Rs 42 million incurred during the quarter) has been transferred from capital expenditure to other adjustments pursuant 
to I= commencement of fit outs. 
Note 6: As per Chapter V, clause l 6(a) of Secwities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Rt gulation,;, 2014 as amended from time to time, the ennty is require<f to distribute n01 less than 90% of net distributable 
cash flows of the entity to Mindspace REIT in proportion of its holdfag in the SPV subject to applicable provisions i the Companies Act, 2013. As per distribution policy adopted by the governing board of Mindspace REIT's Manager (K 
Raheja Corp Investment Mmlagers LLP), any proceeds to shareholder.; other than Mindspace REIT is reduced to am• e nt Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF). 

The above note has been prepared as per the disuibution policy adopted by the governing board of Mindsp:ice REIT Manager. which is forming part of the Final offer document of Milldspace REIT and does not represent amount available 
for declaring dividend as per section 123 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with Declaration and Payment <1f Oividei..J Rules 2:014" 

Significant acxoo.nfuig poli.cies • n:fer note 3 

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements - refer note 4-55 

As per our report of even date attached, 

for Deloitte Uaskins & Sc,Us LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's registration nwnber. 117366W/W-100018 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raliej,l Corp Investment Managers LLP 
,ac1lng as Manager to the Mindspace Business Parks REin 

~~v 'f_li~ 
, ~ - /J ~ 

Nilesh Shah 
Partner 
Membership number. 49660 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 10 A u_gust 2022 

½ 

DIN: 00029010 

Pl.ice: Mumbai 
0Jte : 10 August 2022 

Vinod N. Rohica 
Chief E:cecutive Officer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mwnbai 
Date : l 0 August 2022 

Prem N. Cbbeda 
Chief Financial Officer 
DfN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : l 0 August 2022 
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Disclosure parsnant to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(All amounts an, in Rs. million u:nless othuwise stated) 

Additional disclosures as required by Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CJR/IMD/DF/l46/l016 
Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. ClR/lMD/DJ /146/2016 
(ii) Calculation of net distributable cash flows at eac:lt Asset SPY 

For the year ended 31 Jlfarcb 2022 pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/JMD/DF/14 .,/2016 IOl 

Sr. no. D~rietioo Avscado MBP PL Horiz.onview Gi~aelex KRC Infra lotime 

1. Profit after tu as per Statement of profit and lossfmcome and expenditure (standalone) (A) 325 2.252 (764) (286) 407 979 

2. Add: Deprccianon and amortisation as per SLi!lcmeot of profit and lossfmcome and expenditure 83 367 122 413 165 40 

3. Add/less: Loss/gain on sale of real estate assets (428) 
4. Add: Proceeds from sale of real estllte assetS, liquidation of any other asset or invesbnmt (incl. cash eqmvalents) or m,y 

fort11 of fund raise at the Asset SPV level adjusred for the following: 770 5,420 552 1,658 2,360 1,130 

debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
transac1ion costs 

proceeds re-invested or planned to be reinvested in accordnnce with the REIT Regu)anons <9• (1,200) 
any acquisition 
investment in any form as pmnitted under the REIT Regulations 

as may be deemed necessary by the Manager 
5. Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets not distnDUted pursuant to an earlier plan to ~invest, if such proce :ds are 

not intmded to be invested subsequently 
6. Add/less: Any other item of noo-<:asb expense / non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these , tems), as , ,,ay be 

deemed oec:cssary by the Manager. <-) 5l 260 70 344 30 (10) 

For example, any decrease/ioaease in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability reco~ in stall:oent of prr lit lllld 
loss/income and expendirure on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value, interesi cost 3S per c, tective 
interest rate method. deferred tax, lease rents recognised on a straight line basis, ete. 

7. Add: Cash flow received from Asset SPY and investment entity, if any including (appliC:lble fo: Holdco only to the 
ex1ent not covered above): 

repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of deb\ 
proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction 

8 Add; Interest on borrowings from Mindspace REIT 138 193 340 211 125 

9. Add/Less: Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security deposits, working capital., etc., .s may 
be deemed necessary by the Manager(l).(6).t.(7) (45) (44) 100 207 299 (76) 

10. Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure including capitalized interest thereon (to the panies oth r IJ!ao 

Mfodspace REfD, overheads, etc. (6lac t7l (129) (322) (274) ( 1,416) (2,446) (47) 

11. Less: Net debt repayment / (drawdown) / redemption of preference shares / debentures / any ot~er such instn 11ent / 
premiums I accrued interest I any other obligations I liabilities etc_ to parties other than Miodspace REIT, as 1 a1 be 
deemed n=sary by the Manager \4

) 42 (4,041) 197 (744) (832) 

12. Less: Proceeds to shareholders other than Mindspace REIT through buyback of shares/ capital reduction/ di\/idea ,d raid 
on preference or equity capital., buyback distribution !JIX if any paid on the same, and further including b,.yback 

distribution tax, if applicable oo distribution to Mind.space REIT 00 {221) 

Total Adjustments lB) 909 2.()6 1.106 671 QOO) 816 

N,t Distributable Cash F1ows (C)=(A+Bl --- ],235 2,458 342 384 108 _ 1126 

~ ~ 
t(u~rf): 

-~ 
j . 

KRIT Sundew Elimination Total 

791 2,055 5,759 
48 345 1,584 

(428) 

2,883 250 (8,720) 6,302 

(1,200) 

151 376 1,271 

4 13 1,024 

(238) (113) 90 

(582) (418) (5,634) 

(26) 3,424 4,630 2,649 

(332) (278) (831) 
1.907 3,600 (4.090} 4.826 
2,698 S,655 (4,090) 10,585 



Note I: For lhe purpose of eliminations, repayment of lo.ms from REIT (further lent to Asset SP Vs) is consi..tmd. 

Note 2: 1n case ofKRIT. amount includes written down value {in SPV) oftbe buildings bearing nos. IA & IB ;sod plant a, d maclunery and other items attached to the buildings amounting Rs 260 million on accollllt of demolition of the said buildings.It 
bas received COllCUJmlCC from TSllC OD 23 June2021 for redevelopment. 

Note 3: Borrowing from and repayment to REIT, if any within the same quarter bas been adjusted under "Other AdjuS1JT1er ,s' 

Note 4: Includes Rs. 4,000 million Noo-Coovcitible Debentures raised in Sundew during the year ended 31 \urcb 2022. 

Note S: As per Chapter V, clause 16(a) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regula! ·oos, 2014 as amended from time to time, the entity is required to distnnutc not less than 90% of net distributable cash flows of the 
entity to Mindspace REIT in proportion of its holding in lhe SPV subject to applicable provisions io the Companies A t, 2013. As per distribution policy adopted by the governing board ofMindspace RElT's Manager (K Raheja Corp lnvesrmcnt 
Managers LLP), any proceeds to sharcbolde,s other than Mindspacc REIT is reduced to arrive at net distcibu:ible cash Oovs (NDCF)_ 
The above note bas been prepared as per the distribution policy adopted by the governing board ofMindspacc REIT's Ma."llger. which is fonniog part of the Final offer document ofMindspaceREIT and does not represent amoUllt available for declaring 
dividend as per section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Declaration and Payment of Dividend Rules 2014, 

Note 6: Duri~ lhe year mded 31 March 2022, a total amount of I 18 million bas been transferred from capital expe11dirure o uthcr adjusunents pw;uanr to lease commeoocmeot of fit-outs in Gigaplc:x. 
Note 7: In case of Sundew, during the year ended 31 March 2022, a total amount of Rs. 358 million (\ndudaog 80 million ncurred during lhe period) bas been transferred from capital cxpeoditure ro otbCT adjusuneots pumiant to lease commencement of 
fit-outs. 
Note 8: The dividend is declan:d by Sundew. JOUT and lntime on 23 December 2021 amounting to Rs. 1,691 million to \findspace REIT and Rs. 209 minion to shareholders other than Mind.<pace REIT. The amount is paid to Mindspace REIT on 30 
December 2021 and the balance payable to other shareholders is appearing in the earmarked bank account as on 31 Decctn er 2021 and the same is paid in Jao.uary 2022. 
Note 9: In March 2022, Miodspace Business Parks Priva1e Limited (uMBPPL "), one of the Asset SP Vs of Mindspace Busmess Padcs REIT concluded the sale of land admeasuriog approximately 39 .996 acres located at Pocharam, Hyderabad, to K. 
Raheja Ccrp Private Limited ("KR.CPL") for a consideration of Rs. 1,200 Million as per lbe approval of lhe Board of Virectors of MBPPL and the Governing Board of the Manager and other terms and conditions as set out in the Memorandum of 
Unders.tanding dated D=ber 16, 2019 read with the cxtc:nsi011 letter dated September l, 2021 ("MoU") tmd 38le dee d:,,~ 30lh March 2022. Pending the decision on re-investment or distnbution of lhe sale proceeds, the sale proceeds bas been 
temporarily uulised to repay debt and invested in fixed deposit. 

Significant accounting policies• refer aote 3 

See the accompanying no.res to the Condensed Consolidllled Financial Statements• refer note 4-55 

As per our report of even date attached: 

for Deloitte Raslcios & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

for and on behalf of the Govciniog Board of 
K Rahej_"Corp JP7tment Managers LLP Ffl;wber: 11TI66W/W-100018 (acting¥ Majll(g~fo the Mindspace ~::~ ~ 

N:,.J.,_,C:i Vinod N. Rohira 

/4.,_u-L;J.fi~ 
Nilesb Sbab 
Partner 
Membership number: 4%60 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 10 August 2022 
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~~•Y Chief Execume Oj]icu 
tlN: 0002901 DIN: 00460667 

Ploce: Mumbai Place: Mumbai 
0--..rt : 10 August 2022 Date : 10 August2022 

Preeti N. Cbhed• 
Chief Fmoncial Officer 
DJN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: IO August 2022 
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Conden1cd Con, olida ted Fln11ncial Slaternonls 
Noles to Accounts 
(All amounts In Rs, million unless otherwise stoled) 

1 Orianisatiou Structure. 
The condensed consolidated financial statements ('Condensed Consolidated Finnncial Statemcnls') comprise financial statements of Mindspace Business Parks Real 
Estate l.nvesbnent Trust ('Mindspace Business Parks REIT/ Mindspacc REITffrust), its SPYs Mindspacc Business Parks Private Limited ('MBPPL'), Gigaplcx Estate 
Private Limited ('Gigaplex'), Sundew Properties Limited ('Sundew') lntime Properties Limited ('ln1ime'), K, Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited ('KR!l'), KRC 
Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited ('KRC Infra'), Horlzonview Properties Private Limited ('Horizouvicw'), Avocado Properties and Trading (India) Private 
Limited ('Avacado? (individually referred 10 as 'Special Purpose Vehicle' or 'SPY' or "Asset SPY" 1md together referred 10 as ' Mindspace .Business Parks 
Group'fMindspace Group'), The SPYs are companies dom iciled in India, 

Anbce Constructions LLP ('ACL') and Cape Trading LLP ('CTL'} collectively known as (the 'Sponsors' or the 'Co-Sponsors') have set up tlio 'Mindspacc 13usiness 
Parks REIT' as IIJ1 irrevocable trust, pursuant to the Trust Deed, under t.bc provisions of the Indian Trnsls Act, 1882 and the Trust has been registered wiU, SEBI as a 
Real Estate lnvesnnent Trust on 18th November 2019 under Regulntion 6 of tl,e Securities and Exchonge Board of India (Real Eslllte Investment Trusts) Regulations, 
2014 having regis1n11ion number RN:JN/REIT/19-20/003, TI1e Trnstee to Mindspaoc REIT is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the 'Trustee') and the Manager for 
Mindspnce REIT is K Raheja Corp Investment Mnnogcrs LLP (the 'Investment Mnnoger' ). 

The objective, and principal activity of Mindspnce REIT i, to cnrry on the activity of n real e.tate investment trus~ as pennissible under tl1c REIT Regulations, 10 roisc 
funds through U1c REIT. to make Investments In accordance with the REIT Regulations and tho lnvo,stment Strategy and to carry on the activities as moy be required 
for operating the REIT, including ineidentol and ancillary mntters Omoto. 

1110 units oflhc trust were listed on the Bombay Stock Exd,nngc (BSE Limited) ond Nationnl Stock Exchnngo (NSE) on 7 August 2020, 

11ic bricfncrivi1ies nod shoroholdin1t onltem of tho SPYs arc orovided below: 

Name or the SPY 

MBPPL 

Gigoplex 

Sundcw 

lnlime 

KRIT 

Activities 
Shareholding 

(in percen tage)•• •I 3 1 Morch 22 

The SPY is engaged in real estate Mindspocc Business Porks 
development projocls such as Special REIT : JOO% 
Economic Zone (SEZ), lnfonnation 
Technology Parks and other commercial 
assets, The SPY has its projects in Airoli 
(Navi Mumbai), Punc and Pocharam 
(Hyderabad). TI1e SPY is a deemed 
distribution licensee pursuant to which it 
can distribute power to U,e SEZ tenants 
within tbe Park. It commenced distribution 
of electricity in its project 01 Airoli, Novi 
Mumbai from 9 April 2015. 

The SPV is c1111•1J•d in re•I osiere Mindspace Business Parks 
development J1fOJ<Cl3 sacb iu lipccial IUitl , 100% 
LI.4JOUIHH, L,Hh. ~JL~). ulfotm.SlJvi\ 

Technology Parks and otl,er commercial 
,1ssets. The SPV has it$ proj«.1• iu Airoli 
(Navi Muonbui).Tho SPY is n deemed 
disuibuuon licensee pursuant lo whioh it 
can d1stnbutc power to \ho ~F:.:l. teno111s 
within lhc Pork. It commenced distribution 
of electricity in iu project nl Airoli, Navi 
Mumbni from 19 April 2016. 

Shnr<holding 
(in perc•oluge) • • al 3 0 June 2022 

Mindspace Business J>urks 
REIT : 100% 

Mtndspocc Business Porks 
R.BIT; 100% 

TI1e SPY i• engaged in development nnd Mindspnce REIT: 89% Miudspnce REIT , 89% 
ltaslng/liccnsing of IT pork, SEZ to 
Jlfforent customers in Hydor•bad. Telangauu Srnle lndn.s1nnl Infrastructure Tclangouo State lndustriul lnihutructure 

Corporation Limited ( 11%) Corporation Li111i1ed (I 1%) 

The SPY is engaged In development and Mindspaee REIT; 89% Mindspace REIT: 89% 
Jeasing/Jiceming of IT park to difl'cr<:nl 
customers in Hyderabad. Tclangana State Industrial lnfrnslructurc Tolang1111u Stutc hldustriol lnfr1mrucrure 

Corporation Limited (11%) Corpon.uou Limited ll 1%) 

11,e SPV ii; engoged in development and Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspaco RE!T ; 89% 
leasiug/liceusing of IT park to different 
customers in Hyderabad. 

Telanguna S1otc bidus~·ial lnfi'astruclurc Tela11gu11e S1a1e Industrial lnfrastrnc111r< 
Corporation Lnnitcd {I 1%) Corporation Limited (J t%) 



KRC Infra The SPY is engaged in real estato Mindspace Business Parks Mindspacc Business Parks 
development projects such as Special REIT: JOO% REIT : 100% 
Economic Zone (SEZ) and lnfonnation 
Technology Parks. The SPY has its project 
in Kharadi Pune.The SPY is a deemed 
distribution licensee pursuant to which it 
can distribute power to the SBZ tenants 
within the Park. lt commenced distribution 
of electricity in its project at Kharadi, Pune 
from 1 June 2019. 
The SPY is also engaged in Facility 
Management services. 

Horizon view The SPY is engaged in development and Mindspace BusineBll Parks Mindspaco Business Parks 
leasing/licensing of IT park to different REIT : 100% REIT: 100% 
customers in Chennai. 

Avacado Tho SPY has developed an Industrial park Mindspacc Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks 
for the pUJJlose of letting out to different REIT ; 100% REIT: JOO¾ 
customers in Paradigm building at Malad-
Mumbai and is being maintained and 
operated by the SPY. The SPY also has a 
commercial project in Bandra Kurla 
Compl0x, Mumbai. 

2 Basis or prepar•tlon 
The Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements ofMindspace Business Pru-ks REIT comprise the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2022, 
the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other compreherulve Income, the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Plow for the quarter 
ended 30 June 2022, the Condensed Statement of Changes in Unitholdcrs Equity for the quarter ended 30 Juno 2022, the Statement of Net Distributable Cashflows of 
Mindspoce Business Parks REIT and each of tho SPYs for tho quarter ended 30 June 2022 and a summary of the significant accounting policies and select explanatory 
infonnation and other additional financial disclosures. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and circulan issued 
thereunder read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DP/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 ("tho REIT regulations''); Regulation 52 and Regulation 54 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Rcquiremonts) Regulations; Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 ''Interim Financial Reporting'' and other accounting principles 
gen~rally accepted \n Jndje to tbe e)llenl tlOl inCOrL9iitent with REIT regulations, (refer note 19 on presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" Instead of compound 
instruments under Ind AS 32-Fioancial ln.Btrumenb: Prcsontation), read with relevant rules issued thereunder. 
The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements were ouU1orised for Issue iu accordance with the resolution passed by the Governing Board of the Manager on 10 
August 2022. 

State:ncct of compllo.nce to Ind AS: 
These Condensed Consolidated financial statement.8 for the quarter ended 30 Juno 2022 have been prepo.rod in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 34 
"Interim l'inuneial Reporting", to thG cxtotl not inconsistent with tbc RfilT regulation, a~ more fully described above and Note 19 to the condensed consolid9~d 
II ·io.l• I nut,, 

Dasi, of ConsolldJttion 
Mindspaco Business Porks Group consohdates euuues wluch lt owns or control~. The CoudepslJ<! ConBolidatcd Fln,ul~iul StA\omunus cotoprise the fuhwviul sltltemcnts of 
Mindspaco Bwincas parla REIT o.nd illi subsidiary SPY! 11.1 dlscloml In note I, Qintrol cwt! when lhc parent 1w power over the entity, i, eY:J")•rd, or h•• right• 10 

variable returns from its involvement with the entity and bas the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity, Power is demorutrated thrcugh cxiating 
rights that give the ability to direct n:IOVlllll activities, those which significantly affect the entity's returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences 
until the date control ceases. 
The procedure for preparing Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parka Group are stated below: 
a) The financial statements ofMindspace Business Parks Group aro consolidated for li.k.0 items and intn1gro11p balances and transactions for ttsscts 1111d liabilitic•, equity, 
income, expenses and cash flow, between ontitics of Mindspace Business Parks Group are eliminated in full upon conaolidation, 
b) Telanguna Stale fuduslrial lnfrasln.lcture Corporation Limited, which is a shareholder in Intirnc, KRIT and Sundew bas not agreed to exchange their equity interest in 
the SPYs (lntime, KRIT and Sundew), thus, Mindspaco Business Parks REIT bas recorded a non-controlling interests for these SJ>Ys. The interest of non-controlling 
shareholders may be initially measured eithor at fair value or at the non--0ontrolllng interest proportionate share of tho fair value of the acquin:e'a identifiable net assets. 
The choice of mc:asuroment basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition ho.sis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the 
amount of those interests at initial recognition plw the non-controlling interests' share of subsequent changes in equity. 

c) The Eigurcs In the notes to accounts and disclosures have been Consolidated line by line and Inter--0omJ)Wly trausactions and balances including unrealised profits are 
clim,inatcd in full on consolidation. 
d) Mindspace Business Parks Group holds 4% of the equity ,hare capital of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, a company involved in the real estate development. 
Mindspace Busmcu Parka Gro-up is of the view that it is oot able to cxcroiae significant influence over Stllrgazc Properties Private Limited and hence it has not been 
accounted using equity method. 



J Significant accoun ting policies 

(o) Func1ional and prescnlAtion currency 
11,e Condensed Consolidated Financial StalemcnlS are presented in Indian rupees, which is Mindspace Business Parks Group's functional currency and lho currency of 
lhe primary economic environment in which Mindspace Business Parks Group operates. All financial infonna1ion prosen1cd in Indian rupees has been rounded off to 
nearest million except otherwise stated, 

(b) Basis of measurement 
11,e Condensed Consolidated Financial Sllltcments are on Otc historical cost basis, except for tho following: 
• Certain financial assets and liablli1ics (refer accowuing policy regarding financial instrwnent): measured at fair volnes; 
- Nel defined benefit (asset)/liability less present value of defined obligations: Fair volue of plan assets less present value of defined bcnefi1 plan. 

(c) Use ofjudgcruc111s and estimates 
11,e preparation of the Condensed Consolidated financial Statements in confonnity wilh generally accepted accowiting principles in India (Ind AS) requires 
management to make cstima1es and asswnptions tha1 affect 010 reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, Actual resuhs could differ from those 
estimates, 
8itinmtes arid underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting esllmates aro recognised in lhe period in which the estimnte.s an, 
revised and m ony foturo periods affected, 
Information about critical judgements in applying accounlfng policies that hove O,e mos1 significam effec1 on 1he amo11n1s recognised iu 1ho Conden~ed Consolida1ed 
Financial S1atcments is included in the following notes: 

Presenllltion of"Unit Capitnl" as "Equity'' in uccorduncc with the REIT Jlegulotions instead ofcompound inS1rumertt (Note 19) 

Esrimntion of lease tenn for revenue rc<:oguition 
Estimation ofu,eful life ofpropoFty, plont nnd equipment ond invc,tment property 
Estimation of recognition of deferred tux assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used and income taxes. 

Impairment and Foir va.luation of lnvesbnent Property, Investment property under con1tn1otiou, Property, plant and cquipmenl and Capi1al work-in-progress 

Recognition and meusurement of provisions for contingcncie• and disclosure of contingent liabilities 

d) Current vcr1us non-ow-rent classiftcation 
Mindspacc Business Parks Group presents nssclS ond liabilities in the Condensed Consolidotcd Balanoe Sheet based on current/ nou-<:urren! clossificn1ioo: 
An asset is treated as current when it is: 
- Expcc1ed to be realised or in1ended 10 be ,old or consumed in nomrnl operating cycle; 
• Held primarily for 010 purpose of trading; 
• Expected to be realised wilhin twelve montlis after the reporting period; or 
• Cash or cash equivolent unless restricted from being exchanged or used lo senle a liability for al least twelve months of\er tho rcpon.iug period. 

All other assets ore classified os non-current 
A liability i• current when: 
• It 1s oxpoc!Ud to be settled in nom,nl optrating cycle; 
- It is hdd primarily fo, the purpo,o of trading, 
- II is due to be settled within twelve months after tl,e reporting period; or 
- 11,ero is no unconditional right to defer lhe ,ettlement oflhc li•bilily for ot least twelve months nflcr U,e rcporung period 
Mindspace Business Porks Group classifies all olher liabilities 11.'i non-current, 
Defem:d la>< assets and liobilities are classified as non-current assets and Habiliti•~ 
11ic optr::ting cytk is the time between the e.c.qui1ition of n!1!ltl!l for proceDins u.nd !heir realisation in ca.sh end crun ,qujvuh.mL, Mindi;pllce R11iiine.s~ P"rk~ nrtwp hM 
iden1itiod twelve montl,s os ilS opernting cycle. 

(c) Moaaun:m~ut of fi<ir vuluc> 
l'l!ruu~a1.1- U1-o!ln1,.;..a , u,-1 ~ruYJ>:. ........ ,,auHmo .,. L .. " ... iu w1-.fo~».u I.".' 1 • '-'',. ,. u 1 , i' · 1 ~ 1, f ~ ,J 
liubilitic,, Mindspooe Business Parkt Group has on establi.shcd control ftomcwork with respect lo the mea,urement of fair value,, 
They regularly review sisnificant unobservable inputs and voluation adju81mcnts. If third party informntion is used to measure foir values tl,en tl1e finance 1;.,am 
"'"""'"" O,e evidence ob1ained from lhc tltird porties to support the conclusion lhat such voluatious meet tlte roquiremcnts of wd AS, including the lol'~I in 1he fair 
mluc hicrorohy in which such valuations should be classified. 
Wf1~n mo-a1urinK tho fau valuc:i of tul us:i.c, ut ti Uul.iili(y, 1\,1.i.ud"µuc.o Blt~J.Otos Parks Gioup ""~,3 ob.>tnaulc uu~,J..:l;li J11tt1 ,1.11 f.u .. ., ]-Jo..,.1lbk, rJ1r \\,IU\...: u h . ... ~11.;~or:&c:J 

11110 different lcl'el$ in a foir value hierarchy bued on lho inpulS used in tl,c velunnon techniques as follow!: 

• Level I: quoted prices (w1adjUJtc<l) in oc1ivo markols for ldontical asscis or liabilities that entity eon oocess on moasurement dale. 
• Level 2: inpuu other than quoted pnces included in Level I lhat are ob•erveblo for 1hc asset or linbility, either d1rcctly (i.e. es pric,es/ or mdiroclly (1 c. derived from 
prices), 
• Level 3: inputs for 1hc a.sset or liability 1h01 arc not based on observablo mnrketdatn (unobservable inputs). 
lf01e inpulS used to me11JUro the fair value of an asscl or a linbility fall iu10 di!Terent levels of the fnir voluc hierurchy, 010111ho foir valuo nwasw-ement 1s cotegorisecl in 
,ts entirety in tl,o same level of lhe fair valuo hierarchy as tlie lowest level input tliat is signi 6ca111 10 the entire measurement 

3.1 Fimanci.al &uilrauttte cootraclJ 
A financial guaranlee contract is a contract !hot requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse 1hc holder for a loss lt mctU's because• spec,ficd debtor 
foils to make paymenu when duo in aocordnncc with tho tonns of• debt instrument. 
financial guBr11ntce contracts arc measured initially 01 1lte foir value and in accord an co with Ind AS I 09 wt less on a case to case basis elected 10 be occonntcd for 
finoncial guarantee ns Insurance Cootrncls as specified tinder Ind AS 104, 

J,2 Property, plane and equlpmenC 
(A) Recognilion and mcasur<meot 

Property, plant nnd equipment are stn1ed nt cost less accumula1ed deprcciorion and impairmcn~ if any, Depreciation is chnrgcd when the assets are ready for tl1eir 
inlended use, Purchase price or construction cost is defined ns nny con,irlernrinn p•id or foir value of ony olher oonsiderorion given to acquire O,e esset 

(b) Suli,cqu,ut expenditure 
Subsequent expondi1uro is oapitaliz;:d only ifit is probable tho! U,e luture economic benefits nssoointccl witl, lhc oxpondhure will Oow to Mindspace Dusiness Parks 
Group. Subsequent costs arc included in the osse1's carrying nmount or recognised as • sepam1e nssct, ns npproprin1e, only whCJ\ it is probable lhot future economic 
benefits ossociutcd with tho item will Oow to Mindspocc Busineu Porks Group end Ote cost of tltc item can be measured reliably. All other repnin a11d mnin1enance 
aro oharsed 10 the Consolidoted Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which lhey are incutTed. 



(e) Deprtci•tfon 
Depreciation / omortisalion is provided using strnight line method es per the useful life of Ilic essels cstimatcd by lhe management 0\'or U1e balance useful life, 1110 
estimated useful lives of the assets, which ore higher U1an, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Ac1 2013, arc listed in the mule 
below. Depreciation on addition/ deletion of property, plant and equipment made during the period is provided on pro-rato basis from / 10 the dale of such addition/ 
deletion, 

Tho assets and estimated useful life arc as under: 

Auel group 
Estimeted Unful Life 

(in years) 

Power asset5 Olher a:ri:scts 
Right to use • Leasehold land Balance Lea~• tonn . 
Buildings• 75/90 . 
Plant and machinery 15 15 
Electrical installation• 15 15 
Computers 3 3 
Temporary Structure• I 
Office equipment' 4 4 
Furniture and fixtures• . 7 
Vehicles• . s 

• for these class of assets, based on technical assessment the management believes tl1c useful life of the assets is appropriole which is diffcrcut tl1an tl1ose prc,crihed 
under l'n,t C ofS~hedule II ofd1e Companies Act, 2013. 
(I} Based on intcmai assessment the mnnagemcnt believes the residual value of all assets except Leasehold Land is estirnnted 10 be 5% of the originu.l co,1 of those 
respective assets at SPY. 
(2) Assets individually costing less dmn Rs S,000 are fully wrillen off in the year of ocqui,ilion. 
(3) 11tc estimated use fill lives, residual values and depreciation method arc reviewed al the end of the reporting period with tl1e effucl of any changes in tho cstmrnlion 
accounted for on a prospective basis. 

(J) De-recotnition 
Au item of property, plant and equipment is derecogni,.cd upoa disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use oflhe asset. 
Any gnin or loss nrising on the disposal or retirement ofan item of property, plant and equipment is delennined as the dilfcr<ncu between the sales proceeds ond tho 
canying amount of the asset nnd is rceo8Jlizcd in the Condensed Consolidated S1atcmcn1 of Profit nnd Loss. 

(e) Capital work in progress 
Property, plant and equipment wider construction is disclosed as cnpital work in progress which is carried at cost less nny recognized impuinnent losses. Cosl 
comprises of purchase price and any attributable cost such as duties, freight, borrowing costs, erection and commissioning o~pcnses incurred in bringing the nssol lo its 
working condition for its intended use. 
Advance paid and cxpendi111r~ incurred on acquisition/ consuuction of property, plant ond equipment which ore nol reody for their Intended use n1 each balance sheet 
date arc disclosed under other non current assets as advances on capitol account and capillll work-in-progress respectively. 

3.J Intangible assets 
(•) Rtcugnition """ moo,uremeut 

An inlnngiblc osset is w1 identifiable non-111onel11,y asset wilhool physicol subslonce. Intangible asset, with finlte useful lives dint ara acquired sepnrnlcly ore inirinlly 
measured at its cost oud then conicd at the cost less 11c.cumula1ed amo11i:;:aIion and ImpaJrme1u1 if any. The estunuteti Ull!Oful lifo and nrnor1Is-noon method urc- r.,;1,1icwcd 
nt the end of each reporting period, with 1h0 effect of any changes in eslimato boing nccounlcd for one prospective basis. lnlongiblc assets with indelinnc usoful live! 
lhnt an: acquired soporatcly arc carried ar eost less impainn<llt, if nny. 

( h) ~uJ,,:rqur"I r11rl"nrlih1r,-

Subscquent oxpcndirure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in tho specific osset to which it rolatcs. All 0U1er expe11d1h11~. 
in0l11ding axpenditure on internally gcnerntcd goodwill and brauds, is recognised in the Condenscd Consolidated Stntemc111 of Profit w1d Loss as incurred. 

(cJ Amorriutioo 
.\moni••tion is .:aleulated ~vcr :h. ~o.i of th. a~.c; or oll1c, omounl ,abs!itutcd fer co,1, Ice its rc:iiduol value. ,\morti,u,tion i! re<t.•gni,od in the f'ondcn•cd 
Consolidated S1a1c111eu1 of l'rofil and Loss on a straight lillc rnelhoJ over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, from the dote thal lhey nrc evniloblc for use. 

Computer SoRwares 
Trademarks 

Estimated Ut eful Life 
(in ytars} 

Oilier as,011 

3 
10 

The estimated useful lifo and omortlso11on method ore reviewed nt tl1e end of coc;h reporting period, with the effect of nny change• 111 estimate being acco11111ed for nn • 
prospective basis. 

(d) D<·r<coguition 
Au mtangible asset L, dereeogm,ed on disposal, or whan no fun1rc economic benefits are expected from use or diJposal, ijnms or losses erising from <le1cco.1111i1ion of 
uu intangible &5SO~ measured as the difference between 1he net disposal proceed• ond tho conying omowll of the o,set, are rccognisctl in the Consolida1ed S1n10mcnt 
of Profit and Loss when tho asset i• dcrccogni,cd. 



3.4 lnvcslrutnl property 
(a) Recognition and measuremeut 

Propenies includlns land, building and other nssets, which are held either for long-term rental yield or for capital appreciation or for both, and which ore not occupied 
substantially by Mindspace Business Parks Group ere classified os investment propeny. 
lnvcsttuent propC"rtics are initially recognised at cos1, including related transaction coslS. Sobsequen1 to initial recognition, investment properties A.re measured i11 

accordance witl, the requirement of Ind AS J6's requircm0nts for cost model i.e. Cost less depreciation less impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged when 
the invesonent propeny is ready for irs intended use. Cost comprises of direct expenses like land cost, site labour cost, material used for project construction, project 
nHmagement consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery to Ute site and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like insurnnce, 
design and tecluiical assistance, and construction overheads are allocated on a reasonable basis to the cost of the project 
Plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures, office equipment and electrical equipments which arc physically auached to the commerdnl buildings arc considered as 
part or invesbnent propeny. 
Acquisitions and disposals are accounted for al U,e date of completion or acquisitions and disposals, 

(b) Subso,1uenl expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits assodnted with the expenditure will ilow to 
Mindspace Business Parks Group and the cost of the item can be mcnsured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. 

(e) Depreciation 
Depreciation I amoniiatiou is provided using straight lino meU1od as per the useful lifo of tho assets estimated by the management over the balance useful life.11,e 
estimated usefiol lives of tl,e assets, which ore higher than, lower th1111 or equal 10 those prescribed under Schedule TI or the Comperues Act 2013 nnd listed in the teblo 
below. Ocpreciotion on addition I deletion of investment property made during the pmod is provided on pro-rain b .. i, r,om I!~ 1h0 dole of s>tch ~dditiQn I de lotion 

Asset eroup 

Right to use • Leasehold lnnd 
Buildings• 
lnfrnstructurc and dcvclop111cul 
Roadwork• 
Broadwalk, vantage cafc etc.• 
Pinnt and machinery 
Office equipment• 
rumi1ure and fixtures• 
Electrical installation• 

E, timated u~efol Lire 
(in years) 

Balnnce Lease term 
?S/90 

15 
IS 
so 
15 
4 
7 
15 

• For these class of essets, based 011 technical ossessment the management believes tho usctul life ofU1e assets is approprrnte which is dillerent 1hnn those pre9cribcd 
under Pon C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 
(1) 811Sed on int.cmul o,;scs,rnent the ruanogemcnt believes the residual value of all .. ,c1s except Leasehold Land is eshmatod to be 5% of U,e orignrnl cost of those 
rcs1>ect1vc ancls 01 SPV 

(2) Asset• i11dividu111ly costing less tlu111 Rs 5,000 ore fiilly wriuen oft'in tho year ofscquishion. 
(3) •n,c estimated useful live,, residual values and depreciation method ure reviewed nl tho end or tho rcponu111 period w,1h the cft'ect or ony changes III tho 0$tult•lto11 
accounted for on a prospective basis. 

(d) l'air Yalu~ 
Fntr- ,•:1h1f" o ,· im•P111tm,.nt pm('Prt\' i• tif'>c:ffi fHl -i v~l11'"\ffon bv nr, i"lrl'"p,.ncf,.nt Vf\hu•r wh" 11n.frl• A J"'"t-ntru111t"d ,iutrl rrl~vpnt pmrect111ionril qunlinrruinn nnd hn~ recent 
experience in the location and category of the investment propeny bclns valued, 11te fair value ofinvcslmeut propeny is disclosed in the Stntcmcnt of Net nssets ul 
Foir Value. 

(•) Ut-recognition 
Au mvcstmeu1 proi,ctty ,s derecogmzcrl upon chsposnl nr when lhe 111vestmanl propcny 1s pennomm1iy wuhdrewu from use 1uul nu funm: cC-(.lno1111~ bc:11cfi\~ nn,­

:,q11:c1cd from th: dispoul. ;\ny 11,in or lo,s ari!ing On d:-=c,:11iti0n oftlte proprtty (calculftled u 1hr diffi:rc111:.- belwe•n the ntl dispo,11 rroc•crl, n111I 1h~ r•rryinr 
omouutof !he o,sct) is included in the Condensed Consolidated Stotement of Profit and Los, in the period in which the property is de-recognised. 

(Q l nvutmtnl propertiu under construelioo 
Propeny that is being constructsd for future use a, investment propeny is accounted for as mvostmcrll propeny under conotruction until essets are rendy for llmr 
iruended uso . 
Direct <OXpcnscs like lund co;t, site lobour cost. ineteriol used for project construction, project mansgemcnl consultancy, cosl• for moving tho pion! and mucluncry to 
the silo 11nd gcncml expense• incurred ,peciflcally for tho respective 1irujeo1 like insurance, design ond technical assistance, and construction ovcrhe•d• are taken es the 
cost of tho project. 

lnvesbnent properties under construction rep/ttent the cost incurred in respect of areas under construction of Ute rent estute development project, less impainnont 
lossos1 if any. 
Advance paid for ecquisiuon of UlVCJtment propcny which are 1101 ready for their uuendcd use nt each balance sheet dole ore disclosed under other 11011 c111Tco1 assets 
ns capital advance. 

J,S lmpairmtut of 8'5tl5 

Min<bpuce Busfneas Porks Group assc,<1ses at oaclt balru,ce sheet dote, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication oxist1, 
M indspacc Business Park, Group estimate, th<> recoverable omount of the asset. 1 he rccovemble amount of tl,o ossol8 (or where opplicablc that of the cash genera11ng 
ui111 to which the asset belongs) is estimnted as tho higher of its fair vnluo less cost of disposal and its velue in use, Value in use is the present volue of estimated foturc 
cnsh flows expected to ariso from the continuing use of the nssetJ and from its dispo,ol at Ute end of ii., useful life. An impairment loss ii recognised whenever the 
carrying omount of an aoset or the cush-generating unit to which it belougs, exceeds its recoverable amount, lmpa!nnent loss is recognised in u,e Consolidated 
Stotemont of Profit and Loss. 

Whon an impahmcnt loss subsequently reverses, tl1e carrying amount or Uie asset (or a cosh-11e11ern1ing unit) is increased 10 the revised estimate of its rccovcrobl• 
11moun1. 10 that the increased canying amount docs 1101 exceed u,c carrying amount u,at would have been determined had no impairment loas been ,ecogniscd f\lr the 
ouct (or C3'h•gcucroting llllit) in p1ior years. A reversal of 1111 impainnenl lou is tccogniscd immedlotcly in the Consolidated Statomcnl of Profit and l.oss, 



3,6 Burrowing cosh1 
Borrowing coslS that ore atbibutable to the acquisition, coustruction or production of qualifying assets aro treated as direct cost and are considered as pa11 of cost of 
such assets. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity Incurs in connection with the bo1Towing of funds. Invesnnent incoJUe earned on 1he 
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending tl1eir expenditure on qunlifying ossets is deducted from tl1e borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. A 
qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period oftime to get reody for its intended use or sale. 
Capitalisation rate used to detennine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted avorago interest rate applicable to the general borrowings. 
Copitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during tl10 extended period in which active development is intem1pted. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased when 
substantially ell the activities ne<essary to prepare the quaUfying asset for its intended use or sale ore complete. 
All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they sre incurred. 

Borrowing cost incurred by tl1e SPVs on inter-company loan, is continued to bo capitalised only to tho extent Mindspace Group has incurred external borrowing cost. 

J. 7 Inventor!., 
(u) Measurement of inventory 

Inventories comprise of building material and components, Contractual work in progress, in respect of third party cu,tomers, is cl ossified as work in progress. 
Mindspace Business Parks Group measures its inventories at tl1e lower of cost and net realisable value, 

(b) Co,i or invcntori .. 
The cost of inventorie• of building materinl and component• and work in progress comprise oil costs of purchase und other costs incurred in bringing the invontorios 10 
thoir present location and condition. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis. 

(e) Net rtali.sablc value 
Net realisable value i, tl1c r<iitn~l~d ,eUiag price In the ordinnry coursc ofb11<in•ss. los, estim~tcd C(ISl8 of completion and cstioMtod costs riecessary to 111ake the sule. 

3.8 Revenue recognition 
(a) J>acillty rentab 

Revenue from property lensed out under on operating lease is recognised over the i.,,.,e lenn on a straight lino basis, except where there is an w1ce11nin1y of uhimnle 
collection. 

(b) Re,·cnue from works contractual scrvicu 
Revenue from works contr11ctual scn•ico is accounted for on the basis of completion of work as per tl1e specification and agreement with the customer. 

(c) l\hinlenance ,ervicu 
Mointemmcc income is recognised over o period of lime for services rendered 10 the cus1omers. 

(d) Reveuue from power su11ply 
Revenue from power supply is accounted for on tlic basis of billings to consumers and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of tho accounting yenr. 
Mindspncc Business Parks Group detcmiines surplus/deficit i.e. cxces,.t shortfall of aggregate gain over return on equity entitlement for tl1e period in respect of its 
operations based on the principles laid down under the respective Twill' Regulations as notified by Mahurashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC), on the 
basis of the twiff order issued by it.In respect of such surplus/deficit, appropriate adjustmcnu 05 stipulated under the rcglllutions are made during tl1e period. Further, 
uny adju,oncnl• thnt 111uy adsc on ann~ul perforrnnncc review by the MERC under the tsriffregulntions i• mode nfier tl1e completion of such rc\'iew. 

(e} Re\'enue from sole of goods 
Revenue is measured btucd on transaction prioe, which is thu foir v11luc of tho oonsidcrution rw cived or receivable for l!Oods supplied, ne1 of relUlllll allowances, trarte 
discounts nnd volume rebates. Revenue from tl10 sale of goods is shown to exclude taxes such as Goods nnd SCl'\/iccs Tax which is pnynblc in respect of sole of 
l!Oods.ltcvcnue from tlio sole of goods is recognised when the Co111pru1y perfonns its obligntions to its customers and the •mow11 of revenue cnn be measured relinbly flnd 
toc.:ivo,y of lh• consideration is probable. The timing of such recognition in case of sale of goods is when the control over the same is transferred to the oustomcr. 

(0 Finonec Lease 
For ussets lot out undtr hnance I cruse, Mmdspuce business Porks Group recognises a rCGCIVUblo Ul tm arnoum t:<1ual to 1he n.;t •n~c.>ut11:11t 111 \uc ltd~ea. l{ i.:111,il~ "-Al.'.:I\ 1:,1 

ure accounted for es ropaymem of principal nnd Anonoc income. Minimum lcaso paymenlS receivoble on finance leases ore opportion•d botwcc11 the finonco income 
ond tho reduction of the outilJUldiog receivable. The 6nanoo incotnc; alloculed 10 each period durmg the kose tom, •o .. 10 produce n constnnl periodic rn10 of interest 
011 the m noioing ocl invo91111eu1 in the 6onnc,- kotc 
ConhngcJ1t renu are recorded as income in Iha panods in which they ore earned. 

(&) Sale of surplus con,truclion mal<rial and serop 
Revenue from sol<> of surplu, constn1c1ion mntcrial and scrup is recognised when contml of' the good5 are trnnsfcrrcd to the customer•• on nmoun1 thnl reOects the 
con1idera1ioo to whioh the Group expccis to be entitled in exchange for those goods. 

3,9 Recognition of dividend income, inferesl income : 
(i) Dividend i11come i, recognised in profit or loss on 010 dote on which M!ndspocc REIT group has right lo receive payment is cslllblishcd. 
(ii} lntercst income is recognised on time proponion basis, by reference 10 the principal oulslandfng und the effective interest rnte npplicnble. 
(iii) Delayed payment charges ond interest 011 delayed payments arc recog11iscd, on limo proportion basis, except whet, thero is uncertainty ofulllmate collection. 

J.10 Tax upens• 
Income tax el<pense comprises ourront tax 11nd deferred tux charge or credit. It is recognised in the Stotemont of Profit and Loss except to tl1e extent that it rclotc• to on 
item recognised directly in equity or iu other co111prchensive income io which cnsc, tho current and deferred lax ore nlso recognised in equity nnd other eomprehonslve 
income rc$pe<:tively. 

(•} Current tax 
Current tax comprises tho expected tnx pnyoblc or reee1vablc on tho taxable mcome or lo,s fur the year and any adju,tmcnt 10 the tax payable or receivable iu respect 
of previous yeors. The amount of current tllX re0ocu tho best estimote of tl10 tax amount expected to be paid or received uf\er cousiderius the uncertainty, if any, 
roloted to income 1axes. It is measured using tax rates (nnd tnx Iowa) enacted or iubstanllvely enacted by ond of roporting period. 

(b) Deferred tu 
Deferred lax D.SSotlliability i5 recognised on temporary differences between tl10 carrying runounts of assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Ffnnnciol Stotcments and 
tho corresponding lllX bases used in the compu1ntion of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are mcusurcd lhnt oro cJtpected to apply to the period wl,en tJ,c 
asset is realised or the liabnity is so11led, usfng ~le tnx rates nnd tax lnws that have been enacted or subslllnrivoly enectcd by the end of reporting period, 1110 
mcuurcmcnt of dofcm:d tax liabilities and assets rcfleota the lllX consequences that would follow from tho 111nnncr ill which Mindspnce Business Park• Group expc<ts, 
nt the end of tho reporting period, to recover or settle tl1c 0nnying nmount of its assets nnd liabilities. 
Deferred rnx is not recognised for: 
• Tcmporory diff,rences 11rising on the initial recognition ofassels and liabilities in u transaction d1a1 is 1101 a businoH combination ond that nffects ncitl1cr accounting 
nor taxable profit or loss ot tho time of the trunsoction; und 
• Ti!l1lporat)' dift'orences related to inve,bncnlS in ,ubsidianes, ossoc1ntos, nnd joint orT11ngemcn11 to the <:Xtent tl1ut Mmdspace Businc,. Pnrk Group i, oble to eou1rol 
11,e timing of tl,e reversal of the temporory difli:rcncu and It b probable tl1at tl1ey will no\ 
reverse in the furesceable future; 



Dofo1Ted tax liubilitics are generally recognised for nil taxable temponuy differences. Deferred ta• assets arc generally recognised for ull deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible tempcrury differences can be \ltilize<I. Such deferred lax 
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from tl,e inirial recognition (other than in a business combination) ofassets and liabilities in a 
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor tl,e accounting profit 
11,e canying amount of deferred lax assets are reviewed at tho end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent tl1a1 it is no longer probable that sufficient 
tauble profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset 10 be recovered. 
Deferred lax asselS and liabilities arc o!Thct if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current ta• liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same 1ax 
a111horlty on the same ta.xable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their lnx assets and linbilities 
will be realised simultaneously. 

For operations earned out under tax holiday period (801A benefits of Income Tax Act, 1961 ), deferred tax assets or liabilities, if any, uave beon established for the lax 
consequences of those temporary differences between the canyins values of assets and liabilities and tl1eir respective tax bases that reverse after tl10 tax holiday ends. 
In the si\uations where one or more units of the Group aro entitled 10 a tax holiday under the tax law, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is re<:ognized it, respect of 
temporary differences which rcvcroe during tho taK holiday period, 10 tho extent the concerned unit's 11ross total income is subject 10 the deduction during the tnx 
holiday period. Deferred tax in respect oftempcrary differences which rtverae after the tax holiday period is recognized io the year in which tho temporary differences 
originate. However, the Group restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the ••tent it is probable that sufficient future taxable income wlll bo available ogninst 
which such deferred ta• assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taKes, the temporary dif!brences wl1ich originate first are considered lo reverse first, 

(c) Minimum Alternate Tu (MAT) 
MAT credit entitlemenl i, recognized as an useL only whcu and to U1e extent tho,·• is co1wi11cing evidence thnl nonnal income 111>< will be paid dunng tho specified 
period, In tho year in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be rccogni>.ed as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit 10 tl1e Consolidated Stntcmcnl of 
Profit nnd Loss and shown as MAT credit cnti1lcmont under deferred lax nssels. 11,is is reviewed at each balance shout dote and tl,e canying runouut of MAT credit 
entitlement is wrillcn down to the cx1ent i1 is not reasonably certain 1h01 normal Income tax will be paid during the specified period. 

J,J I Ell m ines per unit (EPU), 
1110 b"5ic earnings per unit is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) ottributablo to tho wut holdors ofMindspnce REIT by tho wo1gl11ed average number ofumis 
outstnnding during the reporting period. TI1c nwnbor of,mlto used in computing diluted earnings/ (loss) per unit comprises tho weighted average uniis considored for 
deriving basic earnings/ (loss) per uuit and also the weighted average 11w11bcr ofunila which could hnvc been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential units. 

Dilutive potcutial unilS arc deemed converted as of the beginning oflhe reporting dntc, unJe., tl1ey have been issued al u Inter date. In computing dflutod earnings per 
unit, 011Jy potential equity uni11 thot arc dilutive and which either reduces earning• per unit or increase loss per units are included. 

J. ll Provisions. contin&ent U1bUifles and contin&rnt assets 
Provision, arc recognised whon Mindspaoc Business Parks Group has u prcsont legal or co1,s1ructive obligation •• a result of a past even~ it is p1ouaulc O,at 
Mindspacc Business Parks Group will be required to scttlc the obligation, and a rclioble estimate can be mode of01c amount of the obligatio1c 

The nmount recognised u, a provision i~ tho best estimate of the oonsiden11ion required to scttl• the presenl oblignt,on al the end of the reportins pcnod, taking into 
occount the ri,ks and 1,nccrtaintics surrounding the obligation. Provisions nrc determined by discounting tl1c expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rote that reOects 
cutrcnt market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to tho liability. Tho unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 

Co11tingcn1 liabilities arc disclo,cd when tl,erc is a possible obligation or a present obligauon that may, but will probably nut, require au oulOow of rc,ourccs. When 
thurc is H pussiblt: obligation of a present obligntion in respect or which the Hkcfihood of outflow of ~ourccs is remo1e. no provision or disclosure 1s ma.du. 

'\ cnntinsrnt ~s,c1 i• di,closed when there would be a l"''"iblc • ~•cl thn1 arises from pu t oven11 1111d wht>•• •~i9tonr.e wtll I~ conliTTT1od o"ly ~y •Ji~ oc,:urr,net> or non• 
,,.. f onr nr nor- 1m --~r,in f\JhP .. ,. n1 nnt" 1 f.lJJ}' ithin tho ('ftr'l'J'n1 of \.ii.,d•f""'""' Rruin,."r Pm Y., 0T'lup 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets nrc reviewed at each Balance Sheet dale and-adjusted to rcOe<:1 tl1e currcnl best c.,tlmmes. 

3.13 Foreien currency tronsAclion, and translJtion• 
1'r:mimc1jous t.lc11omu101ed m foreign curTcncy arc recotded at lhc exchange rate prcvoilinij on Lhe dtllc of transacrion:f. E~change difTcrunce:. urising: 011 foreigu 
cschungo tnmsoctions , cltlod durlnH tho ~••r arc recognised in the Con,olidnted Statcinent of Profit and Loss of the ponod. 
Moue1ary assets and hnbd,ues denommated m foreign currency, wfl!ch arc oumandmg us at Ilic pcriol1-cucl ru1d 1101 covered by furw~,u 11u11lnM•, "'" ,ruo,l•t«I ul 11,o 
period-end at tho closin11 exchange rate nnd the resultunt exchange diffcrencu arc re<:ognised In tl,o Condensed Con1ollda1cd St31emcnt of Profit ond Lnss. Non­
monetary foreign currency items arc corricd at COS!. 

3,14 Lcuns 
As a Lessor 
Mindspaoc Business Parks Group et11ers into lease agrecmc11ta us • tc .. or with respect to some of its invest,ncnt properties. 
Leases for which Mindspucc Business Patka Gruup is • lessor is clns,ilied as lina11cc or operating looses. When over the terms of the lease 1rnn,fcr sul>smntinlly nil the 
ri,ks und rewards of ow11crship to tl,c lessee, the contract is clussillcd •• a finance lease. All other leases aro cluuificd •• operating leases. 
\Vben Mindspace Business Porks Group is an intom,cdiote lessor, it accounts for the head lease end tl,o suble"5e us two soporntc contract<. n,e sublcusc i~ cluJSificd us 
• finance or operating Jeuso by reference to tho right-of-use asset arising 6·om the heud lease. 
Rental income from operating lenses is recognised on • s1rnight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease and presented us unbilled re,·e,mc in other finnncinl 
assets. Initial direct com such as brokerage expenses incu1TCd specifically to cam rovcnues from an operating lease arc capitalised to the canying nmo1111t of lensed 
usset and recognised over the lease tenn on tho some basis as rental inoomo. 
Amount> duo from lessees under finance lenses are recognised as receivables al tl1c amount of Mindspece Business Parks Group's net fnves1ment in tho leases. Finance 
leosc income is ullocarcd to reporting periods so as to reflect o constant l}eriodic rote of return 011 Mindspace Business !'arks Group's net inveatment outsUUuling in 
respect of tl10 leases. 



A,• Lessee 
Mindspaoe Business PMks Group assesses whether u contrnct is or contains a tease, et incept-ion of a contract Mindspac~ Business Parks Group recognises u right-of­
u,o as,ct nnd u corresponding lease liability with rc,pect to all lease agreements in which it [s the lessee, •~ccpt for shol1-tcnn leases ( defined as leases with n lease 
ten11 of 12 months or less) and lease, oflow value assets. For these leases, Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises the lease payments ns an operating expense on 
a straight-line bosis over the tem, of dte lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pauem in which economic benefits from the leased 
asset are consumed, 
The lease liability is initially u1easured at the present value of the lease payments tl.,al are not paid at tho commcncc111ent date, discounted by using the rote implicit in 
the lease. If this rate cannot be readlly dctcnnined, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses its incremental borrowing rate. 
Lease poyments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise: 
• fixed lease payments (including in-substance 6xed payments), less any lease incentives: 
• variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date; 
, the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 
• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if1hc lease term reflects the exercise ofan option to temtinate the lease. 

The tense liability is presented separately as pn11 of Financial Liabilities in the Condensed Consolidored balance sheet The lease liabilily is subsequontly measured by 
increasing the cnnying amount to reflect in1orcst on the lease liability (using tlte etfecrive intere51 mell,od) and by reducing the cnnying amount to reOect the lease 
payments made. 
Mindspace Business Parks Group remeasures tbe lease liability (and makes a corresponding •djusuaent to the related right-of-use asset) whenever 
• the leosc term has changed or there is a change in tl10 assessment otcxercise or u purehase option, in which case the lease ltobility ,s remeasured by discountin11 dte 
rtwised lease puyrmmts using a revised discount rate. 
• the lease payments chruigc due to changes in an index or rote or a change in e~pected payment under n guaranteed residual value, in which cases tho lease liobilfty is 
measured by discounling l11e revised lease payments using the U1itial distown rate (uule-ss the lc:ase peymeuu: chang~ is duu 10 .. """Hge ind floating lntc101tt 1-atti, in 
which case a revised discow1t rote is used). 
• a lease contract is modified ond the lease modification is not accounted for •• a separate lease, in which case the lease liubility is re111easured by discounting d10 
revised lease payments using n revised discount rate. 

The right-of-use asset, comprise the initial mea,uremcnt of U,e corrc,ponding lease liability, lease payn1enis ,nade at or before the commcneement day and ony mn!al 
direct costs. ' !"hey aro sub1cqucntly measured ot cost !cu accumulated depreciation and i10puim1ent losses, 
Whenever Mindspaoe Business Porks Group incurs on obligation for costs to dismantle and remove • leased asset, restore the site on which it i, located or restore tl,o 
underlying asset to the condition required by the tenus and conditions of tl1e lease, o provision is recognised and measured under Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities und Contingent Assets'. 1110 costs arc included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred 10 produce inventories. 
Right-of-use assets aro dcprccintcd over the shorter period of lease term and useful life ofth• underlying nsscl. 
Mind,pace Business Parks Group applies Ind AS 36 bnpainncnl of Assets 10 de1ennir1e whedter a right-of-use nssct is impaired nnd accounts for nny identified 
impuirmtnl loss as described in Noto 3,5. 
Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are nol included in the mCJ1surcmelil d10 lonso llebility nnd the right-of-use asscL The rcla1ed pny111ents ore 
recognised as an expense in the period in which tl1e event or condition that lrlggers those payments occurs and arc included in tl,e line " other expenses" in tho 
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, 

3.IS Financial iostruntents 
Initial ncocnition arJd mta1urtment 
Financial assets ancVor 6nancinl linbiliries are recognised when Mindspeco Business Parks Group becomes pal1y to a contract embodying tho rolntcd linnnciol 
instruments. All finoncial assets, financial liabilities are irutially measured ot fair value. Tronsaction costs thot ate ottriburoblc 10 1he acquisition or is,uo of linonernl 
assets and 6mmcial liabilities (other than 6nancial assets nnd 6nancinl linbilitic• nt fair volue through profit or Joos) are nddcd to or deducted from us the caso ,nny be, 
the foir value of 1uch assets or liobilitics, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to tl,c ucquis!tlon of fu1011ciol 11ssets or finmicinl liebllitios et fair 
vuluc through prolit or loss on, rccug111setl 1mmodioh:ly III tho Condcused Consolrdoled Stulomont ol'Profit anti Lo!I;. 

l financiMI assets: 

(a) CIAuilieation urnnancl1l 1Wet1: 
(i) Mindspace Busmcss l'arks Group clai.i;:ifies its financfal assets u, tho (ollow111J,1 mea!lt1re1uenl categories; 

• lhuse 10 b" mea,uretl subsequonUy ol fait I alue (either U1rough other eomprehettsive i11cou10, or through th.- Consolidntod Sta10111011t or Ptolit unJ Lo,~). ~nd 
• those measured at a111011ised co,t. 

(ii) 11,e olassificution is done depending upon Mindspnce Business Parks Group's busu1css model for managing tlte fmunciol ussets nud the conlmctunl tem1S of the cash 
nows, 

(iii) Fo, investment• m debt instruments, thi• will dcpcml on the business model in whfch the invc,b11cnr is held. 
(iv) Mindspacc Business Porks Group reclassifies debt investments when ond only when ii• buslnc,s model for managing tho11c as,et• cuauges. 

(b) Subsequent Measurement 

(i) D•bl instruments: 
Subacqueut meuwemcnt of debt inslrwnents depends on Mindapace Business Parks Group's business model for 111annging tl1c asset aud the cosh now ch"1acteristies 
ofrhe ussct. There arc three meMurtment categories into which Mindspoce Busine .. Parks Group classifies its debt in!lrwneni.: 

Finunthd HHet.t at umurtisetl cost 
Fin•nti•l asset, ore subsequently meo,w'Cd ut u111orused cost if d1ese fu1onciol nssets are held within 11 business whose objocrivo is to hold these assets in order to 
eolleot contractual cash Oows nnd the contrnctuol term, of the financinl o>Set give rise on specified dates to cash nows rl1nt aro solely poyments of principal and i11to1es1 
on the principal amount outstandina. 
Fin•nciol osstts •I fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

FinnnCJal assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these tinonciol n1Sets nrc held within " business who,e objocuve ,s 

oohievcd by both colleering controctuul cash flow.II thnt give rise on specified dares to solely payments of principal and interest on the principol •111uu111 011tsta11di11H 11nd 
by ,oiling financial assets. 

Finonel•l usols at folr value ihrough !he Con,olldated Sia1ement of Profit ind LoSJ (FVTPL) 

Financial assets arc subscquontly measured at fuir voluc through the Condensed Consolidated S101emenr or Profit and Loss unless ir is measured al nmorrisecl cost or 
foir 1alu• Uu-011111t odter 00111prehensive 111001110 011 initinl recognition. 11,c trunsaction cosi. directly a111iburnblc 10 tl,e a1.s111i,ition uffinM1oiol 11.sct, 111111 li11bllfli0, fll 

fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the Condensed Cousolidoted Stutcmeut of Profit nnd Loss. 



(ii) Equily ins1rume11ls: 

Mindspece Business Porl<s Group subsequen1ly meo, urcs all cquily investmellls 01 fair value. TI1ere are two measuremenl categories inlo which Mindspuce Business 
Parks Gro\lp classifies ils equity instrumenls: 

Investmen t. in equity inslrumenls al FVTPL: 

lnvesuncnlS in equil)I inslruments nre classified as at FVTPL, unless Mindspaoo Business Parks Group irrevocnbly elects on ini1iol recognition 10 present subseque111 
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for equily inSlnunents which are nol helJ for trading. 

Invcs1mco1S in oquity inn ruments at FVTOCI: 
On initial recognition, Mlndspacc Business Parks Group can mnke nn in evocablc election (on an instrument-by-instn1ment basis) to present the subsequent changes in 
fair value in other comprehensive income. TI1is election is 1101 pennitted if the equily inveslment is held for trading. These elected investments arc initially measured nt 
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they nre measured al fair value wit11 gains w1d losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other 
comprehensive income and uccumula1ed in the reserve for 'equity instruments through other comprehensive income', 11ie cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified ro 
Consolldated Sllltconcnt of Profit and Los, on disposal of lho investmonts, but is transferred to retained earning,. 

(c) lmpoirmenl or linoocl•I assels: 

Mindspace Business Porks Group applies the expected credit loss 111odel for recognising impaim1en1 loss on financial assets measured al a,nor1iscd cost, lease 
rccoivable,, trade rcocivoblos, other contracmol righro to receive cash or otl,cr financial asset For trade receivables, Mindspace Business Parks Group measures the 
loss allownnce at an nmollnl equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Funher, for 1hc purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowonce for trade 
receivable,, Mindspace Business Parks Group has used o practical ••pcdienl •• pennittcd under Ind AS 109. This c,pecled credit loss allownnce is computed based on 
a provision matrix which rakes into account historicu.l credit Ion. experience and adjusLcd for fonvard·looking infonna1ion. 

(d) Derccoguilloo or fina11euil ••••ts: 
A financial asset is primarily dorecognised when: 
(i) tJ,e right 10 receive cash Oows from tl1c 11$SCt has •~pirod, or 
(ii) Mindspncc Business Park• Group has transferred its right• 10 receive cash flows from 1he ossct; nnd 

Mlndspace Bu,iness Porks Group hos tra11sfc1Ted s11bs1onlially all lhc risks end rewards of the asset, or 
M111dspace Business Parks Group has neither 1ransfcrrcd nor retained substnntfolly all U1e risks and rewards ofU1e asset, but has transferred control oflhe nssel, 

On dorccognirion ofu finondal osse1 in its entirety (other than investmems in equity ins1rnme111s ot FVOCI), die differences bc1wec111he conying omounu measured al 
the dare of derecognition and the considcrn1ion received is recognised in ConsolidBlcd Staloment of Profit and Lo,s, Any interest in tmnsferred fionnciol ossers rhnl is 
created or retained by the SPV is recognised es a sepnrale asset or liab!lity, 

J 11ioaoclal liobillri .. and equity Instrument• 

(a) Clns,ification as debt or cquiry 

Financial liobllities and equity Instruments iss11ed by Mindspace Business Parks Group arc elnssificd according to tl1c substance of the contrsctu11l arrungo111cnts 
entered into and tho definitions ofa financial liability and an equity insll\lmcnt. 

(b) Equity in•trumonta 

An equity in1tntme111 ,, My contract thGt cviden01>1 11 rcsfdunl irllCT0$1 in the assets of Mind,pAOO Business Parks Group alter deducting all of 111 linbilities Equity 
instruments b.fe TCGorded DI the proceeds received, net of direCit issue costl. 
Rcpu1'Cho•• of Miudspucc Bu,incss Parks Group's own cqu,ry msrrument is recognised and deducted directly m cqui1y, No Ham or loss " recogmsed 111 the 
Consolidated Stalcmcnt of Profit and Lo•• ou the purchosc, solo, issue or canccllotion ofMiudspaco Business Parks GrouJ>'s own equity inslrumollls. 

(C) Cornr1ound lluocial in•tYu,ncnu 

In(: cornpon~,u pru11 of compounJ n1tru101ul uutnunents issued by MmUspoce t:humess Parks \Jroup nre cJu.!1is1lHHI sepurtuc:ly at..s loumcrnl 11~b1Hut."1. ttnu eq111,y 111 
uccorJw1cc with the subsumeo of the contraclu81 arrangcn'f\eut.s and lhe definitions of a firumciat Hubility ond nu c<1uity iustnuneut A conversion option tlml will tu: 
settled by the oxchnnge of• ftx•d amount of cash or llllOlher fin1111c1al asset for a fi•cd number of Mmd,pace Butinen Parks Group'• owu eqully inalmmcnlS t■ 1111 

equity io,trtunc:nt 
At 1he date of issue. the fo1r value of 1hc Jrnbllny component is est1ma1ed using the prcvn1lmg markc1 intercs1 ru10 for ~imUttr 11011-1.:ouveruble rnsrrumen(s. TI1is ommnH 
IS recorded H.$ a liability on unamortised cost basis using the effective interest mt.thod until oxtinguishcc.l upon convtrt1io11 or Bl the 111s1n1111ent's maturity Jute. 

The conversion option olassiJied u.s equily is detemiiocd by deductu1g the amo11Dt of the liability 0omponon1 from the foir value of 11,c compound instrumcnl •• • 
whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax clTecta, and is 1101 subsequcndy remeasured. 
Tronsncrion cosls rhnl relate 10 the issue of the convertible inslrurnenrs arc allocated 10 die liability and eqnily components in proponion 10 tl1e ollocntion of the gross 
proceed>. Transaction costs rcln1ing lo the equity compoocot are recognised directly in equity, Trnnsnotion costs rclntin8 10 1he liability compononl arc included In tl10 
carrying D1now11 of rho liabilhy component and arc nmoniscd over the lives of the convertible inS1rumcn1 using the clfcclivc interest method, 

(d) Finaodol Liohililin 

Rccornhion, measuremcul and classllicatiou 

Financial liabilities are classified as either held at a) foir value through tho Consolidated Stlllcmcnl of Profit and loss, or b) at amonised cost. Manogcmenl 
dotennines tho classification of its financial liobililies at the time ofinitiol recogni1ion or, where 11pplicnble, at the time of reclassilicar.ion. 

Mindspoce Business Parks Group's financial liabilities include trudo and other payables, loan• and borrowings and dcrivarivo financial ins1rumen1s, Subsequent 
111ensureme111 of financial liabililles depends on tl1cir classification as folr value through tl10 Consolida1ed Statemcnl of Profit ond Loss or at amortized cost. All 
chongcs in fair value of financial liabilities classified as FVTPL nre recognized in the Consolidated Slatcmcnt of Profit and Loss . Amonlsed cost cotegory " 
oppllcablc lo loans and borrowmgs, trade and other payables. Aller initial recognltion tho financial linbilitios 11re measured al omorused cost using tho Efli:ct1vo 
Interest Rate method. 

Dcrecoinitiou 

A finonclal liability Is dcrccognizcd when 1ho obligation w1dur 1he l!abili1y ii diichnrgcd or =~llcd or e,cp!rcs. GBins and loucs ore recogniud in the Conden~ed 
Consolidated SIJltemcnt of Profit and Loss when the Jiobilitie, nrc derccogni:r.ed. 

4 Offlellin, of linanciol instrument, 

Finoncial nssols and finB11cial ll•bilities are offset and pr .. entcd on net bnsis in tho Bolancc Sheer when there is a currently enforceable legal righl 10 ofli.ot the 
recognised amounts ond there is on inlenuon either to ••Ille on a net basis or to realise tl1e assets and senlo tl1e liabilities simulta11oously, 



J,16 C""h and cash equivalent, 
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash al banks and on hand, demand deposits, other short-lerm, highly liquid invesuncnts with original maturities of threo 
months or less that are readily convertible to known omounlS of cash and which arc subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

J.17 Statement of Cash now 
Cash flow is reported using UlO indirect method, whereby net profit before tnx is adjusted for tho effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or 
accruals of pasl or future cash receipts or payments. 1110 cash flows from operoting, investing and financing activities of Mindspace Business Parks Group aro 
segregated. 

For the purpose of the Condensed Consolidated S1a1emont of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivolcnts consist of cash and shon-term deposits, as defined above, net of 
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part ofMindspace Business Parks Group's cash management. 
As per para 8 of Ind AS 7 "where bauk overdrafts which are repayable on demand fonn an integral part of an entity's cash management, bank overdrafts are included 
as a component ofcBSh wid cash eq11ivalcnts. Bank overdraft, in die Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, is included ns 'borrowings' under Financial Liabilities, 

J.18 Em1,toyee benefits plan 

Oinlusure pu rsunnt to Ind AS- 19 ' Employee benefits' 

( I) Short torm employee benefits 
All employee bcnefll.!I payable wholly within iwelvo months of rendering 1he service arc ~lassified a, short-term employee benefits such us ,alanes, wages, etc. and arc 
rccogni•ed in u,e period in which the employee rendered 1hc related services. 11,e undiscoun1ed amount of shon-tenn employee benefits c,pected to be po1d in 
cxclmnge for tho scrvicC! rendered by employee," rocogm~cd"" nu expense dunng 1hc period. 

(2) Long term employee boner.ts 

Defined contribution plans 

Contribution! to defined contribution schemes such as providcnl fund arc charged as ru, expense bn.sed on the runount of contribution required lo be mnde •• nnd 111hen 
service, llrc rendered by the employees. Mtndspacc Business Parks Group's provident fund contribution, in rc•pect of certain employcc1, is mode to a govcmmenl 
odministcrod fund and chorged os an expense. The above benefit• arc classified as defined contribution schemes as Mindspece Business Porks Group hn.s no funhc,· 
de lined obl.igations beyond the monthly contributions. 

Defined benefit pion 
Mindspace Business Parks Group's gratuity benefit scheme i• a defined benefit pion. Mindspaco Business Porks Group hlL'l detemuned tho grotuiry liability based on 
internal calculation based on the number of years completed and last drown basic salary as mentioned in the Payment of Gra1Ui1y Act, 1972, 1110 liability or asset 
recognised in the balance ahccl in respect of defined benefit gralUity plans is the present value of tho defined benefit obligotion ot the end of the reporting period less 
the fair value of plau assets, if any, 11,e defined benefit obligotion is calculated annually by actuaries/ SPVs using the projected unit credit method. 
Tho present value oflhc defined bene61 obligauon denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outOows by rcforenoo to markcl yields 
ut the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have tenns approximating to the terms of tl1c related obligution. 1110 net in1er0s1 coSI is calculutcd by 
upplying 1ho discount rote to tl1e not balance of the deflnod benefit obligation and the fofr volue of plan assets, 11,i, cost is included in employee bcn~fil expc,uc i11 lhe 
Condensed Consolid11tcd Stutcmcnt of Profit und Loss. 

Other Ion& term tmployec bonolits- Componut.d ■bsenctt 
Benefits under compcnsotcd absence, are oooounted a• other long-term employee benefhs. Mind,pace Bnsine,s Pork:, G,oup hllS de1on11i11td the liobilit) fo, 
con1ponsu1cd obsenccs based on internal calculation which is delennined on the bosis of lcuve credited to employee's accou!II and the h!SI drown sol DI)', Mindspacc 
llus.ncss Porks Group's net obligutiou ,n respect of eompcnsotcd absences i, die wuuunt uCbcnolit tu be ,01Ued in fultm, that •1uplc,yee. hove eomcd in rcrurn tbr ahcir 
a1.n1w1uth,i..,.u, .. m1.1.t,Jp1c.ouu.1)1..,da, ).hot .. ,l1Vfota4U,u .... unh.Jt1)J"'t .. JuiiJtCU.tSJH1--.C.mv•tw..n~uMia,1iu ·~ UJ 'ulL. ,, uf ..1 • , 11 ti /1 

SPVs u,lng the projected unit crctlit mcU,od. Rcmeasurcmont is recognised in tl1c Consolidated Stnlemcm of Profit nnd Loss fn 1110 period in which they ori,c. 
Compensated 11bseuce, which arc not C"Jl"Cled 10 occur within twelve montl1s of\cr the end of u1e period in whfch ahc employee render& the relotod services ore 
recognised us n liability. 

J.19 Earnin,1 berure financt (':OHS, «JepreciJ1tion and amortisation, rt:culasory income/ expense, t~ccplionpl items ~ntJ rnx 
Mindspacc Business Parks Oroup has elected to present comings before interest, dcpreoiotion and amonisotion, rcgulolory income I oxpen,e, excepllonal items anct 1a, 

os a separate lino item on tl,c face of tho Condensed Consolida1cd Stutement of Profit ond Loss. Mindspncc Business Parks Group measures earnings before interest, 
depreciation and an10r1isotion, rcg11la1ory income/ expense, exceptional items aud tax on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operation,. 

3,20 Subsequent ennlJ 
The Condensed Consolidated Financial Stotcmen" ttrc 11djusted lo 1ellec1 event• 1h01 oocur after die reporting dote but before the Condensed Coosolida1cd Fmnncial 
S1ftle111e11ts are issued. Tho Consolidated Financial Statemcols hove thoir own dote of nuthoriution, which differs from lhnt of the financial st11t0me111s of tl1e cnlirie• 
which arc pun of Mindspacc REIT group. Therefore, when proporing the Condensed Consolidated Fi11nncinl S1otcmcn1s, management considers events up 10 tho date 
c;(uutho,isetion of those linoncial sta1e111ot11s. 

J,21 t rror.!I a_nd eiti mMtes 

Mindspocc Business Parks Group revises its accounting policies if tl,c chnnge is required due 10 a chru1ge in Ind AS or if tl•e chru,ge will provide more relevant nnd 
reliable infom1ation to ll10 u,ers of the Condon.sod Consolidated 6uuncinl ,1otcmen1. Chango, in occoun1ing policies ore applied retrospccrivcly, 
A chru1ge in an accounting estimate thot rc1ults iJ1 changes in the carrying amounts of recogmsed assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospettivoly in the 
period(s) of change, 
Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating ahe compora1ivc runounts of assets, liabilities and e<1uity of the earliest pnor period in wluch 1110 
error is di,covered. 1110 openios balonce& of the earliest period presonled ore nlso restnled. 

J.12 Non-current u sets held for n le 

Non-cwTeat osscls are clnnilicd BS hold for sole ifit is highly proboble that they wiU be recovered primarily through sale rather thru1 through contin111n11 use. Such 
assets arc generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and foir value less costs to sell. Losses on initial classification as held for solo and subsequent goins 
and lo!Ses on re-measurement urc recognised in the Co,uolidated Statement of Profit and Lo!s. 

Once classified us held-for-sale, in111ngiblc ossets, property, plant ond equipment and iovesuneat propenies are no longe, omoni,cd or depreciated, and any equlty• 
uccouutcd 1nveslec is no longer equity accounted. 



3.23 Segment Information 

Primary segment information 
n,e prunary rcponable scg,nen1 is business segmenls. 

Bu.siness segment 
·n,e Mindspace Group is organised into the two operating divisions. 'real estate' and 'power dislributlon', which are detcnnined based on the internal organisntion nnd 
management struclure of 11,e Mindspace Group end its syslcm of internal financial reponing and 11,e nature of its risks and its rcn,ms. The Governing Board of 1he 
numagor has been identified as the chief opcraling decision maker (CODM). CODM cvalun1c, 11,e Mindspace Group's performance, allocalos resources based on 
analysis of various performance indicators ofll1e Group as disclosed below. 

Real estate segmenl 

Real estate comprises development and management of projects under Special Economic Zone (SEZ), lnfonnutiou Technology Parks and other commercial ftSSCts 
.The Group has its projcct/propenies in Mumbai Region, Hydembod, P,me and Chennai for developmem ond manogcment of commercial SEZ, IT parks und 
commercial ossets including incidental activities, 

Power distribution 
TI1e stale power regulator hu laken on record the SEZ developer MBPPL, Gigaplex, Sundew and KRC Infra as Deemed Distribution Licensee for Power. TI1e 
npprovcd Sl'Vs being Deemed Di,lributor, supplies power to customer.s within the notified SEZ. 

Secondary se2.ment inforinarion 
Mindspoco Business Parks Group's operations arc based in Indio and therefore Mindspace Business Pnrks Group has only one geogrophicnl segmenl • India. 

J.24 Non-rontrolling interests 

3.25 

Non-controlling interests represent lhe share of reserves and capital attriburnble to the shareholders of 1hc SPVs who have not ugrced 10 exchange their share• in 1110 
SPVs for unils ofMindJpaco REIT and will nol become the unitholders ofMindspacc REIT. Below is 1J,e list of shareholders of1he SPVs for whom 11011-oonrrolling 
interest hos been recognised.Non-controlling interests in tho resulls nnd equity of subsidiaries ore shown separu1cly in u,e Condensed ConsoHdated Smemont o f Profi1 
ond Loss, Condensed Consolldo1ed S1atement of Changes in Equity ond Condensed Balance Sheet . 

SPY 

KRIT 

lnlimc 

Sundew 

Shorebolder 

Telonsana Stoic Industrial lnfrastruoturo 
Corporation Limited 
T elengana Stale Industrial Infrastructure 
Corporation Limited 
Tclangana Slate lnduslriol lnfrastrucluro 
Corpom1ion Limited 

% llolding in SJ'V 
(As on reporting t.lat~) 

Ind AS 110 requires entities to ottribute the profit or loss and ench oomponont of oll1er comprehensive i11to1J1c 10 the owners of Mindspncc REIT and lo the non· 
controlling interests. Thi• requirement needs to be followed even if1his results in the non-controlling intcrc.sls hnving a deficil boloncc. 

Cash diJtrlbution 10 unic holders 

The Group recognises n liubility to mnkc cash distributions to Unitholders when the distribution is authorised and II lcgol obligation hns been created. As per tho REIT 
Rcg11l11tion,, • dlmibu1io11 is uuthorised when it is approved by the Governing Board of the Mauag•r. A ""rresponding on,uunt i, r<eosni«d directly in otl,er cquily 

3.26 Di~lrlbutlon Policy 
·n,~ No, Distribu1ablo Cn•n Fl~w• nf Mind,pncc Rl'IT •<e hMed on 1he ~o•h flows sC11ora1•d from Mindspaec REIT'• assets •nd investments. 

In 1em,s of 1hc Distribution Policy and the REJT Regulutions, nol less lhon 90% of lho NDCF of each of tho Asse1 SPV• ts required to be d1Slnbuted to Mandlpllce 
REIT, in proportion ofU1eir shareholding in the Asset SPV, subject lo applicable provisions ofdto Companies Aet or 1)10 LLP Acl. Presenlly, NDCF to bo received by 
MinJ,paco RErr fi'o,11 1ho A••et SP Vs mAy be in tho form of dividends, interest income, principal loun reµoyment. proceed• of ony oopit•I reduction or buyback from 
the A>•ct SPV,, ••le p,u.;e«l, uu1 of di.po.ul ufinvo,11nc,1b ihny ot asseu dir,.rl), held by Mindspo.e REIT or os 1pc,eifi~olly p<:rmittod 1111dc, tl:c Tru,;1 Deed or in 
,uch othrr fnrm a. m11y ho rcrmi••ihlo under the applicable low. 

TI10 Monnger is required to and shall deolore and distribute nt lcall 90% of tl1e NDCF ofMind,pucc REIT•• distrihuttons ("REO' Distnbutions") 10 the Vni1holdcr.<. 
Such REIT DiJtribu1io111 shall be dccl11J'Cd and mode for every quarter of a Fino.ncinl Year, 

J,27 Recenl Pronouncom•nta 
Now ond amended sUtndards 
TI,o accounting policies adopted and molhods of comp111ntion followed aro consiSlclll wilh 1hosc of the previous finnncial yoar, ••••pt for items disclosed 
brlow: 
Tho Minisby ofCorpornte Affoirs has notified Companies (Indian Accow1ting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dn1cd March 23, 2022 to •mend ti•• 
following Ind AS which aro ofTC<!tivc &om Apdl O I, 2022, 
Reference 10 !he Conceptual Framework - Amendmenls to Ind AS 103 
- The. amendments replaced the iefcrencc 10 the !CAi's "Framework for 1ho Prcparntion t1nd Presentation of Fiunnciol Statements under lndion Accounting 
Standards" with the reference 10 the "Conceptual Framework for Fiuw1cial Rcponing under lndiw, Accounting Standnrd" withoul significan1ly ehnnging its 
requirements. 
The amcndmenrs also added an cxceµ1ion 10 the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Bu,iness Combinations to ovoid 1110 issue of potential 'day 2' gain• or 
losses an.Ing for liobili1ics and contingem liobilities 1h01 would be wilhin rho scope of Ind AS 37 Provision,, Comingem Liabilitic~ w,d Conti11gen1 Ass••• u, 
Appendix C, Levies, oflnd AS 37, if incurred separately. 
II has nl10 been clarified thut tl10 exioling guidance in Ind AS 103 for contingent 11.'1$ets would uo1 be a!Teeled by replneing the reference to lhc Frwnework for 
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statemtnt5 under lnllian A,·cow,tin)! Standorda. 
• Propeny, Plan I und Equipment; Proceed, before lnrended Use - Amendments to Ind AS I 6 
TI,e amendments modified puragmph l 7(e) of Ind AS IG to clarify that excess of nc1 sale proaoeds of items produced over tl,e cost of resting, if nny, shnll nol 
bo recognised in Ilic profit or loss but deducted from Ilic directly ottributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of propeny, plnnt, and equipment 
• Onerous Controcts - Costs of Fulfilling a Controol- Amendmenla lo Ind AS 37 
The amendments to Ind AS 37 specify which cost5 an entity needs to include when assessing whell1er o contracl is onerous or loso-mnl<ing. The an10ndrncnlll 
,pply • "directly relaled cost approach". Tho cosrs 11ml relate direerly ton contract to provide goodt or services include boll, incremental costs for example 
direc1 labour and materials and an allocation of ol11er cos 1, directly related to contract activities for o,i:wnplo en nlloootion of the depreciation charge for an 
i1cm ofproporty, plan! ond equipment u1ed In fulfilling that contract. General and admin.istrativo costs do not rcloto direc1ly to a 0on1rnct and ore excluded 
unlcu they arc explicitly ch11Tgeabl0 to the counterpnrty under the contract. 
Thero were ccnnin aanend111cnts to surndards ond in1erpretntious which ore applicable for 1110 6nn time for the period anded 30 June 2022, bul either the ••me 
are not rolcvont or do not have on impact on the consolidotcd flnanoinl <ta1cmenu of the Group, The Group has not early ado!Jted nuy atondard, interpretation 
or amendment thnt hos been Issued bur is 001 yet offectivo. 



MINDSPACE UUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-lO/OOJ 
Cot1densed Coosolid11ted Fiotnd1I Sl.atemut:t 
Noles lo AttOUOII 
(All amHnts: in RI. millioo unlt$S otbnwlse slated) 

4 P,oJ)('rty1 plant and tqulptntn1 

Ruondliatioo of urryln& amounlJ for the Q1J1rttr ended .lO J11ne 20l2 

Power H.k:IJ 

RJ1htofw;e. Pt■nl and 
P1rtic11lars Leasebold L■ud Buildings marhlntry 

Grop block (rest or detmtd rem) 

Al I April 2021 I 467 711 
Additions during the year 8 JH 
Disnos:al5'ad1ust.mCtllJ 41 0 

Al JI March 2011 I 434 899 
Al I April 2022 l 434 899 
Additions during the period . . 
Al JO J1,1rie 1022 I 434 899 

Accumulated deprtciation 

Al I Aprll 2021 0 4 47 
CharKO for lhc yetv I) G 8l 
Disnn'l:ll!a/ad'u.stmi;rns . 2 

Alli Mmbl022 . 8 132 
Al I April 1022 8 131 
Ch•ec ror the .......-od . 2 21 
Al 30 Juot 2022 . JO 15J 

Carrying amounl (net) 
At l l Man:b1021 I 426 767 
At JO Junt 2021 I 424 746 

5 lnvestment propl!rt)' 

Rt.coodliatio11 of u rrying 1mouolJ for the Quar1utndtd JO Ju.oe 1012 

Dt,·tlopntt.nl rillllJ 
Rl1hl or Ust-

Par1ic1d11r1 l'rtcbold 1-aod l.,euthold 
ofLud .. 

Land 
Gross block (cost or deemed cort) 

A, al I April 2021 l ,758 67,666 26,206 
Addit1CN1s dwi.ug lhc ye.- 922 
Di'""""l.s/11fu,uoeo11 IRcfcrNotdlA1 . 
At:ll Mm& 20ll l ,7li 67,666 2 7,llK 
A, ,1 I April 202.l l,758 67,666 27,118 
Addiuun1 during ,ha period 336 
D1fDM11l s/ndiustmC'nts 
At JO June 2022 2,758 68,002 17,128 

Arrnmulaled drpred11tion 

A, 11 I April 2011 . lli 
Cbw-~oe for lhe )tat . soo 
Di•-olslodhmmentr IRclcr No1dJAl . . 
AIJI Marti! lOll . 121 
Aul I April102l . 828 
C,,.etv.r fnrl~IYri.0111 126 

Al 30 Juael02l . 954 

Al JI Morth 2022 2,m 67,(.U 2G,301 

AtlO JonelOll l ,1"8 •• ,oo. 16 ,17,1 

Eltttrinl 
llilltllllion 

llO 
4l 

19l 
195 
. 
195 

3 
8 

II 
II 
J 

14 

184 
181 

Dulldln&J 

90,235 
4,112 
14l3 

91,894 
n,894 

l,'82 

94,376 

1,066 
1,5SZ 

33 

l,l l 4 
J,5114 

401 
2,985 

90,309 
91J~J 

Olher usel1 
·Right of use 

Pl1nl and Eletfrical Offic-e Fundt·ure 
• plant and m1thit1ery tn1t111llation tquipme.ol Cilmpultr, udlh:lum 
mathinc:n+ 

63 66 JO l I 4 
. 83 u 20 

CiJ 2 . 0 
. 147 10 l 21 4 
. 147 10 5 11 4 

4 . 
151 10 5 21 4 

l 4 . 3 I I 
2 II I I l I 

1 2 . 
ll I 4 6 2 
13 I ◄ 6 2 
J I I 

16 l 4 7 l 

134 9 I IS 2 
135 8 I ,. l 

lufrHtrudure ud Pl1111 and Furnih1rc Ekctriul 
rtoadwurk Total 

dt\'elopmut n11ch1nery and fidunt lnit1J111ion 

J,5JJ )9 S,269 9l l,60J 197,393 

927 ~3 l77 24 124 6,731 

3 199 10 30 I 695 

4,4H 72 l,G-li 106 1,698 Wl,<21 
4,457 71 S,G-18 1005 1,698 201,428 

12 84 lB l ,042 
I I 

4,539 71 S,732 105 1,756 )0-1,469 

liJS I 4J3 ti JO> k,1~(} 

lll l 590 17 171 3,168 

I 2" 14 73 

m 4 !l'JV 21 2G2 l ,23l 

~n • 9 99 ll l ti1 S,ZJ, 
93 I 145 • 46 116 

621 5 T.i« J1 JOll 6,11:!I 

3,929 6X 4,649 7~ 1,437 197,194 .,,,. 61 4,588 7J -T,148 l9a141t1 

••Convr:y•nce ort.hc proportiooal.0-lharc in 1hc laad "ill happen up0n h1111do\•cr of 22"¥• of lhe propon.lonatc ihan: or~ cons1rUC1ed IR!-1 bclonsing to the lw,downer AS per the Join\ D.,~elopmcml Agn:emcm 

Tolal 

1,478 
344 
106 

1,716 
1.716 

4 
1,720 

68 
121 
12 

17i 
178 
JI 

109 

I 539 
l -'11 



Investment proprrty under conslruelion 
The brtakup of im'c-.stmenl prope:ny uodcr conslJ'Uclion comprisc1 upcoming/cxisling buUdings in nrious parb, The SPV wise.dcl.iils ~ as follows: 

Particul1n AJat AJ61 
JO J uoe2022 31 Morch 2022 

lnttmc 17 0 
MBPPL 1.557 1,330 
Gigaplex 5,423 4,691 
Sundew 30 15 
KRJT 1,347 1,245 
KRClnfro•• 4,659 5,94 1 
A,acodo 276 273 
Horizonvicw 3 I 
Tor11 13.312 13496 

0 Tho cos1 ofi;;onJlJ'Uclion and other relatcde:Kpe.nses inturred oo building no. 01 for Gm De,•clopmcnl$ Private Limited was classified under IPUC-, on JO June 2022, SlllCC lho SPV ii tn tho processo(finalis:mB \he 1.11Ungcmcnt 
with Gero Dc:~·clopmcnll Private Limited. 

01her 1111.analble usetl 
Rtcontili11ion or c1nyl~ tmoun11 Cor tbe Qu1rtereoded JO Jun~ 2022 

Parlicllllf'J' Trademarks 

Groubloc~ 
Al a l 1 Apr il 2021 I 
AddHions 
Oisoosals 
At JI March 2022 I 

AJ 01 I April 2012 I 
Addilions . 
Oi,mncaJs . 
At 30 J une 2022 I 

Ac:rumulated 1mortiu.1io11 

Aul I April 202 1 0 
Charge for the )'tilt' 0 
Oi-W' 
Al 31 Mmb 2012 . 
Al at J April 2021 . 
ChGrgc (or lhe period 
DiSOlho.ls 
Al 30 Juat 20Jl 

Carnino •mouni illt'll 
Al JJ l\hrc:J11022 I 
At JO Jun~ 1011 I 
• lncluJcs lrndcmid: and compulc:r softwares (!us lhllll RJ: O.S million) 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:ll'I/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

SA Non Current Investment 
Particulars 

Financial assets 

I nvestmcnts in equity instruments 
Unquoted equity shares measured at FVTOCJ 
2,000 equity shares of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid­

up (31 March 2022 : 2,000) 

Unquoted investment in Governmcnl Securities ut anwr liscu cost 
7.61 % Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 u nits (31 March 2022: 25,000) 

8.24% GOl 2027 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2022: 25,000) 

7.17% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (3 l March 2022: 25,000) 

7.26% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2022: 22,000) 

7.06% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2022: 22,000) 
6.67% GOl 2050 Bond (Pace value Rs 100), 8,000 units (31 March 2022: 8,000) 
7. 72% GO! 2055 Bond (Face value Rs I 00), I 0,000 units (3 I March 2022: I 0,000) 
6.99% GO! 2051 Bond (Face value Rs I 00), 11,300 units. (3 1 March 2022: NIL) 
7.26% GOl 2029 Bond (Face value Rs IO0), 18,000 units (3 1 March 2022: 18,000) 

7 .40% GOI 2055 Bond (Face value Rs I 00), 28,700 units (31 March 2022: 28,700) 

8.33% GO! 2036 Bond (face value Rs I 00), 21,210 units (31 March 2022: 21,210) 

7 .06% GO! 2046 Bond (Face val11e Rs I 00), 12,000 units (3 1 March 2022: 12,000) 
6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs IO0), 28,000 units (3 1 March 2022: NIL) 

6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 17,700 units (31 March 2022: NIL) 

HD runr1►t ''"'Mtm.-.,.,t 

Pnrliculars 

t, inaociaJ Assets 

Q uoted investment i11 M utual Fund at Fair VQlue through Profit or Loss 
lavesunents in Mutual Funds 

Investments measured at cost (gross) 
Investments measured at fair value t hrough profit or loss 
Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
Investments measured nt amortised cost 
Aggregate amount of Impairment recognised 
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and morket value thereof 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 

As At 

30 June 2022 

As Al 
30 June 2022 

0 

3 

3 

2 

2 

2 

I 

2 

J 

3 

3 

2 

29 

15 

15 
0 

29 

15 
29 

Asal 
31 March 2022 

As at 

0 

3 

J 

2 

2 

2 

2 

3 

3 

23 

31 March 2022 

0 
23 

23 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS R EIT 
RN:lN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

9 Other financial assets (Non current) 

Particulars 

U11sec11red, considered good 
Fixed deposits with banks• 
Unbilled revenue 
Interest receivable 
Finance lease receivable 
Security deposits for development rights 
Security deposits 
Other receivables 

• These fixed deposits arc held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs. 

10 Deferred tax assets (net) 
Par ticulars 

Deferred tax assets (net) 

llA Non-current Tax assets (net) 
Pnrticulars 

Advance Tax (net of provision for tax) 

11 D Current Tax assets (net) 
Pnrticulurs 

Advonce Tax (nel of provision for lax) 

12 Other non-current assets 
l 'ar tlculars 

U11sec11red, co11sldered goo,r 
Capitol advances 
Advance to vendors 
Balances with government authorities 
Prepaid expenses 

13 Inventories (valued at lower of cost a nd nel realisable value) 
Particula rs 

Building materials and components 

Inventory of Equipment 

J 4 T rade receivables 
Par ticula rs 

U11sec11red 
Considered good 
Credit impaired 
Less: loss allowance 

As at 
30 June 2022 

13 
991 

23 

803 
60 

597 
JJ 

2,520 

As at 
JO June 2022 

843 
843 

As at 
30 June 2022 

J,097 

1,0!17 

Asal 
JO June 2022 

As at 
30 June 2022 

666 
J 

130 
42 

841 

As at 
30 J une 2022 

40 
74 

11-1 

As a l 
30 June 2022 

351 
52 

(52) 
351 

Asat 
31 March 2022 

57 
904 

23 
874 
60 

545 
11 

2,474 

As at 
31 March 2022 

1,05! 
1,051 

As al 
31 March 2022 

1,041 

1,041 

Asat 
3 I March 2022 

23 

21 

Asat 
J I Morch 2022 

692 
5 

130 
40 

867 

As at 
3 I Morch 2022 

26 

26 

As nt 
31 March 2022 

210 
40 

(40) 
210 



ISA Cash and cash equivalents 
Particulars 

Cash on hand 
Balances with banks 

- in current accounts• 
- in escrow accounts 
- in deposit accounts with original maturity ofless than 
three months 

As at 
JO June 2022 

2 

J,190 
I 

44 
3,237 

•Includes balance with bank of Rs O million as on 30 June 2022 ,(3 1 March 2022: Rs l million) for unpaid distributions. 

15B Other bank balances 
Particulars 

Pixed deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months and less than 
twelve months• 
Balance with banks•• 

• These fixed deposits are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs. 

As at 
JO .June 2022 

77 
132 
209 

As at 
31 March 2022 

Asal 

2 

3,046 
0 

430 
3,478 

31 March 2022 

73 
48 

121 

•• These are amounts, deposited in separate escrow accounts, earmarked for on-going Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) projects. 

16 Other financial assets (Current) 
Particulars 

U11sec11rell, considered good 
Interest receivable 

- on fixed deposits 
- from others 

Interest accrued but not due 
on fixed deposits 
- from others 

Security deposit for development rights 
Security deposits 
fixed deposits with banks• 
Other deposits 
Unbilled t.v~nu~ 
Finance lease receivable 
Other receivables.,. 

Considered good 
- Credil impaired 

Less: loss allowance 

• These fixed deposits arc held as lien in rcspecl of loan availed by the SPVs. 

•• Refer Note-50 for related party disclosure. 

17 Other current assets 
Particulars 

U11secured, co11sldered good 
Capital Advances 
Deposit/ advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 
Lonn to staff 
Balances with government authorities 
Prepaid expenses 

As at 
JO June 2022 

8 

2 

17 
493 

4 
1<;1 

258 

23 
I 

(1) 
1,2S8 

As at 
30 June 2022 

324 

135 
242 
701 

As at 
31 Murch 2022 

I 
2 

15 

21 
432 

H 'i 
268 

292 

1,477 

As at 
31 March 2022 

5 
115 

0 
108 
45 

273 



M INDSP ACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/RE IT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless othenvise stated) 

18 Corpus 

or us 
As at I April 2021 
Changcs during the year 
Closini: balance a1 at 3 1 March 1022 
As at I April 2022 
Changes during the period 
Closing balanco •• at 30 June 2022 

19 Unit Capital 

A. Unit Capital 
As •t I April 2021 
Changes during the year 
Clu,iui: h•l•uce a• •1 ll M•, ch 2022 
Asot I April 2022 
Cht111ges during the period 
Closlng balance•• st 30 June 2022 

0 

0 
0 

0 

No. Amount 
593,018,182 161,839 

S9J,0 18,182 Hi2,Sl9 
593,018,182 162,839 

593,018,182 162,839 

(a) Terous/rii:hts att•ched to Unit, and other disclosures 
The Trust hos only one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of Units is o,ntitled to oue vote per unit. The 
Unitholders hove the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in C\'CI)' six monU,s in cnch linanoial ycat in 
accord•nce wiU1 U,e REIT RegulatioM. The Govenung Board of Investment Manager approves distributions. The distribution will be in proponion 10 the number of 

Units held by tl1e Unitholdors. The Trust declorea and pays distributions in Indian Rupees. 

Under tho provision• of the REIT Regulations, Mindspacc Business Parks REIT is required 10 distribute to Unitholders 1101 less than 90% of the uet distribut~ble 
cosh flows ofMindspace Business Parks REIT for each financial year. Accordingly, a ponion of the Unit Capital contains• conlrnctual obligation of the Mindspacc 
Busines• Parks REIT to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions, Hence, the Unit Capital is a compowid finnncial instrument which contains equity and liability 
components ln accordance witl1 lnd AS 32 - Financial fns1rumeu1s: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circular, ( No. CIR/IMD/DF/ 146/2016 dated 29 
December 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/141/2016 dated 26 December 2016) issued under tho REIT Regulations, tho Unitholdcrs' funds have been presented as 
' 'Equity" in order to comply witl1 the requirements of Soction H of Annoxuro A to tl1e SEBI Circular dated 26 December 2016 dealing with tho mininmm 
presentation and disclosure requirements for key firurncial statemenls. Consistent with Unit Capital bcmg classified as equity, die distributions lo Unithold~rs is also 
prcscnlcd in Statement of Change• 1n Unitholdcn' Equity when the distributions are approved by t11c Governing Board oflnvestment Mnnogcr 

Unltholden huldiM more than 5 ntrcent Unit& in the Trust 
Nanie of the unilholder .Mat JO June 2022 Aut 3 1 Morch 2022 

No of Unit, % holdinJL._ No of Units % holding 

Platinum Illumination A 2018 Trust 54,375,000 9,17¾ 54,375,000 9. 17% 
Anbcc Cons1n1ctiou• LLP JS,404,890 5.97% 35,404,890 5.97% 

Cape Trading LLP 35,404,890 5.97% 3S,404,890 S.97% 

Cunndru LllchmendaJ RohcJu l 6,~ll,1 IO b,10%• 32,634,433 S.50% 

Cap.t411 T'rndins LLP 4 1,095,719 6,93% 4 l.09S,7 19 ~91¾ 

Casa Maria Propcnic• LLP 46,820,719 7.90% 41,095,719 6.93¾ 

Pohn Sheller E.tole Development LLP. 41,095,719 6.93% 41 ,095,719 6 93% 

Raghukool Estate Dovelopement LLP 41,937,069 1.01•;;. 36,21 2,069 6. 11% 

K. Rahcio Coro Pvt. Ltd, 36 596 296 6.17% 36,596,296 6.17% 

(c) The Trust has not ulloued nny fully pnid-up unit> by way of bonus un!ts nor has it bought buck nny clnss of units from tho dote ofregistr•uon till the balance sheet 
da10, Funher the Trust hos not issued any units for considcn11ion other tl1S11 cash from the dote of inoorporotion till the balance sheet dale, except as disclosed obove 



10 Other E ult • 
Particulars 

Re.vt.rtJts u11d S11rph1.r 
Retained can,lngs 
Debenture redemption reserve 

As ot 
30 June 2022 

(8,356) 
170 

As al 

31 March 2022 

(6,743) 
109 

(8,186) (6,634) 
•Refer Condensed Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's equity for detailed movement in other equity balances. 

Retained earnings: 
·n,o cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained and is recognized and accumulated under thc heading of retained ean,ings, At the end of 
the period, the profit/loss afkr tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss 10 tho retained earnings occount, 

Debenture redemption renrve 

As per tho Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (amended), SPVs arc required 10 create Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) out of profits, 
which is ovoiloble for payment of dividend, equal 10 10% of the amount of debentures iGSued, Accordingly, the SPVs hove created DRR out of their profits in tenns 
of the Companies (Share Capital ilnd Dcbenture)Rules, 2014 (as amended) which would be utilized for redemption of debentures at U1e lime of its mnturity, 

21 Borrowin~• 
rarhculars 

Secured 
Terms loans 

• frotn ba11ks / financial ln,titution• 

Debentures 

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non· 
convertible debentures (NCO Series I) (uet of issue expenses, al amortised 
cost) (refer Note ii) 

IO year G-Scc linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, 
pri11eipol prol0<1ted - market linked, redeemnble, nun-convertible dcbeutun,s 
("Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2"} (net of issue expenses, at 
nmortlsed cost) (refer Noto iii) 

Secured, listed, ienior, taxable, uon-cwnulalive, rated, redocmable non• 
convertible debentures (NCD Series 2) (net of issue expenses, 111 •mortised 
cost) (refer Note iv) 

Senior, Listed, Roted, Secured. Non-Cumulative, 
Tn:<nblo, Transferable, Redeemable Non•Convertiable Debentures (Sundew 
NCO I )(refer Note v) 
Secured, listed, senior, laxnble, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable 11011· 

convcn,blc debentures (NCD Serie, 3) (net ol'issuc ox~ensos, al amortised 
cost)(3 l March 2021 : N1l)(rofer Note v,) 
Bonds· 
Senior, Listed, Rated, Secun:d, Non--Cwnmulative, TIIXBble, Transfuable, 
Redeemable Non-Convmible Bonda (M.BPPL NCB I) (Refer uule ,ii) 

A• at As al 
30 Junel022 31 Morch 2022 

21,194 19,963 

1,989 1,988 

J ,732 3,730 

750 750 

J,978 3,972 

4.957 4,954 

4,826 

42,426 JS.JS7 

(I) In September 2020, Mllldspooc REIT issued S,000 JO yCllr G-Seo linked scoured, listed, guaranteed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, liltCd, principal protec\cd -
in11rkct lu,J\cd, rcdecinnblc, non-oonvcrtiblo debentures ("Markel Linked Debenllu,,J / MLD Series I") huving fuco volue of Rs, 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakh, only) 
each, amounting lo Rs, S00,00,00,000 (Rupees five hw1drcd crorcs only), The tenure of the said MLD Series I is S77 do)'11 from 29 Scp1cinber 2020, being dale of 
allotment of the MLD Serie, I and coupon, if any shall ho payable on the Scbeduled Redemption Dale l.e, on maturity on 29 April 2022, TI1e ooupnn payoff 
structure ls linlced to condition whoro tho payoff will be fixed on tho final fi)(lng dote i.e. 30 Morch 2022, If 1dentified l O year 0-Sec's last traded price na on final 
fixing dato is greater than 25% of its last !roded price as on initinl liKing date i.e. 29 September 2020, the coupon rntc will be6,80% p,a, lfideolified 10 y,,or 0-Scc's 
last traded price as on final fixing date is less thou or equal to 25% of its last traded price as ou initial fixing date, the coupon rn1e will be- zero percent. As per the 
valuers report in respect of voluation of MLD Series I, the probobility of occurrence of such on event (last traded price of Identified 10 year G-Sec on linnl fixing 
date being less than or equal to 25% of it, last traded price on inltlal fixing date) ls remote and hence 1110 value of the option considered as zero, 
This MLD Series I was listed on BSE Limited on 13 October 2020, During the period end, principal and interest is paid on 29 April 2022, 

Security terms 
MLD Series I were secured by each of tho following security in favour of the Debenture Tmslee (holding for U,e benefit of tho Debenture Holders}, 

a) First and exclusive charge Willi l'Cgi11cred by way of •imple mortgage (including reccivoblcs arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of npproxima1ely 
974,500 Sq, Ft. onhercabouta In buildingsoo, 6, 7 and 8 of Co,111ner20nc Yerawada (approx, 178,569 sq fl. in buildin11 no, 6, npprox, 371,799 •q. fl, in building 110 

7 and npprox. 424,132 in building no, 8) together with tho proportionole undivided right, title ond interest in the notio11nlly demarcuttd lt111d admeu,uring 
nppro,cimately 25,313 sq, wtrs ou which the said three buildinl! no, 6, 7 a11d 8, out of nil those pieces a11d pun:cl, of l8J'l!er la11d are situate. lying und being in 
Vntagc Yorawada, Taluka Haveli, District Puue ("Mongaged Properties") ofMLD Series l. 

b) A charge oa the escrow uccounl in which receivables oflhc Mortgaged Properties ofMBPPL would have been received. 
o} Corpornle guarantee was esecuted by MBPPL, 

Redemption ter ms: 
o) MLD Series I were redeemable by way of bullet payment ut the end of 577 days from the date of nllounont, 1,0. 29 April 2022 

b) The Coupon would hove been increased by 25 bps for every noloh downgrade in the rating by tho Credit Roling Agency, In ca•e ratin11 was 11p11rnded ofter any 
rating downgrade, the Coupon would have been decreased by 2S bps for each upgrade, TI10 Investors were having tl1e right to acoelcruto the MLD Series I if the 
ruling wu downgraded 10 A+. 
c) Upon occurl'l:n<C of a mandatory redemption eveor, Uic Debenture Trustee may, by mumg not leu tbn.u 30 (thirty) busiuen days notice to the Issuer require the 
t»uer 10 redeem in foll, all tho Debentures then oumanding by poying an arnouut cqunl to the total mandatory redemption omount ill respect of couh Debenture 



(li) In December 2020, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 2,000 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures 
("NCD Series I") having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lnkhs only} each, amounting to Rs. 200,00,00,000 (Rupees two hundred crores only) with n 
coupon rnlc of 6.45% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first fuU quo rt or from the date ofallolrrleut i.e. 31 March 2021, with last coupon pnyment on 
the scheduled redemption date i.e. 16 December 2023. n,e tenure of0,c said NCD Series I is 36 months from 17 December 2020, being date of allotment. 
TI1is NCO Series I was listed on BSE Limited on 21 December 2020. 

Securlly te,ms 
NCD Series I are secured by ench ofU1e following security in favour of tho Debenture Trustee (holdi.ng for the benefit of the NCD Holders): 

a) First and exclusive charge registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on 010 qggregate leasablc area of appro,imntely 
414,599 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no. 1 nnd 5 ofCommerzone Ytrawada (approx. 43,200 sq, fl. In building no. I and approx. 371,399 in building no. S) 
together wi1h 1hc proportionnte undivided righl, title and i111eres1 in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 18,264 sq. mlrs on which the ••id 
two building no. I and S, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land thnt are si1uated, lyiug and being in Village Yerawnda, Tuluko Haveli, Di~lrict rune 
("Mortgaged Properties") of NCD Series I. 

b) A charge on the escrow accow!I In which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received save and except any common nrea maintenance charges 
payable to MBBPL with respect to the mointeuance of the mortgaged properties. 

c) Co,poralc guarantee cxcou1ed by MBPPL. 

Redemption terms: 
a) NCO Series I OJ'C rcdcemoble by way of bullet n,puymenl nt tho end of36 months from the date ofollonncn~ i.e. 16 December 2023. 
b) lnteres1 is payable on the las! day of each finoncial quarter Ill a year (starting front 31 March, 2021) w11il 010 scheduled redemption dn10. 

a) TI,o Coupon shall be inorcaicd by 2S bps for ••••Y o.itoh downB1ud~ in 010 r11tinl! by the Credit Roting Agency, In cosc rnling i, upgraded oiler an}' rnung 
downgrndc, tho Coupon shall be decreased by 2S bps for each uJ)grnde. 
d) Upon occurrence of• mw,datory redemption event, 0,e Debenture Trustee may, by iuuing nol less than 30 (thirty) business dny•' notic,: 10 tho Issuer require 0,e 
Issuer to redeem in full, nil 010 debenture, then oulslonding by pnyin~ an altlount equnl 10 O,c total inundamry redemption amounl in respect of each debenture. 

(iii) ht March 2021, Mindspacc REIT issued 3,750 10 ycnr 0-See linked secured, liotcd, senior, taxable, non•cumulntivc, rntcd, pnncipal pro1cc1ed - market hnked, 
redeemable, uon-convertible debenture• ("Markel Linked Debenmres I MLD Series 2") having face vnluc of tu. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) cnch, nmonnting 
10 Rs. 375,00,00,000 (Rupees 0iree hundred seventy five crores only), The tenure of 1he said MLD Series 2 is 38 months from 18 Morch 2021, being dRto of 
al101rr>en1 of tho MLD Series 2 and coupon, if any shall be payable on the Scheduled Redemp1ion Dute i.e. on maturity on 17 Moy 2024. n,c coupon payoff slrUcture 
is linked to condition where tho payoff will be fixed on tho final fixing dale i,c. 16 April 2024. lfidcnli6ed 10 yeor G-Scc's last trnded price as on finHI 6xing date is 
greater thHn 25% oflts last 1raded price as on initiBI fixing dale i.e. 18 Mo.rch 2021, tho coupon rate will bo 6.65% p.a. lfidenti6ed 10 year G-Sec's lost lrnded price 
as oo final lixing date is less than or equal 10 25% of i1s last trndcd price as on initial fixing dote, tho coupon rote will bo zero percent. As per the va.luers report in 
rc,peel of valua1ion of th••• MLD Series 2, the probability of occu<rencc of suah an cYenl (la,1 traded price of identified IO year 0-S"" on final fixing date being loss 
1hwi or equal to 25% ofiu last 11aded price on initial fixing date) is remo1e and benoc the value of tho option con,idered •• zero. 
This MLD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021, 

Securily t«ms 
MLD Series 2 OJ"e secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trus1ee (holding for U1e benefil of the Dcbcnlurc Holders): 

R) First and ""ch,.ivc charge being crea1ed by wny of equitable mongage on the aggregate lea,able area of •pproximately 13,71,442 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in 
buildings 110. 12A iu,d Units of Building 128 ofMndhapur, llydcl'llbad (approx, 12,69,140 aq. ft. in buildin11 no.121\ and approJ<. l,0l,302 ,q. ft in buflding no 
12B) logethcr with the proportionate undivided righ~ title and intoresl io 1he nolionolly demarcated lond admcmsunng approximately 29,842 sq. min on which !he 
snid I\Vo building no.12A and 12!l, ou1 of all those pieces and parcols oflOJ"ger land tl>Bt arc situated, lying and being in Madhnpur Village, S01iHn11wnpolly Mandal, 
Rango Reddy District, Hyderabad ("Mortgaged Properties"), for MLD Serie, 2. 

b) f irst ronking excl11aivc charsc created by wey ofu h)'l'OO,ccation over 1M Hypothorated Propertir• Qf Ml D Serie .. 2 

... ) A .. 1u,~~t;: ua \J11,c~•1..lUW 4'1,11,.()Um 1,.,v,Jli.J, .,.. ~tu .. h l'\o-1.. .. &lutlli.. .. "''"11 ... .1-....1v,l&~,u 1.'B,pcni\-.1 ~rs,M d.vw 1, b - t J. sr. ad ~tl&llt) 

mointenonce charges poynble 10 Sundew with respect to the 111au1te11ancc oflhe mor1gaged propertie.s. 

ti) C'orporale guarantee oxccutcd by Sundew 

R,•tlcmr,llon ierml! 
a) Ml.D Srrie, 1 are redeemoble by woy ofb11llr1 pQyinenl at the e11tl nf1R innnth, from the dole of ollotmont. i,e 17 Moy 2024. 

b) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in O,e rating by the Credi! Rnling Agency. In ca,e rating is upgraded aficr ony rnling 
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 2S bps for eoeh upgrade. TI1e Investors shall have tl1e right to accolcrato 010 MLD Seric1 2 ifU1e rating is downgrudctl 
to A +, 
c) Upon occurrence of• 111w1datory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less thun 30 (thirty) business days notice lo 1he Issuer require tho 
lm,er to redeem in full, nil the Oebonlunos then outSlandins by pnying nn amount equol to the 10101 monda1ory redemp1ion amount in respect of ench Dcbcnturt. 

(iv) In Mareb 2021, Mindspoce Bu,incs, Parks REIT issued 750 5ecurcd, listed, senior, laxable, non-cumulalive, rated, redcemnble, non-conve11ible debenture, ("NCD 
Series 2") having foe.. value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten laklu only) eoch, an,ounting to Rs. 75,00,00,000 (Rupees seventy 6ve crores only) with • coupon rate of 
6.6861 % p.n payable qunrterly begit1J1ing from 11•• end of first full quarter from 1he dole of ollonnent i.e. 30 June 2021, with lusl coupoo pnyment on the scheduled 
redetnption date i.e. 17 May 2024, Titc tenure of the snid NCD Series 2 ls 38 months from I & March 2021, being dale of ollotment. 
NCO Serie, 2 was lisied on BSE Limilcd on 22 MBrCh 2021. 

Secu<ity t<rms 
NCO Sones 2 are secured by ench of the following soct11i1y in favour oftl1e Dobeuturu 'l'ruslee (holding for lho benefit of01e NCO Holders): 

a) Fil'lll und exclusive charge being registered by woy of simple mortgage (including receivables ari,inll Utercfrom) on the aggregotc leasublc nroo of approximn1ely 
IS 1,460 Sq. fl. or thereabouts In building no. 4 of Common.one Yernwada logether with tltc proportionate undivided right, title and in1ercst in the notionally 
demarcated land odmeosuring Approximately 9,561 sq. 1111rs on which 0,c said butld!ng, out of all those pioces and parcels of larger lund that are •in,uted, lyini: and 
bemg in Village Ycnswada, Thluka Haveli, District Pune ("Mortgngcd Properties") ofNCD Serie• 2. 

b) A chorgc on the escrow account lo be orcntcd, in which receivables of the MortgHged Properties shall be rocolved, save ond e,cept any common area mnintcnancc 
cbOJ"ge.s payable 10 MB PPL with respect 10 the muintenwicc of the mortgaged propenies. 

c) Corporate guarantee oxcculed by MBPPL, 



Rttlemption terms: 
u) NCO Series 2 are redecmoble by way ofbullct repayment at the end of38 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024, 
b) Jn1erc,1 is payable on tlie last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 Juno, 2021) until U,e scheduled rcdomplion dale. 
c) Tho Coupon shall be• increased by 25 bps for evol)I nolch downgrade in lhe rating by the Credi! Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating 
downgrade, the Coupou shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. 
d) Upon occurrence of a mandalol)I redemption event, tho Debenture lrustce may, by issuing nol less tl,an 30 (thirty) business days' notie<> lo lho Issuer require tl1e 
Issuer 10 redeem in fiill, all the debentures then oulSlanding by psying an amount equal 10 the tolal mandatol)I rodcmplion amount in respecl of each debenture. 

(v) In September 2021, Sm1dew Properties Limited issued 4,000 Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumalalive,Taxable, Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Dcbcntmes of ("Sundcw NCO I") having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amountiug to R,. 400,00,00,000 (Rupees four thousand million 
only) witl, a coupon rate of 6.1% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment (date of allobnent being 28 Seplembcr 
2021 and end of first full quarter being 31 December 2021 ), with last coupon payment on lhe scheduled redemption dote i.e. 28 June 2024. The tenure of lhe said 
NCO is from deemed dote of allotment i.e. 28 Seplcinber 2021, 1ill scheduled redemption date i.e. 28 June 2024. 
This NCO was lis1ed on BSE Limited on I October 2021. 
Security Ccrms1 
NCO are secured by each of tho following secu,ity in favour oftl,e Debenture Truslec (holding for 1h0 benefit of tho NCO 1-lolders) (as further dc1ailod in security 
documents): 
I. First ranking •~elusive security inleresl by way of an equitable mongage over identified immovable propenies (os identified below); Firs! ranking sole and 
exclusive security interest by way ofhypolhcca1ion over 
(o) the current & tii1urc movable auet, owned by tho Sundew and reocivoblc, pertaimng to identified immovable propenfcs Buildiug 20 with 709,165 square foci 

carpet area (save ond except 11,974 square f\:et corpet area ofcefeleria and 1,520 square feel carpel area ofSEZ office), Building 12B (unit no 1301 (22,069 S(junrc 
feet carpel area), unit no 1302 (16,296 "lu•re fett carpe, area), uuit no 1401 (37,0SO •~uu,e foci catpot w ea))· Paa! Proje.:t Mindspaco Madhapur, Hydcrobod 
lluildings 
(b) the escrow account and U10 subscription account and all amounts slanding to lho credit of, or ocoruod or nccrning on escrow aocounl and U,e subscription 

a~ount. 
2. NCO arG backed by guarantee provided by Mindspacc REIT, 

Redemption terms: 

n) NCO uro rcdcomublc by way ofbullel poyment on 28 June 2024. 
b) b>tercsl is payable on the lost day of each financial quarter in• year {stnrting from 31 December, 202 I) until lhc scheduled redemption date. 
c) Tho Coupon sholl be Increased by 25 bps for evel)I notch downgrade in !he rating by 1he Credit RAting Agency. In case roting is upgraded aller any raring 
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. 
d) Upon occurrence ofa ma11da10,y redemption event, tl1e Sundew shall issue mandatol)I redemption notice within 2 bu.,iness doys 011d no la!« than than 30 (d1irty) 
Business Days from issuance of mandatory redemption nolicc (unless inslnleted otlierwise by debenture trustee), redeem in full (oras tho case may be, in port) all !ho 
Dobenwrcs tl1en outstanding by paying an amounl eqnal to the maudalol)I redemption amount in respect of each Debenture. 

(vi) In februn,y 2022, Mindspuce Business Pal'ks REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cu111ulnlivo, taxable, tmnsfernblc, rcJeomnble, non-convertible 
debe111ures ("NCO Series 3") having lace value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amomuing to Rs. 500,00,00,000 (Rupee, five hundr<d cl'Ores only) 
with a coupon rate of6.35% p.a. Coupon on tl10 outstanding Nomi11ol value of each debenturt> shnll be applieeble ond computed from day 10 day ,be proroted on nn 
octun!/ actual bo,is for tho au1ual number of days in the Coupon Period and be poynblo in orrcors on the relevant Coupon l'ayrune111 dote lo tho Ocbcn1urc Ii older 
whose OWTIC is appeoring on the Register of llcnelicial Owners ns on the Record D010. The bsuer hereby aknowledges and agrees thnt Uicre shall be no morotorium 
period for the pa)ment of Coupon.Tho fo-.1 Coupon payment Doto ,hall bo 31 March 2022, wilh !n,t coupon poyment on the ~Qhcdulcd redemption deie i.e. 31 
Decembor 2024. Tho tenure oftho said NCD Series 3 is 35 rnontlis from I February 2022, beinl! dole of allolTtlcnt 

llus NCD Senes 3 was listed on OSE Limited on February 04, 2022. 

.!,'~curlly terms 
NCO Serio• 3 are secured by each oftl10 followin11 aecurity in fovour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benofil 0(1hc NCD Holders): 

~) First and Cl(Cluslve charge boingragis1crcd l>y wny ,,f, implc mong•s• on lho corp•I n~n of•ppri,,imnlc!y ~.Sl ~74 Sq Ft. ( save and llJ<CCJll entl~ 2nd ilnor 
admeasurtng 11,883 Sq. Ft, c11rpe1 area ,u bwld111g 110. 2) [lhe building no, 2) situated on 1hc Mongngc land along with proponionalc ou,oreJ w,d upon pml.11111 
spaces, in lluildi11112 togetlaer wid, all the beneficial rights, 1i1le and interest of Ute Assets SPV m appurtenanl to B111ld!1111 2 and oil erections. the llmldmg L" 
situoled on a portion oflho Mortgage Land odrneosuring 8.04 Becton:,, which ponion is noti6ed as n Special Economic Zone & first and exclusive chnrgc being 
registered by way of slmpl<> morts•s• on the identified units witl, aggregating to carpet area of approximately 4 ,61,527 Sq. ft. (identified unii, of building no. 3 ) 
s itt1a1ed on !he Mongagc land 11lon11 with proponiooatc covered nnd open parking spaocs, in Building 3 1ogc1hcr with oil the bcnoficilll rights, title and 111tcrcs1 ot lhc 
Assets SPY in appurtenru,110 Building 3 nnd ult erections ("Mongngcd Properties") of NCO Series 3 01 further detailed in tranlllclion documents 

A firsl ranking pari passu charge by way of o simple mortgage over the Mortgaged Land ns forther detailed in transaction documents 
b) A charge on the escrow accoum lo be created, in which receivables of the Mongagcd l'loporlies shall be received, save und except ony common orcn 11111m1cnance 
charges payable to OIGAPLEX wilh rcapcct 10 tl1e maintenance of 11,e mortgngcd properties. 

c) Corporate gunra111ec executed by Gigoplex. 

Redempt,'011 terms: 
a) NCO Series 3 ,w redcemoblo by way of bullet rep11ymcnl •t the eud of35 month! from the date of ollotiuenl, i.o. 31 December, 2024, 
b) Interest is payablo 011 the last day of each financial quarter in a year (slartins from 31 March. 2022) until tlic scheduled redemption duto. 
c) Upon ocouJTence ofa mandatol)I redemption event. the Dcbcuturo Trustee may, by issuing not les, than 30 (lhirty) bu.1iness days' notice 10 the Issuer require the 
Issuer to redeem in full. nil the dcbe111urcs !hen outstanding by paying nn amount equal to the total mnndnto,y redemption amowi1 in rcspccl of eoch debenture. 

(vii) In Jone 2022, Mindspacc llusiuess Parks Ptivate Limited issued 4,900 senior, redeemable, listed, ruted, secured, tnu1sferoblo, n1pec dcnonunoll:d, non-convertible 
bonds ("Non Convcrtablc Bonds") huving face value oflu. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amountmg 10 Rs, 490,00,00,000 (Rupee, four h1mdred 11ine1y 
crorc, only) wilh a coupon rate linked lo 3 month Government oflndia T-Bill plus spread of203 bp, payable quarterly, wi1h lost coupon payn1cnt on the scheduled 
redemption date i.e. 22 June 2027. Tho tonm<> of the said non convertible bond is 60 months from deemed dale of allotment i.e. 23 Juno 2022, till scheduled 
redemption dole i.e. 22, June 2027. 
11,it NCB Serie, I wu U11cd on BS!l Limited on June 24, l022 

Se,·urity TtJr11tf: 

The Non Convcrtiblo Bonds arc secured by 

(i) a fi,.t ra,tking pari pasau Security by way or• ahnplc mortglgO over 1hc specified land (lllf8er limd odm••¥uriJ1g 2,02, 740 square meters situated al Kalwa 
lnduslrial Arca sub district Thone) and 

(ii) a first rDllkins exclusive Security over tlie identified buildings having aggroga1e carpet area of opproximRtcly 10,40,548.98 sq.ft. (appro<. 2,67,560.75 ,q. tl in 
Building No. 10, approx. 2,35,961.SO sq. fl. in Building no. 11 (pnrt),npprox. 2,74,449.71 sq. ft. io Buildins No. 12, approx. 2,62,S77.02 ,q. ft. in Building No. 14), 
rt:ccivables and Accowtl Assets, as specificolly defined in the bond trust deed doled Juno 02, 2022 and•• tiinher amended from lime 10 time ("Bond Trust Deed"). 



Retlcnq,timr terms: 

Final Redemption Date is 01e date fulling 60 months from the Deemed Date of Allotment (Principal repayment: I% 011 31 Mar 23, 2% on 31 Mar 24, 3% on 31 Mar 
25, 4% on 31 Mar 26, 5% 011 31 Mar 27 and Balance on Final Redemption Date). The said non convertible bonds are voluntarily redeemable by the company upon 
tl1c expiry of the lock-in prescribed under tho Applicable Laws as specifically de lined in the Bond Tmst Deed. Non convertible bond holders have a put 01J1ion at tho 
end or 54 months from Deemed Date of Allotment as specified in the Bond Trust Deed. 

On and from tl,c occurrence or a Rating Downgrade Event/ Rating unradc Event, the Spread shall stand increased/ decreased by 0.25% per annum over and above 
the immediately preceding Coupon as on the date ofthc occurrence of such Raring Downgrade/ Upgrade Event 

(viii) Details of disclosure requited as per SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DOHS/DDHSICIR/P/201 sn 1 dated 13 April 2018 and Regulotion 52 or tl1e LODR Regulations are as 
follows· 

Particulars 
SecuredNnsecured PreviOuJ due Next due 

dote dote 

Principal • Not Principal · On 
IO year O-Sec Hnkcd secured, listed, guaranteed, senior, u,xablc, non· Applicable 

Maturity 
cumulative, mled, principal protected - market linked, redcctnable, non· Secured 
convertible debentures ("Market Linked Oebe11tures I MLO Series I ") Interest · Not ln1cres1 · On Mtnurity 

Applicoblc 

Prindpal • Not Principal• On 

Secured, lisled, senior, lnxablc, non-cumulative, rated, redeemnblc non• 
Applicable Mo111ri1y 

convertible debenture-, (NCD Series I) 
Secured 

h11erest - 30 June Interest • 30 
2022 September 2022 

Principol · 011 
Principal· Nol Muturity 

10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, t11Xablc, non-cwnulativc, rnled, Applicable 
principal protected - market linked, redeomablo, non-convertible debentures Secured u11eres1 • On Maumty 
("Market Linked Debentures/ MLD Series 2") uiterest • Not 

Applicable 

Principal• Not Principal • On 
Applicable Maturity 

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, no11-cumulutivc, rated, redeemable non· Secured 
conveniblo debentures (NCD Series 2) b1terest • 30 June Interest • 3 0 

2022 September 2022 

l'rincipnl • Nol Principal • On 

Senior. Listed. Rnted, Secured, Non-Cumulative, Tuxnblc, Transfornble, 
Applicablo Maturity 

Secured 
Rede,mablc, Non-Convertible Debentures (Sundow NCD I) 1mcres1. 30 lmeres1 • 30 

June, 2022 September 2022 

Prmcipnl • Not Pnnc1pal • Un 

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non~cum11lativc. rated, redeemable non-
Appl1cablo Mut11n1y 

Secured 
conve11ible dcb<!nturos (NCD Series 3) lnlcr~st - 30 June lnlCJ'Clt - 30 

2022 Se{llembcr10n 

Pnnc11,ul • 1'<01 Pii11uip..J • lh " " J I 

Senior, Listed, Roted, Secured, Non-Cummulative, TBXllblc, Tronsfcrable, 
Applicable Morch 2023 

Secured 
Redeemable Non-Convertible Bonds (MBPPL NCB I) l111ercs1 · 30 June ln1ores1 • 3 0 

2022 September 2022 
.. Raung agency CRJSIL has assigned u o,t111g of"CRISU. PP-MLD AAAr/Slablc" lo MLD Se11cs 1 & 2, ' 'CRJS!L AANStoblc to the NCD Series I 2 & 3 of the 

issuur / Mindspocc REIT and "ICRA-AAA(Sloble)" 10 S1111dcw NCD I. Subsequently there is no d1011ge in the credil rulfug. 
Rnling agency ICRA h113 assigned a roting or "ICRA-AAA(Stoblc)" to MBl'PL NCB I .Subsequently there is no cha11go 111 the credit n11i11g, 

Rcfor Note 5 I for Ratio disclosure. 

22 Other non-current financial Uabilill•s 
Particular, 

Security deposits 
Retention money pnyublo 

• due 10 micro and ~mall cnlcrpri&cs 
• others 

Cnpitol creditors 
• Duo to micro and smoll entc'l)riscs 
• Other, 

Interest aocrued but not due on dobe11h1res 

23 l'rovisiont (Non curtent) 
Particulars 

Provi.don for employee beodil• 
• gratuity 
.. compensated absences 

As at 
30 Juoe2022 

Al ~I 

3,700 

114 
93 

46 

J26 
4,279 

30 June 2022 

18 
13 
31 

A5at 
31 Man:h 2022 

A,at 

3,759 

115 
74 

61 
271 

4,280 

31 Marcl1 2022 

18 
12 
30 



24 Deferred tax liabilities (nel) 
Particulars 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

25 Other non-current liabilitiu 
Particulau 

U neamed rent 
Other advance 

26 Short term borrowings 
Particular• 

Secured: 
Loans repayable on demand 
- overdroft fi-om banks 

Current moturltiu of long-term debt 

• 10 yea.r G-Sec linked secured, listed, guaranteed, senior, taxable, non­
cumu1aliv«.!, nted, pri11ciµal p,otected - markc.t linked, tcdt:tu1nbJ1:t, 1101,­
convertible delx:ntures {"Market Linked Debenture,/ MLD Series I") (net 
of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (Refer Note 21 (i)) 
• from banks/ financial institutions 

27 Trade a ables 
rarficulurs 

Trade Payables 

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
• total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises • 

• Refer note 50 for related party note for amount payable to tl,c Manager. 

28 Olhtr t orrent finoucial liobilili .. 
Particulars 

Employees dues paynble 
lnton:st accrued bul not due on loans from 

- banks I finil11Qiat institution, 
- cle~rn111relhond• 

lntere,1 accrued and due 
Security deposits 
R<leutiou d .. e, payable 

- due tu 1uk1u •mJ 11111dll dH11;,µth~ 

- 01lw" 

Unpaid Distributions 
Capilol cn:di1ora 

- Due 10 micro and small cntorpri,es 
• Others 

Other liabilities• 

• Refer no1c ~m for rela1ed party note for amount poyable to the Manager 

19 Provisions (Current) 
Parliculars 

Provision for employee benefil5 
• gratuity 
• cornpensated absences 

Provislou for .:ompcnsa1ion• 

As at 
30 June 2022 

As at 

907 
907 

30 June 2022 

As at 

SIS 
JO 

525 

30 June2022 

2,889 

!,SOS 
4,694 

Asal 
30 June 2022 

As ll 

32 

827 
859 

30 June 2022 
17 

41 

41 

4,438 

13J 
117 

0 

167 
1,417 

76 
6,549 

As at 
JO June2022 

" J 
27 
34 

As al 
31 March 2022 

669 
669 

Asat 
31 March 2022 

As Bl 

571 
9 

580 

31 March 2022 

2,496 

9,123 

As at 

31 March 2022 

60 

705 

Asal 
31 March 2022 

2 

72 
523 
29 

4,116 

112 
127 

I 

383 
1,368 

102 
6,835 

Asat 
31 Mardi 2022 

4 
27 
35 

•TI,is provision represents estimaled contractual obligolion OJtisling as al tht> balance ,heel dote on aC<lount of pending handover of possession lo the land owner as 

per Joint Development Agreement 

JO Other current liubilities 
Particulao 

Unearned ren1 
Advances received from customers 
Statutory dues 
Olhor advances 
Other payable• 
Book ovcrdr•ft with bank 

•This includes Unspent Corpornle Social Responsibility amount. 
JI Current lax liahilitl .. (net) 

Particulars 

Provision for income ... tax. net of advance tax 

As al 
30June2022 

J36 
232 
145 

so 
314 

7 
1,194 

A■ al 
30 June 2022 

60 
60 

Asal 
3 1 March 2022 

364 
169 
170 
so 

299 

1,052 

e ~ As at i MU~ I ~ 31 Morch 2022 
2 
2 ~ c,., 

~ ~ * ~,-» 



MlNOSPACE BUSINESS PARKS RElT 
RN:IN/REIT/.19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwl.!e stated) 

32 Revenue from operations 

Purticulars For the quarter ended For the quarter ended 
30June 2022 31 Mar2022 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) 

Sale of services 
Facility rentals 3,785 3,803 
Maintenance services 805 707 

Sale of Equipment 81 

Less: Cost of Equipment sold (81) 

Revenue from power supply 171 100 

Other 011erating income 
Interest income from finance lease 43 47 
Sale of surplus construction material and scrap 9 9 

4,813 4,666 

33 interest Income 
Particulars For the quarter ended For the quarter ended 

30 June 2022 31 Mar 2022 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) 

Interest income 
- on fixed deposits 6 8 

- on electricity deposits 4 3 

- on Income-tax refunds 29 61 

- others l 3 
40 75 

34 Other income 
l'arllculurs For the quarter ended For the quarter ended 

30June 2022 31 Mar2022 
(Unaudited) (Unoudit~l 

nflitt cm rrden1ntion ofjnvc<tlmf!nt~ 3 r, 

l'oreig11 exchange gain (net) 0 

Liabilities no longer required written back 23 
Miscellaneous income 2 3 

5 32 

35 Emflo~ee benefits expense• 
Portkulars For the quarter e_nded l'or the quarter ended 

30 June2022 31 Mar2022 
(Unaudited) !!,dnaudited) 

Salaries and wagl!s 58 55 

Contribution to provident and other funds 4 3 

Gratuity expenses 2 0 

Compensated absences (4) 

Slaff welfare expenses I I 
66 55 

• Employee benefits expenses majorly refers to employee benefit. expenses of facilities maintcnanec services. 

36 Co!t or property management services 
Parliculars 

Housekeeping services 
Fn~nde cl(!llning 
Engineering servfces 
Security expenses 
AMC expenses 
Garden mamtenance 
Repair and maintenance 
Consumables 
Electricity consumption charges 

For the querier ended 
30 June 2022 
(Unaudited) 

IS 

26 
21 
38 

2 
5 

5 

I 
ll3 

For the quarter ended 
31 Mar 2022 
(Unaudited) 

14 
l 

211 
20 
37 
2 

15 
17 

130 

For the quarter ended Forthe year ended 
30 June2021 3 I March 2022 
(Unaudited) (Audited) 

3,403 14,185 
632 2,635 

116 440 

44 189 
2 52 

4,197 17.501 

for the quarter ended For the year ended 
30 June 2021 31 March 2022 
(Unaudited) (Audited) 

6 23 
2 II 

61 
7 12 

13 I 7 

For the quu11er ended For U1e year ended 
30 June 2021 31 Morch 2022 
(Unaudited) (Audited) 

3 12 
0 

9 50 
26 

l2 8ij 

For the quarter ended For the yeor ended 
30 June 2021 3 I March 202Z 
Qdnaudited) (Audited) 

50 207 
3 11 

2 4 
2 2 

2 
57 226 

For the quarter ended For the y~ar ended 
30Junc 2021 31 March 2022 
{Unaudi1ed) (Audilcd) 

JO 48 

17 81 

14 69 
26 126 

l 6 
4 32 

3 34 
l l 

76 398 



37 Reeairs and maintenance 

Particulars For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended ror the year ended 
JO June 2022 31 Mar2022 30 June2021 31 March 2022 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) 

Repairs and maintenance: 
- building 76 77 67 261 
- plant and machinery 58 60 45 212 

- computers 2 
- electrical installation 6 II 4 28 
- others 18 20 36 

158 169 I 16 539 

38 Other ex enses 
Particu lars Fur tbe quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the year ended 

30 Junc2022 31 Mar 2022 30June2021 31 March 2022 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) 

Rent 3 6 
Property tax IJJ 130 \ 19 561 
Electricity, water and diesel charges 166 92 104 389 
Travelling and conveyance 2 3 7 
Rates and taxes 4 10 6 33 
Donation l 
Business support fees 23 IS 14 57 
Fixed Assets ,vritte off 73 73 
Filing fees and stamping charges JO 22 7 48 
llusincss promotion expenses/advertising expense s 8 4 26 
Bank Charges \ 6 

Bad debts written off 3 3 
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 44 43 46 162 
Compensation 76 90 
Provision for Doubtful Debts (expected credit 
loss allowance) II ( l) 3 
Foreign exchange loss (net) 0 0 
Directors' sitting fees 0 0 2 
Miscella11eous ex~n~es 17 22 6 42 

420 500 310 l 510 

39 Finance co•ts 
Puliieulurli P11r I~• 'JIIRrl,r ,.,,tr,t For the Quaner endr<i Fnr the q1J1trtor ended For the vear ended 

JO June 2022 31 Mar2022 30 June 2021 3 I March 2022 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) 

l111erest e~pense 
- on borrowings from banks and financial ins11tul1ons 454 397 445 1,735 
- on debentures and bonds 297 317 200 99S 

- on lease liability 3 3 5 16 
- on others 5 I 3 9 

Unwinding of interest expenses on security deposits 96 128 67 138 
OU1cr finance charges 2 14 
Less: Finance costs capitalised to investment property 
under construotion (13~ (99) (1212 (463) 

719 749 599 2,644 



40 Depreciation and Particulars amortisation 
For the quarter ended 

JO June 2022 
(Unaudited) 

Depreciation of ro equipment p perty, plant and 
31 

Depreciation ofinv 
Amortisation of i est~ent property 
Less· D . . ntang,ble assets 

. eprec,allon cost Ira 

816 
0 

properties under constru _nsferred to investment 
ction 

41 
Tux es-:,:e:ns:e===============----------= 847 

Particulars 

Current tax 
Deferred tax charge/(' MAT • rncome) 

credit (entitlement)/ cl . IBrgc 

For the quarter euded 
JO June 2022 
(Unaudited) 

4S9 
446 

905 

For the quarter ended 
31 Mar 2022 
(Unaudited) 

43 
813 

0 

856 

For the qua,ter ended 
31 Mar2022 
(Unaudited) 

533 
665 

1,198 

For the quarter ended 
30 June 2021 
(Unaudited) 

25 
771 

0 

(0) 

796 

For the quarter ended 
3o June 2021 
(Unaudited) 

368 
(11) 
(72) 

285 

For the year ended 
31 March 2022 

(Audited) 

121 
3,168 

0 

3,289 

For the year ended 
31 March 2022 

(Audited) 

1,767 
903 

2,670 
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42 

2 

Contmeent I o ,lilies and Cnoilol commitments I b. 

Particulars As at As at 

30 June2022 '.l l March 2022 

Contingent liabilities 

Claims not acknowledged as debt in resp,:ct of 

- Income-Tax matters (Refer note I below) excluding interest 936 936 

• Service-Tax matters (Refer note 2 below) 367 367 
- Customs duty matters (Refer note 3 below) 34 34 

-Stamp duty 65 65 
Co11ilal commitments 
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital nccount (net of advances) and not provided for (Refer 6,107 7,338 
Nole 4 below) 

Notes: 

(o) Gigaplex-An appeal has been filed for A.Y. 2010-11 before CIT(A) against the penalty order raising demand ofRs.3 million and the appeal is pending. It has paid 
20% (Rs. I mflllon) with a request to keep the demand In abeyance. As per Income tax website, there is no demand outstanding. 

(b) KRIT • Contingent liability of Rs. 933 million relate to AY 2012-13 to A Y 2018-19 for which it has filed appeals before CIT(A) against orders under section 
143(3) / 143(3) read with section 153A of the Act contesting the disallowance of deduction under section 801A of the Income Tax Act 1961. KRJT is hopeful of a 
favourable outcome for these Assessment Years. In case of unfavourable decisions in appeal for AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19, the tax would be payable under normal 
rax and hence, MAT credit currently available with KRIT will no longer be available. As a result, in addition to above contingent liability, KRIT would require to pay 
additional tax of Rs. 326 million w.r.l. A Y 2019-20 and AY 2020-21 (These years are not under lftigation) because during these years KRIT has utilised the MAT 
credit availed during A Y 2012-13 to AY 2018-19.The disallowance of deduction under section 801A for A Ys 2012-13 to 2018-19 by the Income Tax department was 
based on the order for earlier AV 2011-12 wherein similar disallowance was made.KRIT had challenged the said order of AY 2011-12 before the ITAT. The Hon'ble 
!TAT vide its order dated 06.05.2021 allowed the app,:al in favour of KRIT by quashing the disallowance made by the income-tax authority, 

SPVs As at Asat 
JO June 2022 31 March 2012 

MBPPL 92 92 
Sundew I 

lntimc 57 57 
KRIT 10? 'Cl'l 

•~ •;...,. Ju ~ 9 

367 367 
JIIBl'PL : The SPV has ,ecclved show cause and demond notices for inclusion in 111.uble vnlUl' a1nou1111l received as 1cimbur11~men1 of elec1ricity and nllicd charges 
nnd de11uu1d service tax 1here on of Rs 92 million excluding. ~pplicnble interest and penalty SPV has tilled appropriate replies to the show cuuse nnd deroand no11cn., 

Sundew : Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs. I Million nnd Demond for Interest and Penalty on accoum of wrong 
availment of credit ofscrv,ce tux paid on input services Rs.0 mi11ion . SPV has filed an appeals with CESTAT and matter is pending, 

In time: Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs.36 million nnd Demand for Service tax on elecmc,ty and water and irrcgulor 
nvailment of credit of service lax paid on input services Rs.21 million. It has filed an nppeals with CESTAT for the past orders and is in the process ofliling an appeal 
before the Commissioner appenls for the recent order. The matter is pending ndjudioa1ion. 

KRIT: Demand for Non Payment of service tn.x on renting oflitouts nnd equipments Rs. I 16 million and Demand for Service tax on electricity nod water and irregular 
availrncnt of credit ofscrvic~ tax paid on input services Rs.93 million. It has filed an appeals wllh CESTAT for the past orders and is III the process of filing an appe,~ 
before the Commissioner nppeals for the recent order. The matter is pending adjudication. 

AvllcAd0 : (a) 111e SPV has received an order doted 31 January 2018 pronounced by the Commissioner (Appenls), co11finning 01e service lax demand of Rs. 7 million 
(excluding applicable interest Wld penalty thereon) on renting of immovable property services provided to tcnnnrs during the period April 2008 to Murch 201 1 lt hllS 
filed nn Appeal before the Customs, Central Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal. The matter is pending adjudication. 

(b) For the period Apnl 2011 to September 2011, Avacado hnd received a Show Cause cum Demnnd Notice dated 22 October2012 nllegmg non-p~yment of service 
tax of Rs. I million (excluding npplfcable interest and penalty thereon) on renting of immovable propcny services provided to tenants. Avacado hod filed 11s detailed 
reply on 24 December 2012. No funher concspondcnce hns been received in this case. 

For both the nbove marters,Avaoado hnd filed appliontions in Fonn SVLDRS-1 under the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019. Avacndo had 
received SVLDRS-3 with service ta.x demand m rcsp<:ct ofnbove ,mttcrs. Avocado had 1101 nccepred the demand und therefore thu umllcr remains under dispute. 

Cl1ston1.< duty dcrrumd Mt the time of debonding of assets from the Soflwnr-c 'rcchnology Parks of Tndia sghcme ( STl'I ) fbr lntimc Rs 16 million and KRIT Rs 18 
million. 



4 The SPV wise details of capital commitments are as follows: 

SPVs As at As at 

30June 2022 31 March 2022 

MBPPL 604 658 
Gignplex 1,785 2,379 
Sundew 121 166 
KRC Infra 2,814 3,378 
Horizonview 72 77 
KRIT 508 439 
Avacado 62 77 
lntime 141 164 

6,107 7 338 

5 Avacado 
a) A Suit has been filed in the year 2008 by Nusli Neville Wadia (Plaintifl) against lvoiy Properties and l lotels Private Lirl\itcd (Ivory) & Others which focludes AvAcnclo 

ns one of the Defendants inter nlia in respect of the land and the 'Paradigm' Industrial Park building of Avocado. The PlalntiffhAs prayed against Avacndo and the said 
Ivory restraining them from carrying out further construction or any other activity on the land (on which the building Paradigm is constructed), demolition and removal 
of the structures on the said land, appointment ofll Court Receiver in respect of the said land and Paradigm building, declaring the MOUs / Agreements entered into 
by Avacado with Ivory and the Plaintiff as voidable and having been avoided and rescinded by the Plaintiff and to be delivered up and cancelled, rcstrnming from 
alienating, encumbering or parting with possession of structures and restraining from dealing with, creating fresh leases / licenses or renewing lease / license in 
respect of the said Paradigm building and from receiving or recovering any rent/ license fee/ compensation in respect of the said leases/ licenses, deposiling a.II 1he 
rents in the Court, etc. The Court has not granted any ad-Interim relief to the Plaintiff. Avacado had filed its reply to the said Suit denying the allegations and praying 
that no interim relief be granted to the Plaintiff. Avacado in its reply had also taken up a plea that issue of limitation should be decided as n preliminary issue before 
any interim relief could be granted to the Plaintiff. Pursuant to the Plnlntitrs application for expedited hearing of the case, the Hon'ble High Court Bombay vide 
Order dated 19/09/2013 and 20/09/2013 framed the issue of limitalion under section 9 {A) of Code of Civil Procedure to be tried as to jurisdic1ion for lhe 
maintainability of the suit and directed the Plaintiff to file an affidavit in lieu of exarnination in chief of the first witness on or before 17 October 2013. Pursuant to lhe 
PlninliO's SLP in the Supreme Court chnlleng!ng the Orders ofU1c Hon'blc High Court dnled 19/09/2013 and 20/09/2013, the J-lon'blc Supreme Court vidc its Order 
dated 08/10/2013 slayed the operation of the aforesaid Orders and l\trther proceedings in the High Court Suit No. 414 of 2008. Tbcreaflcr the Hon'ble Supreme Court 
by its Order dated 25 AUb'IJSI 20 I 5 has referred the said SLP to n three Judge Bench to be posted along with SLP ( C) No. 22438 of 201 S. The SC by its Order dated 
12.12,2018 disposed off 01e snid SLP as infructuous in view of delelion of Sec1ion 9A of the Civil Procedure Code by the Maharashtra Act 61 of2018 on 29. 10.2018. 
In view of 01e subsequent amendment by the State of Maharashtra to the said provisions, pursuant to the Petitioners application to restore the SLP by cancelling the 
Order dated 12.12.2018, by Judgement dated 4.10.2019, three Judge Bench of the SC held that u/s 9A CPC (Maharashtra) question oflimitation cannot be decided as 
o preliminary issue ns to j~risdfction. 1"he Supreme Court of India, by its order dated May 6, 2022 disposed off the SLP relying on the judgernenl of the three judge 
bench of tl1e Supreme Court dated Oclol>e, 4, 2019. Tho notice of rnotion fo, inlerhn relicf llrld the Suit are pending for the final hearing before the High Coun. 

Based on an advice obtained from on independent legal counsel, lite management is confident thal Avucado will be able to suitably defend and the impact, if any, on 
1he Ind AS financial slatements can be determined on disposal ofthenbove Pelition and nccordingly, !nd AS Financial statements of Avncndo have been prepared on a 
going concern basis. Further, the Plaintiff, through his advocales & solicitors, had addressed leller doled 13 Februa,y 2020 including to Mindspnce REIT, the 
Manager, 1he Trustee, 1he Sponsors, Avacndo, Mr. Rav, C. Raheja, Mr. Neel C. Raheja, Mr. Chundru L. Ruhejo, Ivory Properties and K RaheJ• Corp Pvtttd., 
expressing his objection 10 the proposed Offer and any actions concen11n11 I.he building Paradigm localed at M!ndspaoe Malad proJect. The allegallons 1111d avermen1s 
made uy lhe Pla1111iff llave been re•ponded and denied by the addressees, through their advocates & sotwnors. No fulll1~1 corru5pondcucc has been received. 

ll) Pursuru11 to the levy of service tax on renting of immovable properties given tbr c-0mmerc1al use, retrospec11vely with ollect lrom I June :WO/ by the t·rnance Act, 
2010, some of the lessees 10 whom Avacado has let out its premises, have based on a legal advice, challenged 1hc sold levy and, 1n1er-alia, ils retrospcc1ive applicution 
and withheld payment of service tax to Avncndo, based on certain judicial pronouncemcnls and stay orders granled by appropriale High Courts from tune to time. 
Further in this regard the Hon' ble Supreme Court hns passed an imcrim order dated 141h October, 2011 in Civil appeal nos. 8390, 8391-8393 of' 201 l and in 
compliance of which, such lessees have deposi1cd with appropriate authority in 3 installments, SO% of the amount suc.h service tax not so paid by them upto 30 
Scplember 2011 and have furnished surety for the balance 50% of th<> amount of service lax and which umou111 has also been deposlled by them wilh the authorillcs. 
further as per Hon'blc Supreme Court's Order dntcd 5th April 2018 in Civil Appeal No. (s) 4487/2010, the matter is deferred un1il disposal of the issues pending 
before the nine judges Bench in Mineral Arca Development Authority and others. 

In view of the above arid subject to lhc final orders being passed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court In the nforcsaid appeals, there may be a co111ingent liabilily on 
Avacado in r11Spect oflnterest payable on account of the delayed payment of service tax, which an1ount would be recoverable from the respective lessees by Avocado. 

6 KRC Infra 
a) In respect of the projecl nt V11lage Khamdi, Pune, a special civil suit is filed. The suit filed by Ashok Phulchand Bhandari against Balnsal1eb Laxman Shivale and 29 

others [n respect of inter alin 011 undivided share adrneasurini; 44. 15 Ares out of the land bearing S. No 65 Hissa No. 3 for declarntlon, sp~c!fic performance, injunction 
and other reliefs. Neilher Gere Developments Privute Limited nor KRC Infrustructure and Projects Private Limited rs a pnrty 10 lhe aforementioned suit nnd neither of 
lhem hnve been joined as parties to the civil suit or Gere Developments Privnte Limited nor KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited hove filed any 
inlervention application. There are no orders passed in the malter affecling the suit lends or the development thereof or restmlnmg the trnnsfur or developmenl of the 
aforesaid land in ar1y mw,ner whatsoever. The matter is currently pending 



b) 

7 
aJ 

hi 

c) 

H 
a) 

Snmswa1ibai Malhari Gaikwad (de-ceased) /"Plm1111 lr') 1hrough hor heir has liled special civil su,1 no 2040 or 20!1 ("202 1 Suit") against Yashwunl Punaj i Pathare & 65 others 
1 '·Defendan1s") before the Civil Judge, Senior Division, Punc ("Coun") seeking inter alia prelimmmy decre<l of panilion for I/5th L1ndiv1ded share of the Plaintiff 111 the s,111 
lands mcluding inter aha pon ion of land bearing Survey No 6513 on which Gcra Commcrzone Kharadl is situated, cancclla1ion of sale deeds. declaration, permanent 111j unc1ion 
and several other reliefs KRC lntrns1ruc1urc & Projects Private Limited is 1101 a pany 10 lhc ~021 Su,1 and lllnhcr. no summons from the Courl have been received by KRC 
lnfraslruclurc & Projects Private Limited till date. Gera Developments Pmate Limi ted and Gera Resorts Priva1c Limited i e. Defendant No. 15 & 16 in lhc said suit have liled 
!heir wntlen s1a1ement and an Applicallon for reJCCllon ofpla1111 011 the grounds mcn1ioncd 1here1n. The mailer 1s currently pending. Gem Dcvelopmcn1s Pn vn1c Limited ("Gcra 
Developmen1s") and Gcra Rcsons Private Limited r ·Gera Resons'"), 1wo or lhe defendants in lhe maller have filed an application for rejection of plain! under Orde.r VII Ruic 11 
of Code of Civi l Procedure, which application was rejcc1ed by the Coun by way of a11 order passed on May, 05, 2022 Thereafter. on June 22, 2022 Gera Developmerus and Gera 
Resons have filed a wri nen s1atcme111 111 the mailer On June 11. 2022 the Plaint,IT has filed an applicaiion under scc1io11 151 of Code ofC,vtl Procedure seeking fnJunclion 
ag;iinst cenain Defendants from crcaling 1h1rd party nghts by way ot sale, 1101 to carry out constr11c1ion or development activilics. The mailer ,s currently pending. 

MBPPL 
Pursuani 10 1he demerger and vesl ing or lhe Comrnerzonc Undert.1kmg of K RaheJa Corp Pvl Ltd. (KRCPL), in MBPPL, MBPPL is the owner to the exlent of88. I 6 % undivided 
nght title and interest in 1he land bearing S. No 144, 145 Ycrnwadn, Pune whicll is compnsed in lhtl said Undenakmg, '·Shrimant Chha1rapa11 Udaynn Ra1e Bhosale ("the 
Plaintifi') has filed a Special Civi l Suit bearing No 133 or 2009 111 the Coun of Civil Judge. Senior Div,s,on Pone against the erstwhile land Own~r Shri Mukund Bhavan Trnsl 
( who had en1r11s1cd development rights 10 MBPPLJ ond 1hc Stotc of Mnhamslnrn, clmming to be lhc owner of lhe said land. The Hon'ble C11un wm; pleased to reJCCI lhc 
A(lplit~ti<>n fnr 3111en1,hnr.nt of plnint r.led \)}' lhe Plmnt,JT anl.i allow 1he Third Party AJJplica1,ons on 14 11 20)6 The Plninliff has filed 1wo writ pc1i1io11s bcariny No5 
4415/2017 and 4168/2017 m 1he Bombay High Court chnllengmg 1hc nforesmd orders passed on 14 11 20 16. The matter was 1runsferred lo anmhcr Court for admin islrmivc 
reasons and adjourned on severnl occasions for compliance of the order by 1he Plainliff. On Slh March 2018 1he Advocate for 1he Pla,miff filed a purshis on record slating Ihm 
since he does nol have any instruc1ions m the matler from the Plaintiff, the Vakala1numa 1s being withdrawn by 111111 and the mailer was posted on 20th March 2018. On 20111 
March 1018 1hc Hon 'ble Coun was pleased 10 adJoum the mailer ult 22nd June JOI 8 since the Advocute for 1he Plaintiff had 1v,thdrawn the Vakalotnama and lhe Plamt,ffwas 
1101 represented by any Advocate Wm Pctit,on Nos. 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 tiled rn 1he Hon' ble !lorn bay High Coun challcng111g the orders daled 14th Novemher 20 16 by 
Shrimant Chatrapnll Udayllllmjc Bhosolc agoinsl Sim, Mukund Bhovnn Tnisl and 01hers came up for hearing on 28 November 2017 wherein lhe Advoca1e for lhe Per11ioner 
undertook to serve lhe copy of the peti1io11 on 1he Respondent No 2 i e S1a1c of Maharashtra and the Hon'ble High Court was pleased 10 adjourn the same till 16.01 2018, 
26.02 2018, 22.06 2018. On '.!:?..06 20 18 the Advoea1c for tho Defendan1 No I filed u purshis staling lh.n the Defendant No. I (a) expired mailer was funher adjourned 1111 
2~. I 0, 18, 26.11 18.21.12.18, 01.02.2019. 25.03.2019 and 15.04.20 19, 18.06.2019. 27 08 . .2019. I 9 09.2019, On 19 09.2019 lhe mouer hn.s been smyed by the Hon'hle Coun and 
further pos1ed on 11 11.'.!019 for compilnnce of the order dated l •I.I 1.2016 by the Plain11n: The mnncr has heen stayed under Sec IO uf Code of Civil Procedure. On 07 0~ 2020 
the mauer has bl.'CI\ further adJourned 1ill I 1.06,2020. On I L06 2020 the mauer was tunher adJoumed 1111 11.092020 and lhc same hos now been funhcr adjourned 1111 
0-U 2 2020 On 04.12.20 lhe mailer was further adjourned 1111 24.02_:! I nnd was 1hcreancr posled 011 14 11.21 for steps. On 24 11.21 the mauer has been fun her adJoumcd lill 
I ltOI .202:!. On 18.0 I 22 mauer adjoumed tu 14 03.22 and thereafier to 17 08 22 for steps Both 1he Writ Pe1i11ons were pos1ed on 21 09 18. 11 10 18, 22.10 IR und l\mhcr 
pos1ed on I 0.06 19 for Admission The mailers came on boarJ on 2006.20 19, I~- ' I 20 I 9, 15.0 UO I 9 and ~ I 02 10 I 9. As per lhe CMIS Wril Pc1i1ion No. 4-115/2017 was last 
posled on 27 03,2020 and is yel 1101 !isled. As per the CM IS Writ Pe1111on No 4268/2017 was last posted on 27 03.2020 and lhereafler 0 11 23.07.20 for Admission and 1s vet 1101 

listed In 1hc managcmen1·s view. as per legal advice. considering 1he mailer and the facts, 110 provision for any loss : l1ab1l11y is presently required to be made 

MRPPI is s11hJeCI 10 other k~nl proceed mg:; ""ti drums. which have ansen in the ordinnry cour~c of business MRPPI '< munugemenl dt1e, nut 1~(1S01•~l>lv ewe~t that these legal 
uc11011s. wh~n uh,mmelv roncluded and de1ern11ned. will hJve a material nnd 11dverse clfec1 on MllPl'L s resulis of operat1c,ns ur 1,11a11c,al cunt1,11un, 

MBPPI. received a co111mun1ca11on (alleged remmder) from Pune Munrc,pnl Corp(lr.!l1011 1 PMC) demanding an amount or Rs.157 m1ll1on ullegcdly due iron, MBPPL bused on 
,1hJ~c11011> hy rnlemal Jud1t repon ,11 Pone M11n1c1p,1I C11rp,m11mn MBPPI h,is suh11111tcd ti letter d,;n~ing all ullegallon of PMC ,lS MBJJf'L hru, nul lx:.:n ,.:r.eJ II llh ,11,y 
dwwnu,11 rclc11ed Ill th.: ,a,tl l'M( 1~1te1 <;ub,.:,1u.:111h M131'1'1 utlthes,.:u 1111e 111111c CllltlllllllllC!IIIIJfl ,1u,i11g that MBPPI. 11uutd I~ "' ~ pu,1llu1t lu submit thc11 (cpl\ UJ/011 
receipt llf th~ deia1I~ of J111ou111 demandL-d Js per their r~nl) ,,uh11111tcd which ~Ute, that if an)' prindpal outs1;111d111g i5 duc'n:co,~f!lhlc>, MBPl'l agrees 10 ma..~e tb,· swd pr>ym•:nt 
on,J soui.h1 detailed chtnfication on 111~ in1erest amounL lly leller daled 20.07_2019 10 MB PPL. PMC provided lhe copy of the aud,1 reporl to I\IIBPPL and requesttd MBPPL to 
prnvide ifs clarification~ 111 res peel of ubjec1iunabl~ i~sues and fumi.,h th<! ch;1llw1s in lieu of payment of the t~coverable 11moun1 By leuer doled 17 08 20::! I 10 1hc archi1ect finn 
anti anolher. PMC ,iu1~t1 thal 11 hu.s nol received any clanlicm,ons ,mu provided the challum, of amounts b~ a..~scssmg 111teres11her<!On and r"lJlllr"d subn11ssio11 of challan1rece1pt 
l()WUrds payment or an wnou111 of ( 183.60 m1 llio11 recovemble agamsl all obJeclionable issues. By 11s reply lc11cr dated 06 09.2021 10 PMC, MB PPL has again rcitcm1ed that lhc 
earlier PMC lell"r daled 04 02 2019 and the PMC 1.,11er daled 17 08 ::!0'.! I ate adtlre,sed to lhc wrong persons und 111fonncd PMC of the non-r~ceipt of relcvanl infbnnat,on and 
documents from PMC us reques1ed by MBPPL ~arher. By letter dmed 11.10.2021 to PMC. MBPPL replied stating chat the impugned challans, demands and notice arc 1llegnl, 
nul l and void and ultra vires; and likewise the acl of issuing the le11er dated 17.08.2021 1s ultra v1rcs and wnhout 1he aulhorily of law and called upon PMC lo withdraw th.: 
1111pugned challuns and feller forthwith. By lhe said letler MBPPL funh~r stated that if lhe challans and loller is not withdrawn and any further action is initiated in lha1 event lhc 
leUerdaled 11 I0.2021 may be trealed as a no11ce under section 487 of rhe Maharoshtm Munic1pol Corpora1ions Act, 1949 and under sec1ion 159 of The Maharashtra Regional 
and Town Planning Act, 1%6. Funher, without prejudice to the contentions raised 111 the r<!pl) and wi1hou1 admitting any liability 10 pay lhe amoun1 as per 1he impugned 
challans. MBPPL has subm,ued that, 111 order to resolve the conlfoversy. MB PPL is will ing 10 offer 10 pay in full and tinul senlemenl on all atct1un1s of all demands raised m 1he 
said chullans, a lumpsum one--llme amount of { 26.64 m11!1on without any hab1ilty for interest !hereon or for any Olhcr paymen!S relating 10 the subJecl nnd to provide no 
opponuni1y or hearing and furnishing clarifications. if required hy PMC. Subsequently. by feller da1ed March 10. 20'.!2 . PMC informed MBPPL thal it has not accepted lhe 
cheque issued by MB PPL v1dc its lener doled January 25, .:WJ1 und n:qucsted Ml~PPL IO issue d~rntmd dmJl for lhe amoun1 as per the Challans and make lhe payment 10 PMC ut 
the earliest. On Apnl 7. J02:? MB PPL submitted a reply/ letter to PMC enclosing a demand draft as desired by the PMC. for an amount or { 26.64 million towards 1he paym~nt 
ru, s.:I oul 1n MBPPL s curlier communicnuons. V1de feller tinted July I I , 2022 PMC returned MBPPL ·s demand drul1 while demanding enlirc dc111anded pa)111enl. MBPPI. v1de 
11s letter dmed July 11. 2022 read wnh MBPPL le11er dated July 21, 1012 re111111cd 1hc enmc de111a11ded payment ofRs. l0,13,57,:!39,- unde, pro1cs1. MRPPI. on July 18, ~022 
also paid an amounl of Rs 60.93,225/- be11ig Chnllan Late Fees and recorded 1h1s paymem under MBPPL lcllcr dated August 8, 20n. 

lntlmc. Su11rtcw u111l KRIT 
In accordance with the Scheme or arrangement which -.m; approved by lfon"ble Amlhra l'rndesh lhgh Co1.1n on 23 March 2007 the lndus1r1al !'ark II nnd 111 undenakmgs of 
K RllhcJn IT Pork (Hy\lcrabnd) L11111ted (formerly known as K RaheJn If Park (Hyderabad) Private Limited\ 1"1ZRIT0 "JV Company") have been demcrged and ves1ed in the 
Company 1>11h cffec1 from 1he oppo1111ed dmc , c. 0 l September 1000. 
ln11me and SunJcw had ncquired the lnnd al Mndbapur, Hyderabad ru. pan of tho demcrgcr scheme from J,,,RI I I he said land ism hou or 1hc c111ploymen1 opponurnuc, lo be 
ge11erated by K.RIT and others. 
The linbi111y. lfan) , arising due to 1hc obl1ga1ion 10 crca1e 1hejob oppommitics for the cmirc larger land of which the above propeny is a part. con1inues 10 be re1ained by KRIT 
as at 31 March 2022. 
During the year ended 3 1 Mnrch 20 16. relangana Slate lndus1ri~I Infrastructure Corpomuon Lm11ted (''TSIIC"J has re1umed the orig11ml Bank GuarJntcc.s 10 K.RIT and also 
co11firrncd to the ban~ !hat TSIIC will not claim any amount from the bank u11dor 1hc Bank Guarnn1ces and the bank ,s relieved ofils obl1ga1ion. Hence, no liab1lily is recognised 
towards 1he pncc of1he p/01 of land 



b) An uncondi1ional obligation to pay amounts due to Andhra Pradesh Industrial h1frastruc1ure Corporation Limited ("/\PIIC") 111 respect of APIIC's cla,ms of losses due to any 
difference in values pertaining to sale transac1ions of1hc" proJccl undenakcn by KRIT Losses mcurred by the GovernmcntlfSIIC 11111s JV Company, if any, will be paid in ful l by 
K Raheja Corp Pvt L..td and it has fornished to the JV Company 111 wri1ing agreeing and admi11111g liabi lity to make such payment to GovenunentffSIIC. 
The shareholding pattern of the Government/TS I IC in 1he JV Company and 1be Company w,11 m1t change as a result of conversion from Priva1c to Publrc. the Government 1 

TSIIC equity of 11% \11)1 remain the same in the Company and ;ill 1hc demerged companies and furt her 111 future, Government / TSIIC will not be asked to infuse fun her cash to 
mninmon 11s I I 0, , slake. 

9 Gigaplcx 
Regular Civil Suil had been filed before 1he Hon. Civil fudge (.LDJ Ya~h1 a1 Central Business Dismct by an Education Socie1y !"the Plain1if1") who is da1mini; righls in exostini; 
school s1nmure, claiming its area as 500 square me1ers and i1s existence since more than 30 years. seeking an injunc1ion 1101 to dispossess him, SPY has filed i1s reply opposing 
the Pluintifrs prayers. Alter hearing lhc panies, the 1-lon"hle Judge a1 lhe Vashi Coun had rejected 1he Plaintiffs lnj1onc1ion Applicalion by Order dated 20"0R 18 (Order)" 
Thcrcaller the Plam1itT has filed on appeal in Thane Distnc1 Coun" The Plaintiff's Appeal filed in Thane Dis1rict Cour1 is s1ill pending. it's next dale is '.!8.09.22 for Arguments 
m Appellant's Applicalions for inJunc1ton and slotus quo. In managcme111 voew, the estimate of liability arising out of the same 1s remote, no provision hns been taken 

IU KRIT 
A Writ pet111on has been lilcd against KRIT m the High Courl of Judicature of Andhru Prndesh at Hyderabad with respecl 10 specific use of the land admeasuring 4.500 square 
yards, cannarked as plot 18. Pursuant 10 ot, the Coun h11s passed an Order for no conS\fuc11on ac1iv1ty on the said pl01 of land un11I funner orders or the Coun KRIT had tiled ,ts 
reply and also sought e~pedilious hearing. The mailer ,spending for disposal by 1he High Cour1 Based on the facts of the case, the m.umgemenl does not expect any liability and 
is or 1he opinion that no provision needs 10 be made 

t I Oorizonview 
W S. lnduslncs (lnd,a} Limilcd ("WSflL") hus fi led a writ petitton before 1hc Madms I ligh Coun against lhe District Revenue Officer Thiruvallur ("DRO") and P Jeyapal Slo R. 
Perumalsamy ("JCyapal~l seekmg directions for quashong a 11011cc dated M11y 25.2017 issued by the ORO and Additional D1stnc1 Judge ("Notice"). The Notice was issued by 1he 
DRO cum Add11tonnl District Jud"ge on a complaint presented by Jcyapal alleging thut lands were hnnded over to WS IIL on cena111 conditions. and instead of using such lands for 
t0mmon purpose, WSIIL has bean using the lands for commercial purpose. WSIIL is the crs1whilc owner of the land, a poniQn of which was suhsequenlly sold and transferred 
by WSIIL to ccr1n1n entilies" Honzonvicw has been granted developmen1 rights over such land. The Madrns High Coun, by its order da1ed June 5. 1017, has granted in1cnm stay 
The mailer is pending befor"' the Madms High Coun. Neither RPIL Signalling Sys1cms Limited (the present owner of lhe land at Porur being developed by lloriz.onvicw 
Propenoes Pnvate L,mtted) nor Honzonvoew Propen1es Private Limited ,s a party 10 the nforcme,11ioned sutl 

1.2 Sundew 
The Oflice or the Land Reforms Tribunal Cum Dcpllly Collcc1or & S1JCconl Grnde R"'venue Oivi~oonal Officer. Atlapur("Tribunal'') hud, by le11er dated ~7 August ~001/, sough I 
111forma1io11 from Sundcw under Section 8(:?) of the Andlira Pradesh Land Reforms (Ceiling on Agnculture I luldings) Ac1, I 97J ('"APLRAC") on respect oflhe en1tre land parcel 
a1 Mindspacc Madhapur. The Revenue Depanmcnt oft he Govcrnmenl or Andhra Prade~h forwarded a Memo dated 5 Septembor .2009 for fumoshong of ccna,n onlilrmatmn to the 
Govcmmcnl of Andhra Pradesh. 1nelud111g mforma11011 rcqucsled by lhe lct1erdnled ~7 August .2009"Sumle,v had flied a detailed response on 30 Scp1ember .2009 staling tha1 (aJ 
the land 11as ongonoll) grn111ed h) 1hc Governmem of Andhra Pradesh t,1 K RahcJn IT Pur~ l l)dernhad l imitcd (KRJT) which was a jnonl venture colllpillly w11h \ndhm Pmde•h 
Industrial lnl'rastrueturc Corporation L1m1tcd. (b) the land \\as vested on Sunde,- by way or demeq;er order of !he /\ndhrn Pradesh High Court. (c) 1he land has bt!iln declar~d as 
an SEZ and os 1heretore cxemp1 from 1he local ln\1s. 1d) 1hc land was sh01\11 as a non-agncul1uml land m 1he master plun ofl fyderabad and os therefore not land· covered under 
the APLRAC l'he lnbunol issued a tinal 11nlice lo Sundew 111 January .20 IJ re4ues1ong to subm,1 n ucdom1,or, for full and corrccl pan,cular, llf 1he l11nds ht!ld The matter 1s 
.:urrentl\ pend101t he fore the Tribunal Fu1un: cash flow, on respect tlfahovc mailers ,lfl! J~tenninabl~ onlv un recdr1t of'i ud)!cments 'decision~ fl<'nd1nl( at ,·anou~ 
thrnm~/~11,bor,llr~ 

43 Assessment of possibli, impact rc~ulling from Covid•l9 pandemic 
11,e M111J~1~11·c Group ha., con,,Jereu th" po,soble efic;cts thut "'"> result fro111 !he p•11d~m,c reh111ng to COVJD-111 (lO the ,1perat11in, of th, M111dspace Group and ,u1f\11t1i 
.imuunt~ ul pmpeny r,!um anJ equipment, lnve,;tmcm l·n•}h'.rt) 1nvcn1ones" r.:cc1vublo, unu 1.11hc1 as,c1' I Ire 1111,nd;puctl G,uup,.,, u( 1J1e ,111tc 111 11pp1oval uf t!u,,c ,"1111dc,1,cJ 
cunsolid~ll!d Hmmciol ,utcment,,, b~ 1:sc~ internal Jnd ·"tcmal ~uun:J~ ofinform:tllon 10 ,.ktcrminc th~ expect~ future impart <>fCOYID I<> pandemic cm the- pcrr~rmum:e of 
the Mindspace Group The Mindspace Group based on currdnl estimates expccls !he carrving amount of the ussets to b.l recovered and fo1r value of lhc assets to be rca~onable. 
I luwev~r, du~ lu the uvolvong nulure 11f the pundemic ,1nJ its rcsp,m~c b)- vo,iou, government authnrllic$ the Monugemem wil l co11li11ue to mn111tor deotllopmcnL~ to 1clcntrl') 
,ign11ican111npac1s" 1fany on ilw M1ndspacc Oroup·s opcrn11ons 

<14 Mana2emenl Fees• 
Pro11crlv Mun111!ement Fee 
Pursuant to the lnves1mcn1 Management Agreement da1ed 29 J1111c 2020 as amended, the Manager is en1ttled 10 fees® 3% of the lot.al r~nt ( lease and li1out} per annum of1he 
relevant property 1n respect to opermions, mmntenonce anu mnnagement or 1he SPYs, ns applicable. The fees has been detenmned 10 m~ t the ongoong cos1s of the lnvcstmenl 
Manager to undenake the ~rvices provided to the Sf>Vs. 
Property Management fees for the quaner ended 30 June 2012 amoun1s to Rs" 99 Million (Rs_ 94 Million and Rs. 368 Million for the quaner and year ended JI March :?022). 
There are no changes dunng the penod m 1he methodology for computu11on of fees pmd to the Manager 
Support Scn•icfS Fee 
l'ursuanl to the lnves11nen1 Management Agreement dated 1'1 June l0lU HS umended, the Manager 1s cnullcd to fees ;gi 0 s•,o or the 1otal rent ( kase r111d Ii tout) per annum of the 
relevant propeny on respecl In general adm1111stra1ton and olher support service of the SPYs, os applicable The lees has bc~n determoned to meet the ongoong cos1s of lhe 
l11vcstoncnt Manager to undena~e 1he scrvrces provided 10 the SPYs 
Suppon Managcmcnl fees for the quarter ended 30 June 2012 11mounts 10 Rs l<J Mill,011 (Rs 18 Mllloun and Rs" 68 Million for the quuner and year ended )I March 1022)" 
There ure no changes dunng the penod on the mc1hodology for co111pu1ation or fees pnod to the Manager 
J{EIT Manuaemcnt Fees 
Pursuant to the lnves11n~n1 Management Agreement dated 21 November 2019, Investment Manager is entolled to fees@ 0 5% of REIT Net Distnbu1able Cnsn Flows which shnll 
t>e psyahk either in cash or m Units or a cornbmutoon of both, nt the dt,cM1lln or lhe Investment Manager The fees hus b~en dctermm~d for ondenakong 11m11agcmc111 ol 1hc 
REIT 11nd its mvestmen1s" The REIT Management f~es accrued for the quaner ended 30 June 2022 umounts 10 Rs" 17 Million (Rs 16 Mo I hon and Rs 64 Mil hon for 1hc quarter 
~nd year ended 31 March '.!022) There are nro changes during the rerrod on the mc1hodolo1,,') for comp111n11on of fees p~id m the lnvc~tment Manager 



MlNDSl'ACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/R EIT/ 19-20/003 
Condennd Consolfdatrd Financial Stalenmll1 
Nolt-S to Acc:oun1J 
(All a1n1oun11 In Rs. million unlus 01hnwin stactJ) 

S Oelaill of utilisation of nroceed, ofNon-convcrtiblt" Debrnlurrs bnmJ by MBPPL are JU foltow1: 4 
Particular, 

R,e.fimmcing of th., existing bank bouowin1:1:s and repayment or existing shilreholdcrs' loans and payments of all f1..~, costs 
and expenses m relation to the lnue, in c;omplian(;.C. with the provisions of Applicable Law, 

Propo"d Ac1ua1 utili1111io11 
uliliullon µ1Ho 

30 June 2022 

4,900 4,900 

46 E■rnin~ Per Unll (EPU) 
Batio EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profil/(lon) for the period attributable to Mindspace REIT by the weighted average number of units outstaflding durlri~ 
tho period- DiltJted EPU amount.ll arc calculated by dividing tho profil nttributable to Mlndspaeti Re.IT by the weighted avcnt1:e number of units outstanding during the 
period 

ParticqJ11rt For the qmu1rr rndt41 For the quartor ~ndcd For the qWl.ner ended ror the ye11r ended 

10 J,rn, 1012 31 Mar 2022 JO June 2021 3 l M•rch 2022 

(Uooudilod) (Unnudil«l) (U03udilcd) (Audited) 

Profit after tax for calculating basic 1,182 1,262 414 4,238 

and dlluted EPU anribumblc 10 Mindspacc 
RJ!\T 

Weighted average number of uni Ls 593,018,182 593,018,182 S93,018,182 593,018,182 

E!1mlop Prr Unit 
• BHic (Rupee,/unit) 1.99 2. IJ 0,70 1.15 

• Diluttd IRuooes/unit\ • 1,99 2.\3 0.70 7.15 

• MindJpace REJT does not have 1ny outstanding dilutive unill. 

UmHiliscd 

.JHUOUl11 ill at 
30 Junr. 2022 



MI NDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
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Notes lo Accounts 
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47 Financial instruments 
A The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as below: 

Financial assets 

Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ('FVfOCI') 
Investments in equity instruments 

Amortised cost 
Investments - non-current 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other bank balances 
Other finllncia! assets 

Fair value through Profit or Loss ('FVTPL') 
Investments - current 
Total assets 

Fimmcial liabilities 
Borrowings 
Lease Liabilities 
Security deposiu 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 
Total llabllltics 

As at Asat 
30 June 2022 31 March 2022 

0 0 

29 23 
351 210 

3,237 J,478 

209 121 
3,778 3,951 

15 
7 619 7783 

47,120 44,480 
131 127 

8,138 7,874 

859 705 
2,690 3,240 

58938 56426 

The M1111agen,ent considers thnt the carrying amount of the above linnndal assets and habllities Approximates to their fnlr value. 

ll. lllensurement of fair values 
The section explains the judgement and cstimntcs made in dete1111ining the fair values of the financial instruments that are: 
u) recogmscd and 111Cll!luted at fair value 
!,) , " J , ➔• J l f. ~ , irh r,, 1 .. -"' 1; I~ <I In 1h flnonciaJ •falrm-n•-

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in dctc1111ining fair value, the Group hw; chissified its financial instruments into the three levels 
prescribed 11ndcr the accounting standard An explanation of each icvol is mentioned below; 

Fair v•luc hiernrclly 
• Level I inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for ldent1cai assets or hab1lmes that the entity cnn access at the measurement date; 

• Level 2 mputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level I, that nre observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and 

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liablllly. 

The following table presents the tilir value rr.casurcment hierarchy of asset! 1111d linbilitics measured al fair value on recurring basis as at 30 June 2022 

F'ioanctal Instruments 

QuantiUltive disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 Juno 2022: 

Particulars 

Financial assets measured nt fair vuluc: 
l'VTOCI lina11cial investments: 
FVTOCI financial investments: 

C Trunsfen betweeu Level I, Level 2 and Level 3 

Date orvaluation 

30/06/2022 
31/03/2022 

Total Level I 

There were no transfers between Level I, Level 2 or Level 3 during the quarter ended 30 June 2022 and year ended 3 1 March 2022. 

D Determloalioo orrair values 

Level2 Level J 

0 
0 

Pair values of financial assets nnd liabilities have been detem1ined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on tl1e following methods. When 11pplioable, 
further mformntlon about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability, 

i) The fair value of mutulll funds are based on price quotations at reporting date. 
ii) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be equivalent lo their carrying values. 

iii) The fair values of borrowings at fixed rates are considered to be equivalent to present value of the future contracted cashflows discounted at the current market 
ra.te. 
!v) Security deposits accepted ure measured at fair value based on the di:.<:ounted cash 0ow method considering the discount rate determined as the average 

borrowing rate. 
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48 Segment informutlon 
Primnry segment informntion 
The primary reportable segment is business segment, 
Business Segment 
The Mindspace Group is organised into the two operating divisions - 'real estate' and 'power distribution', which arc detennined based on the internal organisation 
and management structure of the Mindspace Group and its system of internal financial reporting and the nature of its risks and its returns. The Governing Board of 
the manager has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM). CODM evaluates the Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based 
on analysis of various performance indicators of the Group as disclosed below. 
Real estate 
Real estate comprises development and management of projects under Special Economic Zone (SEZ), [nformation Technology Parks and other commercial assets 
.The Group has its projecVpropcrties in Mumbai Region, Hyderabad, Pune and Chcnnai for development and management of commercial SEZ, IT parks and 
commercial assets including incidental activities. 
Power distribution 
The state power regulator has token on record the SEZ developer MBPPL, Gigaplex, Sundcw and KRC Infra as Deemed Dis1ribution Licensee for Power. The 
approved SPVs being Deemed Distributor, supplies power lo cuslomers within the notified SEZ. 

For thequnrter ended JO June 2022 
Real esta te Power Unallocable Inter segment Totnl 

Particulars distr ibution eliminntlon 

Segment revenue 4,642 235 . (64) 4,8 13 

Segment result 2,961 29 (127) . 2,863 

Less: Finance cost 96 - 623 - 719 

Add: Interest income/ other income I - 44 . 45 

Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 2,866 29 (706) - 2,189 

Less: Exceptional [terns . . . - . 

Profit/ (loss) before lax 2,866 29 (706) . 2,189 

Less: Tax . . 905 - 905 

Profit/ (Loss! after tax 2,866 29 l1,611l . 1,28'1 

For the quarter cnclcd 31 M.arch 2022 
Reol estate Power Unallocnble Inter segment Tot"I 

Purticulnrs dMribution elimlnution 

Sei;meot revenue 4,567 142 . (43) 4,666 

Segment result 2,798 22 (133) . 2,687 

Less Pinancc co9t 129 t 619 . 749 

AJJ r .t t . " '()~ 
~ .. t 7Q 107 

Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and ta.x 2,696 22 (673) - 2,045 

Less: Exceptionnl [tems (refer note 538) 489 . . - 489 

Profit I (loss) be(orc lax 3,18S 22 (673) . 2,534 

Less: Tux - - 1,198 l,19il 

Profit/ I Loss\ 11fter tat J,IIIS 2L (l,11711 - 1,336 

For the quarter ended 30 June 2021 
Real estate Power Unallocable Tnter segment Totnl 

Particulars distribution elimination 

Segment revenue 4,081 153 . (37) 4,197 

Segment result 2,656 28 (110) . 2,574 

Less: Finance cost 67 . 532 - 599 

Add: lnterest income/ other income 15 . 10 . 25 

Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 2,603 28 (632) . 1,999 

Less; Exceptional Items ( l.332) - . 0 {1,332) 

Profit / (loss) before tax 1,271 28 (632) - 667 

Less: Tax . . 28S . 285 

Profit/ (Loss) nftcr tax l ,271 28 (917) - 382 

For the year ended 31 March 2022 
Real estnte Power Unnllocnblc Inter segment Total 

Porticulars distribution elimination 
Segment revenue 17,061 598 . ( 158) 17,501 

Sei;ment result 10,803 108 (476) 10,43S 

Less: !'inance 1,;.:,st 338 3 2,303 . 2,644 

Add; [nterest income/ other income 64 2 129 . 195 

Prolil I (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 10,529 107 (2,650) . 7,986 

Less: Exceptional Items (refer note 55A and 558) (843) . . - (843) 

Profit/ (loss) before tax 9,686 107 (2,650) 7,143 

Less: TIIX - - 2,670 . 2,670 

Profit //Loss) after tu 9,686 107 (5,320) . 4,473 



For the Quarter ended 30 June 2022 

Other Information 
Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total 

Par ticulars distribution elimlna lion 
Segment assets 216,453 2,150 6,171 - 224,774 

Segment liabi lities 10,815 1,993 48,881 - 61,689 

Capital expenditure 1, 862 - - - 1,862 

Denreciation & amortisation 822 25 - - 847 

For the year' ended 31 March 2022 

Other lnrormntlon 
Real estate Power Unallocable lnter segment Total 

Particulars distribution elimination 
Segment assets 215,266 1,835 6,434 - 223,535 

Segment liabilities 10,863 1,685 46,275 58,823 

Capital expenditure 5,243 48 . 5,291 

Oeorec,auon & amortisauon 3,188 IOI - . 3,289 

Secondary segment information 
Mindspace Group's operations ore based in India and therefore the Group has only one geogrnphical segment - India. 

Segment accounting policies are in line with accounting policies of 1he Mindspace Group. In addition, the following specific accounting policies have been 
followed for segment reporting: 

Scgment revenue includes income directly attributable 10 the segment. 

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under respective reportable segment 

Revenue and expenses which are not allributable or allocable to segments hove been disclosed under 'Unallocable'. 

Borrowings and finance cost oflhe Group which ore not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under'Unallocable'. 

Revenue from major customers: 
Mindspace Group has no customer thnt represents more than 10% of the Group's revenue for all the reporting periods (i.e. for the quarter endcJ JO June 2022, 31 
March 2022, 30 June 2021, and for 1he ye.it ended 3 l March 2022) 
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49 Non-controlling interest 

Name of the entity 

Parent 
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 

SPVs 
fnttme Properties Limited 
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
Consolidntecl net assets/ Tola I comprehensive income 

Name of the entity 

Parent 
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 

SPVs 
lntlmc Properties Limited 
K. R:ihejn IT Park (Hyderubad) Limited 

Sundcw Properties Limited 
Con.ulidakd nc. w..:u!Toul ,v111pl'\'.ho...,iu: i ll\'.llltK 

Name of the entity 

Parent 
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 

SPVs 
lntime Properties Limited 
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
Consolldnled oel assets/ Total comprehensive income 

Name of the entity 

Parent 
Mindspnce Business Parks REIT 

SPVs 
lntime Properties Limited 
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Lim11ed 
Sundew Properties Limited 
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 

As al 30 June 2022 

As a % of consolidated 
net assets 

94.8% 

1.1% 
1.6% 
2.5% 

Amount 

154,653 

1,713 
2,666 
4,053 

163,08S 

As al JI March 2022 

As a % of consolidated 
net assets 

Amount 

For the Qualier ended 
30 June 2022 

Share in lola l comprehensive income 

Asa% of 
cousolidaled total 

comprehensh•e 
income 

92.1% 

1.9% 
1.9% 
4.0% 

For the Qua lier ended 
JJ Mnrch 2022 

Amount 

1,182 

25 
25 

52 
1,284 

Share in total comprehensive income 
Asa ¾of 

consolidated total 
comprehensive 

income 

Amount 

94.8% 156,205 94.5% 1,262 

11 % 
1.6% 
2,So/o 

1,736 
2,717 
4,054 

As 111 30 June 1021 

As 11 ¾ of consolidatecl 
net assets 

94.8% 

1.1% 
1.7% 
2.4% 

100¾ 

Amount 

160,592 

1,826 
2,903 
4,109 

169,430 

As at 31 March 2022 

As a ¾ of cousolldated 
oet assets 

94.8% 

11% 
1.6% 
2.5% 

100% 

Amount 

156,205 

1,736 
2,717 
4 ,054 

164,712 

1.7% 
1.3% 
2.5% 

J<"or the Qtrnlier rmJe,I 
30 Juue2021 

23 
18 
H 

S hare lo total comprehensive income 

Asa ¾of 
consolidated rotal 

comprehensive 
income 

108.5% 

6.2% 
(29.2%) 

14.5% 
100% 

For the ycnr entled 
31 Mnrcb 2022 

Amount 

414 

24 
(11 1) 

55 
382 

Share in totnl comprehensive income 

As a %of 
consolidated total 

comprehensive 
income 

9-1.7% 

Amount 

4 ,238 

93 
(50) 
/9 1 



The following table summarises the financial information relating to subsidiaries which have material Non-controlling interest. 

(i) Jntime Properties Limited 

Summarised balance sheet 

Particulars 

Non-current assets 
Current assets 
Non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Net assets 
NCI holdings 
Carrying amount of Non-controlling interest.s 

S umlllllrised statement of profit & loss and Cash now 
Particulars 

Total comprehensive income for the period 

Attributable lo Non-controlling interest 
Total comprehensive income for the period 

Cash nows rroml (used in) : 
Operating activities 
Investing activities 
Financing activities 
Net increase/ (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents 

(ii) K. Raheja IT P11rk (Hyderabad) Limited 

SummarbL'II b11lance sheet 

Parlicul»rs 

Non-current assets 
Current assets 
Non-current Habi1111es 
Current liabilities 
Net assets 
NCI hold inJ!S 
Carrying amount or Non-controlling intCl'llSI~ 

Sumnu1rlsed stntcmcnl of profit & loss and Cash now 
Purriculan 

Total comprehensive income for the period 

Allrlbutable to Non-controlling Interest 
Total comprehensive Income for the period 

Cnsh nows from: 
Operating activities 
Investing activities 
Financing activities 
Net increase in cnsh and cash ec1uivalcnts 

As at 
30 June 2022 

16,088 
238 

(173) 
(582) 

1S,571 
11.0% 
1,713 

For the period 
ended 

30 June 2022 

223 

2S 

2 1 
32 

{48) 
s 

As al 
30 June 2022 

26,424 
235 

(1,378) 
(),048) 
24,233 
11.0¾ 
2,666 

For tile period 
,nded 

30 June 2022 
228 

25 

22 
(35) 
(13) 
(26) 

Asat 
3 I March 2022 

16,410 
143 

(177) 
(593) 

tS,783 
11.0% 
1,736 

For the quarter For the quarter 
ended ended 

31 March 2022 30 June 2021 

212 216 

23 24 

27 17 

31 50 

-55 -63 

3 4 

Asat 
3 1 March 2022 

26,229 
232 

(702) 

(1,062) 
24,697 
11.0% 
2,717 

For the quarter For the quarter 
ended ended 

31 Muroh 2022 30 June 2021 

162 (1,014) 

18 (111) 

8 17 
73 42 

(72) (85) 
9 (26) 

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

849 

93 

86 
137 

(222} 
0 

For theycnr 
ended 

31 March 2022 
(457) 

(50) 

50 
249 

(296) 
3 



(iii) Sundew Properties Limited 

Summarised balance sheet 

Particulars 

Non-current assets 
Current assets 
Non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Net assets 
NCT holdings 
Carrying amount or Non-controlling iulerests 

Summarised statement or profit & loss and Cash now 
Particulars 

Total comprehensive income for the period 

Attributable to Non-ton trolling Interest 
Total comprehensive income for the period 

Cash nows from/ ( used iu) : 
Operating activities 
Investing activities 
Financing activities 
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents 

Total carrying amount or NCI 

As at 
30 June 2022 

47,908 
587 

(9,056) 
(2,598) 
36,841 
11.0% 
4,0S3 

For t he period 
ended 

JO June2022 

478 

S2 

90 
(7) 

(113) 
(30) 

8,432 

As at 
31 March 2022 

48,092 
464 

(9,398) 
(2,306) 
36,852 
11.0% 
4,054 

For the quarter For the quarter For the year 
ended ended ended 

31 March 2022 30 June2021 31 March 2022 

289 504 1,741 

33 55 191 

133 45 342 
(23) 9 (24) 

(85) (96) (355) 
25 (42) (37) 

8,507 8,838 8,507 



MJNDSPACE BUSINESS l'ARKS REIT 
RN:lN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts In Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

50 Related party disclosures 

A Parties to Miadspace REIT as at JO June 2022 (Refer Note I) 

SJ.No. l'articulars Name of Entitles 
I Trustee Axis Trustee Services Limited 

2 Manager K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

3 Anbee Constructions LLP 

Sponsors -
4 Cape Trading LLP 

,__L Mr. Chandru L. Raheia 

-L Mr. Ravi C, Rahein 
7 Mr. Neel C. Raheio - Mrs. Jvoti C. Raheia _L 

,_..2_ Ms. Sumati Raheia 7w.e.t: 30 September 2021) 

10 Capstan Trading LLP 

-
11 sronsors Grou1, Casa Mrufa Propcrtic: LLP 

-
12 Raghukool Estate Devclopcment LLP 

-
13 Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 

K. Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd. 

14 Spooson Group 

Promoters/Partners• Directors 
. 
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 

. 
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja 
Mrs. Jyoti C. RahcJa 
Ms. Sumati Raheja(w.e.f. 1 October2021) . 
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja . 
. -

. 
. -
. 

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja 

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 
Mr. Chandru L. Rr.heja 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja 

-
Mi.P ' r '1 J, J 
Mr. Neel C, Raheja 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja 

Mr. Ravi C. RaheJa 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja -
Mr. ChMdru I,. Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja 

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Jointly with 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja 

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr, Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with Neel C. RabeJn 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Rrunesh Valecha 

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with 
Ramesh 
Ranganthan(Appointed 

Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with w.e.f. 7th July, 2021) 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Sunil Hingornm(Appomtcd 

Anbcc Constructions LLP 
w.e.f. 7th July, 2021) 
Vinod N. Rohirn (Cessatfon 

Cape Trading LLP w.e.f?th July, 2021) 
Capstan Trading LLP 
Casa Maria Properties LLP 
Roghukool Estate Developcmcnl LLP 
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with 
Mr. Ramesh M Vrucch3 



Chandru L. Raheja 
Jyoti C. Raheja 

IS Ivory Propcny Trust 
Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Ltd 
Ravi C. Raheja 
Neel C. Raheja 
(all are trustees) . ---- Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with Ravi C. Raheja 

S11onsors Group 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with Neel C. Raheja 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Ran1esh Valccha 

Ramesh Ranganthan(w.c.f. 

16 Ge next Hardware & Parks Pvt. Ltd. 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with 20th April, 2021) 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja 
Chandru L. Raheja jointly with Jyoti C. Raheja, 
on behalf of the beneficiaries oflvory Property 
Trust 

I. Avacado Properties and Trading (India) 
Private Limited 

2 Gigaplex Estele Private Limited 
3. Horizonview Properties Private Limited 

17 Names o(SPVs/subsidiarics 
4. KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private 

Limited 
5. Inti me Properties Limited 
6. Sundcw Properties Limited 
7. K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
8. Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited. 

Governing Board 
Mr. Deepak Ghaisas 
Ms. Manishn Girotra 
Mr. Bobby Parikh 
Mr. Alan Miyasaki (resigned w.e.f. 27 December 
2021) 

Governing Board and Key Mr. Manish Kejriwal (appointed w.e.f 2 February 
(\,fanagcrial Personnel of the 2022) 

]8 Manager (K Raheja Corp Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
lnvestmeot l\1unugers LLP) Mr. Neel C. Raheja 

Kev M•1rnp<rfal Per,~onMI 
Mr. Vinod Rohira (Chief Executive Officer of K 
R~hejP c~rp Investment Man11&cl"I' LLP) 
M• Prerti Chh•do ({'hid Pin9nciol ()nicer ~r K 
Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP) 

8rookf1elds Agro & Development Privutc Limited 
Ccvnlcadc Properties Private L!mitcd (till ~4 
December 2021) 

Entitle., controllcd/joiutly 
Grange Hotels And Properties Private Limited 
Immense Properties Private Limited 

controlled by members or Novel Properties Private Limited 
19 Governing Board/Key 

Pact Real Estate Private Limited 
Managerial Personnel of the 

Paradigm Logistics & Distribution Private 
manager 

Limited 
Sustain Properties Private Limited 
Aquoline Real Estate Privnte Limited 
Feat Propertius Private Limited 
Carin Properties Private Limited 
Astcrope Properties Private Limited 
Contc111 Properties Private Limited 
Grandwcll Propenies And L~asinB Private 
Limited (till 12 November2021} 
Sundcw Renl Estnte Private Limited 
Gencovnl Strategic Services Privntc Limited 
Stemadc Biotech Private Limited 
Huriom lnftnfacilitfes Services Private Limited 
Mis Bol>bv Parikh & Associates 

• only whrn octmg collectively 



MINDSPACE BUSlNESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

50 Rela ted party disclosures 

B. Related parties with wbom tbe transactions have taken place during the period/ year 

Particulars 

Project Management Fees and Support Services Fee 
K ll;1hej11 Corp Investment Managers I LP 

lnvestment Management Fees 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

Trustee fee expenses 
Axis Trustee Services Limited 

Legal & professional fees 
Mis Bobby Parikh und Associates 

Rent expense 
Genext Hardware & Parks Pvt. Ltd. 

Purchase ol' assets 
Genext Hardware & Parks Pvt. Ltd. 

S ilting Fees 
Neel C Raheja 
Ravi C Raheja 
Vinod N. Rohira 
• h .... u Chh""d" 

Reimbur11cment of Expenses 
K R.-ihejo Corp lnvc:;lmenl Managers LLP• 

SnleofLand 
K. Raheja Corp Pvt. Ltd. 

Repayment of Security Deposits 
K. Raheja Corp Pvt. Ltd. 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2022 
(Unaudited) 

118 

17 

0 

0 
0 
0 

5 

For the quarter ended 
31 March 2022 

(Unaudited) 

II I 

16 

0 

0 
0 
V 

1,200 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2021 
(Unaudited) 

104 

16 

3 

() 

0 
0 
\) 

J 

For year ended 
31 March 2022 

(Audited) 

436 

64 

2 

5 

44 

0 
0 
0 

1,200 

*Includes fees paid to Mis Bobby Parikh & Associates amounting to Rs. I million for the Quarter ended 30 June 2022 and Rs.2.50 million for the year 
ended 31 March 2022. 



RKSREIT CE BUSINESS PA 
MlNDSPA 03 t · 

. /REIT/19-20/0 . 'al Statemen s RN:IN l"dated Fmanc1 d Conso 1 ) 

C ondense ts rwise stated Notes to Acco~n illion unless otbe 

(All amount:s:in:R::s·: m:~==~·~--------~========;~~;~===..:.'..'. As on 
r ty disclosures 3 1 March 2022 

50 R<lot<d P• A,°" 

t year end 30 June 2022 ----

Bala nces as a C. 

Particulars 

Other Receivable 

V' od N Rohira t Managers LLP m h . Corp lnvestmen K Ra CJ8 

r lnvestmen 
T 

ade Payables t Managers LLP 
K Raheja Corp. and Associates 
Mis Bobby Parikh 

Payable Sitting Fees. 
Neel C.Rahe~a 
Ravi C.RaheJa 
Prccti Chhed~ 
Vinod N Rohira 

. I Liabilities LLP Other Financm tmeut Managers 
h ·a Corp loves KRa CJ 

. ..., Deposit 
Sccuri._. Pvt Ltd. 
K. Raheja Corp . 

lllllltl LO"l}U~ t.o-~ponsor I . LLP 
b Constructions An ee • LP 

Cape Tradmg L 

0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

34 

0 

0 

0 

34 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

28 

0 
0 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 
51 In accordance with SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2021 and Other requirements as per 

SEBI circular (No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated 13 April 2018) for issuance of debt securities by Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) 

--- ..........__.___...,, .. _. ---·---- - ...,..,. -... ..................... ._ _...,...., \._.a..&a"' .... .. ..,,J, ___ ... &. ......... -•-'-l'--~-- ...... .... .., .. " .. ·--. _.._ ..... ._ .. 
Quarter ended Year ended 

Ratios 30-Jun-22 31-Mar-22 30-Jun-21 31-Mar-22 
a Security/ Asset cover (MLD Series I) (refer note a(i)) NA 2.13 2.20 2.13 

b Security/ Asset cover (NCD Series 1) (refer note a(ii)) 2.50 2.49 2.37 2.49 

C Security/ Asset cover (MLD Series 2) (refer note a(iii)) 2.36 2.36 2.34 2.36 

d Security/ Asset cover (NCD Series 2) (refer note a(iv)) 2.48 2.45 2.44 2.45 

e Security/ Asset cover (NCD Series 3) (refer note a(v)) 2.16 2.16 NA 2.16 

f Security/ Asset cover (Sundew I) (refer note a(vi)) 2.45 2.42 NA 2.42 
g Security/ Asset cover (MBPPL l) (refer note a(vii)) 2.35 NA NA NA 

b Debt-equity ratio (in times) (refer note b) 0.29 0.28 0.24 0.28 

I Debt service covera1!e ratio (in times) (refer note c) 0.68 3.52 3.71 2.77 

i Interest service coverag-e ratio (in times) (refer note d) 5.87 5.68 6.16 5.92 

k Outstanding redeemable oreference shares (quantity and value) NA NA NA NA 

l(i) Capital redemption reserve NA NA NA NA 

l(ii) Debenture redemotion reserve (Amount in Rs. millions) 170 109 NA 109 

m Net worth (Amount in Rs. millions) 163,085 164,712 169,430 164,712 

n Net profit after tax (Amount in Rs. millions) 1,284 1,336 382 4,473 

o(i) Earnings per unit- Basic (Rupees/unit) 1.99 2.13 0.70 7.15 

o(ii) Earnings oer unit- Diluted (Rupees/unit) 1.99 2.13 0.70 7.15 

p Current Ratio (in times) (refer note f) 0.44 0.32 0.27 0.32 

Q Long term debt to working capital (in times) (refer note h) (5.70) (2.94) (1.92) (2.94) 

r Bad debts to account receivable ratio (in times) (refer note I) 0.04 0.01 - 0.03 

s Current liability ratio (in times) (refer note i) 022 0.30 039 0.30 

t Total debt to total assets (in times) (refer note i) 0.21 0.20 0.18 0.20 

u Debtors Turnover (in times) (refer note k) 68.65 92.46 68.24 82.66 

V Inventorv Turnover* - NA NA NA NA 
w Operatillll Marrui (in %) (refer note m) ~· \)Sl ~E.o~ 75% 73% 77% 76% 

X Net Profit Margjn (in%) (refer note n) ,,<c,, V "-"..o\ 26% 28% 9% 25% 

y Sector Specific equivalent ratio* i .; ( l • • .Lil./' 7'J NA NA NA NA 

*Not Applicable (NA) l ~x P"V /7-\ 0 c,.,, 
~ .... 

~ * \ 
~ 



Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows basis condensed consoH fated financial statements (including non-controlling interest) :-

a(i) Securif;' / Asset cover ratio (MLD Series I)= Fair value of the secur;;d assets as computed by i_ndepen?ent value~/ (Outstanding ~rincipal am.9~t of.MLD 

a(ii) amount ofNCD Series I + Interest accrued thereon) 
a(iit Security/ Asset cover ratio (MLD Series 2) = Fair value of the secun:d assets as computed by independent valuer/ (Outstanding principal amount ofMLD 
a(iv) Security/ Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 2) = Fair value of the securro assets as computed by independent valuers/ (Outstanding principal amount ofNCD 
a(v) Security/ Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 3) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers/ (Outstanding principal amount ofNCD 

Series 3 + Interest accrued thereon) 

a(vijsecurity / Asset cover ratio (NCD Sundew 1) = Fair value of the secwed assets as computed by independent valuers/ (Outstanding principal amount ofNCD 
Sundew 1 + Interest accrued thereon) 

a(vii Security I Asset cover ratio (NCD MBPPL 1) = Fair value of the secued assets as computed by independent valuers/ (Outstanding principal amount ofNCD 
MBPPL l + Interest accrued thereon) 

b(i) Total Debt= Long term borrowings (Non-current) + Short term borro Nings ( current) + Lease liabilities ( current and non-current) + Interest accrued on debts 

Debt Equity Ratio = Total Debtffotal Equity (including non-controllir.g 
b(ti) interest) 
c) capitalization}, depreciation, exceptional items and tax/ (Inrerest expenses 
d) capitalization}, depreciation, exceptional items and tax/ (In~erest exp 'nse 

Net worth = Corpus + Unit capital + Other equity (including non-
e) controlling interest) 
f) Current ratio= Current assets/ Current liabilities 

Long term Debt = Long term borrowings ( excluding current maturitie.- of long term debt) + Lease Liabilities (Non-current) + Interest accrued on debts (Non-
g) current) 

h) working capital (i.e. Current assets less current liabilities) 
i) regulatory liabilities 
j ) assets 
k) 
I) 

receivable 
doubtful debts)/ Average trade receivable 
Operating margin= (Earnings before interest {net of capitalization}, 
depreciation, exceptional items and tax - Other income - Interest iocc,me) / 

m) Revenue from operations 
n) Net profit margin= Profit after exceptional items and tax/ Total lncor. e 

·~,@~\)SlNcs~-<>' 
< ~ 
~ MU)$~~ 
·~ yr J c,, 

/J~, ~ .,, * ►~ 



MI NDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT /19-20/003 
Condensed Consolidr.ted Financial Statements 
Notes to Accounts 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

52 The figures for the quarter ended 31 March 2022 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year ended 
31 March 2022 and the published year-lo-dale figures upto period ended 31 December 2021, which were subject to limited 
review. 

53A During the FY 2021-22, KRIT had proposed lo redevelop Duildings IA and 1B at Mindspace, Madhapur, Hyderabad. Vacation 
of these buildings by the tenant, provided the SPV un opportunity lo evaluate the possibi lity of redevelopment which would 
potentially increase the urea of the building, help incorporating new upgraded facilities, enhance the marketability of the 
buildings 11nd nlso offer future consolidation opportuniiies to existing tenants in the Park with continuity and growth. Basis the 
assessment by the SPV of the opportunity and concurrence from the Telangana State lndustrial lnfrastruc111rc Corporation Ltd. 
(TSJJC) vide its letter dated June 23, 2021, the SPY proposed to redevelop the said buildings subject to the receipt of statutory 
approvals & clearances as muy be required for the proposed redevelopment. Accordingly, the Mindspace Group had charged the 
written down value of the said buildings, plant and machinery and other assets in relation to the buildings aggregating to 
Rs. l ,332 million to the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and considered the same as nn Exceptional Ttem 
for the year ended March 31 , 2022. 

53B During the FY 2021-22, Mindspacc Business Parks Private Limited ("MBPPL") had entered into u Memorandum of 

Understanding dated 16 December 2019 with K. Raheja Corp Private Limited ("K.RCPL") for the proposed sale of MBPPL's 
parcel of land admeasuring 39.996 acres located al Pocharam Village al n predetennined price. The Board of Directors of 
MBPPL and the Governing Board of Investment Manager in their meeting held on 9 February 2022 and February 10, 2022 

respectively had approved the proposed transfer. The said land was recorded as ' Investment Property under construction' in the 
Consolidated financial statements, forming part of ' Real estate' segment. The said land had been sold vide agreement daced 30 

March 2022 for the consideration of Rs. 1200 million, which had been detennined as per the mutual agreement considering latest 

ready reckoner rnte, resulting into profit of Rs. 489 million. The same hud been considered ns au Exceptional Item in the 

statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31 . 2022. 

5-l Pr.:viuu~ period figun.:~ have bt:c:n n.:grouped, us i:onsidered necessary, to confoun with current period presentation. 

55 "O" represents value less thun Rs. 0.5 million, 
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Chartered Accountants 
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Goregaon (East) 
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Maharashtra, fndla 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED STANDALONE 
INTERIM FINANCIAL STAT EMENTS 

To 
The Governing Board, 
K. Raheja Corp lnvestment Managers LLP (The "Tnvestment Manager") 
(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

Introduction 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial 
Statements of MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT (the "REIT"), which comprise the 
unaudited Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2022, the unaudited 
Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive 
income, the unaudited Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for quarter ended 
June 30, 2022, the unaudited Condensed Standalone Statement of changes in Unitholders' 
Equity for the quarter ended June 30, 2022 and the unaudited Statement of Net 
Distributable Cash Flow for the quarter ended June 30, 2022, as an additional disclosure in 
accordance with paragraph 6 of Annexure A t o the Security Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 
Circular No. CIR/TMD/DF/ 140/2016 dated December 79, 2016 (" SEBI Circular") along with 
5urnmary uf the. !>iyr rific.dnt dC<.ounting pulide~ dl1d ~\.!le"l t:AiJia, 1c1tor y notes rnget.h~r 
hereinafter referred as the "Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements") . 

2. The Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the 
I nvestment Manager and approved by the Governing Board of the Investment Manager, 
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment 
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular No. 
CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 ("SEBI REIT Regulations"); Regulation 52 
and Regulation 54 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (" Listing Regulations"); Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 " Interim 
Financial Reporting", as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT Regulations. Our responsibi lity 
is to express a conclusion on the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements based 
on our review. 

Scope of review 

3. We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 
2410 'Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the 
Entity', issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (!CAI). A review of interim 
financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager's 
personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and 
other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in 
accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI and consequently does not enable 
~ tain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be 

in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

~ ~ 
-~& g , c One International Center, Tower 3, 27th-32nd Floor, Senapatl Bapat Marg , Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai 

() 4 o:l aharashtra, India (LLP ldent1f1cat1on No. AAB-8737) 



Deloitte 
Haskins & Sells LLP 

Conclusion 

4. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above, 
nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying 
Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements have not been prepared in accordance 
with SEBI REIT Regulations, Ind AS 34 "Interim Financial Reporting", as prescribed in Rule 
2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with 
the SEBI REIT Regulations and has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed 
in terms of the Listing Regulations, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed or 
that it contains any material misstatement. 

Emphasis of matter 

5. We draw attention to Note 14(a) of the Condensed Standalone I nterim Financial 
Statements, which describes the presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" to comply with 
the SEBI REIT Regulations. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Mumbai, August 10, 2022 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

Nilesh Shah 
Partner 

Membership No. 49660 
UDIN : 22.oi.,3660AO SKQ,H803!:I 



M INDSPACE nusrm:ss PARKS .REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 
Financial assets 
- Investments 
- Loans 
- Other financial assets 

Other non-current asseis 
Current tnx assets (net) 

Total non-current assets 

Curren! a~scts 
Financial assets 
- Loans 
- Cash and c11$h equivalents 
- Other financial assets 

Other current assets 
'l'otul current aucts 

Total assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITJ£S 

EQUITY 
Corpus 
Unit capital 
Other equity 

Total equity 

LIABILITIES 

Non-current Jl11bilities 
Finnncinl liabilities 
- Borrowings 
- OU1er financial liabilities 

Tobi non-current l111billties 

\... Utt cut tl,wlhH~ 
Financial liabilities 
• Borrowings 
- Trnde p~yables 

- total outstanding dues of micro nnd small emerpnses; nnd 
• total outstanding dues or Creditors other than micro nnd small 

enterprises. 
- Other financial liabilities 

Other current liabilities 
Current lax liabilities (net) 

Tolnl current liabilities 
Totnl liabilities 

Totnl equity 1111d Jlnbllitles 

Signi ti cant uccounting policieB 
See the accompanying notes to the condensed standalone financial statements 

Nntc 

4 
s 
6 
7 
g 

9 
10 
II 
12 

13 
14 
15 

16 
17 

18 
19 

20 
21 
22 

3 
4. 39 

As at 

JO J unc2022 
(UnAudi!ed) 

1,53,103 
21,273 

333 
4 

J,74,713 

2,898 
15 
21 

2,934 

1,77,647 

0 
1,62,839 

2 987 
J,65,826 

11,428 
338 

11,766 

12 
35 

4 
3 

55 
11,821 

1,77,647 

As per our report of even date attached. 

for Dcloille DHski1u & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountnnts 

for und on behnlfofthe Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp lnvestment Managers LLP 

Firm's registration number: l 17366W/W-1000 l8 

Nilcsb Shah 
1'1ir111er 
Membership number: 49660 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: I 0-August-2022 

(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

C. b~ 
A em er 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 10-August-2022 

Vinod N. Rohira 
Chief Execmlvs Officer 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : I O-August-2022 

As at 

3 1 March 2022 
(Audited) 

1,53,103 
21 ,268 

262 
4 

1,74,637 

5,000 
2,814 

560 
9 

8,383 

1,83,020 

0 
1,62,839 

2,919 
1,65,758 

11,422 
271 

11,692 

4,997 

9 
560 

l 
l 

5,569 
17 262 

1,83,020 

I~- t.J ~ 
Vrcctl N. Chbedn 

C/11ef F111a11ciol Officer 
DIN: 08066703 

Place· Mumbai 
Date ; J0-August-2022 



MINOSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Stundalone St11tement of Profil and Loss 
(all umounls In R,, million unless othenvi.se stated) 

lucomc and gains 
Interest 
Dividend 
Other Income 

Total Income 

1!:x11cn!e.1 
Valuation CKpenses 
Audit fees 
Insurance expenses 
Management fees 
Trustee fees 
Legal and professional fees 
Other expenses 

Total Expenses 

Earnings before nouoce costs aod lllx 
Finance costs 

Pront before tax 

Tax expense: 
Current tax 
Deferrtd lax 

Profit for tl1e period/ ycnr 

Hems of other compr~h•nstVe tncomc 

lutlll co111p, clm1sive lnco111e tor Ille 
11cnoll / yea• 

F.urolng f!Cr unit 
Bl!SiC tnot a1111ual1st:<l1 
Dilut~d (not 11Mualiscd) 

Note 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Significant accounting policies 3 
Sec the accompanying notes to the Co11de11sed 4 - 39 
Standalone Financial Statements. 

•refer note 37 
As per our ref!Orl of even date attached. 

for Deloille Huskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accounlants 
fim1's registration number: l 17366W/W-100018 

Nile.1h Shuh 

l'ar/11er 
Membership n111nhtr: 49660 

Place: Mumbai 
Date , I 0-August-2022 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2022 
(Unaudited} 

432 
2,635 

8 
3,075 

3 
I 
0 

17 
I 

15 
7 

44 

3,031 
226 

2,805 

3 

3 
2,802 

2,80l 

,t72 
4 72 

for the quarter 
ended 

31 March 2022 
(Unaudited)• 

448 
2,589 

4 
3,04 1 

5 
l 

0 
16 

I 

0 
4 

28 

3,013 
258 

2,755 

3 

3 
2,752 

2,752 

t64 
4,64 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 202 1 
(Unaudited) 

425 
2,587 

2 
3,010 

( 

0 
16 

I 
4 
5 

28 

2,982 
200 

2,782 

2,782 

2,782. 

4,69 
4,69 

for and on behalf of tho Governing Board of 
K Haheja Corp Investment Managen LLP 
(acting as the Manager to Mlndspace Business Parks REIT} 

-..,...__ ~ ~:~:: 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 1 O-August-2022 

Clrief li<ec111/vc OjJTt-cr 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: MurnbaJ 
Date : I O-August-2022 

for the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 
(Audited) 

1,677 
10,337 

II 
12,025 

9 
s 
I 

64 
2 

24 
17 

122 

11,903 
867 

11,036 

6 

6 
ll,030 

11,030 

18 "i(l 
18.60 

J ~ ,LJ ~ 
Prccti N. Cbhcda 

Ch/11/ Fimmdal Off/cur 
DlN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : I 0-August-202' 



MJNDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT /19-20/003 
Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flows 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

For the quarter For the quarter For the q uarler For the year 

ended ended ended ended 

30 June2022 31 March 2022 30 June2021 31 March 2022 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)• (Unaudited) (Audited) 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Profit before tax 2,805 2,752 2,782 11 ,036 

Adjustments: 
interest income (432) (448) (425) (1,677) 

Dividend income (2,635) (2,589) (2,587) (10,337) 

Guarantee commission fees (7) (4) 3 (9) 

Gain on redemption of mutual fund units ( I ) (0) (1) (2) 

Finance costs 226 258 200 867 

Operating cash flows before working capital changes (44) (31) (28) (122) 

Changes in: 
(Increuse) / Decrease in financial and other assets (38) 7 (13) 0 

lnorense / (Decrease) in financial and other liabilities 10 2 (3) 8 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade payables 5 3 5 4) 

Cash (used in)/ generated from operations (67) (19) (49) (1 18) 

Tncome taxes paid, net (22 {2} (7) 

Net cash generated / (used in) from operating activities (69) (21) (49) (125) 

Cash flow from investing activities 
Loans given to SPYs (13,020) (12,761) (3,300) (26,61 1) 

Loans repaid by SPY 18,015 7,770 3,300 21,520 

Investment in mutual fund (670) (2 10) (660) ( 1,945) 

Proceeds from Redemption of mutual fund 671 210 661 1,947 

Investment in fixed deposits (1,280) 11,425) 

Maturity proceeds of fixed d~posils 1,282 1.427 

Dividend received 2,635 2,589 2,587 10,337 

J nteresf rPceived 928 299 264 1,080 

Net cash generated / (used in) investing activities 8,559 (2, IOI) L,8:>L 0.3J\I 

Cash flow from financing activitk'! 
Proceeds from issue of debenture~ 5,000 5,000 

Redemption of debentures (5,000) 

Distribution to unit holders (2,734) (2,752) (2,852) (11 ,060) 

Recovery Expense Fund Deposits (I) (I) 

Interest paid (672) (95) (46) (232) 

Debentures issue expenses P52 P6l 
Net cash generated/ (used in) from financing activities (8,406) 2,117 (2,898) (6,329) 

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents 84 (5) (95) (124) 

Cash and (:ash equivalents at the beginning or the period / 
ycur 2,814 2,819 2,938 2,938 

Cash and cnsb equivalents at the end of the period /year 2,898 2,814 2,843 2,814 



M:INDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:TN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flows 
(oil amounts in Rs. million unless othenvise stated) 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: 
Cash on hand 
Balances with banks 

- in current accounts 
Fixed deposits with original maturity Jess than 3 months 
Cash and cash equivalents 111 the eml ()f the period / year 

(refer note l 0) 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2022 
(Unaudited) 

2,898 

2,898 

For the quarter 
ended 

3 1 March 2022 
(Unaudited)* 

2,8 14 

2,814 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 June 2021 
(Unaudited) 

2,768 
75 

2.843 

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 
(Audited) 

2,814 

2,814 

TI1e above Statement of Cash flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows 

Sign ificant accounting policies 3 
See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Standalone 4-39 
Financial Statements. 

* refer note 3 7 

As per our report o f even date al1ached. 

for Deloitte Hoskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Man11gcrs LLP 

Firm's registration numhcr: I 17366W/W-100018 (acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 

ti~ ,~ll' ~ ~,\\_../" /4,(LLL·µ t~ 

Nilcsb Sha h e~ 
Vinod N. Rohirii P reeti N. Chheila 

Partner e er Chief I'!.xet·utive Office I' Chief Fit1a11cia/ Officer 

Membership number: 49660 IN. 000290IO DlN: 001160667 DIN· 08066703 

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai 

Dntc: 10-August-2022 Date : I 0-August-2022 Dale: l0-August-2022 Date: I 0-August-2022 



MINDSPACI: BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/0QJ 
(nU amounls in JU.millio11 unltSI othe-rwlse staled) 

N,1 DiJlributableCa,h Flow, (NDCP) pursuonl lo guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBJ circular No, CIR/IMD/DJl/ 146/2016 

SI Nu Partlculu1 

4 
s 
6 

9 
10 

Cash flows received from A.Jse.t SPVs including bul no1 limi1cd to; 
inlerest 
dividend• (net of applic,ble laxes) 
repayment of REIT Funding 
proceeds from buy--b1ck.s/ ciiphal reduction (ncl of applicable taxes) 

redemption proceeds from prcrcrenco shares or any other iimila.r instrumeol 

Add: Proceeds from sale of investments, assets, sale or tharcs of Asset Sl>V,, liquidation of any other Jtss.ct or 
lnvc, lmont (Incl. cash cquiv•lenu) or any form of fund raise at Mlnd,p,ee RBIT level ,djusied for the 
following:/ll 

applicable capital gains and other lllXCS, 1f any 
debts settled or due to be ,etded from sale proceed! 
transaction cosui 
proceeds re.-love:sted or planned lo be reinvested in accordance with the 
REIT regul1tions 
uoy acqul1idon 
investments u pcnnittcd under the REIT regulations 
londing lo Assot SPVs 

D5 may be deemed nec:essary by lhe Manager 
Add-Proceeds rram sale ofinvenments, assets or .sAle of shares of M.sct SPVs; not distt1buted pursuanl to an 
earlier pJ11n to re4 invest in accordance with the REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are nol intended to be 
invested 1ubscqucn1Jy 

Add: Any other income received by Mindspace REIT not captured herein 
Leas: Any other expen,es paid by Mlndspace REIT not captuied heroin 

Less'. Any cxpcn,e in the nature of capital expenditure .i Mind1p,c~ RBIT level 

Less: Net debt repaymcn1 / (drawduwn), redemption of preference share, I dcbi=nlurts / any olJ,cr suth 
mstrumcn, / premiums/ n.ny OLhcr obllgaribons / habm1Jc11 c10., u maybe deemed neces!MU)' by lhc Manager 

Add/test. Other jdjusl01enll, 1nch.1ding but nor. limtttd to net chanwCJ 1n "ccutily d,po1r1lM1 wutking e;:pitAJ, 
etc .. as may be deemed nc,csStuy by the Man11ger fl) 

~= lnme,t p!lid on ntrmal debt borrowing ,i Mind!J),oe RPIT lovrl 

I e.,- Income 1"11 M~ oth~ lax!',< (lhpplic1blc) at the St»ndAlone Mindspace RBJT Jovel 

For the quarter 
•nded 

J O June 2022 
(Unoudilcd) 

928 
Z,6lS 

14,300 

(9,300) 

4 
(5) 

(5,000) 

(72) 

(6nl 

For the quartu 
rnded 

3 I March 2022 
(Unnudited) 

299 
2,S89 

5,1 60 

(S, 12S) 

6 
(l) 

(48) 

(95) 

f'or the. quarte.r 
ended 

30 Juno 2021 
(Unauditcd) 

264 
2,S87 

420 

(420) 

I 
(19) 

(SS) 

(46) 

For Che yur 
cut.led 

31 Moreh 2022 
(Audited) 

1,080 
10,338 

9,090 

(35) 

H 

(J7) 

(171) 

(212) 

lJ4R.:.,_ __ _ J,ill_ __ _ 

Noltll 
The Governing Board of !ho Manager to the Trll•~ In thcir meeting hold on 10 Augun 2022, hu de<larcd dirtribuUon to unltholder,of'RJ 4 74 perunit wh1oh •l!,llfegates 10 R, 2,811 mlllio11 forthequoner •nded 
10 Juno 2.022 Tht! tlh1ributioni; orR.!i 4 7d per un11 comprises Rs 4 4\ per unh in lhc- fonn of dividend, ,Rt 0'3'2 per unit in the fonn ofin1ere-st payment 11nd Rs. 0,01 per unit in the form ofo1her income. 

"2 ltepaymenl of REIT fimdlng which 1s rurther lent to SPVs has been caph.1re-d under •tfqu]dation of auct:,tt 
3 Lending to and ~pnymcnt l'ron\ SPVs wi1hin the ume qu!ner hn been 11djus1c.:d under *Other Adjustment!• 

As per nu1 fCJ>Orl of even dmte. attached. 

ro, Dtlolttr 11.,111,u & ScllJ LLP 
Chi:ntcrcd Accoun11nu 

l\,r and u11 bch11lfof lhcGovcming Board of 
K Rahtjo Corp Jnvutment ~hnaaen Ll, P 

Fim,'s rcgistr1tion number: 117366\V/W• IOOOIS (acting a, the Manager 10 Mindspoce llu,inm Parks REIT) 

NUr,h Sh•b 
P11ln~r 
Membership number: 49660 

Pl1t~· Mumbai 

Dato : IO-August-2022 

' 'tv 
~ r 

Vh1od N. llohirR 
Chief Executive Ollie« 
DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbal 

Dote . 10-AuguJ1•2022 

l1rrtli ('i. Chhtd11 
Chit] J-mm,nul ( )J/irc, 
DIN: 08066703 

Ph,ce· MumhAi 

Doto l0-Augull·2022 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Condensed Standalone Statement or changes in Unit holder 's Equity 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless othenvisc stated) 

A. Corpus 
Balance as on I April 2021 
Changes during the year 
Balance as on 31 March 2022 
Balance as 011 1 April 2022 
Changes during the period 
Closing balance as at 30 June 2022 

Balance as on I April 2021 
Changes during lhe period 
Balance as on 30 Juue 2021 
Closing balance as at 30 June '.?021 

13. Additions during the period 
Balance as on I April 2021 
Add : Changes during the year 
Balance as on 31 March 2022 
Balance as on l April 2022 
Changes during the period 
Closing balance as at 30 June 2022 

Balance as 011 I AJ>ril 2021 
Add : Changes during the period 
Balance as on 30 .runc202l 
Closing balance as at 30 ,June 2021 

C. Other e ui 
Pnrtlculurs 

Balance as on I April 2021 
Profil for the ycnr ended 31 Ma,cll 2022 
Olher comprehensive income for the period 
Less. Dis1ributiu11 to Uuilhulders fo, the quw let cmlctl 3 1 Mw.:ll 202 l' 
L ... ~.J. U1 .. 1&tl.ic,h10,1 h> Uruu,oiu .... 1J ,or lil" q\1u.rt .. 1 ,i.J, .. JL1 lu11--. ..!0-l 
Less: Dislribulion to Unilholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2021 • 
Less: Distribution to Unitholdcrs for the quarter ended 3 l December 2021 • 
Balance at 31 March 2()22 
Balance as at I Apnl ~022 
Profit for the quarter ended 30 June 2022 
Other comprehensive income for the period 
•Less: Distribution lo Unitholdcrs for the quarter ended 3 l March 2022 
Balance al 30 J une 2022 

Balance ns at 1 April 2021 
Profit for the quarter ended 30 June 2021 
Other comprehensive income for tho period 

•Less: Distribution to Unitholdcrs for the quarter 
ended 3 I March 2021 

Closing balance as at 30 June 2021 

Amount 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

Amount 
1,62,839 

1,62,839 

1,62,839 

1,62,839 
1,62,839 

Retained Earnings 

2,950 
11,030 

(2,853) 
(2. ""~) 
(2,728) 
(2,752) 
2,919 
:Z,919 
2,802 

(2,734) 
2,987 

2,950 
2,782 

(2,852) 
21sso 

"The distributions made by Mindspace REIT to its Unitholdcrs are based on the Net Distributable Cash Hows (NDCF) ofMlndspece REIT under the 
REIT Regulations. 

As per our report of even dote attnched. 

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chnrtercd Accountants 
Firm's registration number. I 17366W/W-l00018 

Nilosh Shull 

P11rt11cr 

Membership number: 49660 

Place: Mumba.i 
Date : I 0-August-2022 

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
(actln, as the Manager to Mindspacc Business Porks REIT) 

Place: Mumbai 
Dale : I O-August-2022 

Vlnod N. Roblra 
ChleJExcc111/ve Offic~r 

DIN: 00460667 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 10-August-2022 

Prceli N. Chhcda 
CMef Financial Officer 

DIN: 08066703 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : I 0-August-2022 



MfNl)SPACE BUSTNESS PARKS REIT 
RN:JN/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Stntements 
(all an10unts in Rs. million unless otherwise stutcd) 

Mi11dspnce RE[T background 

Mindspace Business Parks REIT ('Mindspace REIT') wns settled on 18 November 2019 at Mumbai, Maharashtra, India as a contributory, detem1inate and 
irrevocable trust under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882, pursuant to a trust deed dated 18 November 20 I 9. Mindspace REIT was registered with 
SEBI on IO December 2019, at Mumbai as 11 REIT pursuant to the REIT Regulations having registration number IN/REIT/19-20/0003. The Trust's principal place 
of business address is at Raheja Tower, Level 8, Block 'G'. C-30, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai - 400 051. 
An bee Constructions LLP (ACL) and Cape Trading LLP ('CTL') are the sponsors of Mindspnce REIT. The Trustee to Mindspacc REIT is Axis Trustee Services 
Limited (the 'Trustee') and the Manager for Mindspace REIT is K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (tl1c 'Manager'). 

The objectives and principal activity of Mindspace REIT is 10 carry on the activity of a real estate investment trust, as permissible under lhe REIT Regulations, to 
raise funds through the REIT, to make investments in accordance with the REIT Regulations and tlle investment strategy and to carry on the activities as mny be 
required for operating the REIT, including incidental and ancillary mat1ers thereto, 

The units oflhe Trust were listed on the BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange oflndia Limited (NSE) on 7 August 2020. 
TI1c brief activities and shareholding pnt1cm of the SPYs ore provided below: 

Name of the SPY 

MBPPL 

G1gaplex 

Activities 
Equity Shareholding (in percentage) 

as at 31 March 2022 

The SPY is engaged in real estate Mindspace 
development projects such as Special REIT : I 00% 
Economic Zone (SEZ), Information 
Technology Parks and other commercial 
assets. The SPV has its projects in Airoli 
(Navi Mumbai), Pune and Pocharam 
(Hyderabad). The Sl'V is n deemed 
distribution licensee pursuw1t to which it 
can dlstdbute pow~r to the SEZ tenants 
within the Park. II commenced distribution 
of electricity in its project nt Airoli, N11vi 
Mumbai from 9 April 2015. 

The SPY is engaged in real estate Mindspace 
developm~nt proy,1cts such as Special REIi . 100% 
Economic Lone (SE;t;), lntorrnauon 
Technology Parks and oilier commercial 
assets. The SPY has its projects in Airoli 
(Navi Mumbai).Thc SPY is a deemed 
distribution licensee pursuant to wh1oh 11 

can distribute power to the SEZ tenants 
within the Park. rt commenced distribution 
of electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi 
Mumbai from 19 April 2016. 

Equity S hareholding (In 
percentoge) 

os at 30 June 2022 
Minds pace 
REIT : 100% 

Minds pace 
RtIT. 100",o 



MfNDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/I 9-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Name of the SPV 

Sundcw 

lntime 

KRJT 

Horizon view 

Avacado 

Activities 
Equity Shareholding 

(in percentage) 
as at 31 March 2022 

Equity Shareholding (in 
percentage) 

as at 30 June 2022 

The SPY is engaged in development and Mindspace Mindspace 
leasing.llicensing of IT park, SEZ to REIT : 89% REIT : 89% 
different customers in Hyderabad. Tel811gana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Telangana Slate Industrial 

Limited (I I%) Infrastructure Corporation 
Limited (11%) 

The SPY is engaged in development and Mindspace Mindspacc 
leasing/licensing of IT park to different REIT : 89% REIT : 89% 
customers in Hyderabad. Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Telangana Slate Industrial 

Limited ( I l %) Infrastructure Corporation 
Limited (11%) 

The SPY is engaged in development and Mindspacc Mindspace 
leasing/licensing of IT park to different REIT : 89% REIT ; 89% 
customers in Hyderabad. Telangana State lndustrial Infrastructure Corporation Tclangana State Industrial 

Limited (11 %) Infrastructure Corporation 
Limited (11%) 

The SPY is engaged in real estate M indspace 
development projects such as Special REIT · JOO% 
Economic Zone (SEZ) and Information 
Technology Parks. The SPY has its project 
in Kharodi Pune,The SPY is a deemed 
distribution licen~ec pursuant to whid1 it 
cw, d1,1nou1e powc:, io ,he ~Et.. \<.llW11.'> 

within the Park. IL commenced distribution 
of electricity in its project 111 Kharadi, Pune 
lrom I June 2Vl9 
TI,e SPY is 11bo c11g11gc<l 111 Facility 
Management services. 

The SPY is engaged in development and Mindspace 
leasing/licensing of IT park to different REIT : 100% 
customers in Chennai. 

The SPY has developed an Industrial park Mindspace 
for the purpose of letting out to di!Terenl REIT : I 00% 
customers in Paradigm building at Malad-
Mumbai and is being maintained and 
operated by the SPY. The SPY also has a 
commercitil project in Sandra Kurla 
Complex, Mumbai. 

Minds pace 
RBlT · 100% 

Mindspacc 
RillT : 100% 

Minds pace 
REIT: 100% 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs, mllllon unless otherwise stated) 

2 Basis of Preparation 

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements of Mindspace REIT comprise the Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2022, the Condensed 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the quarter ended 30 
June 2022, the Condensed Statement of Changes in Unitholders Equity for the quarter ended 30 June 2022, the Statement of Net Distributable Cashflows of 
Mindspace RElT for the quarter ended 30 June 2022 and a summary of the significant accounting policies and select explanatory information and other 
additional financial disolosures. 

The Condensed Standalone Finm1cial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Real 
Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines ond circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circular 
No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 ("the REIT regulations"); Regulation 52 and Regulation 54 of the LODR Regulations; Indian 
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 "Interun Financial Reporting" to the extent not inconsistent with REIT regulations. (refer note 14 on presentation of "Umt 
Capital" as "Equity" instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation), read with relevanl rules issued thereunder and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in Indfo. 
The Condonsed Standalone Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with resolution passed by the Governing Board of the Manager on 
behalf ofMindspace REIT on 10 August 2022. 
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Million, except when otherwise indicated. 

Statement of compliance to Ind-AS 
These Condensed Standalone financial statements for lhe quarter ended 30 June 2022 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Slandard (Ind 
AS) 34 "Interim Financial Reporting", to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT regulations as more fully described above and Note 14 to the condensed 
standalone financial statements. 

3 Significant accounting policies 

a) Functional ond Presentation Currency 
The Condensed Standalone Financial StatemenL~ are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also Mindspace REIT functional currency in which Mindspncc 
REIT operates. All financial infonnation presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest million except otherwise stated. 

b) Basis of measurement 
These Condensed Standalone Financlnl Statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities (refer 
accounting policy regarding finoncial instnummt) measured at fair values; 

c) Use of judgments and estimates 
'The preparation of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India (lnd AS) reqwrcs 
muno.gemcnt to make estimaks and essumptions tbAt nffecl fhe reported Rm0unls of nssetq, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from 

li C I '"' ~ 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on e periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. 
lnfonna1ion about orilical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Condensed 
Struidnlone Fimmcial Statemen~ is included ill 1hr foll"wing notes· 
(i) Presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" in accordance with the SEBI REIT Regulations instead of compound instrument (Note no 14) 

(ii) Impairment and Fair valuation of Investments in SPVs, 
(iii) recognition and measurement of provisions for contingencies und disclosure of contingent liabilities (Note 32 (a)) 

d) Current versus non-current classtncat1011 
Mindspace REIT presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-curre11t classification: 
An asset is treated as current when it is: 
• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal opernting cycle; 
• Held primarily for the pUipose of trading; 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle II liability for at least twelve months ofter 1he reporting date. 

All other assets are classified as non-cWTeot. 
A liability is current when: 
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 
· Il is held primarily for the pUipose of trading; 
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
- There is no unconditional rigbt to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
Mindspaee REIT classifies all other liabilities as non~urrent. 

Deferred taK assets and liabilities arc classified as non-current assets and liabilities, 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisitioo of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Mindspace REIT hos 
identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 
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c) Measurement of fair values 
Mindspace REIT accounting policies wid disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both tin.incial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 
Mindspace REIT has an established control framework wiU1 respect to the measurement of fair v&lucs. 
Mindspacc REIT regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair values then 1hc 
finunce team assesses U1e evidence obtained from the third parties to support U,e conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including 
the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified. 
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace REIT uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values arc categorised into 
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the Inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows: 
• Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access on measurement date. 
• Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included In Level I that arc observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as pnccs) or 1ndireclly (i.c, 
derived from prices), 
• Level 1: inputs for the a~sct or liability thet are not based on observable market dnto (unobservuble inputs). 
It the mputs used to measure the frur value of 1m asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair vaJue hierarchy, 1hcn 1.he fair value measurement is 
categorised in its entirety in U1e same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to U1c entire measurement 

3.1 Impairment of assets 
Mindspace REIT assesses at each reporting date, whether U1ere is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exisls, l11e trust estimates 
the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of the assets (or where applicable that of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs) is 
estimated as U1e higher of its net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash nows expected to arise from the 
continuing use of the assets and from its disposal al the end of its useful life. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the 
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recovernble amount. Impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to tile revised cstimute of its recoverable 
amount, but so [hut the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount Umt would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised 
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A rcversul of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

J.2 Asset Acquisition 
If \he acquisition of an asset or a gioup of assets does not cons111ute a business, Mindspace REIT identifies and recognises U1c individual idcntitinblc nsscll> 
acquired including those assets that meet the definition of, and recognition criteria for, intangible assets in Ind AS 38, Intangible Assets and liabilillcs assumed. 
The cost of the group is allocaled to lhc individual identifiable assets mtd liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date or purchase and no goodwill 
1s recognised. 

AHoca11on or the cost oJ the group 1s done as follows: 

For any identifiable asset or liability m1tmlly measured at an amount other than cost, Mindspacc REil mitrnlly measures that usset or liability at the amount 
specified in the applicable Ind AS Standurd. Mindspace REl'l' deducts from U1e transaction price of the group the amounts nllorntcd to the assets and liabilities 
initially measured at an amount other lhun cost. and then allocates lhe residual transaction pnce to the remammg 1den11h0bte assets and imb1llucs b1ised on 1heir 

relative fair values at the dote of the acquisition. 

J.J Foreign currency transactions 
Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded al U1c exchange rate prevailing on U,e date of transuutions. Exchange differences arising on foreign 
exchange transactions settled during the period arc recognised in U1c Statement of Profit and Loss of lhc pe1 iod. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstwiding as at the und of the period and not covered by forward contruots, nre 
translated at U1e end of the period at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non­
monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost. 

J.4 Compound financial Instruments 
The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by Mindspace REIT are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with 
the substwice of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and nn e4uity instrument. A conversion option that wi.11 be settled by the 
cxchwige of a fixed wnount of cnsh or another flnnncial asset for a fixed number of the Trust's own equity inslrumcnts is an equity instrument. 

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This 
wnount is recorded as a liability on w1 amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument's maturity 
date. 
The conversion option classified as equity is detcm1ined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound instnnuenl as a 
whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. 

Transaction cosL~ thal relate to the issue of the convertible instrnments are allocated to the liability 11nd equity components in proportion to the allocation of lhc 
gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to tl,e equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liabilily compone111 are 
mcluded in the carrying amount oftl1e liability co111po11ent and are amortised over the lives of the convertible instrument using Ute effective interest method. 

J.5 Embedded derivatives 
A derivative embedded in n hybrid contract, wiU1 a financial liability or non-finuncial host, is separated from the host wid accounted for as a separate derivative 1f: 
the econonuc characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate Instrument with the swne terms as tl10 embedded derivative would meet Ilic 
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured 11t fair value through profit or loss. Embedded Jerivativcs arc measured nt fair value with 
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there Is ei01er a change in the tem1s of the contract that significwitly modifies lhc 
cash flows that would otherwise be required or n reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value Uirough profit or loss category. 



MINDSl'ACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Sta11d11lo11c Financial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 
3.6 Tnx expense 

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit II is recognised in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss except to 
the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case, the current and deferred tax arc also recognised 
in equity and other comprehensive income respectively. 

ii) Current tax 
Curre111 tax comprises U1e expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for U1e period and any adjustment to U1c ta:« payable or receivable 
in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the 
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using ta.x rates (and tax laws) enacted or substmttively enacted by end of reponing period, 

ll) Deferred tax 
Deferred tax usset/ liability is recognized on temporary difforences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Condensed Standalone 
Financial Statements and the co1Tesponding tax bases used in U1e computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc measured that arc 
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or lhe liability i, sellled, using th.: tax rnt.:s ,mu hlA laws that hav.: been enacted vr subslu11t,v~ly 
enacted by the end of the reponing period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabllilies and assets rel1ects the tax consequences lhat would follow from U1e manner in which Mindspace REIT expects, nt 
the end oflhe reponing period, 10 recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that ii is probable that taxable profits will be. available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such 
deferred tax asst1ts and liabilities are not recognized if U1c temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other lhan in a business combination) of 
assets and liabilities in a lransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor U1e accounting profit 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent U1al it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets nnd liabili1ics ure offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and linbilities, ,md they relate to income taxes 
levied by lhe same tax authority on the s1m1e taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or 
their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously. 

J.7 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
Provisions are recognised when Mindspace REIT has a present legal or constructive obligation ns a resuh of a past event, it 1s probable that 1he 1'rnst will be 
rcq,1ired tri setllc the obligation, and a relinble estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of 
U1c consideration required to settle the present obligation ut the end of the reporting period, taking into account U,e risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. Provisions ore dcte11nined by dlscoanllng 1}1c expected future cash lluw~ ut u pre•tax rate that reflects current murket assessmcnb of the time value ol' 
na.ut1.) «nu Im .. , 101,.:, ~µe.,,f,1. tu ln" ls.1l,111iy. I h~ ,mwmdmg of <1111 Jiscuunt 1s reuugn1s1:1.1 .i:, l111a111;t; wM, 

Contingent liabilitil\S are disulosed when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, bul will probably not, require an outllow of resources. 
Wh1•11 thc11: IS n possible obligation uf u present obligation in respect of which ihe likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure 1s mndc. 

A contingent asset 1s disclosed when there would be a possible asset Urnt arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence 0 1 

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Mindspt1ce REIT. 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets arc n.'Viewed at each reponiug date w1d udjusted to reflect the current best eslunut.es. 

3.8 Investment in SPVs 
The Company has elcc1cd to recognize its investments in SPVs at cost in accordance witl1 the option available in Ind AS 27, 'Separate Financial Statements'. The 
details of such investments are given in Note 4. 
Assets representing investments in SPVs nre reviewed for impninnent,whenever evems or changes in circumstances indicate thut carrying umount muy not be 
recoverable. Such circumstances include, U1ough arc not limited to, signUicant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the 
economic environment. 

J.9 Finnncinl instruments 
I Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when Mindspace REIT becomes party to a contract embodying the related financial instruments. All 
Jinunciol assets, financial linbilities are initially measured nt fair value. Transaction costs that arc attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
tinancial liabilities (other than financial assets and financinl liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from as the case rnuy be, the 
fair value of such assets or liabilities, on initial recognition. Transaction costs direcUy attributnblc to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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2 Financial assets: 

n) Classification of financial assets: 
(i) Mindspace REIT classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Statement of Profit and Loss), and 

- those measured at amortised cost. 
(ii) The classification is done depending upon Mindspace REIT business model for managing Uie fimmciul assets and the contractual terms of the cash 

nows. 
(iii) For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. 
(iv) Mindspnce REIT reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. 

b) Subsequent Meusuremenl 
(i) Debt instruments: 

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on Mindspacc REIT busmess model for managing the asset and the cash flow oharncterist1cs of 
U1e asset. There arc three measurement categories into which U1e Trnst classifies its debt instruments: 

Financial assets at amortised cost 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these linancinl assels are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets 
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual lerms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash nows thnt arc solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outshmding. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through 0U1cr comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of' principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets. 

Financial assets at fair value through the Statement of l>rofit and Loss (FVfPL) 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss unless it 1s measured at amortised cost or fair value 
through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs direclly attributable to the acquisition of ftnancial assets Hnd linbilitics 
at fair value through profit or loss arc iinmediQtely recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

c) Impairment of linRncinl assets: 
Tl1e Mindspacc Group applies the e,ipcctcd credit loss model for recognising impairment loss 011 fi1111ncial asset, 1m:asured ;it u111ortised cost, le..se ,e~clv~blcs, 
trnde receivables, ot11er contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset. For trade receivubles, lhe Mindspace Group meosures the loss allowance ul an 
amount cqunl to lifetime exnected credit losses flurther for the numose of measurinp. lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade rcce1vables, the 
Mindspace Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance 1s computed based on n prov1s1on mamx 
which takes into account historical credit loss e,iperience and adjusted for forward-looking information. 

11) 0 erecognifiou of tin11ncial us~e,,, 
A linancinl asset 1s primarily dereco(!Jliscd when: 
(i) tl1e right to receive cnsh flows from the asset has expired, or 
(ii) Mindspace REIT has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from tl1e asset; und 

Mindspace REJT has transferred substantially nil the risks ll!ld rewards of the asset, or 
Mindspace REIT has neither transferred nor ret1w1ed substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, but has transferred control of the asset. 
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (other than investments in equity instruments at FVOCI), the differences between the carrying 
wnounts measured al the <lute of derecognition nnu Uie consideration received is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any interest in lmnsferrcd 
financial asset~ that is created or retained by Mindspace REIT is recognised as a separate nsset or liability. 

3.10 Finunciul liabilities and equity instruments 

(a) Classification as debt or equity 
FinMcinl liabi lities w1d equity instrnments issued by Mindspacc REIT arc classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements cnlered into 
and U1e delinitions ofa financial liabi lity ond an equity instrnment. 

l<immcial Liablllties 

Recognition, measurement and classification 
Financial liabilities are classified as either held at a) fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss, orb) at amortised cost. Management determines the 
classification of its financial liabilities at the time of initial recognition or, where applicable, at the time of reclassification. 

Mindspace REIT financial liabilities include trade and other payables. low1s and borrowings and derivative financial instruments. Subsequent measurement of 
financial liabilities depends on their classification as fair value through Ute Statement of Profit and Loss or at amortised cost. All changes in fair value or 
financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost category is applicable to loans and borrowings, 
ltade and other payables. After initial recognition the financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using U1e Effective Interest Rate method. 

Oerccognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Goins nnd losses are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are de1ecognlsed. 

Offsetting or li1111ncial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset nnd presented on net basis In the Balance Sheet when l11ere is a currently enforceable legal right to o!Tset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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3.11 Financial guarantee contracts 
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss ii incurs because a specified 
debtor fails to make payments when due in accordW1ce with the terms of a debt instrument. 
Financial guarantee contract are measured initially at the fair value and In accordance with Ind AS 109 unless on a case to case basis Mindspace RBIT elects to 
account for financial guaral\tee as Insurance Contracts as specified under Ind AS I 04. 

3.12 Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. This inter alia involves discounting of the consideration due lo the present value 
if payment extends beyond normal credit terms. 

Revenue is recognised when recovery of the consideration is probable and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

Rccogoitiou of dividend income, Interest income 
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which Mindspace REIT's right to receive payment is established. 
Interest income 1s recognised using tl1e effective interesl method. The effectiw interest 111Le' i. llie rnte that exactly discounts cstimutcd future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial instrument lo the gross cru,ying amount of the financial asset. 
ln calculating interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross cru,ying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired). However, for 
financial assets that have become credit-Impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the 
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of mterest income revens to the gross basis. 

3. LJ Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs are interest and 0U1er costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings lo the extent that they are regarded es an 
adjustment lo interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly atuibutable to acquisition or construction of an nsset 
which necessarily take a substantial period of time to gel ready for their intended use arc capitalised us part of the cost of that asset. Other horrowing costs are 
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimnted future cash payments 
U1rough the expected life of U1e finnncial instrument to U1e runortised cost of U1e financial liability. In calculating interest expunse, the erfective interest rail: is 
applied to the runortiscd cost of the liability. 

3.14 Casl1 and cash equivalents 
Cash and c~sh cqui¥alcnts comprises of cash ot bank and on hnnd. demund deposits, other short term, highly liquid investments with nrigmal marnnllcs of three 
months or less U1at are rcadlly convertible to known amounts of cash wid which arc subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

~ l, C'nsh rli~trib11li1111 tq unit holder~ 
Mindspace REIT recognises a liability to make cush distributions to Unitholders when U1e distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has bee11 created. As per 
U1c REIT Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Governing Board of the Manager. A corresponding amount is recognised directly 111 

equity 

3. 16 Condensed Stood:1lo11c St11teme11t of Clish nows 
Cash flow is reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or 
accruals of pnst or future cnsh receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of Mindspace REIT are segregated. 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash 11101~. cash and cash equivulcnts consist of cash and short-term deposits. as delincd above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrans as they are considered an integral port of tho Trust's cash management. 

3.17 Subsequent events 
The Condensed Standalone Financial Slalcments are udjusted lo reflect events that occur after the reporting dute but before U1e Financial Statements arc issued. 
The Financial Statements hove their own date of authorisation. Therefore, when preparing the Financial Statements, management considers events up to the date 
of auU1orisation ofU1ese financial statemenl8, 

3. 18 Earnings per unit 
The basic eurnings per unit is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to the unit holders of the REIT by the weighted average number of un its 
outstanding during the reporting period. The number of units used ln computing diluted earnings/ (loss) per unit comprises the weighted average units considered 
for deriving basic earnings/ (loss) per unit and also the weighted average number of units which could hnve been issued on the conversion of ull dilutive polenlial 
units. 
Dilutive potential units arc deemed converted as of U1c beginning of the reporting date, unless U1ey have been issued al u later dale. In computing diluted earning~ 
pct unit, only potential equity u11its Uu1l we dilutive and which either reduces earnings per share or increase loss per units are included. 

J, 19 Earnings before finance costs and income tax 
Mindspace RBIT has elected to present earnings before fmance cost and income tax as a sepamte line item on the face of the Condensed Stwidalone Statement of 
P1olit and Loss. Mmdspace REIT measures earnings bc:(ore finance cost und income la.x 011 the basis of profit/ (loss) !iom continuing operations. ln its 
m~asuremcnt, Mindspace REIT docs not include finance cost, and tax expense. 
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J.20 Errors and estimates 
Mindspace REIT revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relev.mt and reliable 
information to the users of the Financial Statement. Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively. 
A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively in 
U1c period(s) of cl1ange. 
Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity of U1e earliest prior period in which the 
error is discovered. The opening balances of the earliest period presented are also restated. 

J.21 Distributions 
The Net Distributable Cash Flows of Mindspace REIT are based on U10 cash flows generated from Mindspace REIT's assets and investments. 
ln terms of the Distribution Policy and the REIT Regulntions, not less U1an 90¾ of the NDCF of each of the Asset SPVs is required to be distributed to 
Mindspace RE'.IT, In proportion of lheir shareholding in the Asset SPY, subject to opplicabte provisions of the Companies Aot. Presently, NDCF to be received by 
Mindspace REIT from the Asset SPVs may be in the form of dividends, interest income, principal loan repayment. proceeds of any capital reduction or buyback 
from the Asset SPVs, sale proceeds out of disposal of investments if any or assets directly held by Mindspace REIT or as specifically permitted under the Trust 
Deed or in such other form as may be permissible under the applicable law, 

The Manager is required to and shall declare and distribute at lea.st 90¾ of the NDCF of Mindspncc REIT as distributions (''REIT Distributions'') to the 
Unitholders. Such REIT Distributions shall be declared and made for every quarter of a Financial Yenr. 

3.22 New and 11mended standnrds 
The accounting policies adopted and methods of computation followed are consistent witl1 those of the previous financial year, except for items disclosed 
below: 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated March 23, 2022 to amend the 
following Ind AS which are effective from April O I, 2022. 
Reference to the Conceptual Framework- Amendments to Ind AS I 03 
- The wm:ndmcnts replaced U1e reference to the JCAJ's "Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of financial Statements under Indian Accounting 
Standards" Wilh the reference to the "Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under lndian Accounting Stondard" without significantly changing its 
requirements. 
The amendments also auueu an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS I 03 Business Combinations to avoid IJ1e issue of potential 'day 2' gains or 
losses arising for liabilities and contingent li~bililies I.hat would be within the scope of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent I iahilities nnd Contingent Assets or 
Appendix C, Levies, orlnd AS 37, ifincurrcd separately. 
It hru. el&o b~t:n clnrificJ thnl the existing guiJnnce in Ind AS 103 for contingent assets woulJ 11ut be affected by replacing the rcfom1,e to the Framework for 
the I r;;pu1utr,m ,utll 1'1~~11h1llv11 vl f·111U11u,u ~l<1lc1,11;111:> u11Jc1 lmliim ..-.-.wtmtlug Slill1U1.11.h, 

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use-Amendments to Ind AS 16 
The amendments modified paragraph I 7(e) of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sole proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shnll not be 
1ecogn1scd in the profit or loss but deducted from the direclly nuributabli:: costs considered as part of cos1 of ru111c111 of p101'crty, pfot1t, dHJ equipm~nt 
'· Om:,ous Cvnlracts - Cu~iS uf F11Jlilli11g n Cont.111.t - A111t,1do1c11t~ Iv Ind AS 37 
The amendments to Ind AS 37 specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether o contract 1s onerous or loss-makmg. The amendments 
npply a "directly related cost approach''. The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs for example direct 
labour and materials and an allocation of other costs directly related to contract activities for example an allocation of the depreciation charge for an ittm of 
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling tliat contract. General and administrative costs do nol relate directly to a contract and ore excluded 1Jnless they are 
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under Ilic contract. 
There were ce11ain an1endments to standards nnd interpretations which are applicable for the first lime for the period ended 30 June 2022, but either the snmc arc 
not relevant or do not have an impact on the standalone financial statements of tl1e REIT. The Group has not early adopted any standard, interpretation or 
amendment tl131 has been issued but is not yet effective. 



MJNDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes lo the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

4 Non-current investments 
Particulars 

Unquoted Investments in SPVs (at cost) 
(refer note below) 

- 39,75,000 (31 March 2022: 39,75,000) equity shares of Avacado Properties 
and Trading Private Limited of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 

- 11,765 (31 Mnroh 2022: I 1,765) equity shares of Horizonview Properties 
Private L,imited of Rs. IO each, fully paid up 

• 5,88,235 (3 I March 2022: 5,88,235) equity shares of KRC infrastructure 
And Projects Private Limited of Rs. l O each, fully paid up 

- 1,96,01,403 (31 March 2022: 1,96,01,403) equity shares of Gigaplex Estate 
Private Limited of Rs. I each, fully paid up 

- 2,50,71,875 (31 March 2022: 2,50,71,875) equity shares of Sundew 
Properties Limited of Rs. l O each, fully paid up 

- 12,03,033 (31 March 2022: 12,03,033) equity shares of Intime Properties 
Limited ofRs.10 each, fully paid up 

-1,78,00,000 (31 March 2022: 1,78,00,000) equity shares of K. Raheja IT 
Park (Hyderabad) Limited of Rs. IO each, fully paid up 

- 81,513 (31 March 2022: 81,513} equity shares ofMindspuce Business Purks 
Private Limited of Rs. IO each, folly paid up 

Total 

As at 
JO June 2022 
(Unaudited) 

9,482 

0 

6,868 

13,121 

33,722 

15,478 

25,618 

48,814 

1,53 103 

As at 
3 I March 2022 

(Audited} 

9,482 

0 

6,868 

13,121 

33,722 

15,478 

25,618 

48,814 

I 53, l03 

Note: The Tnist had issued units as considcrotton to acquire these investments wherein the tradable REIT Unit 
has been issued at Rs 275 each. 

Refer Note I for details of% shareholding in the SPVs held by Mmdspacc REIT. 



MlN DSPACE BUSINESS PAR KS REIT 
llN: IN/llEIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Standa lone Fina ncial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise sta ted) 

s 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Loa ns (Non cur rent) 

Parliculars 

Unsecured, co11s/dered goo<I 
Loan to SPVs- refer Note 31 

As a t 
30 J une 2022 

21,273 

21,273 

Asal 
31 March 2022 

21,268 

21,268 

Note : Mindspace REIT has given loan amounting Rs. 13,020 million during the quarter ended 30 June 2022 (3 1 March 2022 Rs. 
26,6 11 million) to Gigaplex, Avacado , Horizonview, Sundew, KRC Infra, MBPPL and KRIT and the outstanding balance as at end 
of 30 June 2022 is Rs.21,273 million (3 1 Maroh 2022 Rs.26,268 mil.lion, Including Loans to SPV's of current nature amounting to 
Rs.5,000 million). 
Security· Unsecured 

Interest : 7.22 % for the quarter ended 30 June 2022 (3 1 March 2022 - 7.10% - 7.50% per annum) in accordance with interest rate 
policy as adopted by Mindspuce REIT. 

Terms of repayment: 
a) Bullet repayment of Rs.9,858 million on date falling 15 years from the first disbursement date or such other date as may be 
mutually agreed between the Lender and the Borrower in writing. (31 March 2022 - 9,853 mill ion) 

b) Bullet repayment of Rs.5,000 mill ion is made on 29 April 2022 during the quarter ended 30 June, 2022. The same was classified 
as current loans as on 31 March 2022 (refer note 9) (31 March 2022 - 5,000 million) 

c) Bullet repayment ofRs.4,470 million is due on 17 May 2024. (3 1 March 2022 - 4,470 million) 
d) Bullet repayment Rs.1,980 million is due on 16 December 2023. (3 1 March 2022 • 1,980 million) 

e) Bullet repayment of Rs.4,965 million is due on 31 December 2024. (31 March 2022 - 4965 million) 

f) At nny time prior to the repayment date, the Borrower rn.1y on any date, prepay the whole or any part of the loan outstunding, 

Other financia l assets (Non-cu rrent) 
P111·t lculnrs 

I l11rer 11rpd r nnsir/Pr,•rl <mod 
Interest receivable on loan to SPVs 
Other Receivables from related parties 
De oslts 

Other Non-current assets 
Particulars 

Pre pa id Expenses 

Current In assets (net) 

Particulars 
Advance tax, net of provision for tax 

Loans (Current) 
Particulars 

U11sec11red, co11sldered good 
Loan to SPVs- refer Note 5 and 31 

As at 
30 J une 2022 

306 
26 

I 
333 

As at 
30 June 2022 

4 
4 

As at 
30 J unc2022 

As at 
30 June 2022 

As al 
31 March 2022 

243 
18 

I 
262 

As al 
3 I March 2022 

4 
4 

As at 
31 March 2022 

As UI 

31 March 2022 

5,000 

5,000 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:TN/REIT/19-20/00J 
Noles to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise staled) 

JO Cash a nd cash equivalents 
Particulars 

Cash on hand 
Balances with banks 

- in current accounts• 
- flXed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 

As at 
JO J une 2022 

2,898 

2,898 

*Includes balance with banks of Rs 0 million (JI March 2022: R s. I million) for Unpaid distributions. 

11 Other current financial assets 

Parliculars As at 
JO June 2022 

Unsecured, considered good 
Interest receivable on loan lo SPVs 0 

Other Receivables 14 
De osits I 

15 

12 Other current assets 
Particulars As at 

JO June 2022 

Unsecured, considered good 
Advance for supply of goods and rendering of services s 
Prepaid Expenses 15 
Balances with government authorities 

2 1 

Asal 
31 March 2022 

2,814 

2,814 

Asat 
JI March 2022 

559 

I 
S60 

As al 
31 March 2022 

.s 
3 
I 
9 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Nores to the Condcn!ed Standalone Financial Stutemcnts 
(all omounlS in Rs, million unless olben,•he 1lllled) 

13 Cor ,us 
Corpu• 

As al I April 2021 
Additions during the year 
As at 3 I March 2022 
A, al I April 2022 
Additions during the period 

Amount 

0 

0 
0 

0 

14 U11it Ca itnl 

Unit Capital No. 
59,30,18,182 

Amount 
l,62,839 As ot I April 2021 

Movemenl during the, year 
A .. t 31 March 2022 
A, at I April 2022 
Movement during tl,o period 
Clo,ing Balance a, at 30 Jut1e 202Z 

59,30,18,182 
59,30,18,182 1,62,839 

59,30,181182 

(n) Terms/riihts attached to units and oilier discl01urt• 

(b) 

Mindspace REIT has unly one closs of Unlu. EQch Uni\ reproscms an widivided bencficia.l interest i,1 Mindspace REIT. Each 
holder of Unlts is entitled to one vote per unit 11,c Unitl,oldcrs have tl10 right to roceive at least 90% of tho Net Distribu1able Cosh 
Flows of 1ho Tnisl at least once in every six montlis in each financial year in accordance with tl,e REIT Regulations. TI,o Board of 
Directors of tl,c Manager approves distributions. 11,e distribution wiU be in proportion 10 the nwnbor of Units hold by tl,e 
Unitltolders. Mindspace REIT declares and pays dislributlons in Indian Rupees. 

Under 1he provisions of the REIT Regulotions, Mindspaco REIT is required to dislribule to Unitholders not less 1han 90% of the net 
distributable cash Oows of Mlndspace REIT for each financiol year. Accordingly, a portion of lhe Unit Capital contains a 
contmclual obligo1i0n of die Mindspaco REIT to pay to iis Unitholde111 cash distribu1ions. Hence, the Unit Copilul is a compound 
financial instrument which contains equity and liability componenis in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: 
Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBl Circ1d0111 (No. C!R/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 and No. 
ClR/IMD/DF/141/2016 da1cd 26 December 2016) issued undor the REIT Regulations, lhe Unitholders' funds have been presented 
as "Equity" in order 10 comply witli the requiremcnls of Section Hof AnneXlll'C A to tl1c SEBI Circular dated 26 December 2016 
dealing with the minimwn presentation and disclosure requiremenis for key financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capilal being 
cluuified u1 equity, the distributions to Unitholdco il also proscnlcd in St,tement of Chang .. in Umtl,oldm' Equily when tbe 
distributions aro approved by the Governing Bonrd of the !nvc,,tmcnl Manager, 

Unitholdors hu!drnu more lh•n 5 11ercent Unit• in MlndsnAte REIT 
Namo o( the unltholdor Ai •t JO Jwia 2022 A• 01 31 March 2022 

Nouf lJrnta ~& liuidUlt!. Ill{} 0~ ~fl.1.1.l ~ hufd111i..: 

l'lnlinwn lllwniunlion A 2018 Trust 5,43,75,000 9.17% 5,4),75,UOO 9. 17% 

Anbce Constructions LLP 3,54.04,890 5.97% 3,54.04,890 5.97% 

ro~ Tro~lng I lP 1,54.04 R90 5.97% 3.54,04.890 5.97% 

Chandru Lachmnndas Raheja 3,65,13,210 6.16% 3,26,34,433 5.50% 

Capstan Trading LLP 4,10,95,719 6.93% 4.10,95,719 6.93% 

Casa Morie Properties LLP 4,68,20,719 7.90% 4,10,95,719 6.93% 

Palm Shelter Ealote Dcvolopmont LLP 4,10,95,719 6.93% 4,10,95,719 6.93% 

R<tghukool Estate Develope111ent LLP 4, 19,37,069 7.07% 3,62, 12,069 6.11% 

K Rahela Com Private Limhed 3 65 96296 6.17% 3 65 96 296 6. 17% 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:JN/REJl'/19-20/0Ql 
Notes to the Condenl'ed ScumJalone Financiul Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless othtnvise stnt~d) 

(c) Mindspace REIT has not ollotted nny fully paid-up wiits by way of bonus wiits nor bas it bous)1l back any class of wiits from tho 
dale of registration till the balance sheet date. Further, Mindspaco REIT has not issued any wiits for consideration otl,er tluw cash 
from the dote of rcgislnltion till the bolaoce sheet date, except us disclosed above. 

IS Other E ui 
Particulars Asal Asal 

16 

Re.rorves a11d Surpltil' 
Rctaiuc:d earnings• 

JO June2022 

2,987 
l 987 

31 March 2022 

2,919 
2 919 

•Rcfur Condensed Standalone Statement of changes in U1iit holder's Equity for detailed movement in 01hcr equity balances. 

Re1ained eorolnKS 
The cumulative s•in or loss arising from tho operations which is retained and is recognized and accwnulated under tho heading of 
re1ained earnings. At the end of the period, tho profit a0er tax is tronsfem,d from the sllllemenl of profit w,d loss to tl1e re1ained 
cmmings accmmt 

Dorrowin s 
Particulars 

10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxahlo, non-cumulotlve, mtcd, principnl protcc1cd 
- morlm linked, redeemoble, non-convertiblo dobcntures (''Market Ltnked Debenn1res / MLD 
Series 2") (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (referN010 2) 

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cwnulalivc, roted, rcdeemnblo non-convertible debentures 
(NCO Series I) (net of issue expenses, at amonised cost) (n,fer Note 3) 

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, rcdeemoblc non-convertible debentures 
(NCD Series 2) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (n,for No1c 4) 

Secured, listed, sen.for, taxable, non-cwnuJativc, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures 
(NCD Series 3) (nel of issue expenses, al amortised cost) (refer Nole S) 

As Pl 

30 Junol022 

J,732 

1,989 

750 

4957 
11,428 

As at 
31 Mnrch 2022 

3,730 

1,988 

750 

4 954 
11,422 

Note I : ln September 2020, Mindspnce REIT issued 5,000 10 year G-Soc linked secured, listed, g11ara111eed, senior, taxable, non• 
cumulnrive, rated, pnncipal pro1cc1ed - mmi<et linked, redeemable, non•convertible debenmrcs ("Market Linked Debentures / MLD 
Series I") having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs, 500,00,00,000 (Rupee• 6ve hundred 
c,ores only), The tcnw-c oftl,c said MLD Series I is 577 days from 29 September 2020, being date ofollotmcnt of the MLD Serie, 
I uu,l euupo,, if 011y .t,•ll b.. 1,ay0blo oo1 the Schooul•d Redemption Dnt~ i.e. on maturity on 29 April 2022. 111a coupon payo!f 
sll\lcture is linked 10 condition where d,e payoff will be fixed on the finnl fiiong date i.o, 30 March 2022. If identified 10 year 0-
Scc'• lu,I tmdcd price as on filull fixing dllto is gria1or lh;)J\ 2S% ofitJt lnSI tr:ld: d price as on initial fixing date i c 29 Scptelfl~r 
..,f,,,O 1i ,pr- will I f, ~n.•1 r yr id ...... ti~i:1 10 r r n ~itt'• fo-.1 tra j .,,,_-f ('riC'C' ~ nn n,,,.., A-~inr, ~='It~ j,, 1ro tr.1111 or t'"'111Sl ,n 

25% of its last tmded price os on initial fi><lng dnto, the coupon rate will be zero percent. As per the value~ report in respect of 
valwulon of MLD Series I, t)1e probability of occurrence of ,uch en event (last tmdcd price of identified IO year G-Sec on final 
ti,ang dnte beu,g le•• dUlll or equal to 25% of its las, traded price on iniual foong da1e) u remott •nd bone• d,c vah-, of the option 
cmns1di:red HS 2;Cf'o. 

This MLD Series I was listed on BSE Uuiited on 13 October 2020. Dunug tl,c pe1iod, principnl und interest is paid on 29 April 
2022, 

Security ter,,u· 
MLO Series I were secured by each of tho foliowing security in fovour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of tl1c 
Dobemurc Holdc!l); 
first tllld exclusive charge was registered by wny of simple mongngo (including reoeivnbles arising tl1erefrom) on lhe ogsNg1110 
leasablo areo of approximately 974,SOO Sq. Ft. or d1ereabouts in buildin115 110. 6, 7 and 8 of Comme1ZOnC Ycrownda (npprox. 
l 78,569 sq ll, in building no. 6, oppro1<- 371,799 sq, ll. in building no. 7 and approx. 424,132 in building no. 8) together wfth ll,e 
proportiona10 w1divided right, title and interest in the notionally dcinJll'1latod land admensuring flpproximn1cly 25,313 sq. mtrs on 
which the said three building no. 6, 7 and 8, oui ofall 1hosc pieces and parcels oflarger land are sin,alc, lying ond being in Vill,igt1 
Y ornwada, To Iuka Haveli, District Pw10 ("Mon gaged Properties") of MLD Series I. 

b) A charge on 1110 escrow •ccoun1 m which receivable, oflho Mongaged Prop<>nios of MBPPL would have been received, 

c) Corporate guarantee was executed by MBPPL. 
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R edemplio,r ftrlllJ': 

a) MLD Scrios I wero redeemable by way of bullet payme.nt at U1e end ofS77 days from tho date ofallooncm, i.e. 29 April 2022 
(refer noto I 8) 
b) The Coupon would have been increased by 25 bps for every no1ch downgrade in tho rating by tl1c Credit Rating Agency. ln case 
rating was upgraded after any rating downgrade, the Coupon would have been decreased by 2S bps for each upgrade, 11,e 
Investors were having the right to accelerate tl,e MLD Series I if tho raring was downgi-aded to A+. 

c) Upcn occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less U1an 30 (thirty) business days 
notice 10 the Issuer rcquin, U1c Issuer to redeem in full, aU the Debcnturos then oulstanding by paying an amount equal to the total 
mandatory redemption amount in respect of ei1ch Debenture. 

Note 2: In March 2021, Mindspacc REIT issued 3,750 10 year G-Scc linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, 11011-<1um11l11tive, rntcd, 
principal protected - market linllcd, redeemable, non•convertiblo debentun,s ("Market Linked Debenn1n,s / MLD Series 2") having 
fuce value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 37S,00,00,000 (Rupees Uuce hundred seventy five 
cron,s only). The tenure of tho said MLD Series 2 is 38 months from 18 March 2021, being date of ollotmcnt of the MLD Series 2 
and coupor~ if any shall be payable on the Scheduled Redemption Dato i.e. on maturity on 17 May 2024. The coupon poyolf 
structure is linked to condition where the payoffwlll be fixed on the final fixinB date i.e. 16 April 2024. lfidentffied JO year 0-Sec's 
Ja,t tr11dcd price .., on final fi:ung datr i• grcatrr thou 2s,~ of its last rrnded price as on initial Jixlf1i! d•te i c 18 Mnrch 2021, the 
coupon rote will be 6.65% p.a. If identified 10 year 0-Seo's last tmdod price as on finlll fixing date is less U1an or equal to 25% of 
its lost trod«l price a, on initial fixing dote, the coupon mto will be zero percent. As per the valuers report in respect of valuation of 
these MLD Series 2, the probability of occurrence of such an event (hlll tmded price of identified 10 year 0-Sec on finnl fixing date 
being less tbnn or equal to 25% of its last trndcd price on initial fixing dato) is remote and hence the value of the option considered 
ns zero. 

·11,;, MLD Series 2 was listed on SSE Limited on 22 March 2021. 

Security terms 
MLD Series 2 aro secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for ~,e benefit of the 
Debonture Holders): 
a) First ond excl11sivo ch.'ll'gc being crcoted by way of equitable mongage on the oggregate leasnblo arco of approl<irnatcly 13, 71,442 
Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no. 12A and Units of Building 128 of Mndlmpur, Hyderabad (approx. 12,69, 140 sq. ft. in 
building uo.12A and approx. 1,02,302 sq. ft in building no. 12B) together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest 
in tl,c notionally dcmnrcatcd land admoosuring approximately 29,842 sq. mtrs on which the said two b,ulding no.12A and 128, out 
of all those piece, 311d parcel• of larger lond th,it are situated, lying nnd being In Mnd.hapur Villa.ge, Serilingwnpally Mnndal, Rang• 
Reddy District, Hyderabad ("Mortgaged Properties"), for MLD Series 2. 

b) Pir>I rnnkmg exolus1ve charge created by w•y ofa hypctbeca11011 o\'er the Hypotbooatcd Propemco ofMLD Sencs l. 

c) A chllrge on the c.<crow account created, in which n:ccivables ofOic Mor1gagod Properties ofSundcw shall be received, S4\'e and 
=•pl any common area main1cnan0e .:hnrg.,. payable to Sundow wiU1 rcop:ct to the mointon,nco of the mongoged properties. 

,I) Corporate b'>Ummte~ exe~utcd by S1u1dew, 

Re1/cmprio11 ler11tr: 
n) MLD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet p~l llt the end of 38 months from the date of allotme.nl, i.e. 17 Moy 2024 

h) The Coupon "hall be inc,-cased by 15 bp• for overy notch downwadc in the ratU\A by the Cn,dit Roting AA•noy. In CtlSC ru1111g rs 
upgl'tldod ofter ony mtiog downgrade, U10 Coupon ~hrul be decrensed by 25 bps for each upgrade. Tho Investors shall have the right 
to accclcrntc the MLD Series 2 if the roting is down11mded to A+. 

c) Upcn occurn,nce of o mnndntory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuinij not less 01M 30 (thirty) butio~u <lays 
notice 10 tho Issuer require tho lmrer to redeem in full, ell U,e Debentures then outstondlng by poying ru1 amount cqunl to the totol 
mandatory redemption llJ110Unt in respect of each Debenture. 

d) Deu,ils ofdi.,closure required•• per SEBI oircullU' SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018nl doted 13 April 2018 and Reg1dat1011 
52 of the LODR ReauJotions arc as follows: 
Pnrticubrs Previow due date Neit due dote 

Pri.ne:inal lntcre,t Princhral tnterest 

10 year 0-Sec linked ••cured, li.1iiled1 senior, Not Applicable Not Applicable 011Mat11ri1y On Moturlty 
taxable, nOU'"'()Wllulntivc, rated, principal 
protected - man:et linked, redeemable, non-
convo11ibl0 debentures ("Market Linked 
Debenlutes / MI..O Series 2") 

e) Ralmg ogency CRISIL hos amgrn,d a roting of"CRlSIL Pl'-MlD AMr/Stablc" to Ml.D Sones 1 of th~ rssucr / M111dspace 
REIT. Subsequently there is no chnngo in tlie credit rating. 
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Note 3 : In Doccmber 2020, Mindspacc Business Porks REIT issued 2,000 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, 
redeemable, non-convertible debentures (''NCO Series I") having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupee, ten laklu only) each, 
amounting to Rs. 200,00,00,000 (Rupees two hundred croros only) with a coupon rate of 6.45% p.a. payable quartel'ly beginning 
from tl1e end of first full quarter from the date of allobnent i.e. 31 March 2021, with last coupon payment on tl1e scheduled 
redemption date Le. 16 Dece,ubcr 2023. TI1c tenure of the said NCO Series l is 36 molllhs from 17 December 2020, being date of 
allohncnt. 

This NCO Series I was listed on BSE Lintlted on 21 December 2020. 

Security /trn<f 

NCO Series I arc secured by cooh of the following security in fuvour of tho Debenture Trustee (holding for 0,e benefit of the NCO 
Holden): 

a) First nod •~elusive oharge registered by way of simple mortgage (Including receivnbles nri,ing therefrom) on the 11ggrogntc 
leasablc arce ot' approximately 414,599 Sq, FL or lhercebouu in building• no. I nnd S of Comnicrzono Ycmwada (approx. 43,200 
sq ft. in building no. 1 and approx. 371,399 in building no. S) together with tl1c proportio1t11tc widividcd right, 1iUc and interest in 
1hc notionally demarcated land admeosuring approximately 18,264 ,q. mtrs on which tho said two building no. I nnd S, oul of all 
those pieces aud parcels uf lllfllcr laud 11,at •re rnuated, lyu1ij w,d being in VillaijC Yof11wod., Thl!JM Ho•cli, Di.Irie, Punc 
("Mortgaged Properties") of NCO Series I. 

h) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties sholl be rooc,ved save and except nny conunon 
area rna.i111cnance charges payable to MBBPL with respect to the mnintonance ofU1e 111Qrtgagcd properties. 

o) Corporate guarantee cxccurod by MBPPL, 

Ro1/e111ptio11 lermr: 
a) NCO Series I ere redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of36 monlllll from tho date ofallobuont, i.e. 16 December 
2023, 

b) Interest is peyable on the last day of each financial quarter in o year (starting from 31 Marclt, 2021) until the scheduled 
redemption dote. 

c) The Coupon ,hall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rntiny by the Credit Rating Agency. In co,o rating•• 
upgraded ell er 1111y rating downgrnde, the Coupon slmll be decreased by 25 bps for cnch upgrade, 

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption oven~ the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 10 (thirty) business 
doys' notice to the Issuer require the Issuer to redeem in full, ell the debentures then outsuu\du1g by paying w, 8JJ1Qllnt equal to the 
total mandatoiy redemption nmowlt in respect of each debenture, 
e) Details of disclosure n:quired os per S!:BI dreular SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CTR/P/2018n J doted 13 April '2018 and Regulation 
52 ofU1e LODR ReJZUlattons are as Jbl lows : 
Particvlur.s Pre.viCH.L!I due dote Ned due d11le 

Prlneiool lntcreat Princinal Interest 
Scctucd, listed, senior, tnxablc, non-cumulntiv~. Not Applicnblc 30 Jw,e2022 On Maturity 30 September 
roted, J'Odeemable noo•com1'rtiblo dtbentures 2022 
(NCO Series I) 

f) Raling agency CRISIL hos assiHncd u ratill8 of "CRISIL AANStublo" lo die NCO Series I of i11e i»ua, I Mu,dspac~ REIT. 
Subsequently there ,s no change m the credu rahng, 

Noto ,I: In March 2021, Mindspac:e Businos, P:irks REIT ilsued 750 scc\ll'l'd, listed, ,enior, taxable, non-cwnulotlve. rated, redeemable, non• 
convertible Jebcnturcs ("NCO Series 2'') having fii<» voluo of Rs. L0,00,000 (Rupees ten lalchs only) each, amounting to R1. 
?5,00,00,000 (Rupees seventy five crorcs only) with a coupon ruto of 6.6861% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from 11,e end of 
fir.;t foll quarter from the date ofollotmonl i.e. 30 Juno 2021, with ln<t coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 17 
May 2024.1ll0 tenure of tho said NCO Series 21., 38 111011018 &om 18 Mo,rch 2021, being date ufullounenl. 

This NCO Series 2 wns l.isted on BSE Limited on 22 Mo,rch 2021. 

Sec11ri/y terms 
NCO Series '2 ore secured by onch of the following ,ccurity in favour orn,e Debenture Tmnec (holding for the benefit oftl,o NCO 
Molders): 
a) Fim w1d c,olusive charge boins regi,aered by way of simple mongage (including receivables arising therefrom) on tl,e •Sll"'S•le 
lell.lablo urea of npproxirnatoly 151,460 Sq. FL or tl1creobouts in building no. 4 of Commerwne Ycrawnda together wftl1 the 
proportionate undivided right, title and intel'CSt in the notionally Jcmnrcntcd land admcosuring appro,omntoly 9,561 ,q. 111tr& on 
which the said building, out of all those piece, and pnrcels oflnrgor lru1d that arc situnted, lyu,g wul being in Village Yerawada, 
Taluka Haveli, District Pune ("Mortgnged Propertie,") of NCO Series 2. 

b) A chllJl!c on tho escrow account to be created, in which rccclvablcs of the Mortwed Properties shall be received, save ond 
except any conuuon arcn maintenance chnrges poyablc to MBPPL wi~, respect to the mnintennnco oftlte 111ortgogod properties. 

c) Coljlorote guarwu .. executed by MBPPL. 



MINPSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN; IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Stondnloue Financiul Statement! 
(all amounlS In Rs. mllllon unless olhrnvise s tot<d) 

Re//•mp/1011 ltmlY: 
a) NCD Series 2 are redeemable by wuy of bullet repayment at the end of38 months from tl1c dole ofallotmont, i.e. 17 May 2024. 

b) Interest is payable on the last day ofoach ffruu1cial quarter in a year (storti11g fi-om 30 June, 2021) unh1 the scheduled redemption 
date. 

c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in 1hc raring by the Credit Raring Agency. b, case rating is 
upgroded ofter any rotlng downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade,. 

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redcmp1ion event, the Debentw'o Truslcc may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business 
days' notice to tl,e Issuer require Ilic Issuer to redeem in fi,ll, all u,e debennires then ou1s1ondlng by paying an amounl equal to the 
101al mandutory redemption 011101ml in respect of oach dobcnnire. 

e} Details ofdisclo,ure required•• per SEB! circular SEBI/HOIDDHS/DDHS/ClR/P/2018nl duted 13 April 2018 and Regidorion 
52 of the LODR Rcg11lntions are as follows · 
Parriculan Previous due dale Neid due dale 

PrinciosJ lutcrut Princinal Jntcrest 

St'C.l11ed, tisted1 senior, tnxnble, nQo-.ourT111J91ivo1 Nno AJ)l)licGble 30 June 2022 On Mo1uri1y 30 Scp1c1nber 
rnu:d. rc:dee1nablc non•conver1iblc debentures 2022 

(NCO Series 2) 

. 
f) Ralfng agency CRJSIL has assigned a ralmg of"CRIS!L MNStable" to u,e NCD Series 2 of the 1eo.s11or I Mmdspace REIT . 
Subsequcnlly tJ,cre i, 110 change in 01e credit rating. 

Note 5: In February 1022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 5,000 senior, Ii sled, rated, secured, oon-cwnulo1ivo, taxable, 
tninsferable, redeemable, non-convertible debennires ("NCD Series 3''} having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) 
each, runo,mting lo Rs. 500,00,00,000 (Ru11ees five hundred crores only) with a coupon m10 of 6.35% p.a. Conpon on the 
ou1s1nnding Nominal value of coch debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day ,be proraled on an actuoV actual 
basis for the ach1al number of days in the Coupon Period and bo payable in nm,ars on tho relevant Coupon Payament dote to lhc 
Dcbenlure Holder whose name is nppcaring on tho Regis1cr of Beneficial Owners as on tho Record Date, The Issuer hereby 
aknowledges and agrees tl,al !here slmll be no moratorium period for lhc paytnellt ofCoupon,TI10 first Coupon paymenl Dole shnll 
be 3 1 Mllfch 2022, will, lasi coupon paymenl on tlie scheduled redemplion dale i.e. 31 December 2024. The tenure oflhc said NCD 
Se,ies 3 is 3S months fi-om l February 2022, being da10 of ll.llotm<nt. 

Thi• NCD Scnes 3 was listed on BSE Limilod on February 04, 2022 

Stcurir;y terms 
NCO Sc,iu 3 ., , ••c111<d 1,y cnch of tho: fullowlng i.,.;:urity in llivour of tho Dcbentur~ Tru.too (holding for U,~ h~nelit nf the NCO 
II ) In). 
n) First nnd •~elusive churgc being registered by wny of simple mortgnge on lhc corpct area of npproximn1cly 5,52,974 Sq. fL ( 
•uve and except entire 2nd 0oor ndmcasuring 11,883 Sq. Ft. cnrpet tll'Oa \II building no, 2) (tho building no. 2 ) situalcd on the 
Mortgage land along wnh proportiono1e covered Md open parking •paces, m Building 2 1ogclher with all tl,e beneficial rights, 1i1lo 
und 1ntcrost ot tlie Asms ~l'V m appuncnnnt In llrnldmg 2 and nil on,c1101u, Toe Bu,Jdjng 2 i1 s i1w11cd on a po1uu11 01 the 
Mcrti;agc l.ru,d edmoo, nring 8.04 Homw.s, which portion iJ uolilicd !Iii • Special l'con<ll11ic Z<lne & lir,1 nnd t'ttla,,h10 cl1orge 
being regiJtored by woy ofsimplo n1ortgngo on tho identified uni1s with aggn:goling to carpel area of oppro><imolely ~.61,527 Sq, FL 
(identified wtits of building no. 3 ) sinwtcd on 1hc Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in 
Building 3 together with 1111 UlC beneficial rights, title w,d interest of tho Auet, SPV in nppw1enMl lo Building 3 and nil crcctlom 
("Mortgaged Properties") ofNCD Series 3 as funher do1uiled in trunsacuon documenls. 
A first ranking pnri pn.ssu charge by way of • simple mortgage over tho Mortgaged Land us furtl,er detailed in transncrion 
documents, 

b) A charge on tlto escrow account to be cn,atcd, in which receivables of the Mortgogcd Properties shall be received, save and 
except nny common area mnintcnunco cluuKcs payable to GIGAPLEX with respec1 to lhe muinteruu1cc oftl,c mortgoged properties. 

c) Corporote gu11rnn1ee cxecu1cd by GIGAPLEX. 



MJNDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN :IN/REIT/I 9-20/(l0J 
Notes Jo Jhe Comlensed Standolone Financial Stu1•rucots 
(all amounlll in R,. million unless othonvi.se slated) 

Redemptio11 terms: 
a) NCD Se,ies 3 are redeemable by way of bullet repaymenl nt the end of JS montl1s from the dale of allotmenl, i.e. 31 December, 
2024. 
b) l11leres1 is payable on lho last day of each financial qWlrter in a year (slarting from 3 1 March, 2022) unlil tl1e scheduled 
rcclemption date. 
b) lnleresl is payable on the last day of each financial quaner in a year (staning from 31 March, 2022) w1til tl1e scheduled 
redemplion date. 
d) Upon occurrence of a mru1dato,y redemption evem, the Dobemure Trustee may, by issuing nol less than 30 (thiny) business 
days' notice to the Issuer require tl,e Issuer 10 redeem in full, all !he debenlures tl1en outstanding by paying an an10um equal to O,o 
101al mandalo,y redemplion amount in rcspccl of each dcbcntwc. 

e) Details of disclosure required as perSEBI cireular SEBI/HO/DDI-IS/DDMS/CIR/P/2018nJ daied 13 April 2018 and Regula1ion 
52 of the LODR Regulations arc as follows : 

PnrticuJars 
P're"1om due date Next due date 

Prlncioul Interest Prlnclnol loterest 

Secured. listed, senior, texnble:1 oon-cumulotivc:.. Not Applicnblo 30 J,mo 2022 On Mal\1rity 30 Septcmbor 
raicd, redeemublo non-conveniblo debentures 2022 
(NCO Series 3) 

f) Rating agency CRJSIL has assigned• rating of"CRISIL AAA/Stable" to U•• NCO Series 3 of tl,e i.,suer/ Mindspace REIT. 

Refer Note 36 for Ratio disclosure. 

17 Olhcr linanci•I li•bilirics ( Non Current) 
Partitulnr& As ot As at 

18 

Interest accrued bul not duo on dcbemures 
0 1her pnyablos to rela1od party 

Borrowings (current) 
Purdculars 

Sec11rtd 
Current nuuurili1:1 oi 1oog-h1rm titoi 
10 ycnr 0-Sec linked soclll'Cd, lis1ed, guammeed. senior, 1axable, no11-<1urnulutive, rated, 
vrin-ipi,I protected - 11111rket linked, n:dOfflllllllc, non-<lonveruble dobmlllf<i ("Mnrlict Linked 
DI,, '"'l~lf')O. I")(• f, ~ , n, ti J i(P " lf.i(I)) 

JO June 2022 

As ot 

322 
16 

338 

JO June 2022 

3 1 March 2022 

As • t 

2S8 
13 

27 1 

31 Mnn,h2022 

4,997 

4997 

19 Tr•d• payables ________________________________ ____ _ 

Particulars 

Trade payable 
- Total oulstanding dues lo mlcro and small enterprises 
-Tota} ou1sta11di11g dues other Uum m.icro and small enterprises 

ZO Other linuncl•I llubllhles (current) 
Particular, 

21 

Interest accrued bul not due on debentures 
Interest Accrued and due on others 
Unpaid Dislribu1ion1 
Otlicr liabilities 
- to related party• 
- to otl,ers 

• Refer 11010 31 for related party note for ammmt payable to the Manager. 

Olher current llabilltit11 

Porticulors 

Statuto dues 

22 Currrnt tn llabiliri .. 
Particulan 

Pro\lision for Income Tax (Net of Advnnce T~) 

As ot Asat 
30 Jw,e 2022 31 March 2022 

I I 
12 9 
IJ 10 

A, DI Asot 
JO June 2022 31 March 2022 

I 523 
0 0 
(I 

34 36 

J S SGO 

Asnl As at 
JO June 2022 3 I March 2022 

4 

Asat Asal 
30 Juno 2022 JI Mon:h 2022 

3 
3 
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(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

23 Interest Income 
Particulars For the qunrtcr For the quarter For the quarter For the year 

ended ended ended ended 
30 June 2022 31 March 2022 30 June2021 31 March 2022 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) 

Interest income 
- on fixed deposits 0 2 0 2 
- on loans given to SPV s {refer note 31} 432 446 425 1,675 

432 448 425 1,677 

24 Other Income 
Parlicuh1rs For the quarter For the quarter For the quarter For the year 

ended ended ended ended 
30 June2022 31 March 2022 30 June 2021 31 March 2022 
(Una1111itcd) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) 

Guarantee Commission Fees from SPVs 7 4 (3) 9 
Gain on redemetion of mutual fund units 1 0 I 2 

8 4 2 II 

25 Other ex2enses 
Particulars For the quarter For the quarter f'or the quarter For the year 

ended ended ended ended 
30 June 2022 31 March 2022 30 June 2021 31 Murch 2022 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) ( Unaudited) (Audited) 

Bank charges 0 (0) 0 0 

riling 11J1d stamping fees 6 3 5 14 
l,oydlt) Chd1g~, 0 
Marketing and advertisement expenses 0 0 0 

Brokerage Expenses 0 
wkmb~r,hip & sub,ctiption charges C I 

Mistcll:in:::ous exi:enscs l 0 7. 

7 4 5 17 

26 Finance costs 
Pnrticulors For lhc quarter For the quarter for the quarter For the year 

ended ended ended ended 

30 June 2022 31 March 2022 30 June 2021 31 March 2022 
(Unnuditcd) (Unaudited} (Unaudited) (Audited) 

Interest expense on debentures (refer Note 
16) 225 257 200 866 

Guarantee commission charges I I I 

226 258 200 867 

27 T aJ: ex cnse 

Particulars For the q1111rter For the quarter For the quarter For the yeur 

ended ended ended ended 
30 June 2022 31 March 2022 30 June 2021 31 March 2022 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) 

Current tax 3 3 6 

Deferred tax char11e 
J 3 6 



28 Earnings Per Unit (EPU) 
Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to unit holders by lhe weighted average number of 
units outstanding during the period. Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to unit holders by the 
weighted average number of units outstanding during the period plus tl1e weighted average number of units that would be issued on 
conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital. The units of the Trust were allotted to Sponsor Group and Blackstone 
entities on 30 July 2020 and to the applicants of initial public offer on 4 August 2020. 

The following reflects the profit and unit data used in lhe basic and diluted EPU computation 

Particulars For the quarter For U1e quarter for the quarter for the year 
ended ended ended ended 

30 June 2022 31 March 2022 30 June 2021 3 I March 2022 
(Una11dited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) 

Profit aller lax for calculaung basic and 
diluted BPU 2,802 2,752 2,782 11,030 
Weighted averQge number of I Jnits (Nos) 59,30,18. 182 59,30,]8,182 W,30, 18, 182 5910, I 8, IR?. 
Earnings Per Unit 
• Basic (Rupees/unit) (not annualised) 4.72 4.64 4,69 18.60 
- Diluted (Rueees/unit) (not annualisedt 4.72 4.64 4.69 18.60 
•Mindspace REIT docs not have any outs landing dilutive units 

29 Management Fees 
Pursuant to the lnve.slmenl Management Agreement dnted 21 November 2019, the M,urnger is entitled to fees@ 0.5% of REIT Net 
Distributable Cash Flows which shall be payable either in cash or in units or a combinalion of both, at the discretion of the Manager. 
The fees has been determined for undertoking management of the REIT nnd its investments. The REIT Management fees accrued for 
the quarter ended 30 June 2022 is Rs. 17 million (Rs. 16 Million and Rs. 64 Million for the quarter and year ended 31 Murch 2022). 
There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation offees paid to the Investment Manager. 

30 Assessment of possible Impact resulting from Covid-19 pa111lemlc 
Mindspacc REIT has considered tJ1e possible effects lhat may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-l 9 on the operations and 
carrying nmounts of Loans given, Investments and other assets .. Mindspace REIT, !IS at the date of approval of these tinancrnl 
stalcments, has used internal and external sources of information to determine the expected fulure impact of COVID-19 pandemic on 
the performance of the Company Mindspace REIT based on current estimates expects tl1e carrying amount of the assets t0 he 
recovered. I fowever, due to the evolving nature of the pandemic and its response by various government authorities Mindspace REIT 
will ~ontinue 10 rnonito1 tlcl'dupmcni:. lo idcnlify ~1gniiiclllll impucb, if uny, on tl1c up~1.itionh. 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:l N/REIT/ 19-20/003 
Notes lo the Condensed Sl~ndalone Financial Statement§ 
(nil amounts In Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

31 Related party disclosures 

A Parties to Mlndspace REIT as al 30 J une 2022 

SI. No. Particulars Name or Entitles 
1 Trustee Axis Trustee Services Limited 

2 Manager K Raheja Corp ~1Vcs1ment Managers LLP 

3 Aube• Consla uclions LLP 

Spomors -
4 Cape Trading LLP 

s Mr. Chandru L, Raheia 
6 Mr. Ravi C. Rahcin 

_]_ Mr. Neel C. Raheia 
8 Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja - Ms. Sumatf Raheja (w.e.f. 30 September 2021 l 9 -
10 Capsla11 Ttadiug LLP 

-
lJ Sponsors Group CU9a Mona Properties LLP 

~ 

12 Raghukool 8state Developement LLP 

-
ll Palm Sheller Eslate Development LLP 

K. Raheja Corp Pvt Lid. 

14 Sponson Group 

Promoters/Partners• D irectors 
. . 

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 

. 

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja 
Ms. Sumati Raheja (w.e.f. I October 2021) 

. 
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C, Raheja 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja . 
. -
. . 
. . 

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja 
Mr. Cbandru L. Raheja 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja . 
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr, Neel C. Raheja 
Mr. Chand11.1 L. Raheja 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Rllheja . 
Mr, Ravi C. Rahcj8 
hii.t, i.,1;..(,I (..., Karn.,j"' 
Mr. Chnndru L. Raheja 
Mrs Jyoti C. Raheja . 
Mr, Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Neel C. Ruheja 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja 

Mr, Chnndru L. Raheja Jointly with 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja 

Mrs, Jyoti C. Raheja Jointly with 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Ravi C. Raheja 

Neel C. Raheja 
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with Ramesh Valecha 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly wi01 Ramesh 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Ranganthan(Appoi 

nted w.e. f. 7th July, 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with 2021) 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with Sunil 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Hingorani(Appointe 

d w.e.f. 7th July, 
Anbee Conslructions LLP 2021) 
Cape Trading LLP Vinod N. Rohira 
Capstan Trading LLP (Cessation w.e.f71h 
Casa Maria Propc11ies LLP July, 2021) 
Raghukool Estate Developemenl LLP 
Prum Sheller Estate Development LLP 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with 
Mr. RarneshM. Valccha 



MrNDSPACE BUSINllSS PARKS REIT 
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(nil amounts in Rs. million unless othcnvise stated) 

31 Related ()arty dl.'lclosures 

A Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 30 June 2022 

. Particulars SI. No Name or Entilies 

IS ivory Property Trnsl 

I-

Sponsors Group 

16 Genexl Hardware & Parks Pvt. Ltd. 

1. Avacado Properties and Trnding (India) 
Private Limited 

2. Glgaplex Estate Private Limited 
3. Horizonview Properties Private Limited 

17 Names of SPVs / subsid ia ries 4. KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private 
Limited 

5. lntirne Properties Limited 
6. Sundew Properties Limited 
7, K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
8. Mindspacc Business Parks Private Limited 

Governing .Bonni 
Mr. Deepa.k Ghaisos 
Ms. Man1sha Guoua 
Mt. boul>y rurtl..h 
Mr. Alan Mlynsalel {resigned w.e.f 27 December 
2021) 

Coyerniog Board and Ke)' Mr. Manlsh Kejriwal (appointed w. e. f 2 l'fblllllry 

18 
Mtmngerlal Personpet of the 2022) 
Manager (K Rehejll Corp Mr. Ravi C. Raheja 
Investment Managers 1..LP) Mr. Neel C. Raheja 

Ke~ Mnnag~(i•l Personnel 
Mr. Vi nod Rohira (Cbief Executive Officer of K 
Raheja Corp lnvestment Mnnugers LLP) 
Ms. Preeti Chheda (Chief Flna.ncfal Officer of K 
Raheja Corp lnvestment Managers LLP) 

Promoters/Partners• Directors 
Ch11ndru L. Raheja 
Jyoti C. Raheja 
Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Ltd 
Ravi C. Rahaja 
Neel C. Raheja 
(all are trustees) 

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with Ravi C. Raheja 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with N11el C. Raheja 
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Ramesh Valecha 

Ramesh 
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly wiU1 RanganU1an{w.e.f. 
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with 20th April, 2021) 
Mts. Jyoti C. Raheja 
Chandru L, Raheja jointly with Jyoti C. Raheja, 
on behalf of the beneficiaries oflvory Property 
Trust. 
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31 Related 11ar1y disclosures 

A Parties to Minds pace REIT as at 30 June 2022 

St. No. Particulars Name or Entities 

Brookfields Agro & Development Priva1e Limited 
Cavalcade Properties Priva1c Limited (till 24 
December 2021) 

·Entities controlled/jointly Grange Hotels And Properties Private Limited 

controlled by members of 
immense Properties Private Limited 19 Governing Board/Key 

Managerial Personnel or the Novel Properties Private Limited 

Manager Pact Real Estate Private Limited 
ParadiAm Logistics & Distribution Privme 
Sustain Properties Private Limited 

Aqualine Real Estate Privalc Limited 
Feat Properties Private Limited 
Carin Properties Private Limited 
Asterope Properties Private Limited 
Content Properties Private Limited 
Grandwell Properties And Leasing Private 
Sundew Real Eslate Private Limited 
Gcncoval Strategic Services Private Limited 

Stemode Biotech Private Limited 
tlariom Tnfrafacilities Services Private Limited 
Mis Bobbv Parikh & Associates 

• onlv when actm~ collechvelv 

Promoters/Partners• Directors 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
HN: l N/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless othenvise stated) 

3 1 Related party d isclosures 

D Transactions during the period 

l l11~ec11red losins given to Sl'Vs 
A vacado Properties and Trading Pvt. Ltd. 
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 
Horizonview Properties Pvt. Ltd. 
Sundew Properties Limited 
KRC infrastructure wid Projects Private Limited 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 

Unsecured loans repaid by SPVs 
A vacado Properties and Trading Pvt. Ltd. 
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 
Horizonview Properties Pvt Ltd. 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
KRC Infrastructure Md Projects Private Limilcd 
K. Rahejn IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 

Trustee fee expenses 
A1'.IS I ruslee Services Luruted 

Dividend Income 
In time Properties Limited 
Sundcw Properties Limited 
K. Raheja IT Pllfk (Hyderabad) Limited 
A vacado Properties and Trading (India) Private I ,imi1ed 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 

Interest Income** 
Avacado Properties and Trading (]ndia) Private Limited 
Oigaplex Estate Private Limited 
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
Mindspacc Business Parks Private Limited 
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 

Reimbursement of Ex.1,cnscs 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP* 

For the quarter 
ended 

JO June 2022 
(Unaudited) 

1,890 
6,260 

710 
420 

2,870 
100 
770 

4,580 
5,035 

540 
5,510 

750 
1,410 

190 

392 
436 
614 
468 
725 

44 
128 
88 
68 
12 
85 

7 

5 

For the quarter For the quarter For the year 
ended ended ended 

31 March 2022 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) 3 I March 2022 
(Unaudited) (Audited) 

25 150 195 
1,708 680 5,368 
5,092 250 5,992 

400 750 
1,520 1,180 4,800 
3,750 1,040 8,940 

266 566 

160 150 400 
650 680 3,910 

4,610 180 5,440 
1,430 1,040 4,970 

400 420 4,140 
400 830 2,440 
120 220 

2 

401 508 1,798 
445 694 2.252 
623 685 2,688 
500 860 
620 700 2,740 

69 78 297 
106 97 407 
87 87 340 
50 26 141 
17 '76 153 

113 61 329 
6 JO 

3 3 10 

•Includes fees paid to Mis Bobby Parikh & Associates an10unting to Rs, Nil for the qu~rter ended 30 June 2022 and Rs 3 million for the year ended 31 
March 2022. 
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31 Related party disclosures 

B Transactions during the period 

lnvl'stmcnt Management Fees 

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 

Gu11rantcc commission fees from SPV 

KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 
Sundcw Properties Limited 
Mindspacc Business Parks Pvt Ltd 

Guarantee commillion fees to SPY 
Sundew Properties Limited 
Mindspacc Business Parks Pvt Ltd 
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 

No11 cnsh fra11~nrlions 
Corporme Guarantee extended 10 Sundew Properties Limited 

towards Debentures issued 
C ''I' ,11. (\ ~, f ,. ~ le U J t., (,jg IJ:,k ~ D t!lk r riv11t 
Limited towards Debentures issued 
Corporate Guarantee extended lo 'Mindspace Business P11rks 
Pvt Ltd towards Bonds issued 

0 aner Ind AS Adjustments 

For the qm1rter 
ended 

30 June 2022 
(Unaudited) 

17 

2 
0 
3 
4 

4,900 

For the quarter 
ended 

3 I March 2022 
(Unaudited) 

L6 

7 

5,000 

For the quarter For the year 
ended ended 

30 June 2021 (Unaudited) 3 I March 2022 
(Audited) 

16 

(2) 
(I) 
0 
0 

64 

2 
0 
6 
2 

4 

7 

4 000 

.5,0()() 



MINDSPACE llUSTNESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(a ll amounts in Rs. million unless olhcn vise stated) 

31 Related party disclosures 

C Closing Balances 

Par ticulars 

Unsecured loan receivable (non-current) 
Mindspaoe Business Parks Private Limited 
Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited 
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
Horiionview Properties Private Limited 
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 

Unsecured loan receivable (current) 
Mlndspacc Business Parks Private Limited 
Avacado Properties and Trading (Indio) Private Limited 
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 

Investment io equity shares ofSPVs 
Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited 
Gigaplex Es)ate Private Limited 
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Ptivate Limited 
lnlime Proper1ics Limited 
Sundew Proper1ies Limited 
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
Mindspacc Business Parks Private Limited 

Interest receivable (non-current)* 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 
C.in~pkx Fstflt P Priv1\te I imited 
Sundew Propcr11es Limited 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 
Avacado Properties nnd Ttading (India) Private Limited 
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 

interest receivable (current) 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 
Avaclldo Properties and Trading (lndia) Privale Limited 

Gu11rantee commision fees receivable (non-current) 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
Mindspuce Business Parks Pvt Ltd 

Other Financial Liabilities (non-current) 
Sundew Properties Limited 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 
Gignplex Eslate Private Limited 

As 11t Asat 
30 June 2022 31 March 2022 

1,330 6,340 
1,203 1,723 
7,503 3,848 
4,680 3,220 

420 750 
5,212 5,041 

926 346 

400 
2, 170 
2,430 

9,482 9,482 
13,121 13,121 

0 0 
6,868 6,868 

15,478 15,478 
33,722 33,722 
25,6 I 8 25,618 
48,814 48,814 

77 52 
32 19 

161 150 
26 16 
10 6 

45 
272 
242 

11 8 
0 1 
7 7 
6 2 

6 5 
3 0 
7 8 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Sta 11dalo11e Financial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless othenvise stated) 

31 Related party disclosures 

C Clos ing Balances 

Parlic1dars 

Other Financial Liabilities (curreol) 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 
M/s Bobby Parikh & Associates 

Co-Sponsor Jnltlal Corpus 
Anbee Constructions LLP 
Cape Trading LLP 

Corporate guarantees outst~nding 
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 
M!ndspnce Business Parks Private Limited 
Sundew Properties Limited 
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 

Corporate guarnntee extended by Sundew towards debentures 
Sundcw Properties Limited 

Corporate guarantee extend ed by MBPPL towards debentures 
Mindspacc Business Parks Private Limited 

Corporate guMrnntce extended by GIGAPLEX towards debentures 
Gigaplcx Estute Private Limited 

•afior Ind AS Adjustments 

As at 
30 June 2022 

34 

0 

0 
0 

1,13 1 
6,741 
7,277 
5,435 

3,750 

2,750 

5,000 

As at 
3 1 March 2022 

28 
8 
0 

0 
0 

1,140 
1,903 
7,315 
6,170 

3,750 

7,750 

5,000 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(1111 omounts in R.,, million unless otherwise stated) 

36 In uccordonce with SEBI {LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS} REGULATIONS, 2021 and Other requirements as per 
SEBI circular (Nu. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/20 18171 doted 13 April 2018) for issuance of debt securitie.1 by Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) 
and Infrastructure Investment Trusts (JnvJTs)., Mindspace REIT has disclosed the following ratios: 

Ouarter ended Year ended 

For the quarter For the quarter For the quarter For the yenr 

Ratios 
ended ended ended ended 

30 June 2022 31 March 2022 30 Junc2021 31 Mu rch 2022 
(Unaudited) (Unoudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) 

a Securi1v / Asset cover IMLD Series I\ !refer note a(i\\ NA 2.13 2.20 2.13 

b Securilv / Asset cover /NCO Series I\ I refer note a/ii\\ 2.50 2.49 2.37 2.49 
0 Sccuritv / Asset cover /Ml n Series 2\ /refer note a(iii\\ 2.36 2.36 2.34 2.36 
d Securitv / Asset cover rNCD Series 21 /refer note a/iv)) 2.48 2.45 2.44 2.45 

e Securi1v / Asset cover INCP Series 3\ I refer note alv'1 2.16 2.16 NA 2.16 

f Pebl..:nuitv ratio /in times\ lrcfernote.b\ 007 0.10 O.o? 0.10 
e Debi service covera•e ratio lin times\lrefer note c) 13.44 11.68 14.94 13.72 

h Interest service covcm•e mtio fin times\ /refer noted\ 13.44 11.68 14.94 13.72 

i(i) Outstanding redeemable preference shnrcs (quantity and NA NA NA NA 
value\ 

i(ii) Capitol redemption reserve NA NA NA NA 

j Debenture redemption reserve (Amount in Rs. millions) NA NA NA NA 

k Net worth /Amount in Rs. millions\ I 65 826 I 65 758 I 65 719 I 65 758 
Iii\ Ne! nrofil after lax /Amount in Rs. millions\ 2 802 2 752 2 782 11 030 
l(ii\ Earn in es ner uni! - Basic 4.72 4.64 4,69 18.60 
m Earnin•s ner uni! - Diluted 4.72 4.64 4.69 18.60 
n Current Ratio /in times\ /refer note f\ 53.31 1.51 1.54 1.51 
<l Long tcrn1 debt (non current) 10 working capital (in limes) 

llrerer note h\ 
4.08 4.15 2.27 4.15 

p Bad debts to account receivable ratio (in times) (refer note I) NA NA NA NA 

3 Current liobilitv rnlio /in limes\ (refer note i\ 0.00 0.32 045 0.32 

r Total debt to lolal assets /in limes\ /refer nole i\ 0.07 0.09 0.67 0.09 

s Debtors Turnover (in times) (refer note k) NA NA NA NA 

I Inventory Turnover" NA NA NA NA 

u Uncralln• Mar-in 1,n %l l1cternotem• 9Y~u YY¾ 'i'.J10 7.l ">IJ 

V Ne! Profit Mnruin /in%) /refer note 11\ 91% 91% 92% 92% 

w Sc<:tor Specific ~quivaJent nllio• NA NA NA NA 

•Nol Applicable (NA) 
Fonnulae for computation of ratios are as follows basis condensed standalone financial stalements :-
a(i) Security/ Asset cover ratio (MLO Series I)= Fafr value of the secured assets as computt<l by 111dependenl valuers/ (O111s1and111g pnnc1pal wn0\1111 of 

MLD Series I + Interest accrued thereon) 
a(ii) Security/ Assel cover ratio (NCO Series I) ~ Lower of Fair value of 01e secured assets as computed by two independent valuers/ (Outstanding principal 

amount of NCO Series I + Interest accrued thereon) 

a(iii) Security I Asset cover ratio (MLO Series 2) - Fair volue of !he secured assets as computed by independent valuer/ (Outstanding principnl amount of MLD 
Series 2 + Interest accrued !hereon) 

n(iv) SC(:uri1y / Asset cover ratio (NCO Series 2) - Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / (Outstanding principal amount of 
NCO Series 2 + Interest accrued thereon) 

a(v) Security/ Asset cover ratio (NCO Series 3) ~ Fair value of 01e secured assets as computed by independent valuers/ (Outstanding principal nmmmt ol 
NCO Series 3 + Interest accrued thereon) 

b(i) Totnl Debi= Long lcnn borrowings+ Short tcrn1 borrowings+ Interest aeorued on debts (current and non-current) 
b(ii) Debi Equity Ratio - Total Debl/Totnl Equity 
c) Debi Service Coverage Ratio - Earnings before interest {nel of capitalizalion}, exceplionol items and lax I {lnlcresl expenses (net of capiializalion/ + 

Principal repayments made during the period which excludes bullet and full repayment of external borrowings) 
d) Interest Service Coverage Rotio - Eornin~s before interest {nel of capitalization}, oxccptionnl items tutd tax I (Interest expense (net of cap11alisn11on I) 

e) Ne! worth • Cmpus + Uni! capit.:11 + Other equity 
f) Current ratio - Current assets/ Current liabilities 
g) Long tcnn Debt= Long tcnn borrowings (excluding current maturities oflong lenn debt) + lnleresl accrued on debts (Non-cluTcnt) 
h) Long tenn debt to working a.,pital ratio - uinJ!' tenn dcbV worling capital (i.e. Current ussels less eunenl liabiJiti.,s) 
i) Current liability ratio = Current liabilities/ Total liabilities 

.1) Tomi debt to 10101 assets = T ma! debt/ 1'0101 assets 
k) Debtors Turnover• Revenue from operations (Annualised)/ Averago trade receivable 
I) Bad debts 10 account rcccivnblo ratio -Bad debts (including provision for doubtful debts)/ Average trade receivable 
111) Operuting margin~ (Earnings belbre interest {net of cap11aliza1io11}, oxoeplional Items and lax - Other income)/ (Interest Income • Dividend lnco111e) 
n) Net profit margin - Profit after exceptional itorns and tax/ Total rncome 



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT 
RN: IN/REIT/I 9-20/003 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Fitrnucial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stnted) 

32 Commitments and contingencies 
a) Statement of capital and other commitments 
i) Mindspace REIT has provided corporate guarantees for loans availed by Horizonview, KRC Infra, MBPPL and Sundew and the outstanding guarantee is Rs. 
20,584 million (31 March 2022 Rs. 16,528 million) 

33 Financial instruments: 
(a) The carrying value and falr value of finnnclal Instruments by categories are MS below: 

Carrying Carrying 

Particulars 
va lue* value* 

30 June 2022 
31 Mnrch 

2022 
Financial assets 
Fair value through profit and loss - -
Fair value through other comprehensive income - -

Amortised cost 
Loans (Non current) 21,273 21,268 
Loans (Current) - 5,000 
Cash and cash equivalents 2,898 2,814 
Other financial assets 348 821 

Total assets 24,519 ?9,904 

Financial liabilities 
Fair value through profit and loss - -
Fair value through othrr comprebensh•e income - -
Amortise<! cost 
Borrowings (Non Current) 11,428 11,422 
Borrowings (Current) 1,997 
uth1:1 I umu~a.•I huuthli~, .Id i!JO 

Trade payables 13 10 

Totnl liabilities 11,814 17,259 - -- ----•The management considers that the carrying amounts of above financial ltss.:ts and financial liabilities approximate their fair values. 

(b) Measurement of fnir values 
The section explains the judgement and estimates made in detem1ining the fair values of the financial instruments that are: 

a) recognised and measured nt fair value 

b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the Condensed Standalone financial statements. 

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, Mindspacc REIT has clnssificd its financial instruments into lhc thrcr 
levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below: 

Fair value hierarchy 
Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idcnlical assets or liabilities, 
Level 2 - lnputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. ns prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived 
from prices). 

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservabl<.: inputs). 

(c) Financial instruments 
Quantitalive disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as nt 30 June 2022: 

Particulars Total Level 1 Level l Level 3 

Financial assets & liabilities mc:1surcd at fair value 

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets us 11t 31 March 2022: 
Particulars Total Level l Level2 Level 3 

Financial assets & liabilities measured at fair value 

(d) Transfers between uvcl t, Level 2 and Level 3 
There were no transfers between Level l, Level 2 or Level '.l during tlle period ended 30 June 2022 and 31 March 2022. 



MINDSJ•ACF: BUSlNESS PARKS RErT 
RN: IN/REJT/19-201003 
Notes to the Condensed Sta ndalone Financial Statements 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

(e) Determination of fair values 
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been detennined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, 
further information about the assumptions made in dctennining fuir values is disclosed in the notes specific lo that asset or liability, 

i) The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date. 
ii) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be equivalent to their carrying values. 
iii) The fair values of borrowings at fixed rates are considered to be equivalent to present value of the future contracted cash flows discounted at the current 11111rkct 
rate. 

34 Sei:meot Rcportini: 
Mlndspace REIT does not hnve any reportable segments as at 30 June 2022 and 31 March 2022 and hence, disclosure 1mder lnd AS 108, Operating segments has 
not been provided in the Condensed Standalone financial statements. 

35 Distributions 
The Governing Board of the Manager to the Trust, in their meeting held on 10 August 2022, has declared distribution to unithotders of Rs 4.74 per unit which 

aggregates to Rs. 2,8 11 million for the quarter ended 30 June 2022. The distributions of Rs 4.74 per unit comprises Rs. 4.41 per unit in the form of dividend, Rs. 
0.32 per unit in the form of interest payment and Rs. 0.0 I per unit in the form of other income. 

37 The figures for the quarter ended 31 March 2022 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the yeur ended 31 March 2022 and the pulllished 
year-to-date figures up to 31 December 2021, which were subject to limited review. 

38 Previous period figures have been regrouped, as considered necessary, to confinu with current period presentation. 

39 "0" represents value less than Rs. 0.5 million. 



Annexure‐ 4 
 

POLICY ON UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATION AND DEALING IN SECURITIES 
 
 

Approving Authority  Governing   Board   of   K.   Raheja   Corp   Investment    Managers LLP
(“Manager”) as  the manager  of  Mindspace  Business  Parks REIT
(“Mindspace REIT” or “Trust”) 
Governing Board/ Board of Directors of the special purpose vehicles
of the Mindspace REIT (“SPVs”) 

Approval Date   December 24, 2019 

Last amended on  August 10, 2022  

Effective Date  The policy on unpublished price sensitive information and dealing in 
Securities  by  the  parties  to Mindspace  REIT  (“Insider  Policy”  or 
“Policy”)  came into effect on the date of filing of Offer Document 
of Mindspace REIT with the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(“SEBI”), and BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited  (BSE  Limited  and  the  National  Stock  Exchange  of  India 
Limited together referred to as the “Stock Exchanges”) for the issue 
of Securities of Mindspace REIT. 
 
The Policy was subsequently amended on May 12, 2022 and [] and 
is currently applicable to the listed Securities of the Mindspace REIT 
and its SPVs 

 

I. Applicability 
 

This Policy  is applicable  to Mindspace REIT and  its SPVs and  the Manager  (“Relevant Parties”)  in 
respect of the listed Securities of such Relevant Parties.  

 
II. Introduction & Purpose 

 
SEBI  had  promulgated  the  SEBI  (Prohibition  of  Insider  Trading)  Regulations,  2015,  as  amended 
(hereinafter referred to as “PIT Regulations” or “Regulations”) on January 15, 2015. In line with the 
requirements under the said Regulations, listed companies are required to publish on its website, a 
code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure  of  unpublished  price  sensitive  information that 
it would follow  in  order  to  adhere  the principles prescribed therein. 

 
This Policy aims to outline process and procedures for dissemination of information and disclosures 
in  relation  to Mindspace  REIT  and  its  SPVs  on  its  website,  to  the  Stock  Exchanges  and  to  all 
stakeholders at  large. The purpose of the Policy  is also to ensure that Mindspace REIT and  its SPVs 
complies with applicable  law,  including the REIT Regulations, PIT Regulations,  if, and to the extent 
applicable  or  such  other  laws,  regulations,  rules  or  guidelines  prohibiting  Insider  trading  and 
governing disclosure of material, unpublished price sensitive information. 

 
III. Key Terms 

 
1. “Applicable Law” shall mean the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations, 2015 and any amendment thereto from time to time, or  any statute, law, 
listing  agreement,  regulation, ordinance,  rule,  judgment, order,  decree,  byelaw,  clearance, 
directive,  guideline,  policy,  requirement,  notifications  and  clarifications,  circulars  or  other 
governmental  instruction  and/or mandatory  standards  and  or  guidance  notes  as may  be 
applicable in the matter of trading by an Insider. 



 
2. “Asset SPVs  / SPVs”  shall  collectively mean, Avacado Properties and Trading  (India) Private 

Limited,  Gigaplex  Estate  Private  Limited,  Horizonview  Properties  Private  Limited,  Intime 
Properties  Limited,  K.  Raheja  IT  Park  (Hyderabad)  Limited,  KRC  Infrastructure  and  Projects 
Private Limited, Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited, Sundew Properties Limited and such 
other SPVs that shall form part of Mindspace REIT in future. 

 

3. “Audit Committee” shall mean the audit committee of the Manager/ SPVs, as applicable; 
 

4. “Chief Investor Relations Officer” ‐ The Manager/ SPVs, as applicable shall designate a senior 
officer as the Chief  Investor Relations Officer  to  deal with dissemination of  information and 
disclosure  of  UPSI  in a  fair  and  unbiased manner  to  analysts,  unitholders  and media,  and 
educating staff on disclosure policies and procedure. In the event of a vacancy in the position of 
the Chief  Investor Relations Officer, Chief Financial Officer  shall be deemed  to be  the Chief 
Investor Relations Officer for the purpose of this Policy. 

 
5. “Compliance Officer” ‐ The Compliance Officer of Mindspace REIT/ SPVs, as applicable, or  any 

other  senior officer, so designated and reporting to Governing Board/Board of Directors, who 
is  financially  literate  and  is  capable  of  appreciating  requirements  for  legal  and  regulatory 
compliance  shall  act  as  the  Compliance Officer  for  the  purpose  of  this  Policy. He  shall  be 
responsible  for  ensuring  that  the  Relevant  Parties  comply  with  continuous  disclosure 
requirements,  overseeing  and  coordinating  disclosure  of  unpublished  price  sensitive 
information (“UPSI”) to Stock Exchanges and making periodic disclosures in terms of the Policy 
for Determining Materiality of Information for Periodic Disclosures. 

 
Explanation: For the purpose of this Policy, ‘financially literate’ shall mean a person, who has the 
ability to read and understand basic financial statements like balance sheet,  statement of profit 
and  loss, cash flow statement etc. 

 
6. “Board of Directors” shall mean board of directors of the SPVs 

 
7. “Connected Person” shall have the meaning set forth in Regulation 2(1)(d) of the PIT Regulations. 

 
8. “Designated Person” – The Chief Financial Officer in consultation with Compliance Officer shall 

specify the Designated Persons, from time to time, to be covered by the Insider Policy on the 
basis of their role and function in the organisation and the access that such role and function 
would provide to UPSI in addition to seniority and professional designation and shall include:‐ 

 
(i) Governing Board/ Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Key 

Personnel of the Manager/ SPV, employees and any support staff of the Manager/ SPV who 
have  access  to  UPSI  (including  personnel  engaged  on  a  contractual  basis  who  are  on 
deputation/secondment  and  who  has  or  is  reasonably  expected  to  have  UPSI)  of  the 
Manager, Mindspace REIT, SPVs, as applicable and employees of the KRC group/ Manager, as 
applicable  providing  services  under  the  support  services  or  development management 
arrangements who are above General Manager grade and have access to UPSI; 

 
(ii) All Partners/Directors of Sponsors and Sponsor Group of the  Manager, Mindspace  REIT 

and/ or SPVs; and 
 

(iii) Employees of the Sponsor/Sponsor Group who will have access to Mindspace REIT’s UPSI (for 
Mindspace REIT) 

 
(iv) Immediate Relatives of the Designated Persons mentioned above. 

 
 



 
9. Governing Board” shall mean the governing board of the Manager/ SPVs, as applicable. 

 
10. “Immediate  Relative”  shall  have  the  meaning  set  forth  in  Regulation  2(1)(f)  of  the  PIT 

Regulations to include a spouse of a person, and includes parent, sibling and child of such person 
or of the spouse, any of whom is either dependent financially on such person or consults such 
person in taking decisions relating to trading in Securities. 

 
11. “Insider” shall have the meaning set forth in Regulation 2(1)(g) to include any person who is: 

(i) a Connected Person; or 
(ii) a Designated Person; or 

(iii) in possession of or having access to UPSI. 
 

12. “Legitimate purpose”  shall  include  sharing of unpublished price  sensitive  information  in  the 
ordinary course of business by an insider with partner(s), collaborator(s), lender(s), customer(s), 
supplier(s), merchant banker(s),  lawyer(s),  legal advisor(s), auditor(s), audit  firm(s), diligence 
professional(s), insolvency professional(s) or other advisor(s) or consultant(s) or operator(s) or 
management service provider(s) or business service provider(s) hospitality service provider(s), 
banks,  lawyers,  analysts,  insolvency  professional  entities,  consultants,  banks  etc.,  assisting, 
advising or engaging with Mindspace REIT or the Manager or SPVs, as applicable from time to 
time  in  order  to  perform  duty  or  discharge  of  legal  obligation  i.e.  on  need  to  know  basis, 
provided that such sharing has not  been carried  out to  evade or circumvent the prohibitions of 
the PIT Regulations. 

 
13. “Partners” shall have the meaning set forth in the Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008; 

 
14. “SEBI REIT Regulations  / REIT Regulations”  shall mean SEBI  (Real Estate  Investment Trusts) 

Regulations, 2014, as amended  from  time  to  time and circulars  issued by  the Securities and 
Exchange Board of time to time 

 
15. “SEBI” shall mean Securities and Exchange Board of India; 
 
16. “Securities”  shall have  the  same meaning  assigned  to  it under Regulation 2(1)(i) of  the PIT 

Regulations,.  
 

17. “Sponsor” and “Sponsor Group” shall have the meaning  assigned to these terms under the REIT  
Regulations as stated in the REIT Regulation and amendment thereof from time to time or as 
approved by SEBI; 

 
18. “Trading” means  and  includes  subscribing,  buying,  selling,  dealing,  pledging  or  releasing  of 

pledge or agreeing  to  subscribe, buy,  sell, deal, pledge or  release  the pledge of Mindspace 
REIT’s/ SPV ‘s Securities, and "Trade" shall be construed accordingly; 

 
19. “Trading Day” means a day on which the recognized stock exchanges are open for trading; 

 
20. “Unpublished  Price  Sensitive  Information”  or  “UPSI”  shall  have  the meaning  set  forth  in 

Regulation  2(1)(n) of  the  PIT  Regulations.  The  term  ‘Company’  as  referred  to  in  Regulation 
2(1)(n) shall refer to Mindspace REIT and the term “securities” shall refer to the units and listed 
debt instruments of the Mindspace REIT and listed debt instruments of the SPVs. 

 
21. Words and expressions used and not defined in this Policy but defined in the PIT Regulations, the 

Securities  and Exchange Board of  India Act, 2013,  the  Securities Contracts  (Regulation) Act, 
1956, the Depositories Act, 1996 or the Companies Act, 2013, Limited Liability Partnership Act, 
2008 and rules and regulations made thereunder and as amended from time to time shall have 
the meanings respectively assigned to them in those legislations. 



IV. Institutional Mechanism for Prevention of Insider trading 
 

i. The Compliance Officer of the Manager/SPV, as applicable shall put in place adequate and effective 
system of internal controls to ensure compliance with the requirements given in the PIT Regulations 
to prevent insider trading. 

 
ii. The internal controls shall include the following: 

 
a) all employees who have access to UPSI are identified as Designated Person; 
b) all the UPSI shall be  identified, and  its confidentiality shall be maintained as per the 

requirements of the PIT Regulations; 
c) adequate restrictions shall be placed on communication or procurement of UPSI as required by 

the PIT Regulations; 

d) lists of all employees  and other persons with whom UPSI  is  shared  shall be maintained  and 
confidentiality agreements shall be signed, or notice shall be served to all such employees and 
persons; 

e) maintenance  of  list  of  other  persons  with  whom  UPSI  is  shared   shall  be   maintained 
and confidentiality agreements shall be signed, or notice shall be served to all such persons; 

f) all other relevant requirements specified under the PIT Regulations shall be complied with; and 
g) periodic process review to evaluate effectiveness of such internal controls. 

 
iii. The  Governing  Board/Board  of  Directors  shall  ensure  that  the  Compliance  Officer  ensures 

compliance with Regulation 9 and sub‐Regulations (1) and (2) of Regulation 9A of PIT Regulations. 
 

iv. The  Audit  Committee  of  the  Manager/SPV,  as  applicable  shall  review  compliance  with  the 
provisions of PIT Regulations and the Policy at least once in a financial year and shall verify that the 
systems for internal control are adequate and are operating effectively. 

 
v. The procedures for inquiry in case of leak of UPSI or suspected leak of UPSI,  is specified in Clause V 

of this Policy. Accordingly, the Manager/SPV, as applicable shall  initiate appropriate  inquiries on 
becoming aware of leak of UPSI or suspected leak of UPSI and inform the Governing Board/Board 
of Directors promptly of such leaks, inquiries and results of such inquiries. 

 
vi. The Manager/SPV, as applicable has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to enable employees to report 

instances of leak of UPSI. 
 

The Compliance Officer in consultation with Chief Executive Officer and/or Chief Financial Officer shall: 
 

i. be responsible for deciding whether a public announcement is necessary for verifying or denying 
rumours and then making the disclosure, in accordance with the procedure specified in the Policy 
for Determining Materiality of Information for Periodic Disclosures; and 

 
ii. make an appropriate and fair response to the queries on news reports and requests for verification 

of market  rumours by  regulatory authorities,  in accordance with  the procedure specified  in  the 
Policy for Determining Materiality of Information for Periodic Disclosures. 

 
V. Dealing in case of suspected leak or leak of UPSI 

 
i. Inquiry for leakage of UPSI: in case any UPSI is proposed to be provided, the person proposing 

to  provide  the  information  shall  consult  the  Compliance Officer  or  Chief  Investor  Relations 
Officer in advance. In case any UPSI is leaked or is suspected to be leaked by any Insider, the 
Compliance Officer and Chief Investor Relations Officer shall report to the Chief Financial Officer 
and Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee will thereafter 
consider convening a meeting of the Audit Committee depending on severity of the matter. 

 



ii. Process for inquiry: all the matters concerning leak of UPSI or suspected leak of UPSI, will be 
thoroughly investigated by the Compliance Officer, as may be determined by the Chairman of 
the Audit Committee. Appointment of external  investigators for the purpose of  investigation, 
may  be  considered,  if  required.  The  investigating  officer may  ask  the  concerned  Insider  to 
remain  present  for  investigation,  discussion  etc.  and  can  ask  for  personal  bank  account 
statements or such other details or documents as he deems fit. 

 
iii. Powers of investigating officer: the powers of the  investigating officer for  inquiry under this 

Policy are: 
a. To investigate the matter; 
b. To ask the concerned Insider for personal presence, examination, cross examination etc. 
c. To call for personal information/ documents from insider; 
d. To file complaint, if required, before police authority  / designated cell under the 

Information Technology Act, 2000 

e. To retain the documents gathered during investigation; 
f. To report to the Audit Committee. 

 
VI. Principles of Fair Disclosure  for purposes of Code of Practices and Procedures  for Fair Disclosure 

of UPSI 

 
1. All UPSI shall be preserved  and maintained  in  utmost confidentiality by the respective Insider and 

those who are recipients of UPSI under Legitimate Purpose; and reasonable steps shall be taken to 
maintain the same from time to time. 

 
2. The Governing Board/Board of Directors  shall endeavour prompt public disclosure of UPSI  that 

would impact price discovery no sooner than credible and concrete information comes into being 
in  order  to make  such  information  generally  available.  Towards  this  objective  the  Governing 
Board/Board  of  Directors  shall  make  the  availability  of  such  UPSI  accessible  without  any 
discrimination and disclose various corporate events, inorganic growth prospects, acquisitions and 
takeovers and all other material events or information upon them becoming crystalized. 

 
3. The Governing Board/Board  of  Directors shall  take  reasonable steps  to ensure  the veracity and 

accuracy of information before dissemination. 
 

4. The Governing Board/Board of Directors shall endeavour to make disclosures of UPSI, as and when 
made,  in a universal and uniform manner through forums  like widely circulated media and  /  or 
through stock  exchanges where Mindspace REIT’s and its SPVs Securities are listed. The Governing 
Board/Board of Directors shall ensure against selective disclosure of UPSI. 

 
5. The Chief Investor Relations Officer of the Manager/SPV, as applicable shall deal with dissemination 

of information and disclosure of UPSI. The Compliance Officer  can be  contacted  for any queries 
or  clarifications as  regards dissemination of UPSI and shall give appropriate and  fair  response  to 
queries on news reports and requests for verification of market rumours by regulatory authorities. 

 
6. The  Governing  Board/Board  of  Directors  shall  ensure  that  whenever  UPSI  gets  disclosed 

selectively,  inadvertently, it shall ensure prompt and proper dissemination of such information so 
as to make it generally available. 

 
7. Chief  Investor Relations Officer of the Manager/SPV, as applicable shall ensure that  information 

shared  with analysts and research personnel is not UPSI. While dealing with analysts or research 
persons  or  large  investors  like  institutions,  the Manager  shall  provide  only  public  information. 
Alternatively, the information given to analysts or research persons shall simultaneously be made 
public at the earliest. 
 

 



 
8. Chief Investor Relations Officer of the Manager/SPV, as applicable shall develop best practices to 

make  transcripts or  records of proceedings of meetings or update calls with analysts and other 
investor  relations  conferences  on  the  official  website  to  ensure  official  confirmation  and 
documentation of disclosures made. 

 
9. The Compliance Officer shall ensure that systems are  in place for handling of all UPSI only on a 

need‐to‐ know basis. 
 
VII. Prohibition on communicating or procuring UPSI 
 

An  Insider shall not communicate, provide, or allow access to any UPSI, relating to Mindspace REIT 
(including its Manager and SPVs) or their Securities, to any person including other Insiders, except to 
the extent allowed by this Policy or Applicable Law. 

Further, no person shall procure from or cause the communication by an Insider of UPSI, relating to 
Mindspace REIT (including its Manager and SPVs) and its SPVs or their Securities. 

 
Provided that nothing contained above shall be applicable when UPSI  is communicated, provided, 
allowed access to or procured under the knowledge of Compliance Officer: 

 
i. in  furtherance of  Legitimate Purposes, performance of duties or discharge of  legal obligations 

pursuant to appropriate confidentiality and non‐disclosure agreements being executed; or 
 

ii. in the event the Governing Board/Board of Directors direct or cause the public disclosure of UPSI 
in  the  best interest of Mindspace REIT and its SPVs; or 

 
iii. within a group of persons if such persons have been identified and secluded within a “Chinese Wall” 

or  information barrier by  the Compliance Officer  from  the  rest of Mindspace REIT  (including its 
Manager,  its  associates,  sponsors,  sponsor  group  and  SPVs)  for  a  particular  purpose  or  for  a 
specified period of time in furtherance of Legitimate Purposes, performance of duties or discharge 
of  legal  obligations,  and  are  subjected  to,  among  other  conditions,  additional  confidentiality 
obligations,  information  barriers  designed  to  prevent  exchanges  of UPSI  outside  the  “Chinese 
Wall”, and the execution of an undertaking by such persons  to abstain and / or  forego Trading 
during such seclusion or till the UPSI no longer constitutes UPSI; or 

 
iv. in connection with a transaction,  subject  to  execution  of  agreements for  the confidentiality and 

non‐ disclosure obligations on the part of parties to the transaction and such parties shall keep 
information so received confidential, that would: – 

 
a) entail an obligation to make an open offer under  the  SEBI  (Substantial  Acquisition  of Shares 

and  Takeovers)  Regulations,  2011  (“Takeover  Regulations”)  or  such  similar  offer  under 
applicable law where the Governing Board/Board of Directors is of the informed opinion that 
sharing  of  such  information  is  in  the  best  interests of Mindspace  REIT,  its  SPVs and  the 
Manager; 

 
b) not attract  the obligation  to make an open offer under  the Takeover Regulations or  such 

similar offer under Applicable Law but where the Governing Board/Board of Directors is of the 
informed opinion that sharing of such information is in the best interests of Mindspace REIT, 
SPVs and the Manager and the  information that constitute UPSI  is disseminated and made 
generally available at least two Trading Days prior to the proposed transaction being effected 
in such form as the Compliance Officer may determine to be adequate and fair to cover all 
relevant and material facts. 

 

 

 



Any person who  communicates  any UPSI  shall feed and save the following details in the structured 
digital database: 

 
i. Name and designation of the person sharing UPSI; 
ii. Name of the person or entity with whom the UPSI is shared (“UPSI Receiver”); 
iii. Name of the entity with which the UPSI Receiver is associated; 
iv. Address of the UPSI Receiver; 
v. Permanent  account  number  or  any  other  identifier,  as  authorized  under  law, where 

Permanent Account Number is not available of the UPSI Receiver 
vi. Nature or type of UPSI shared 
vii. Purpose of sharing UPSI 
viii. Date of sharing UPSI 
ix. Mode of sharing UPSI 

The  Compliance  Officer with  the  support  of  IT‐Head  shall maintain  a  structured  digital 
database for the same and such databases shall not be outsourced and shall be maintained 
internally with adequate internal controls and checks  such as time stamping and audit trails 
to ensure non‐tampering of the database. The database shall include records of the  Insiders 
with respect to: 

 
i. Whether the UPSI was required to be shared; 
ii. The reason for the sharing UPSI; 
iii. Whether the person was authorized to share the UPSI 
iv. Whether the Compliance Officer or Chief Investor Relations Officer was intimated 

before such sharing of UPSI; 
v. Whether any non‐disclosure agreement was signed with the specific person; 
vi. Whether notice to maintain confidentiality of the shared UPSI has been given. 

 
The Compliance Officer shall ensure that the structured digital database  is preserved for a 
period of not less than eight years after completion of the relevant transactions and in the 
event of  receipt of any  information  from SEBI  regarding any  investigation or enforcement 
proceedings, the relevant information in the structured digital database shall be preserved till 
the completion of such proceedings 

 
VIII. Policy for determination of Legitimate Purpose 

 
The  term  “legitimate  purpose”  shall  include  sharing  of  UPSI  in  the  ordinary  course  of 
business by an Insider with partners, collaborators, lenders,  customers,  suppliers, merchant 
bankers, legal advisors, auditors, insolvency professionals or other advisors or consultants, 
provided that such sharing has not been carried out to evade or circumvent the provisions of 
PIT Regulations. 

 
Any person  in  receipt of UPSI pursuant  to a “legitimate purpose” shall be considered an 
“Insider” for purposes of the PIT Regulations and this Policy and due notice shall be given to 
such persons to maintain confidentiality of such UPSI in compliance with PIT Regulations. 

 
Till the UPSI becomes a generally available information, UPSI can be shared only on a need 
to know basis and for legitimate purpose as provided in this Policy and the PIT Regulations 
and not to evade or circumvent the prohibitions of the PIT Regulations. 

 
IX. Trading when in possession of unpublished price sensitive information 

 
No Insider shall trade in Securities of Mindspace REIT and its SPVs when in possession of UPSI. 
When a person who has traded in Securities has been in possession of UPSI, his trades would 
be presumed to have been motivated by the knowledge and awareness of such information 
in his possession.] 



Provided  that  the  Insider may  prove  his  innocence  by  demonstrating  the  circumstances 
including the following:– 

 
i. the  transaction  is  an  off‐market  inter‐se  transfer  between  Insiders  who  were  in 

possession  of  the  same  UPSI  without  being  in  breach  of  Regulation  3  of  the  PIT 
Regulations  and  both  parties  had  made  a  conscious  and  informed  trade  decision. 
Provided  that  such  UPSI  was  not  obtained  under  proviso  to  the  ‘Prohibition  on 
communicating or procuring UPSI’ section of this Policy. 
Provided further that such off‐market trades shall be reported by the  Insiders to the 
Manager/SPV,  as  applicable  within  two  working  days  and  the  Manager/SPV,  as 
applicable shall notify the particulars of such trades to the stock exchange on which the 
Securities are  listed within two Trading Days  from  receipt  of  the  disclosure  or  from 
becoming aware of such information. 

 
ii. the transaction was carried out through the block deal window mechanism between 

persons who were in possession of the UPSI  without being  in  breach of  Regulation 3 
of PIT Regulations and both parties had made a conscious and informed trade decision; 
Provided that such UPSI was not obtained under proviso to the  ‘Prohibition on 
communicating or procuring UPSI’ section of this Policy. 

 
iii. the  transaction  in  question was  carried  out  pursuant  to  a  statutory  or  regulatory 

obligation to carry out a bona fide transaction. 
 

iv. the  transaction  in  question was  undertaken  pursuant  to  the  exercise  of  options  in 
respect of which the exercise price was pre‐determined in compliance with applicable 
regulations. 

 
v. In case of non‐individual Insiders: 

a. The  individuals  who  were  in  possession  of  such  unpublished  price  sensitive 
information  were  different  from  the  individuals  taking  trading  decisions  and  such 
decision‐making individuals were not in possession of such unpublished price sensitive 
information when they took the decision to trade; and 
b. Appropriate  and  adequate  arrangements  were  in  place  to  ensure  that  the  PIT 
Regulations are not violated and no  unpublished  price sensitive was communicated by 
the  individuals possessing the  information to the  individuals taking  trading decisions 
and there is no evidence of such arrangements having breached. 

 
vi. The trades were pursuant to a trading plan set up in accordance with the PIT Regulations. 

 
X. Trading Window 

 
1. Unless otherwise  specified by  the Compliance Officer,  the  trading window  shall  remain 

open for trading in Securities of the Trust after securing pre‐clearance from the Compliance 
Officer in accordance with these Rules. Further, no Designated Persons or their Immediate 
Relatives shall trade in the Securities of the Trust when the trading window is closed. 

 
2. Notwithstanding  the above, the trading window shall be closed  for Designated Persons, 

when the Compliance Officer determines that a Designated Person  or  class  of Designated 
Persons  is  reasonably expected to have UPSI, in the event of the following: 
(i) Declaration of financial results; 
(ii) Declaration of distribution; 
(iii) Declaration of valuation report; 
(iv) Any acquisition, disposal or proposed acquisition or disposal of Trust assets; 
(v) Change in number of issued and outstanding Securities; 
(vi) Any change in capital structure of the Manager/SPV, as applicable; 



(vii) Changes  in  the  constitution  of Governing  Board/Board of Directors  or  Key 
Managerial  Personnel  of the Manager/SPV, as applicable or change in the trustee of 
Mindspace REIT; 

(viii) Material events in accordance with the Listing Agreement; 
(ix) Events that could result in liquidation of Mindspace REIT, its SPVs and the Manager/SPV, as 

applicable; and 
(x) Any other event which,  in the sole determination of the Chief Financial Officer of 

the Manager/SPV, as applicable or Compliance Officer of the Manager/SPV, as 
applicable, severally, is UPSI. 

 
3. Unless otherwise decided by the Governing Board/Board of Directors to comply with the 

applicable law, the trading window shall remain closed for a period of no  later than first 
day after the end of every quarter till 48 hours after the declaration of financial results. 

 
4. The trading window shall remain closed  for a period of at  least seven Days prior to the 

Governing Board/Board of Directors meeting in relation to approval of any of the events 
specified in clause 2(ii) to (ix) above. 

5. The trading window in respect of the information described above, shall be open after 48 
hours from such information becoming generally available. 

 

6. The trading window restrictions shall not apply in respect of – 
a. Transactions specified in clauses (i) to (iv) and (vi) of the proviso to sub – Regulation (1) 

of Regulation (4) of  the PIT Regulations and  in  respect of pledge of Securities  for a 
bonafide purpose such as raising of funds, subject to pre‐clearance by the Compliance 
Officer and compliance with the regulations made by SEBI. 

b. Transactions which are undertaken in accordance with respective regulations made 
by  SEBI  such  as  acquisition  by  subscribing  to  rights  issue,  further  public  issue, 
preferential  allotment,  qualified  institutions  placement  etc.  in  accordance  with 
Applicable  Law. 

 
XI. Pre‐clearance of Trading 

 

1. Designated Persons may trade in the Securities of Mindspace REIT and its SPVs when  the 
trading window is open, after obtaining approval of the Compliance Officer by submitting 
an application as per Annexure 1  and  an undertaking as per Annexure 2. 

 

Members  of  the  Governing  Board/Board  of  Directors  and  Key Managerial  Personnel 
(KMPs) of the Manager/SPV, as applicable can seek pre‐clearance through an email to the 
Chief Financial Officer or Compliance Office or the PIT email id : pit@mindspacereit.com. 
The  Compliance  team  shall  however  ensure  that  the  pre‐clearance  details  are 
incorporated in the PIT Portal.  

 
2. The Compliance Officer shall not approve any proposed Trade by Designated Person if the 

Compliance Officer determines that such Designated Person is in possession of UPSI even 
though the trading window is open. The Compliance  Officer  shall  have the  right at his 
discretion  to  refer any application  for  such approval  to  the Audit Committee of  the 
Manager/SPV, as applicable for its advice. 

 
3. The Compliance Officer may, after being  satisfied  that  the  application  and undertaking 

are true and accurate, approve Trading by a Designated Person, on the condition that the 
Trade  so approved  shall be executed within  seven Trading Days  following the date of 
approval. 

 
4. The Designated Persons  shall, within  two Trading Days of  the execution of  the Trade, 

submit the details of such Trade to the Compliance Officer as per Annexure 3. In case the 
transaction is not undertaken, a report to that effect shall be filed in the said form. 



 
Members  of  the  Governing  Board/Board  of  Directors  and  Key Managerial  Personnel 
(KMPs) of the Manager/SPV, as applicable can submit the details of such Trades through 
an  email  to  the  Chief  Financial  Officer  or  Compliance  Office  or  the  PIT  email  id  : 
pit@mindspacereit.com.  The  Compliance  team  shall  however  ensure  that  the  Trade 
details are incorporated in the PIT Portal.  
 

5. If the pre‐cleared  Trade  is not executed within seven  Trading Days  after the  approval is 
given,  the Designated Person must secure pre‐clearance of the transaction again. 

 
6. All Designated Persons, who Trade in  the    Securities of  Mindspace  REIT and its SPVs 

shall  not  enter into an opposite transaction during the next six  months  following  the 
prior transaction. In case of any contra trade be executed, inadvertently or otherwise, in 
violation of such a restriction, the profits from such trade shall be liable to be disgorged 
for  remittance  to  the  SEBI  for  credit  to  the  Investor  Protection  and  Education  Fund 
administered by SEBI. However, the Compliance Officer is empowered to grant relaxation 
from strict application of such restriction for reasons to be recorded in writing   provided 
that such relaxation does not violate the PIT Regulations. 

 
Provided that this shall not be applicable for trades pursuant to exercise of stock options. 

 
7. A Designated Person, who Trades in Securities without complying with the pre‐clearance 

procedure  as  envisaged  in  these  Rules  or  gives  false  undertakings  and/or  makes 
misrepresentations  in the undertakings executed by him/her while complying with the 
pre‐  clearance  procedure  shall  be  subjected  to  the  penalties  as  envisaged  in  the  PIT 
Regulations and this Policy. 

 
 

XII. Trading Plan 
 

1. An  Insider shall be entitled to  formulate a Trading Plan that complies with Regulation 
5 of  the PIT Regulations  (“Trading Plan”) and present  it  to  the Compliance Officer  for 
approval and public disclosure pursuant to which Trades may be carried out in his behalf 
in accordance with such plan. 

 
2. Such trading plan shall: 

a. Not entail commencement of trading on behalf of the Insider earlier than six months 
from the public disclosure of the plan; 

b. Not entail  trading  for  the period between the 20th trading day prior  to  the  last day 
of any financial period for which results are required to be announced by Mindspace 
REIT  and  its SPVs and  the  second  trading day after  the disclosure of such financial 
results; 

c. Entail trading for a period of not less than twelve months; 
d. Not entail overlap of any period for which another trading plan is already in existence; 
e. Set out either the value of trades to be effected or the number of Securities   to be 

traded along with the nature of the trade and the intervals at, or dates on which such 
trades shall be effected; and 

f. Not entail trading in Securities for market abuse. 
 

3. The Compliance Officer shall review and approve the Trading Plan if it complies with the 
Regulation  5 of  the  PIT  Regulations  and  shall  disclose  the  Trading  Plan  to  the  Stock 
Exchanges. The Compliance Officer is entitled to seek such express undertakings as may 
be  necessary  to  enable  such  assessment  and  to  approve  and  monitor  the 
implementation of the trading plan. 

 



4. The Trading Plan once approved shall be  irrevocable and the Insider shall mandatorily 
have to implement the plan, without being entitled to either deviate from it or to execute 
any trade  in the Securities outside the scope of the Trading Plan. 

 
Provided that the  implementation of the Trading Plan shall not be commenced  if any 
UPSI in possession of the Insider at the time of formulation of the plan has not become 
generally available at  the time of the commencement of  implementation and  in such 
event  the  Compliance  Officer  shall  confirm  that  the  commencement  ought  to  be 
deferred  until  such  UPSI  becomes  generally  available  information  so  as  to  avoid  a 
violation of sub‐Regulation of (1) Regulation 4 of PIT Regulations. 

 
5. Upon approval of the Trading Plan, the compliance officer shall notify the plan to the 

stock exchanges on which the Securities of Mindspace REIT and its SPVs are listed. 
 

Provided that pre‐clearance of trades shall not be required for a trade executed as per an 
approved  Trading  Plan.  Provided  further  that  trading window  norms  and  restrictions on 
contra trade shall not be applicable for trades carried out in accordance with an approved 
Trading Plan. 

 
Provided further that trading window norms and restrictions on contra trade shall not be 
applicable for trades carried out in accordance with an approved Trading Plan. 

 
XIII. Penalty for Insider trading 

 
1. Designated Persons of Mindspace REIT  (including  for  its SPVs and  the Manager) who 

violate these rules shall be subject to disciplinary action by the SPVs and the Manager as 
applicable, which may include wage freeze, suspension, recovery, ineligibility for future 
participation  in Mindspace REIT/ Manager’s stock option plans or termination. 

 

2. The Stock Exchanges would also be promptly  informed  in the standardized  format as 
prescribed  by  SEBI  in  such  form  and  manner  as  may  be  specified  in  Circular 
SEBI/HO/ISD/ISD/CIR/P/2020/135 dated July 23, 2020 or any other format as circulated 
and amended by SEBI from time to time of the violation of this Policy so that appropriate 
action may be taken. 

 
3. The Governing Board/Board of Directors shall maintain a database of the violation of this 

Policy by Designated Persons and Immediate Relatives of Designated Persons that would 
entail initiation of appropriate action against them 

 
XIV. Protection against retaliation and victimisation 

 
The  Governing  Board/Board  of  Directors  shall  ensure  suitable  protection  against  any 
discharge, termination, demotion, suspension, threats, harassment, directly or indirectly or 
discrimination against any employee who files a Voluntary Information Disclosure Form (as 
defined and provided under the PIT Regulations), by reason of: 

 
i. Filing a Voluntary Information Disclosure Form; or 
ii. Testifying in, participating in, or otherwise assisting or aiding SEBI in any investigation, 

inquiry, audit, examination or proceeding  instituted or about  to be  instituted  for an 
alleged violation  of insider trading laws (as defined under the PIT Regulations) or in any 
manner aiding the enforcement action taken by SEBI; or 

iii. Breaching any confidentiality agreement or provisions of any terms and conditions of 
employment or engagement to prevent any employee from cooperating with SEBI in any 
manner. 

 



For the purpose of this provision, “employee” means any individual who during employment 
may become privy  to  information  relating  to violation of  insider  trading  laws and  files a 
Voluntary  Information  Disclosure  Form  under  and  is  a  director,  partner,  regular  or 
contractual employee, but does not include an advocate. 

 
XV. Disclosure requirements 

 
1. The Designated Persons shall make disclosures to the Compliance Officer or the Stock 

Exchanges and the Compliance Officer shall make all disclosures required to be made to 
the Stock Exchanges, in accordance with Applicable Law. 

 
2. Initial Disclosure: 

 
(i) Every Partner/ Director, member of the Sponsor Group, key managerial personnel 

and director of Mindspace REIT, SPVs and the Manager and each of their Immediate 
Relatives shall disclose his/her holding of Securities of Mindspace REIT, SPVs and the 
Manager within thirty days of listing of Securities in the Stock Exchanges as per Form 
A set out in Annexure 4 (as may be amended/revised by SEBI from time to time). 

 
(ii) Every person on appointment as a key managerial personnel or a director or member 

of the Governing Board/Board of Directors of Mindspace REIT, SPVs and the Manager 
or upon becoming a Partner/ Director or member of the Sponsor Group shall disclose 
his / her and Immediate Relatives’ holding of Securities of Mindspace REIT and its 
SPVs  as  on  the  date  of  appointment  or  becoming  a  Partner/  Sponsor,  to  the 
Manager/SPV, as applicable within seven days of such appointment or becoming a 
Sponsor, as per Form B set out in Annexure 5 (as may be amended by SEBI from time 
to time). 

3. Continual Disclosure: 
 

(i) Every  Partner/ Director, member  of  the  Sponsor Group, Designated  Person  and 
director or member of the Governing Board/Board of Directors of Mindspace REIT, 
SPVs and the Manager and each of their  Immediate Relatives shall disclose as per 
Form C set out in Annexure 6 (as may be amended by SEBI from time to time) to the 
Manager/SPV, as applicable the number of such Securities acquired or disposed of 
within two Trading Days of such  transaction,  if the value of the securities traded, 
whether  in one  transaction or a series of  transactions over any calendar quarter, 
aggregates to a traded value in excess of Rupees 10 lakhs. 

 
(ii) The Manager/SPV, as applicable shall notify the particulars of such trading to the 

Stock  Exchanges  within  two  trading  days  of  receipt  of  the  disclosure  or  from 
becoming aware of such information. 

 
4. Annual Disclosure: 

 
(i) Designated Persons  shall be  required  to disclose names and Permanent Account 

Number, or any other  identifier authorized by  law of the following persons to the 
Manager/SPV, as applicable  on  an  annual  basis  and  as  and when the information 
changes: 
(a) Immediate Relatives; 
(b) persons with whom such Designated Person(s) shares a material financial 

relationship; and 
(c) Phone, mobile and cell numbers which are used by them 

 
In  addition,  the  names  of  educational  institutions  from which Designated  Persons  have 
graduated  and names of their past employers shall also be disclosed on a one‐time basis. 



 
“Material financial relationship” shall mean a relationship in which one person is a recipient 
of any kind of payment such as by way of a  loan or gift during the  immediately preceding 
twelve months, equivalent to at least 25% of the annual income of such Designated Person 
but shall exclude relationships in which the payment is based on arm’s length transactions. 

 
Provided that the above information shall be provided to the Manager/SPV, as applicable as 
per the format set out in Annexure 7 within 30 days from the end of financial year or within 
30 days of change in the information last provided, as the case may be. 

 
XVI. Miscellaneous 

 
1. The Governing Board/Board of Directors shall be empowered to amend, modify and interpret 

the Policy. 
 

2. The  Compliance  Officer  shall  provide  the  Audit  Committee  of  the  Governing 
Board/Board of Directors, on a quarterly basis, all the details of Trading in Securities by 
the Designated Persons including any violations of this Policy. 

 
3. The Compliance officer shall report to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee at least 

once in a year. 

 
4. The Compliance Officer shall maintain (a) updated list of Designated Persons, (b) records 

of disclosures and pre‐clearance applications and undertakings for a period of five years. 
 

5. The Manager/SPV, as applicable shall  require all Connected Persons  to  formulate and 
adhere to a code of conduct to achieve compliance with this Policy. In case such persons 
observe that there has been a violation of the Policy, then they shall inform the Governing 
Board/Board of Directors promptly. 

6. The Policy shall not  contradict with the  provisions of Securities and  Exchange  Board of 
India  (Listing  Regulations  and  Disclosure  Requirements)  Regulations,  2015,  and  any 
Applicable Law. In case of any discrepancy, the provisions of Applicable Law shall prevail 
over the provisions of this Policy. 

 
7. Notwithstanding the above, this Policy will stand amended to the extent of any change 

in Applicable Law, including any amendment to the REIT Regulations and PIT Regulations, 
without any action from the Manager/SPV, as applicable or approval of the unitholders 
of Mindspace REIT and its SPVs. 

 
8. All employees of the Manager/SPV, as applicable and Designated Persons shall provide a 

declaration cum undertaking within 30 days of this Policy become applicable or within 30 
days  from  the  date of  joining  as  an  employee of  the Manager/SPV,  as  applicable or 
becoming a Designated Person, as the case may be, as per format set out in Annexure 9 
to the Manager/SPV, as applicable that they have read, understood and abide the Policy 
and PIT Regulations. 

 
9. The Compliance Officer  in consultation with Chief Financial Officer may prescribe  the 

forms or declarations format to be  given by the  Designated Persons,  from time  to time 
in addition to the forms prescribed under the PIT Regulations and this Policy for effective 
compliance of the PIT Regulations and this Policy. 

 
10. It is the duty of every Insider to comply with this Policy and PIT Regulations as may be 

amended from time to time. 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Approved at the meeting of Governing Board of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (acting as the 

Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT) held on August 10, 2022. 

 

For and on behalf of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP  
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT) 
 

 

 

Vinod Rohira                                       Preeti Chheda 
Chief Executive Officer                     Chief Financial Officer  



Annexure 1 

 
APPLICATION FOR PRE‐TRADING APPROVAL 

 

To, 
 

The Compliance Officer, 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
Manager  to Mindspace  Business  Parks 
REIT 

 
Pursuant to the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and Mindspace REIT’s Insider 
Trading Policy, I seek approval to purchase / sell / subscribe Mindspace REIT’s and its SPVs Securities 
as per details given below: 

 
1.  Name of the applicant   
2.  Designation   

3.  Number of Mindspace REIT’s and its SPVs 

Securities held as on date 
 

4.  Folio No. / DP ID / Client ID No.   

5.  The proposal is for 
(Note: Please tick the relevant option) 

(a) Purchase of Mindspace REIT’s and its SPVs 
Securities 

(b) Subscription to Mindspace REIT’s and its 
SPVs Securities 

(c) Sale of Mindspace REIT’s and its SPVs 
Securities  

 

6.  Proposed date of trading in Mindspace 
REIT’s and its SPVs Securities  

 

7.  Estimated number of Mindspace REIT’s and 
its  SPVs  Securities  proposed  to   be  
purchased/ subscribed/sold 

 

8.  Current  market   price (as   on   date   of 
application) 

 

9.  Whether  the proposed  transaction will  be 
through stock exchange or off‐market trade 

 

10.  Folio  No.  /  DP  ID  /  Client  ID  No.  where 
Mindspace REIT’s and its SPVs Securities  will 
be credited / debited 

 

I enclose herewith the undertaking signed by me. 

Signature:  

Name: 
 

Place: 
Date: 



Annexure 2 

 
UNDERTAKING TO BE ACCOMPANIED WITH THE APPLICATION FOR PRE‐ CLEARANCE 

 
To, 

 
The Compliance Officer, 
K  Raheja  Corp  Investment Managers  LLP 
Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT 

 
I,  ,  of  the  [insert  name  of  relevant  entity  –  Manager/  SPV/  Sponsor/ 
Sponsor Group] residing at      _,  am  desirous  of  trading  in  Mindspace  REIT’s  Securities  as 
mentioned in my application dated    for pre‐clearance of the transaction. 

 

I further declare that I am not in possession of any Unpublished Price Sensitive Information up to the 
time of signing this undertaking. 

 
In the event that I have access to or receive any Unpublished Price Sensitive Information after the signing 
of this undertaking but before executing  the  transaction  for which approval  is  sought,  I  shall  inform 
the Compliance Officer of the same and shall completely refrain from trading in Mindspace REIT’s and 
its SPVs Securities  until such information becomes public. 

 
I declare that  I have not contravened the provisions of the Policy as notified by the Manager/SPV, as 
applicable  from  time  to  time.  In  the event of  this  transaction being  in violation of  the Policy or  the 
Applicable  Law,  (a)  I will,  unconditionally, release, hold harmless and  indemnify to the  fullest extent, 
Mindspace REIT, its Manager, SPVs and its directors and officers, (the ‘indemnified persons’) for all losses, 
damages, fines, expenses, suffered by the indemnified persons, (b) I will compensate the indemnified 
persons for all expenses  incurred  in any  investigation, defense, crisis management or public relations 
activity in relation to this transaction and (c) I authorize Mindspace REIT/ the Manager/SPV to recover 
from me, the profits arising from this transaction and remit the same to the SEBI for credit of the Investor 
Protection and Education Fund administered by the SEBI. 

 
I undertake to  submit the necessary report within  two Trading Days of execution of  the  transaction 
/ a  ‘Nil’ report if the transaction is not undertaken. 

 
If approval is granted, I shall execute the trade within seven Trading Days of the receipt of approval failing 
which I shall seek pre‐clearance afresh. 

 
I declare that I have made full and true disclosure in the matter. 

 
 
 

Signature: 
Name: 
Place: Date: 



Annexure 3 

 
DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS 

 
(To be submitted within two Trading Days of transaction / trading in Mindspace REIT’s and 

its SPVs Securities) 
 

To, 

 
The Compliance Officer, 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
Manager  to Mindspace  Business  Parks 
REIT I hereby inform that I 
• have not bought / sold/ subscribed any Securities of Mindspace REIT and its SPVs or 

 
• have bought/sold/subscribed  to Mindspace REIT’s and its SPVs Securities as mentioned 

below on [Note: Insert date] 
 

[Note: Strike‐out whichever is not applicable] 
 

Name of holder  No. of Mindspace 
REIT’s and its 
SPVs Securities 
traded 

Bought / sold / 
subscribed 

DP  ID/Client 
ID/Folio No. 

Price (Rs.) 

           

           

           

 
I declare that the above information is correct and that no provisions of the Policy and/or Applicable 
Law have been contravened for effecting the above said transactions(s). 

 
 

 
Signature: 
Name: 
Place: 
Date: 



Annexure 4 

 
FORM A 

 
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 

[Regulation 7 (1) (a) read with Regulation 6 (2) – Initial disclosure to the Manager of Mindspace REIT] 
Name of the Trust:      
ISIN of the Trust:      

 

Details of Securities  held by Partner/ Director, member of the Manager, Sponsor Group, Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) of the Manager, director / member of SPV, the Manager and each of their Immediate 
Relatives and other such persons as mentioned in Regulation 6(2) 

 

Name, PAN, 
CIN/DIN & 
address 
with 
contact 
nos. 

Category of Person 
(KMP/ 
Directors/immediate 
relative to/others 
etc.) 

Securities held as on the date of 
regulation coming into force 

% of Unitholding 

         

         

 
 

 
Name & Signature: 
Designation: 
Place: 
Date: 



Annexure 5 

 
FORM B1 

 

SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 [Regulation 7 (1) (b) read with Regulation 
6(2) – Disclosure on becoming a director/KMP/Partner/ member of Sponsor Group] 

 
Name of the Trust:     

 

ISIN of the Trust:     
 

Details of Securities   held on appointment of Key Managerial Personnel  (KMP) or Director of the 
Manager of Mindspace REIT, its SPVs or upon becoming a Director or Partner or member of Sponsor 
Group of Mindspace REIT, its Manager, its SPVs and immediate relative of such persons and by other 
such persons as mentioned in Regulation 6(2) 

 

Name, PAN, 
CIN/DIN & 
address 
with 
contact 
nos. 

Category of Person 
(KMP/Directors/immediate 
relative to/others etc.) 

Date of appointment of 
Director  /KMP  OR 
Date  of    becoming 
sponsor/partner/mem 
ber 

Securities  held  as  on
the date of regulation
coming into force 

% of 
Unitholding 

           

           

. 
 

Name  & 
Signature: 
Designation: 
Place: 
Date: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 As per SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/ISD/ISD/CIR/P/2021/19 dated February 09, 2021, revised disclosure formats under 

Regulation 7 of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 



 

Annexure  6 

FORM C2 
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 [Regulation 7 (2) read with Regulation 6(2) – Continual disclosure] 

Name of the Trust: 
ISIN of the Trust: 
Details of change in holding of Securities of Partner/ Director, member of Sponsor Group, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Designated Persons or Director 
of SPV, member of the Governing Board of the Manager/Board of Directors of the SPVs and each of their Immediate Relatives and other such persons as 
mentioned in Regulation 6(2) 

 

Name, 
PAN, 
CIN/DIN 
& 
addre 
ss 
with 
contac 
t nos. 

Category 
of Person 
(KMP/De 
signated 
Persons/ 
Directors 
/ Partner/ 
Members 
of 
Sponsor 
Group/ 
Immediat 
e Relative 
to/others 
etc.) 

Securities
  held prior
to acquisition/ 
disposal 
(No and % of 
unitholding) 

Securities acquired/ disposed  Securities    held
    post 
acquisition/disposal 
(No  and  %    of
unitholding) 

Date  of 
allotment/ 
acquisition  of 
Securities/  sale 
of Securities 
specify 

Date   of 
intimatio 
n  to 
Manager 

Mode   of 
acquisition/ 
disposal (on 
market/ 
public/ 
rights/ 
preferential 
offer/  off 
market/ 
Inter‐se 
transfer/ 
ESOPs etc.) 

Exchange on 
which  the
trade  was
executed 

Type of 
security 
(For eg. – 
Shares, 
Warrants
, 
Converti
ble 
Debentur
es etc.) 

No. and 
% of 
sharehol
ding 

 Type of 
security 
(For eg. – 
Shares, 
Warrants, 
Convertible 
Debentures 
etc.) 

No.  Value  Transaction 
Type 
(Buy/ 
Sale/ Pledge/ 
Revoke/ 
Invoke) 

Type of 
security 
(For eg. – 
Shares, 
Warrants, 
Convertibl
e 
Debenture
s etc.) 

(No
  an
d  %
 
  of 
unitholdin
g) 

From  To 

                       

 

Note: “Securities” shall have the meaning as defined under Regulation 2(1)(i) of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.  

 

Name & Signature:     
Designation: 
Place: 
Date: 



 

2 As per SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/ISD/ISD/CIR/P/2021/19 dated February 09, 2021, revised disclosure formats under Regulation 7 of SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 

 



 

Annexure‐71 

DISCLOSURE – SECURITIES HOLDING AND IMMEDIATE RELATIVES, ETC. 
 

To, 
 
The Compliance Officer, 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT 

 

 
I  confirm and disclose that S/o /D/o  _Director/  Employee  do 
hereby 

 

(i) The following persons are my Immediate Relatives*: 
 

Sr. No.  Self and Name of the
Immediate Relative 

PAN  Relationship  Phone  /
Mobile 
No. 

 Securities 
Holding 

1.           

2.           

3.           

4.           

(ii) I share the material financial relationship# with following persons immediately preceding 12 
months; 

 

Sr. No.  Name  PAN  Relationship  Phone  /
Mobile 
No. 

Securities 
Holding 

1.           

2.           

3.           

4.           

 

(iii) 2 I also inform that the following are my graduation and past employment details; 
 

Sr. No.  Name of the Institution/University  Education Major  Graduated in the year 

       

       

       



AND 
 

Sr. No.  Name of the Company  Designation  Year of Employment 

       

       

       

 
(iv) I  also  inform  that  in  case of  any  change  in  the  abovementioned  list  in point  (i) &  (ii),  I  shall 
intimate the same in writing to the Compliance Officer. 

 
Name of Director/Employee:  Employee Code:     

 

Designation:  Company/Department:     
 
 
 

Signature of Director/Employee:     
 

Place 
: 
Date: 

 

 
* “Immediate Relative” means a spouse of a person, and includes parent, sibling and child of such 
person or of the spouse, any of whom is either dependent financially on such person or consults such 
person in taking decisions relating to trading in securities/units. 

 
# “Material financial relationship” shall mean a relationship in which one person is a recipient of any 
kind of payment such as by way of a loan or gift during the immediately preceding twelve months, 
equivalent  to  at  least  25%  of  the  annual  income  of  such  designated  person  but  excluding  the 
relationships  in which  the payment  is  based  on  arm’s 
length  transactions. 

 
 
 
 

 

1 To be given on Annual Basis and as and when, there is a change in the information provided except 
Securities holding 
2 To be given on one‐time basis 



 

Annexure 8 
 

FORM D (Indicative format)3 
 

SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 
 

Regulation 7(3) – Transactions by other connected persons as identified by the Manager 
 

Details of trading in Securities by other connected persons as identified by the Manager 
 

Name, 
PAN, 
CIN/DIN 
& 
address 
with contact 
nos of other 
connected 
persons 
are 
identified 
by  the 
Manager 

Connection 
with 
Mindspace 
REIT and its 
SPVs 

Securities held 
prior to acquisition 
/ disposal 

 
(No.  and %  of 
unitholding) 

Securities acquired/ 
disposed 

Securities held 
post 
acquisition/ 
disposal 
 

Date  of 
allotment  advice/ 
acquisition    of 
Securities/ sale of 
Securities      specify 

Date  of 
intimation  to
the 
Manager 

Mode   of 
acquisition/ 
disposal (on 
market/ 
public/ 
rights/ 
preferential 
offer/  off 
market/ 
inter‐se 
transfer/ 
ESOPs etc.) 

Exchan 
ge  on 
which 
the 
trade 
was 
execu 
ted 

Type of 
security 
(For eg. – 
Shares, 
Warrants
, 
Convertib
le 
Debentur
es etc.) 

No. and 
% of 
sharehol
ding 

No.  Value  Transaction 
type  (Buy/ 
Sale/ Pledge/ 
Revoke/ 
Invoke) 

Type of 
security 
(For eg. – 
Shares, 
Warrants
, 
Convertib
le 
Debentur
es etc.) 

No. and 
% of 
sharehol
ding 

From  To 

                       

                       

 

Note: “Securities” shall have the meaning as defined under Regulation 2(1)(i) of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015.  

 
Name: 
Signature 
Place: 
Date: 

 



3 As per SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/ISD/ISD/CIR/P/2021/19 dated February 09, 2021, revised disclosure formats under Regulation 7 of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 

 
 
 



Annexure‐9 
DECLARATION CUM UNDERTAKING 

To, 
The Compliance Officer, 
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 
Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT 

 
Dear Sir, 

 
With reference to the captioned subject, I hereby declare that: 

 
1. I have received the Policy on unpublished price sensitive information and dealing in Securities 

by the parties to Mindspace REIT and its SPVs (“Insider Policy” or “Policy”) and have read and 
understood the  same  and  I undertake to abide by the same. 

 
2. I have  read and understood  the Securities Exchange Board of  India  (Prohibition of  Insider 

Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time and do confirm and declare that I 
shall not violate the same in any manner whatsoever. 

 
3. In  case  I have access  to or  receive any  “Unpublished Price Sensitive  Information” before 

the execution of the transaction,  I shall  inform the Compliance Officer of the change  in my 
position and I shall completely refrain from dealing in Mindspace REIT’s and its SPVs Securities 
till the time such  information becomes public. 

 
4. I  have/will made/make  a  full  and  true  disclosures  regarding  trading  accounts  and  unit‐ 

holdings in my name and in the name of my dependent relatives, Concern(s), Firm(s), HUF(s), 
Trust(s) or Association of Person(s) in which I or my dependent relatives has a stake of more 
than 10%. 

 
5. I undertake not to pass on Unpublished Price Sensitive Information directly or indirectly to any 

persons or by way of making a recommendation for the  purchase  or sale of Mindspace REIT’s 
and its SPVs Securities. I also undertake not to use price sensitive information to buy or sell 
Mindspace  REIT’s  and  its  SPVs  Securities  of  any  sort, whether  for my  own  account, my 
dependent relative(s) account, employer’s  account  or  a  client’s account. 

 
 
 

Name of Designated Person/Employee:  Date of Joining:     

 

Name of the Employer:       

Department:     

 
 
Signature of Designated Person/      
Employee: 

 
Place: 
Date: 
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